
  

 

Meeting of the  
 

OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

________________________________________________ 
 

Tuesday, 10 March 2009 at 7.00 p.m. 
______________________________________ 

 

A G E N D A 
__________________________________________ 

 

VENUE 
Room M71, 7th Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, 

London, E14 2BG 
 
Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 
Chair: Councillor Abdul Asad  
Vice-Chair:Councillor Bill Turner   
  
  
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain 
Councillor Waiseul Islam 
Councillor Ann Jackson 
Councillor Shiria Khatun 
Councillor Abjol Miah 
Councillor Oliur Rahman 
Councillor A A Sardar 
Councillor David Snowdon 
 

Councillor M. Shahid Ali, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Abdul 
Asad, Waiseul Islam, Ann Jackson, Shiria 
Khatun, A. A. Sardar and Bill Turner) 
Councillor Tim Archer, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Ahmed 
Hussain and David Snowdon) 
Councillor Lutfa Begum, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Oliur 
Rahman) 
Councillor Peter Golds, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Ahmed 
Hussain and David Snowdon) 
Councillor Carli Harper-Penman, 
(Designated Deputy representing 
Councillors Abdul Asad, Waiseul Islam, 
Ann Jackson, Shiria Khatun, A. A. Sardar 
and Bill Turner) 
Councillor Azizur Rahman Khan, 
(Designated Deputy representing 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton) 
Councillor Rania Khan, (Designated 



 
 
 
 

Deputy representing Councillor Oliur 
Rahman) 
Councillor Abdul Matin, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Stephanie 
Eaton) 
Councillor Fozol Miah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor Harun Miah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor Tim O'Flaherty, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Stephanie 
Eaton) 
Councillor M. Mamun Rashid, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor Salim Ullah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Abdul 
Asad, Waiseul Islam, Ann Jackson, Shiria 
Khatun, A. A. Sardar and Bill Turner) 
 

[Note: The quorum for this body is 4 voting Members]. 
 
Co-opted Members:  
  
Mr D McLaughlin – Roman Catholic Diocese of Westminster 

Representative 
Mr Ahbab Miah – (Parent Governor Representative) 
Mr H Mueenuddin – Muslim Community Representative 
Mr Abdur Rouf – (Parent Governor Representative) 
Vacancy – Church of England Diocese Representative 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: Amanda Thompson, Democratic Services,  
Tel: 020 7364 4651, E-mail: amanda.thompson@towerhamlets.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

Tuesday, 10 March 2009 
 

7.00 p.m. 
 

 SECTION ONE 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

3 - 10  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 10 February 2009. 
 
 

  

4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  
 

  

 To be notified at the meeting. 
 

  

5. REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATIONS  
 

  

 To be notified at the meeting. 
 

  

6. SECTION ONE REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 

  

 There were no Section One reports ‘called in’ from the 
meeting of Cabinet held on held on 11 February 2009. 
 
 

  

7. SCRUTINY SPOTLIGHT - LEAD MEMBER  
 

  

 The Lead Member for Regeneration, Localisation and 
Community Partnerships, Councillor Ohid Ahmed, will 
attend to report on his portfolio. 
 
(Time allocated – 30 minutes) 
 
 

  



 
 
 
 

8. BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK ITEMS  
 

  

8 .1 Children and Young People's Plan 2009-12   
 

11 - 16  
 Note: 

The appendices referred to in this report were sent out to 
all Overview and Scrutiny Members under separate cover 
on 23 February 2009 – please bring them with you to the 
Overview and Scrutiny meeting. 
 
(Time allocated – 30 minutes) 
 

  

9. PERFORMANCE MONITORING  
 

  

9 .1 Members Enquiries   
 

17 - 24  
 (Time allocated – 15 minutes) 

 
  

9 .2 Strategic Plan Corporate Revenue Monitoring Report 
2008-09 (3rd Quarter)   

 
25 - 116  

 (Time allocated – 15 minutes) 
 

  

10. SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT  
 

  

10 .1 Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation Tracking 
Report   

 
117 - 268  

 (Time allocated – 15 minutes) 
 

  

11. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION ONE 
(UNRESTRICTED) CABINET PAPERS  

 

  

 (Time allocated – 15 minutes). 
 
 

  

12. ANY OTHER SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO 
BE URGENT  

 

  

  
 

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 In view of the contents of the remaining items on the agenda the Committee is 

recommended to adopt the following motion: 
 

“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the press and 
public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting for the consideration of the Section 
Two business on the grounds that it contains information defined as Exempt in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972.” 
 

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (Pink Papers) 



 
 
 
 
 

The exempt committee papers in the agenda will contain information, which is commercially, 
legally or personally sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties.  If you do not wish 
to retain these papers after the meeting, please hand them to the Committee Officer present. 
 

  
 

14. SECTION TWO REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 

  

 There were no Section Two reports ‘called in’ from the 
meeting of Cabinet held on 11 February 2009. 
 
 

  

15. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION TWO 
(RESTRICTED) CABINET PAPERS  

 

  

 (Time allocated 15 minutes). 
 

  

16. ANY OTHER SECTION TWO (RESTRICTED) 
BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS 
URGENT  

 

  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\5\8\AI00018855\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterestsosctte07010820.doc  
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
FOR MEMBERS OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\5\8\AI00018855\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterestsosctte07010820.doc  
  

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
There are particular rules relating to a prejudicial interest arising in relation to Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees 
 
• You will have a prejudicial interest in any business before an Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

or sub committee meeting where both of the following requirements are met:- 
 

(i) That business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) or action taken 
by the Council’s Executive (Cabinet) or another of the Council’s committees, sub 
committees, joint committees or joint sub committees 

 
(ii) You were a Member of that decision making body at the time and you were present at 

the time the decision was made or action taken. 
 
• If the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is conducting a review of the decision which you were 

involved in making or if there is a ‘call-in’ you may be invited by the Committee to attend that 
meeting to answer questions on the matter in which case you must attend the meeting to 
answer questions and then leave the room before the debate or decision.   

 
• If you are not called to attend you should not attend the meeting in relation to the matter in 

which you participated in the decision unless the authority’s constitution allows members of 
the public to attend the Overview & Scrutiny for the same purpose.  If you do attend then you 
must declare a prejudicial interest even if you are not called to speak on the matter and you 
must leave the debate before the decision. 

 

Page 2



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
10/02/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.00 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 10 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

M71, 7TH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, 
LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Abdul Asad (Chair) 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Ann Jackson 
Councillor Shiria Khatun 
Councillor Abjol Miah 
Councillor A A Sardar 
Councillor David Snowdon 
Councillor Bill Turner (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Peter Golds (Deputising for Councillor Ahmed Hussain) 
 
Other Councillors Present: 
Councillor Rofique U Ahmed 
Councillor Joshua Peck 
 
Co-opted Members Present: 
 
Mr H Mueenuddin – Muslim Community Representative 

 
Officers Present: 
 
Ashraf Ali – (Scrutiny Policy Officer) 
Lutfur Ali – (Assistant Chief Executive) 
David Galpin – (Head of Legal Services, Community) 
Stephen Halsey – (Corporate Director, Communities, Localities and 

Culture) 
Afazul Hoque – (Acting Scrutiny Policy Manager, Scrutiny and 

Equalities, Chief Executive's) 
Michael Keating – (Service Head Scrutiny & Equalities, Chief 

Executive's) 
 

Amanda Thompson – (Team Leader - Democratic Services) 
 
 
 
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 
The Chair welcomed Mr Galpin to the meeting and informed Members that he 
would be providing legal advice to the Committee. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
10/02/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

The Chair also informed Members that Mr Abdur Rouf and Ahbab Miah have 
been appointed as Parent Governor Representatives on the Committee and 
would be joining from the March meeting. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ahmed Hussain and 
Waiseul Islam. 
 
Councillor Peter Golds was present as substitute for Councillor Hussain.  
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Ann Jackson declared a personal interest by reason of being a 
council tax payer.  It was noted that all members of the Committee were 
council tax payers. 
  

 
3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED 
 
That the unrestricted minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2009 be 
agreed as a correct record. 
 
 

4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  
 
None. 
 
 

5. REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATIONS  
 
None. 
 
 

6. SECTION ONE REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 
There were no Section One reports ‘called in’ from the meeting of Cabinet 
held on 14 January 2009. 
 
 

7. BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK ITEMS  
 
 

7.1 General Fund Budget Requirement & Council Tax 2009/10 & Medium 
Term Financial Plan 2009/10 to 2011/12  
 

Page 4



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
10/02/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

Councillor Josh Peck, Lead Member for Performance and Resources, 
presented the budget proposals for 2009/10, and highlighted some of the key 
limitations and factors within which it had to be formulated.  These limitations 
included the tightening financial situation that the Council faced due to the 
current economic downturn, and the Government’s efficiency targets. 
 
Councillor Peck advised that the budget process had been geared towards 
the Council’s five priorities of: 
 

• Reducing over-crowding 
• Raising GCSE results to be the best in the country 
• Reducing levels of youth unemployment 
• Tackling anti-social behaviour and crime 
• Improving cleanliness and quality of the public realm 

 
and included additional funding for carers, young people and for the Safer & 
Stronger communities partnership. 
 
Councillor Peck responded in detail to questions concerning the Council’s 
Overcrowding Strategy, use of General Fund reserves, location of CCTV 
cameras, and the allocations. 
 
The Committee expressed concern with regard to the amount of money the 
Council was investing into waste disposal, but welcomed the proposals to 
increase recycling which hopefully would reduce these costs.  
 
The Committee also had some discussion about the budget consultation and 
suggested that in future more specific consultation should be undertaken with 
local residents and businesses about the budget priorities annually despite 
the fact that the Council had agreed a three year budget.  
 
Following discussion the Committee: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
To support the budget, in particular the proposal that the level of Council Tax 
would increase by only 1.69% and that the payment period would be 
extended from 10 months to 12 months. The Committee also welcomed the 
proposed efficiency savings and additional investments. 
 
 

7.2 Capital Programme 2009/10 & Indicative Programme 2010/11 to 2011/12  
 
This item was considered together with item 7.1 
 
 

8. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  
 
 

8.1 Tower Hamlets Index  - Monitoring Report October-November 2009  

Page 5



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
10/02/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

 
Councillor Peck presented the fourth monitoring report for the new Tower 
Hamlets Index covering the period October-November 2008.  
 
The Committee noted that 11 of the 25 applicable performance indicators 
(44%) were on track to achieve their end of year target. A total of 14 indicators 
(56%) were not meeting their October-November target, of which 4 were 
predicted to return to target by year end (Amber), while 10 would not (Red). 
 
Councillor Peck advised that compared to the last round of monitoring, the 
proportion of Red indicators had decreased slightly, and overall the targets 
were moving in the right direction. 
 
The Committee expressed concern that some indicators were moving from 
Amber to Red instead of Amber to Green, for example the number of sick 
days taken. Councillor Peck advised that sickness levels were hard to 
manage but that managers were continuing to implement the correct 
procedures in order to address this. 
 
The Committee asked whether or not it would be possible to include targets 
for each Directorate, and also suggested that it would be helpful to show 
comparisons to the previous year’s performance as well as month on month. 
Councillor Peck agreed to try and incorporate this. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
 

9. SCRUTINY SPOTLIGHT - LEAD MEMBER  
 
Councillor Rofique Uddin Ahmed, Lead Member for Culture, gave a 
presentation on the key issues, opportunities and challenges arising from his 
portfolio. Councillor Ahmed was supported by Steve Halsey, Corporate 
Director, Communities, Localities and Culture, and Heather Bonfield, Interim 
Head of Cultural Services. 
 
The Committee noted a number of achievements during 2008/9 which 
included: 
 

• 61% of local leisure centre users rated the facilities as good, very good, 
or excellent; 

 
• 4th highest level of library participation in the UK, and 3rd highest in 

London; 
 

• Spa London short listed for Day spa/City spa of the year 
 

• Quest Accreditation Sports and Physical Activity/York Hall 

Page 6



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
10/02/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

 
Ms Bonfield then highlighted the key priorities which included the 
development programme for the Baishakhi Mela, the Idea Store Strategy, the 
Leisure Centre Strategy, Events in Parks, supporting the Healthy Towns 
Programme, and the Local Heritage Strategy. 
 
In response to questions the Committee noted that: 
 

• It was possible that the memorial in Bethnal Green could be funded 
from S106 negotiations; 

 
• Events in parks required greater consultation with residents who live 

nearby and the Council was looking to introduce a ‘Major Events 
Policy; 

 
• Spa London was in profit; 

 
• The Council aimed to provide facilities for all sports and recreational 

activities; 
 

• The Council is working with the PCT on a range of initiatives to tackle 
obesity; 

 
• While swimming lessons were made widely available there is still work 

to do on the provision of sufficient numbers of women-only sessions. 
 
Members of the Committee also asked questions about the future 
management of the Mela and also how the Heritage Strategy could include 
consideration of the Bancroft Road Local History and Archives. 
 
The Chair thanked Councillor Ahmed and the officers for their attendance and 
for providing responses to the questions raised by the Committee. 
 
 

10. VERBAL UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY LEADS  
 
Scrutiny Lead  - One Tower Hamlets - Councillor Ann Jackson 
  
Child Poverty Scrutiny Review. 
 
Councillor Jackson reported that the Working Group had been undertaking 1-
2-1 interviews with local residents and had now completed 7 detailed 
interviews which together with the evidence considered to date would be used 
to inform the Tackling Child Poverty Strategy which Children’s Services were 
putting together. The interviews had been really useful in bringing together 
diversity and equalities issues which were at the heart of child poverty to the 
review.   
 

Page 7



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
10/02/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

The next session was on the 19th of February with another session on 26th 
February 2009 for the Working Group to fully consider the evidence to date. 
The final meeting to consider the recommendations would take place on 2 
April 2009 and the report presented to OSC in May 2009.  
 
Scrutiny Lead – Prosperous Communities – Councillor A A Sardar 
 
Parental Involvement in Secondary Education Scrutiny Review 
 
Councillor Sardar reported that a review meeting to evaluate the different 
parental engagement programmes in Tower Hamlets had taken place, and it 
had been evident that the Council was doing a lot of good work to engage 
parents but needed to find ways to encourage better participation from 
fathers. 
 
Councillor Sardar had recently attended a parents evening at Raines School 
to talk to parents about the barriers they faced when engaging with their 
child’s school. He had also taken part in a parenting programme at Oaklands 
School and the feed back received from parents had been very positive.  
 
The next review meeting would be held on the 25 February 2009 and Head 
Teachers had been invited to attend to give their views on parental 
engagement. 
 
Scrutiny Lead – Safe and Supportive Communities – Councillor Shiria 
Khatun 
 
Smashed, Alcohol Misuse and Young People Scrutiny Review  
 
Councillor Khatun reported that a further review meeting with local 
organisations involved with young people and alcohol misuse had taken place 
in order to discuss how the problems could be addressed.   
 
The Working Group would also be visiting the Harca Boys and Girls club to 
speak to the young people about their experiences of alcohol misuse, and on 
19 February would be visiting Lifeline, an agency that treated young people 
with alcohol problems. 
 
The final review meeting would take place on the 23 February 2009.  
 

   Scrutiny Lead - Excellent Public Services – Councillor Bill Turner 
 
Early Intervention – Child Protection Scrutiny Review 
 
Councillor Turner reported that a focus group with practitioners from across 
the Borough had taken place on 22 January 2009. The session had been very 
well attended with representatives from Children’s Social Care, Adult’s Mental 
Health, the PCT, the police, Children’s Centres and Headteachers, and the 
session had proved invaluable in gaining a perspective from the frontline. 
 

Page 8



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
10/02/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

Preparations for site visits to neighbouring boroughs were currently underway. 
 
 

11. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
CABINET PAPERS  
 
No Section One pre-decision questions for Cabinet were submitted. 
 
 

12. ANY OTHER SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) BUSINESS WHICH THE 
CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT  
 
Extreme Weather Conditions – Snow Clearance Update 
 
At the request of the Committee Steve Halsey, Corporate Director, 
Communities, Localities and Culture gave members a brief update on the 
recent extreme weather conditions, including the actions taken, and the 
processes and procedures that were put in place. 
 
During a detailed discussion the following general points were noted; 
 

• Concerns were raised regarding the lack of communication and 
updates between officers and Members.  

 
• Some Members expressed their disappointment in the way in which the 

Service had operated, despite having received early warnings of this 
weather.    

 
• Members asked questions on the processes currently in place and 

what precautions would be taken in the future.  
 

• That meal deliveries and delivery of services for vulnerable people in 
the Borough had continued despite the weather conditions, and no 
services had been suspended.     

 
• Members generally raised the concern that side streets, residential 

areas and pavements were not gritted and had been causing a hazard 
for local residents.  

 
• That the extreme weather conditions had tested the Borough’s snow 

contingency plans and had also required the Borough Emergency Call 
Centre to be activated.  

 
• The Council’s ‘Snow Plan’ would be reviewed in order to update and 

revise where necessary, and to formalise the process for the future.  
 

• Members suggested that officers review the gritting of side streets and 
to focus on pavements (footways) for safety of residents. 

 

Page 9



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
10/02/2009 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

• Members also asked to be provided with clarification about the 
responsibilities of RSLs. 

 
 
The meeting finished at 9.25pm 
 
 
 
Councillor Abdul Asad, Chair 
 
 

Page 10



 

 
1 

Committee: 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
 

Date: 
 
10 March 2009 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: Agenda 
Item: 
 
8.1 

Report of:  
 
Corporate Director of Children’s Services 
 
Originating officer(s)  
 
Anthony Walters - Service Head, 
Strategy, Partnerships and Performance. 
Laura Murdoch – Strategy, Partnerships 
and Performance 
 

Title: Children and Young People’s Plan 2009-12 
Wards Affected: ALL 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report presents the draft 3-year Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) 

2009-12 which we are required to publish in April 2009. The draft plan can be 
found at Appendix 1.   

1.2 The CYPP falls under the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework and the 
comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be tabled at the Cabinet 
meeting on 11 March 2009 for Members’ consideration. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 Overview and Scrutiny are asked to consider the draft CYPP at Appendix 1and 

provide comments for submission to Cabinet. 
 
 
     

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 11



 

 
2 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) is an important element of the 

reforms underpinned by the Children Act 2004. On the basis of a statutory duty, 
all local authorities are required to produce a single, strategic, overarching plan 
for all services affecting children and young people every three years (to be 
reviewed each year in which the authority is not required to publish a plan). The 
CYPP supports more integrated and effective services to secure better outcomes 
for children.  The last Tower Hamlets three year CYPP was published in April 
2006.  We are therefore required to publish a new three year plan in April this 
year. 

 
3.2 The CYPP is ‘owned’ by the Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership 

Group (CYPSPG) which is Tower Hamlets Children’s Trust Board. The CYPSPG 
is one of the five community plan delivery groups. Through developing and 
implementing the CYPP, the CYPSPG focuses on all of the community plan 
priorities as they relate to children, young people and their families in Tower 
Hamlets. Expert theme groups which focus on developing the more detailed work 
around each of the Every Child Matters themes1 report into the CYPSPG which is 
chaired by the Lead Member for Children’s Services. 

 
3.3 The new CYPP is different to previous plans. It is shorter and more focussed on 

key priorities, outlining what will be done differently over the next three years to 
address these priorities. It has a more developed localisation section and has 
identified three new cross-cutting themes which run throughout the plan: tackling 
child poverty, engaging the community and supporting families. The new CYPP 
does not attempt to outline everything that will be done over the next 3 years. 
Instead, the final plan will be accompanied by detailed delivery plans for each 
Every Child Matter theme. 

 
3.4 The CYPP falls under the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework and the 

comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be tabled at the Cabinet 
meeting for Members’ consideration.  Cabinet is required by the Council’s 
Constitution to take account of the views of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, before submitting recommendations to Full Council.  The CYPP 
will be considered by full Council in April. A full process timeline can be found at  
Appendix 2.   

   
 
4. THE NEW THREE YEAR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN 
 

 
4.1 This strategic three year Children and Young People’s plan does not attempt to 

cover all the activity going on in Children’s Services.  External validation of 
                                                 
1 Be Healthy; Stay Safe; Enjoy and Achieve; Make a Positive Contribution; Achieve Economic Wellbeing 
as well as Excellent Children’s Services 

Page 12



 

 
3 

performance has given the directorate confidence in the core elements of its 
approach and this plan focuses on the key issues where it hasn’t yet made the 
impact that children and young people deserve. 

 
4.2 To help measure progress, performance indicators have been identified for each 

of the themed sections. Targets for these indicators will be determined prior to 
publication, using the latest available performance data.  
 
Developing the plan 
 

4.3 To develop the plan a needs analysis was carried out alongside an extensive 
consultation.  The consultation was carried out with children, young people and 
their families as well as those who deliver services for children. The consultation 
fulfilled all statutory requirements as set out in The Children and Young People's 
Plan (England) Regulations 2005.  The needs analysis and consultation have 
informed the cross-cutting themes, the theme specific priorities and local 
priorities, as well as the ‘what we’ll do differently’ sections of this plan.  
 

4.4 An emphasis was placed on involving local residents from the start, ensuring 
they were given an opportunity to shape the CYPP for the next three years. In 
October 2008 a 'Tag Wagon' was commissioned – a van installed with 
multimedia equipment - and used to carry out innovative workshops, designed to 
find out what people think about a range of issues that affect them in the 
borough. The Tag Wagon travelled around the borough visiting Children's 
Centres, schools, youth projects, markets and Idea Stores to gather views from 
children, young people and families. From this consultation, a ‘Tag Map’ has 
been created, documenting the views of residents, highlighting what local needs 
and issues are. Through an online blog, local residents and practitioners were 
also able to comment on the draft plan. As with previous versions of the CYPP, 
we have illustrated some of the comments made during the consultation and how 
we are responding to them in the plan itself. A full consultation report will also be 
published alongside the new CYPP, a draft of which can be found at Appendix 3. 
  
Delivering the plan 
 

4.5 The plan will be delivered through the Local Strategic Partnership.  The Children 
and Young People’s Strategic Partnership Group (CYPSPG) is the Community 
Plan Delivery Group which is accountable for delivering the CYPP and monitors 
and reviews progress made on a regular basis taking action where necessary.  
The CYPSPG also has members from the LAPs to ensure progress against local 
priorities for children, young people and their families as well as the borough 
wide priorities. A progress review against the priorities and activities outlined in 
this plan will be published on an annual basis. 

 
 
 

Page 13



 

 
4 

Launching the plan 
 

4.6 The new CYPP will be published at the end of April 2009.  The plan will be 
 published online and will be interactive.  However we will also produce a small 
 number of hard copies.  We are planning a high profile media launch of the plan 
 at the end of April which will involve all of our key partners. 
 
 
5. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
5.1 The CYPP is concerned with planning and directing the 

resources allocated through the budget process to the Council's priorities in 
relation to these services, and providing targets against which the use of 
resources can be assessed. Thus it contributes to achieving value for money for 
the use of these resources.   

  
5.2     At this stage, there is no identified impact on Children’s Services revenue or 

capital budgets arising from this plan. As indicated by the Medium Term Financial 
Plan considered by the Cabinet at its meeting on 11th February, the CYPP 
coincides with a period of tightening resources and greater financial risk for the 
authority. Any additional resource requirements to achieve the agreed priorities 
will be identified through the budget process and will need to be contained within 
existing budgets.  

  
5.3    The costs associated with the consultation and publication of the CYPP will be 

contained within existing budgets.   
 
6. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 
 
6.1 Cabinet is requested to recommend the draft Children and Young People’s Plan 

(“CYPP”) at Appendix 1 of the report to Full Council. 
 
6.2 Pursuant to section 17 of the Children Act 2004 and the Children and Young 

People’s Plan (England) Regulations 2005 the Council is required, as a children’s 
services authority, to prepare and publish a plan setting out the Council’s 
strategy for discharging its functions in relation to children and relevant young 
persons. 

 
6.3 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, the CYPP is part of the policy 

framework and falls to be approved by Full Council. 
 
6.4 The regulations require the Children and Young People’s Plan to set out the 

following matters: 
a. Improvements which the Council intends to make during the plan period to 

the well-being of children and young people; 
b. The Council’s vision for children and young people; 

Page 14



 

 
5 

c. An assessment of needs in relation to the outcomes; 
d. Priorities and key actions planned to achieve the improvements; 
e. A statement of how resources will be deployed to achieve the outcomes; 
f. An explanation of how the plan relates to arrangements for performance 

management and review of services; 
g. The arrangements for co-operation under the duty to co-operate and with 

other partners; 
h. An explanation of how the CYPP is consistent with the strategic plans of 

local partners. 
 
6.5 Alongside the statutory duties and the plan, new non-statutory CYPP guidance 

for local authorities was published in January 2009.  This guidance brings 
together a check list of the 2005 and 2007 CYPP regulations and sets out the 
necessary steps a Local Authority must take in preparing, consulting, reviewing 
and publishing their CYPP. It also provides guidance on the scope, content and 
delivery of the CYPP. 

 
6.6 The preparation of the CYPP as set out in the report fulfills the statutory 

requirements and it is open to Cabinet to recommend approval by Full Council. 
 
7. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Reduce inequalities 
7.1 The CYPP specifically addresses the needs of vulnerable and disadvantaged 

groups.  It also explicitly articulates how we plan to tackle high levels of child 
poverty. The Council’s policies and functions that underpin the delivery of this 
plan are subjected to equality impact assessments looking at the six equality 
strands (Age, Disability, Ethnicity, Gender, Faith and Sexual Orientation). In 
addition every new policy or function arising from this plan will be equality impact 
assessed. 

Ensure strong community cohesion 
7.2 One of the three overarching themes of the plan is “engaging with the 

community” and it explicitly articulates how we are going to better meet the 
needs of our diverse community as a whole over the next three years.  A specific 
priority around promoting community cohesion can be found in the ‘Make a 
Positive Contribution’ section of the plan. 

Strengthen community leadership 
7.3 An extensive consultation about what the CYPP should include has ensured a 

high level of community involvement in developing the plan.  In terms of 
implementation, the plan also has a more developed localisation section which 
focuses on tackling local priorities within the paired Local Area Partnerships 
(LAPs). 

Page 15



 

 
6 

8. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
8.1 In the plan there is a commitment to “build environmentally sustainable buildings, 

re-using existing buildings wherever possible”.  The plan also highlights 
sustainability as being part of a broader more engaging curriculum (see the 
‘Enjoy and Achieve’ section of the plan).   

 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1 We have a statutory duty to publish a CYPP every three years.  The last three 
 year CYPP we published was in April 2006 and therefore there is a risk if the 
 plan is not agreed that we will fall short of legal requirements. 
 
10. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 

Through clearer prioritisation in the new CYPP, we can better align resources 
against the delivery of priorities therefore maximising their impact 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
  

Brief description of “back ground papers” Name and telephone number of holder  
and address where open to inspection. 
 

NONE  
 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Draft Children and Young People’s Plan 2009-12 
 
Appendix 2 – Process timeline for developing the new Children and Young 
People’s Plan 2009-12 
 
Appendix 3 – Draft CYPP Consultation report 
 

 

Page 16



 - 1 - 

Committee 
 
Overview & Scrutiny 

Date 
 
10th  March 2009 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 

Report No. Agenda Item 
No. 
 
9.1 
 
 

Report of   
Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Originating Officer(s): 
John S Williams/Beverley McKenzie 
  
                     

Title 
 
Members’ Enquiries 
 
Wards affected:  All 

 
 

1 SUMMARY 
 

1.1 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee have been kept advised of the progress 
on the Members’ Enquiries Business Process Improvement (BPI) project.  
This report updates Members on further progress in finalizing the project and 
sets out current performance data in relation to Members’ Enquiries. 
 

1.2 The majority of the key milestones on the BPI project have been completed 
as advised in the October report.  The focus has now moved towards 
continuing improvement on the timely responses to Members and 
strengthening the improvements in the quality of the responses.  Initiatives 
are under development for Quality Assurance of the responses to Members 
Enquiries, and these will be presented to the Performance Review Group in 
April 2009.  
 

1.3 In relation to response times, the performance target of 85% of enquiries 
responded to within the 10 working days is a strategic performance indicator.  
The corporate results are reported to LAB/CMT on a bi-monthly basis and the 
specific performance of each directorate is shared amongst the CMT on a 
monthly basis. 
 

1.4 The performance indicator is inclusive of both the Council and external bodies 
(such as RSLs and Metropolitan Police). 
 

 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 That the Committee notes the current activities and progress made in the 

Members’ Enquiries Business Process Improvement project and the 
movement to continuous improvement. 
 

2.2 That the improvement in timeliness of responding to Members’ Enquiries is 
noted and that all Council departments are now achieving the performance 
target of 85%.  Further work will be undertaken to ensure early achievement 
of the target across external bodies. 
 

2.3 That a further progress report and performance data be submitted in October 
2009. 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 9.1

Page 17



 - 2 - 

3 INTRODUCTION 
 

3.1 Members’ Enquiries are the formal requests for information from a Councillor 
and are logged onto the Siebel ICT system and distributed to the relevant 
Directorates or external body for response.  The Members’ Enquiries system 
has been developed to support this and enhance the Community Leadership 
activities of the elected Members.  This support is extended to the elected 
Tower Hamlets’ Members of Parliament.  The Members’ enquiries system 
enables these members to ask questions of the Council Officers. 
 

3.2 A BPI project for Members’ Enquiries was initiated following concern amongst 
some Members regarding variable speed and quality of responses to 
enquiries.  The aims of the project can be summarized as follows: 
• To increase Members’ satisfaction with responses; 
• To increase the proportion of enquiries answered within the target time; 

and 
• To reduce the amount of staff time spent dealing with enquiries. 

 
3.3 The project comprises delivery of an improvement action plan with three 

themes: 
(i) Providing information to Members though briefings, improvements 

to the intranet, etc. to help reduce the number of enquiries raised. 
(ii) Improving the Quality of Responses – including the development of 

Best Practice Guidance and implementation of quality monitoring at 
the Directorate level to ensure the quality of responses received are to 
the satisfaction of Members. 

(iii) Streamlining the end-to-end process – including the introduction of 
a Members’ Hotline and improvements to Siebel ICT system and 
related processes to allow for quicker responses and improved 
tracking. 

 
 
4 PROGRESS UPDATE 

 
4.1 Implementation of the Improvement Action Plan began in May 2007 and 

regular activities have taken place since.  The project activities have delivered 
some improvements in both quality and speed of response, with Council 
directorates presently achieving the target of 85% of enquiries responded to 
within 10 working days, it is noted that overall speed of response and quality 
has scope for further improvement.  Many of the milestones within the project 
have now been completed and attention is now focused on sustaining the 
improvement in response time, continued improvement and measuring the 
quality of responses and working with external bodies that have not yet 
achieved the target. 
 
 
Quality Process 
 

4.2 In terms of quality of response to Members’ Enquiries, Officers are advised to 
respond in full in accordance within the required timescales.  Where a 
complete response is not possible within the 10 working day deadlines, 
Officers are advised to send an interim response, to be followed by a full 
response as soon as possible.  The target for responding to Members’ 
enquiries is also set out clearly in the Constitution (Member Officer Protocol – 

Page 18



 - 3 - 

paragraph 10.5).   
 

4.3 Regular meetings of the Directorates Members’ Enquiries officers continue to 
be held to share best practice and develop quality guidelines for processing 
Members’ Enquiries.  As previously advised, this has resulted in the 
Members’ Enquiries Guide which was implemented in June 2008.  More 
recently the forum has shared best practice to enable better internal 
monitoring on the timeliness of responses and has focused discussions on 
quality control measures and the development of a quality assurance 
performance indicator. 
 

4.4 The RSLs have been made aware of the Council’s targets with regards to 
timely and quality responses to Members’ Enquiries.  The Chief Executive 
sent correspondence to each of the RSLs regarding this in November 2008.  
The RSLs have formulated a Tower Hamlets Housing Forum draft Protocol 
for Members’ Enquiries which affirms their support that the minimum standard 
of response will aim to set similar timescale as responses expected from 
Council Officers.  It is expected that the RSLs will ratify their protocol at their 
meeting on 25 February 2009. 

 
4.5 Further work with the RSLs on the performance management of Members’ 

Enquiries has been delayed due to the delays in the implementation of the 
Business Objects Reporting tool.  This reporting tool enables the Council to 
generate reports, and will allow targeted information on outstanding enquiries 
and performance results to be shared with the outside bodies.  Unfortunately, 
the full implementation was delayed to 31 March 2009 and due to data 
security, there has not been an alternative mechanism to pro-actively 
disseminate the information to outside bodies.  
 
Members’ Hotline 
 

4.6 The Members’ Hotline is a restricted telephone number into the Customer 
Contact Centre (CCC) for the exclusive use of the Members.  The calls 
receive a very high priority level, second only to race & hate crime reporting, 
and the Hotline therefore represents an opportunity for Members to obtain a 
quicker response than through the traditional Members’ Enquiry process.  
Regrettably, the Members’ Hotline has not been well utilised.  The volume of 
calls to the hotline remains minimal (60 calls from April 2008 to February 
2009).   This service is being continued to support Members with a view to 
streamlining the process, in addition to the usual ME provision. 
 

 
5 PERFORMANCE DATA 

 
5.1 Performance is monitored by the volume (by percentage) of enquiries 

completed within the target of 10 working days. 
 

5.2 The figures from September 2008 through January 2009 indicate that there 
has been a measurable improvement in performance.  Further improvement 
is still required, particularly as it pertains to the external partners.  The Council 
Directorates have met and consistently exceeded the performance target 
since October 2008.  However, as the external partners are responsible for 
approximately 60% of the responses to Members’ Enquiries, their lack of 
performance has impacted on the overall performance indicator.  The 
summary monthly performance figures for 2008/09 to January, the last month 

Page 19



 - 4 - 

for which final figures are available at the time of writing, follow and the full 
analysis by directorate is attached at Appendix 1. 

 
  

 2008-09  2007-08 
Month MEs 

closed 
% within 10 WD  MEs closed % within 10 WD 

April 557 64.09%  394 61.68% 
May 424 60.85%  480 56.04% 
June 509 69.16%  453 72.63% 
July 597 74.37%  455 74.51% 
August 509 68.17%  526 71.48% 
September 602 78.90%  436 71.56% 
October 603 82.26%  425 71.76% 
November 496 86.09%  522 66.28% 
December 361 88.37%  321 73.83% 
January 452 83.19%  445 68.36% 
February    494 65.69% 
March    443 67.27% 

 
 
 
6 CONFIDENTIALITY OF MEMBERS’ ENQUIRIES 

 
6.1 Confidentiality and trust is central to an effective Members’ Enquiries process 

and the Council’s Constitution includes a Member/Officer Protocol which sets 
out the key requirements in this regard. 
 

6.2 This message has been reinforced in the guidance that has been distributed 
to ensure that responses to Members’ Enquiries are timely and of high 
quality, but that answers should be sent only to the Member who made the 
enquiry and to anyone they have specifically asked to be copied in.  Breaches 
of this have been taken seriously and are addressed with responsible 
Officers.  Action is being taken to amend the wording of the enquiry to ensure 
that each enquiry includes a clear instruction to respond only to the Member 
that has initiated the enquiry. 
 
 

7 COMMENTS FROM THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 
 

7.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations 
contained in this report. 
 
 

8 CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
(LEGAL SERVICES) 
 

8.1 There are no immediate legal implications relating to the recommendations 
contained in this report. 
 
 

9 ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS  
 

9.1 The Members’ Enquiries system seeks to ensure that all Tower Hamlets 
residents, including those who require advocacy or support from their elected 

Page 20



 - 5 - 

representatives, have access to the Council’s services and information.  
Improving the process is therefore key to ensuring equal access for all. 
 

 
10 SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 

 
10.1 Many of the Members’ enquiries relate to reports of environmental issues 

such as dumped rubbish or conditions of street and estates.   The rapid 
resolution of these issues supports the Council’s Living Safely and Cleaner, 
Greener objectives. 
 

11 RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 

11.1 There are no risk management implications arising from this report. 
  
 
 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
Brief description of “back ground papers” 
 
 

Name and telephone number of holder  
And address where open to inspection. 
 

None  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 - 6 - 

Appendix A 
Performance Results – September 2008 to January 2009  
 

68.17%

78.90%
82.26%

86.09%
88.37%

83.19%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

LBTH
Non-LBTH
TOTAL

LBTH 70.95% 83.53% 92.41% 95.71% 95.71% 95.58%
Non-LBTH 66.22% 75.64% 75.68% 79.02% 83.71% 74.91%
TOTAL 68.17% 78.90% 82.26% 86.09% 88.37% 83.19%

August Sep-08 Oct-08 Nov-08 Dec-08 Jan-09

 
 
 

Volume of Enquiries by Directorate – April 2008 to Feb. 2009 
 

 

Page 22



 
- 7

 - 

   
Me

mb
ers

' E
nq

uir
ies

 - P
erf

or
ma

nc
e b

y D
ire

cto
rat

e
Fr
om

To

Nu
m
be

r
%

Nu
m
be

r
%

Nu
m
be

r
%

Nu
m
be

r
%

Nu
m
be

r
%

Nu
m
be

r
%

Ad
ult
s H

ea
lth
 &
 W

ell
be
ing

38
97

.4
4%

1
2.
56

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
6

39
8.
63

%
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti
ve

13
10

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
4

13
2.
88

%
Ch

ild
ren

's 
Se
rvi
ce
s

18
10

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
6

18
3.
98

%
Co

mm
, L
oc
ali
tie
s &

 C
ult
ur
e

69
94

.5
2%

4
5.
48

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
7

73
16

.1
5%

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
& 
Re

ne
wa

l
18

85
.7
1%

3
14

.2
9%

0
0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
7

21
4.
65

%
Re

so
ur
ce
s

17
10

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
5

17
3.
76

%
LB

TH
17

3
95
.58

%
8

4.4
2%

0
0.0

0%
0

0.0
0%

0
0.0

0%
0

0.0
0%

18
1

40
.0
4%

Me
tro

po
lita

n P
oli
ce

0
0.
00

%
1

33
.3
3%

0
0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
2

66
.6
7%

88
3

0.
66

%
Ot
he
r

1
10

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

0.
00

%
0

1
0.
22

%
Re

gis
ter

ed
 So

cia
l L
an
dlo

rd
53

60
.2
3%

16
18

.1
8%

0
0.
00

%
6

6.
82

%
5

5.
68

%
8

9.
09

%
20

88
19

.4
7%

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es

14
9

83
.2
4%

15
8.
38

%
9

5.
03

%
3

1.
68

%
1

0.
56

%
2

1.
12

%
9

17
9

39
.6
0%

No
n-L

BT
H

20
3

74
.91

%
32

11
.81

%
9

3.3
2%

9
3.3

2%
6

2.2
1%

12
4.4

3%
27

1
59

.9
6%

TO
TA

L
37
6

83
.19

%
40

8.8
5%

9
1.9

9%
9

1.9
9%

6
1.3

3%
12

2.6
5%

11
45

2
10
0.0

0%

Da
ta 

Ex
tra

ct:
 5/

2/0
9 -

 2:
49

 pm

51
+ W

or
kin

g 
Av

era
ge

 
Da

ys
 to

 
ME

s 
co

mp
let

ed
 in

 
% 

of 
tot

al 
ME

s

01
-Ja

n-0
9

31
-Ja

n-0
9

0-1
0 W

or
kin

g 
11
-20

 W
or
kin

g 
21
-30

 W
or
kin

g 
31
-40

 W
or
kin

g 
41
-50

 W
or
kin

g 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s) Date: Classification: Report 
No: 

Agenda 
Item No: 

   Overview and Scrutiny 
Cabinet 

10th March 2009          
11th March 2009 

Unrestricted   

Report of: Title: 
 

Assistant Chief Executive 
Corporate Director, Resources 
Originating Officer(s) 
Lucy Sutton, Performance Manager 
Martin McGrath, Financial Planning and 
Systems Manager 

 

Strategic Plan and Corporate  
Revenue Budget Monitoring report  
2008-09 
 
Performance to 31st December 
2008  
 
Wards affected:  All 
 

 
1 SUMMARY 

1.1 Effective performance monitoring and reporting is crucial to the way the 
Council drives improvement in services. This report draws together the 
performance monitoring reports on the Strategic Indicators and General 
Fund Revenue Budget.  Combining our performance and financial reporting 
in this way strengthens the Council’s robust performance management 
arrangements. 

1.2 This is a combined service and financial performance report, which covers 
the authority’s progress against a basket of performance indicators and its 
financial position to the end of December 2008 (Quarter 3).  This report 
includes monitoring updates for:- 

• Performance indicators. 
• Corporate Revenue Budget Monitoring. 

 
1.3 The performance information is contained in the report appendices as 

follows: 
• Appendix 1 provides an overview of performance and comments on 

each Tower Hamlets Index (Strategic) indicator 
• Appendix 2 provides an overview of performance and comments on 

each Priority indicator 
 
1.4 Compared to a total net budget of £296.387m, spending is projected to total 

£294.059m. This represents a projected underspend of £2.328m for the 
authority on the General Fund revenue budget  for the current financial year 
which is an increase in the underspend reported in the second quarter’s 
report.  A number of directorates are reporting overspends and it will be 
important for Corporate Directors to act to contain these overspends in the 
coming months. 

 
 

Agenda Item 9.2

Page 25



2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee is requested to: 
 

2.1 Review and note the performance information set out in the report. 
 

2.2 Consider any further action or research required to ensure performance 
improvement and recommend Cabinet accordingly. 

 
 

Cabinet is requested to: 
 
2.1 Consider any further action requested by the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee; 
2.2 Review and note performance against targets for Strategic Indicators 

(Section 3 and Appendix 1) 
2.3 Review and note performance against targets for Priority Indicators (Section 

3 and Appendix 2) 
2.4 Note the projected outturn for Directorate service budgets and for the total 

General Fund net expenditure budget for 2008/2009 in section 4.2 and 
Appendices 3A-G. 

2.5 Note the projected outturn for Directorate Trading Accounts for 2008/2009 
as detailed in section 5.2 and Appendix 4. 

2.6 Agree the budget target adjustments as detailed in section 7 and Appendix 
5. 

2.7 Note the performance against Service Improvement Growth targets in 
section 8.1. 

2.8 Note the projected spend against Area Based Grant (ABG) as detailed in 
section 9.1 

2.9  Note the 2008/09 performance against savings targets as detailed in 
section 10 and Appendix 6.  

 

 
3.  PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 
 
3.1  This is the third quarterly monitoring report for the new Tower Hamlets 

Index, covering the period September-December 2008.  The Strategic and 
Priority indicators are the top two tiers of our performance framework. They 
are:  
 
1. Strategic Indicators - consisting of the National Indicators and local 

indicators in our LAA, and some measures of corporate health (such 
as sickness absence) and customer satisfaction (annual residents 
survey).  These are monitored corporately every two months as the 
Tower Hamlets Index and quarterly in the joint strategic and budget 
monitoring report. 

 
2. Priority Indicators – these are the rest of the National Indicator set 

with a small number of (usually ex-BVPI) indicators that provide 

Page 26



important measures of our services.  We are now monitoring these 
quarterly. 

 
How We Are Doing – Strategic Indicators (Tower Hamlets Index) 
 
3.2 Performance against our Strategic indicators for Quarter 3 2008/09 is set 

out in Appendix 1. 
 
3.3 There are now three months to the end of the year and comments will 

reflect steps taken to ensure targets are met.  Data is not yet available for 
one strategic indicator (and will be reported once provided): 

 
� Carers receiving needs assessment or review and a specific carer’s 

service, or advice and information (Strategic412) 
 
3.4 Of the 28 applicable indicators, 12 of the performance indicators (48%) are 

on track to achieve their end of year target (GREEN). Areas where 
performance is well above the estimated level for the end of December 
target are as follows:  
• Number of serious acquisitive crimes per 1,000 population (4 fewer 

crimes than expected – exceeded by 16.70%) 
• Arson incidents - Number of deliberate primary fires per 10,000 

population (2.61 per 10,000 fewer fires than expected – exceeded by 
28.5% 

• Number of deliberate secondary fires per 10,000 population (10.21 per 
10,000 fewer fires than expected – exceeded by 36.9% 

 
3.5 A total of 13 indicators (42%) are not meeting their third quarter target. 

Indicators that are significantly below their target are: 
• Number of working days/shifts lost to sickness absence per employee 

(0.86 more days lost than anticipated – missed by 11.20%) 
• Percentage of the top paid 5% of staff who have a disability (excluding 

those in maintained schools) (2.74% achieved rather than 3.9% 
anticipated – missed by 29.70%) 

• Percentage of Undisputed Invoices Paid on Time (85% paid on time 
rather than 87% anticipated – missed by 12.4%) 

• The percentage of the top 5% of Local Authority staff who are from an 
ethnic minority (16.54% achieved rather than 21% anticipated – missed 
by 21.2%) 

• Number of social rented housing completions for family housing (282 
fewer completions than anticipated – missed by 80.3%) 

• Net additional homes provided (1,611 fewer homes than anticipated – 
missed by 71.6%) 

• Number of affordable homes delivered (gross) (868 fewer homes 
delivered than anticipated – missed by 68.6%) 

• Looked after children achieving 5 A*-C GCSEs (or equivalent) at Key 
Stage 4 (including English and mathematics) (6.67% achieved rather 
than 17% anticipated – missed by 60.8%) 

 

Page 27



3.6 It is not possible to report traffic lights for one Strategic indicator for this 
period: 
• Per capita reduction in CO2 emissions in the LA area (in-year targets 

not set) 
 
3.7 16 Strategic indicators can be reported for the next period: the period 

ending January 2009. 
 
3.8 In this third quarterly monitoring round of 2008/09 there are 48% GREEN, 

4% AMBER and 48% RED indicators.  
 

 GREEN AMBER RED 
2007/08 n/a n/a n/a 
2008/09 – Q1 11 (55%) 8 (40%) 1 (5%) 
2008/09 – Q2 14 (41.18%) 5 (14.71%) 15 (44.12%) 
2008/09 – Q3 12 (48%) 1 (4%) 12 (48%) 

 
3.9 Compared to the last round of monitoring (Oct/Nov 08), the proportion of 

RED indicators has increased from 44.12% to 48%, although the number of 
RED indicators has reduced from 15 to 12 indicators. This can be partly 
attributed to the larger number of indicators being monitored at the six-
month stage, and the reduced numbers of AMBER indicators, due to the 
greater precision that can be given at this late stage in the year. Two 
strategic indicators that were RED in Quarter 2 have returned to target for 
this period: 
� Percentage of top 5% of earners of Local Authority staff that are women 

(Strategic 102) 
� Average waiting time for calls to Hot Lines to be answered 

(Strategic110) 
 
How We Are Doing – Priority Indicators 
 
3.10 Performance against our Priority indicators for Quarter 3 2008/09 is set out 

in Appendix 2. 
 
3.11 There are now three months to the end of the year and comments will 

reflect steps taken to ensure targets are met.  Data is not yet available for 
four priority indicators (and will be reported once provided): 

 
� The change in convictions for prolific and other priority offenders (PPOs) 
over a 12 month period (National030) 

� Rate of hospital admissions per 100,000 for alcohol related harm 
(National039) 

� Percentage of vulnerable people achieving independent living (National141) 
� Percentage of vulnerable people who are supported to maintain 
independent living (National142) 

 

Page 28



 
3.12 Of the 81 applicable indicators, 35 of the performance indicators (49.30%) 

are on track to achieve their end of year target (GREEN). Areas where 
performance is well above the estimated level for the end of December 
target are as follows:  
1. No. residents assisted into sustainable employment by Skillsmatch (353 

assisted rather than 173 anticipated – exceeded by 104%) 
2. Total number of non-fatal casualties per 100,000 population - primary 

fires and related fatalities and non-fatal casualties (excluding 
precautionary checks) (4.2 per 100,000 less than expected – exceeded 
by 55.90%) 

3. Number of gun crimes per 1,000 population (19.71 per 1,000 less than 
expected – exceeded by 34.20%) 

4. Trading standards, levels of business compliance, medium risk 
premises (93% compliance – exceeded by 33.30%) 

5. Satisfaction with the amount of time it took them to tell me whether my 
claim was successful (92.1% satisfaction rather than 70.2% anticipated 
– exceeded by 31.2%) 

6. Food establishments in the area which are broadly compliant with food 
hygiene (1.25 percentage points more than anticipated – exceeded by 
29.2%) 

7. Satisfaction with the telephone service (75.9% satisfaction rather than 
59.03% anticipated – exceeded by 28.6%) 

8. Trading standards, levels of business compliance, low risk premises 
(88% compliance – exceeded by 26.20%) 

9. Consumer satisfaction with trading standard service (77% satisfaction, 
13.25 percentage points more than anticipated - exceeded by 20.80%) 

10. Total number of primary fires per 100,000 population - primary fires and 
related fatalities and non-fatal casualties (excluding precautionary 
checks) (67.1 per 10,000 less than anticipated – exceeded by 20.80% 

 
3.13 A total of 36 indicators (50.70%) are not meeting their first quarter target. 

Indicators that are significantly below their target are: 
1. The percentage of hate crime cases with identified perpetrators 

investigated by the Community Safety Service resulting in formal 
actions (none identified rather than 52.5% anticipated – exceeded by 
100%)  

2. BV014 – Percentage of early retirements (excluding ill-health 
retirements) as a percentage of the total workforce (0.61% rather than 
0.23% anticipated – missed by 165.20%) 

3. BV215a - The average number of days taken to repair a street lighting 
fault, which is under the control of the local authority - non DNO (0.24 
days longer than anticipated – missed by 133.30%) 

4. BV079b(ii) - HB overpayments recovered as a percentage of the total 
amount of HB overpayment debt outstanding at the start of the year, 
plus amount of HB overpayments identified during the year (21% 
recovered rather than the 39.9% anticipated – missed by 47.4%) 

5. National043 - Young people within the Youth Justice System receiving a 
conviction in court who are sentenced to custody (7.3% rather than 5% 
anticipated – missed by 46%) 

Page 29



6. BV015 - Percentage of employees retiring on grounds of ill health as a 
percentage of the total workforce (0.14% actual rather than 0.1 
anticipated – missed by 40%) 

7. SP308 - Percentage of young people in Tower Hamlets aged 16 - 24 
claiming unemployment-related benefits (20.4% claiming rather than 
15% anticipated – missed by 36%) 

8. CE060 - CPA use of resources indicator - overall score (we scored 3 
rather than 4 as anticipated – missed by 25%) 

9. CPAE32 - Trading standards, visits to high-risk premises (only 57% of 
visits made rather than 75% anticipated – missed by 24%) 

10. National144 - Offenders under probation supervision in employment at 
the end of their order or licence (32% rather than 40% anticipated – 
missed by 20%) 

 
3.14 It is not possible to report traffic lights for six Priority indicators for this 

period, these are: 
• Satisfaction of business with local authority regulation services (targets 

will be set once baseline established) 
• Impact of local authority trading standards services on the fair trading 

environment (targets will be set once baseline established) 
• Children and young people’s satisfaction with parks and play areas 

(targets will be set once baseline established) 
• Percentage of initial assessments for children’s social care carried out 

within 7 working days of referral (in-year target not set) 
• Percentage of intermediate and market housing completions for family 

housing (in-year target not set) 
 
3.15 All Priority indicators will be reported for the next period: the year end 

(Quarter 4). 
 
3.16 In this third quarterly monitoring round of 2008/09 there are 49.3% GREEN, 

and 50.7% RED indicators.  
 

 GREEN AMBER RED 
2007/08 n/a n/a n/a 
2008/09 – Q1 n/a n/a n/a 
2008/09 – Q2 42 (48.28%) 8 (9.2%) 37 (42.53%) 
2008/09 – Q3 35 (49.3%) 0 36 (50.7%) 

 
3.17 Compared to the last round of monitoring (Quarter 2), the proportion of RED 

indicators has increased from 42.53% to 50.7% (37 to 36). This can be 
partly attributed to the larger number of indicators being monitored in this 
period.  One Priority indicator that was RED in Quarter 2 has returned to 
target for this period: 
� No of residents assisted into sustainable employment by Skillsmatch 

(D&R01) 
 

Page 30



 
4 CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 - TO 31/12/08 

 

4.1 Background 
 4.1.1 This part of the report sets out the financial position for the Council’s 

General Fund revenue budget for the third quarter of 2008/09.  It is 
based on expenditure and service activity until the end of December 
2008 and has been obtained from monitoring statements provided by 
Corporate Directors.  Separate reports on the Housing Revenue 
Account budget and capital programme are set out elsewhere on this 
agenda.  

 

 Corporate Directors have provided the following information in 
support of their projected outturn and variance figures: 

 

  Explanation of Variances:- 
♦ Explanations for the most significant net variances (greater than 

£100,000) in both expenditure and income. 
♦ Details of actions to deal with any variances including whether the 

actions are on target and, if not, what alternative/additional courses 
of action have been put in place. 

♦ Any implications for the 2008/09 and future years’ budgets. 
4.1.2 Risk areas 
♦ Monitoring information on the key risk areas identified in the final 

budget report 2008/09 which was submitted to Cabinet in March 
2008. 

♦ Details of any additional risk factors which have emerged since the 
budget was set in February. 

4.1.3 Virements 
♦ Virements are transfers of budget allocated for one purpose to 

another purpose. Financial Regulations stipulate that virements in 
excess of £250,000 must be submitted to Cabinet for approval. 

 
4.2 Projected Outturn Position 
 

4.2.1 The table below shows the projected outturn position against the 
latest budget for each directorate which includes the original budget 
plus target adjustments agreed by Cabinet on 3rd December 2008. 

 

Page 31



Latest 
Budget 

Projected 
variance 
as at 

31/12/08 

Projected 
variance 
as % of 
budget 

Status 
Projected 
variance 
as at 

30/09/08 Directorate/Service 

£’000 £’000 % £000 £000 

Adults, Health & Wellbeing 84,286 (1,492) (1.77%) Green (1,678) 

Children’s Services 86,596 836 0.97% Red 726 

Communities, Localities 
and Culture 73,800 (370) (0.50%) Green 265 

Development & Renewal  14,053 506 3.60% Red 547 

Chief Executive’s 11,415 (32) (0.28%) Green 197 

Resources 14,914 (326) (2.19%) Green 
Corporate/Capital 11,323 (1,450) (12.8%) Green 

(2,034) 

TOTAL (inc Trading a/cs) 296,387 (2,328) (0.79)% Green (1,977) 
 
Key to ‘Traffic Light System’ 
 
The elements in the traffic light system are used to indicate significant outturn 
variances as follows:- 
 
Red – Potentially detrimental to the finances of the Council 
Amber – Previously reported overspend, position improved since the last report 
Green – Potentially advantageous to the finances of the Council 
 
 

 
4.3 Variance Analysis  
 

The following sections set out explanations of the main variances in each 
Directorate’s budget provided by the relevant Corporate Director.  Full 
details of variances may be found at Appendix 3A-G 

 
 
4.3.1 Adults, Health & Wellbeing  

 
Home Care net underspend £445,000 
Following restrictions on referrals in 2007-08 to deal with budget pressures, 
the service is now accepting referrals for high intensity care packages. To 
date the demand has been somewhat less than predicted, leading to the 
projected underspend. With an even more intensive focus on care at home 
as an alternative to institutional care this is a changeable area and the 
above underspend is the best estimate at this time. 

Page 32



Elders Commissioning net overspend £415,000 
The overspend can be attributed mainly to residential and nursing care.  
There has been a significant increase in referrals for residential and nursing 
care, mainly related to the high needs of increasing numbers of people with 
dementia.  Additionally there is an increase in expenditure in Linkage Plus 
matched mainly by additional income from PCT. 
Stringent measures have been introduced, to ensure that all alternatives to 
institutional care are exhaustively explored, before placements are agreed. 
 
Learning Disabilities Commissioning net underspend £459,000 
This variance in expenditure represents increases in demand for direct 
payments and other service areas concurrent with changes in policy and 
legislation towards more independent living.  However, as a result of 
successful negotiations with the PCT over the appropriate sharing or 
distribution of costs in a number of complex cases of clients receiving very 
high levels of support, additional income will cover these costs and 
contribute to a net underspend. However this position is liable to change 
significantly as individual cases are reviewed and re-assessed. 
 
Physical Disabilities Commissioning net overspend £262,000 
This variance in expenditure represents increases in demand for direct 
payments and other service areas concurrent with changes in policy and 
legislation towards more independent living.  
 
 
Homelessness & Housing Advice Services net underspend £1,160,000 
The variance reflects increased temporary accommodation placements, 
with more households contributing to Administration Charges than originally 
budgeted for.  This brings with it extra grant from the Government. 
 
 
4.3.2 Children’s Services 
Fieldwork – Children’s Social Care – net overspend £862,000 
There remain significant budget pressures in relation to the requirement to 
maintain agency staff, in order to provide a safe service and ensure children 
are safeguarded.  
As per the first and second quarterly figures, it has been essential that 
agency staff are maintained in the service to cover staff vacancies and in 
addition to this, retaining a quota of agency staff  above establishment to 
meet this increased demand for a service 

Page 33



Recruitment campaigns to date have not realised the recruitment of a 
sufficient number of suitably qualified and experienced staff who can 
undertake complex child protection work and therefore reduce the reliance 
on  agency workers at this stage although significant activity continues in 
relation to recruitment and retention.  
 
A detailed strategy is underway to re-shape the service with a particular 
emphasis on early intervention and prevention and to refocus the delivery of 
services to families to reduce the demands on the service. It is anticipated 
that this strategy will reduce the level of overspend in the medium term. 
 
Workflow/activity continues to be kept under close scrutiny and review. 
 
 

 Integrated Services for Children with Disabilities  net underspend £271,000 
 
 Due to a more dependable but longer recruitment process delays have 

resulted in the filling of link carer posts resulting in a net underspend within 
this area.  This delay is not expected to re-occur next year. 

 
 
 Trading Account Deficit 
 
 A deficit of £359,000 is projected on the Catering & Welfare Trading 

account, and this is explained further in Section 6. 
 
 

4.3.3 Communities, Localities and Culture 
 

Waste & Cleansing Services net underspend £220,000 
Original budget projections assumed a requirement to purchase Landfill 
Allowance Trading Scheme (LATS) allowances at a cost of £12 per tonne.  
The current Market value at which LATS are being traded has reduced to 
£0.10 per tonne - this will result in a saving of £223,000. A request will be 
made to carry forward this balance to fund further rollout of the Council’s 
Food Waste Recycling Programme as outlined within the Waste Strategy 
report being considered by Cabinet on the 11th March. 
 
 

Health & Safety/Business Continuity net underspend £150,000 
£250,000 was originally allocated for provision of a generator at Mulberry 
Place, delays in obtaining the landlord approval for the sighting of the 
generator has allowed for further consideration of the most appropriate use 
of this funding. This has resulted in the identification of a more cost effective 
method of providing business continuity options. Four separate projects 
have been identified by the Business Continuity Planning Group these are 
now in the process of being implemented but because of initial landlord 
delays not all funding will be expended in this financial year. A request will 

Page 34



be made to carry forward the balance into 2009/10.  One of the options is to 
purchase a mobile generator, and the underspend will fund this cost in the 
new financial year. 
 
 
 

4.3.4 Development and Renewal 
 
 Development Decisions net underspend £105,000 
 

The Directorate budget includes a high level of income from development 
fees and land charges.  These are forecast to decline sigificantly as a direct 
consequence of both the current 'credit crunch' and its impact on the 
property market and the introduction of Home Improvement Packs (HIPS). 
Earlier in the financial year, large shortfalls in fee income were projected. 
Over the last few months, significant fees have been received for major 
planning applications and this has meant that the projected pressure for the 
2008-09 financial year is not expected to arise.  It must be stressed 
however that these are one-off applications and very few major applications 
are anticipated in the near future.  This will cause severe budgetary 
pressures in 2009-10 and later years. 
 
 

 Asset Management net overspend £415,000 
 

Expenditure is significantly higher than initially estimated to reflect the costs 
of the development and implementation of the corporate asset management 
system, together with the on-going additional costs that are being incurred 
to deliver comprehensive building surveys and backlog health and safety 
maintenance.   
 
 

 Regeneration Strategy Sustainability net overspend £211,000 
 

The Local Labour in Construction service has been historically funded 
through a combination of Housing Capital, HRA and Section 106 resources, 
and trading income. The service transferred to Development and Renewal 
from the former Housing Directorate in April 2008, and it soon became 
apparent that the assumed levels of external funding would not be realised. 
A review of the service was agreed as part of the 2009-10 budget process 
and this will deliver some £150,000 of savings to ease pressures in future 
years. 
 
 
Trading Account Deficit 

 
 A deficit of £66,000 is projected on the Building Control Trading account 

and this is explained further in Section 6. 
 
 

 

Page 35



4.3.5 Chief Executive’s Directorate 
 
Registration of Births, Deaths & Marriages - £171,000 net underspend 

 

Budget includes £321k for subsidy payments for Burials outside the 
borough, however the projected spend this year is only £100k.  This 
anticipated underspend reflects the fact that the scheme was launched 
midway through the financial year.  It is expected that spend will be closer 
to the budget figure next year as (i) the scheme will be in place for the 
whole year; (ii) take-up is increasing as people get to know about the 
scheme; and (iii) a review, and possible extension, of the scheme is 
pending at the end of the pilot period. 
 
 
4.3.6 Resources Directorate 

 
Council Tax & National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) net underspend 
£982,000 
 
At the current time, a net underspend of £982k is forecast.  This consists of: an 
expected surplus of around £658k from Council Tax Benefits Subsidy, 
additional income of £332k. 
 
However, this is a demand-led service which may be affected by the present 
financial and economic uncertainty. 
 
 
HR/Learning & Development net overspend £300,000 
 
The projected overspend has arisen due to commitments entered into in 
previous years for positive action schemes combined with a mismatch 
between expenditure and grant income.  This has now been resolved and 
will not occur in 2009/2010 
 
 

 Capital/Treasury Management net underspend £1,450,000 
 The Council will continue to benefit from being able to invest at higher 
interest rates for much of the year in consequence of investments entered 
into before recent reduction in bank rates whilst in addition taking 
advantage of the reduced the cost of external borrowing partly through the 
normal maturing of long term debt and partly through a restructuring of debt 
to reduce interest costs during the year. However recent interest rate falls 
mean that once current investments mature, income from investment of 
surpluses will reduce considerably and this constitutes a risk to the 
Council’s budget in 2009/10.  Further details were provided in the budget 
reports submitted to Cabinet in January and February 2009. 

 
 

Page 36



5 TRADING ACCOUNTS 2008-09 
5.1 A number of Council services are managed as trading accounts where they 

recover their costs by charging users to break-even in accordance with 
accounting requirements and good financial management practice. These 
trading accounts have been created for a number of reasons such as 
legislation requirements, the need to charge for services and competitive 
tendering exercises by the Council. Furthermore, the accounts are reported 
in order to facilitate better scrutiny of services, performance review and 
value for money. 

 
5.2 The table below shows an overall projected year-end overspend of 

£425,000 from the Council’s trading accounts.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 The projected overspend in Children’s Services is attributable to increased 

costs for meals & transport due to high levels of inflation in these areas. 
 
5.4 The projected overspend in Development & Renewal is within Building 

Control and a drop of income which has not been fully covered through 
expenditure efficiencies. 

 
5.5 Both deficits will need to be met from within Directorate budgets in 

2008/2009.  Further details are provided in Appendix 4. 
 
 

6 VIREMENTS 
6.1 Virements are transfers of budget that result in no overall change to the 

budget of the Council. Under Financial Regulations, virements over 
£250,000 are required to be approved by the Cabinet.  Virements over 
£100,000 are required to be reported for information and are agreed by the 
Corporate Directors. 

 There are no virements for this quarter. 
 
 

Projected Annual Net 
Variance Directorate/Service 
£000 

Children’s Services – Catering & 
Welfare Service 359 

Development & Renewal 66 
Communities, Localities & Culture - 

TOTAL 425 

Page 37



7 TARGET ADJUSTMENTS 
 

7.1 Target adjustments are transfers of budget management between 
services/directorates and are subject to approval by Cabinet. 

 
7.2 Directorate Budget Adjustments 

The following budget adjustments are required in order to reflect accurately 
the transfer of managerial responsibilities within directorates. 
7.2.1 Adults Health & Wellbeing 
7.2.1.1 To transfer the post of Health & Safety Officer (£33,000) to 

Communities, Localities & Culture. 
 
7.2.2 Development & Renewal  

 
7.2.2.1 To transfer the residual Housing Benefits Administration 

budget of £245,000 to Resources. 
 

7.2.3 Communites, Localities and Culture 
 
     7.2.3.1 To transfer the budget of £350,000 for the 2009 Mela less        

the amount taken back to reserves for the unused 2008 Mela 
of £130,000.  Being a net target adjustment of £220,000 to be 
funded from reserves as agreed by Cabinet on 5th November 
2008 

 
7.3 Adjustments are needed to reflect the increase in employer pension 

contributions, prudential borrowing, early retirements & support costs. None 
of these adjustments affect the overall budget. 

 
7.4 Appendix 5 reflects the overall effect on budgets of these adjustments. 

 
 
 
8 SERVICE IMPROVEMENT GROWTH 

 
 
8.1 On 27th February 2008 Cabinet agreed a total of £3,634k Service 

Improvement Growth for 2008/09.  At this stage in the financial year most 
directorates appear to be on target to meet their spend for the year. 

 
8.2 Areas of projected slippage are shown in the table below. 
 
 

Page 38



Ref Title 
Full Year 
Budget 
2008/09 

Projected 
Outturn 

Projected 
Variance Comments 

SIG  £’000 £’000 £’000  

CLC/06 TH Mela 130 0 (130) This funding was not spent on the 2008 Mela 
and will be transferred back to reserves. 

DR/04 
Now Chief 

Exec’s 
Subsidy of 
Burials 321 100 (221) 

Staff have now been permanently appointed 
to the two posts funded through service 
improvement growth 

DR/01 
Asset & 
Community 
Planning 

140 75 (65) 
Staff have now been permanently appointed 
to the posts funded through service 
improvement growth. The projected 
underspend reflects the fact that the officers 
were not in post for the full financial year 

DR/02 Town Centre 
Project Lead 70 40 (30) 

An officer has now been permanently 
appointed to the post funded through service 
improvement growth. The projected 
underspend reflects the fact that the position 
was not filled for the full financial year. 

DR/03 Sustainability 150 100 (50) 
A review of the service is currently being 
undertaken to incorporate the positions to be 
funded through service improvement growth. 

 
 

 
9 AREA BASED GRANT 

 
9.1 The table below sets out how ABG is being utilised in 2008/09 and the 

projected year end position. 
 

Directorate 
Full Year 
Budget 
2008/09 

Projected 
Outturn 

Projected 
Variance Comment 

 £’000 £’000 £000  

Adults Health & 
Wellbeing 4,233 4,183 (50) 

As previously reported to Members, there 
has been a slight slippage in the 
commissioning process relating to Learning 
& Disability Development. 

Children’s Services 10,292 10,292 0 It is forecast that there will be no year-end 
variances. 

Communities, 
Localities & Culture 11,666 8,370 (3,296) 

The refreshed Working Neighbourhoods 
Fund is not yet finalised but some former 
Neighbourhood Renewal Fund initiatives 
will continue to31/03/09. 

Resources 1,036 1,036 0 It is forecast that there will be no year-end 
variances. 

Chief Exec’s 414 414 0 It is forecast that there will be no year-end 
variances. 

 
The question of whether underspent funds should be carried forward to future 
years will be a matter for Member decision after the end of the financial year. 

Page 39



10 SAVINGS/EFFICIENCY TARGETS 
 

10.1 Savings/Efficiency Targets 
10.1.1 Efficiency targets are underway or planned to deliver the cashable 

savings of £6,346,000 as part of the Council’s Budget Strategy for 
2008/09. 

10.1.2 Directorates have indicated that £4.634m of efficiencies have been 
achieved to date.  Although a few projects have slipped the impact of 
this will be contained within directorates’ budgets. 

10.1.3 A breakdown of efficiency savings is attached at Appendix 6. 
 

 
11 INCOME COLLECTION PERFORMANCE 2007/08 & 2008/09 TARGETS 

 
11.1 The table below relates to debt raised since the 1st April 2008, and collected 

in the year to date.  In addition, a proportion of debt is collected as arrears, 
so a greater proportion of overall debt is collected than these targets 
suggest. The direction of travel arrows indicate that for most types of debt, 
performance is above target.   

 
Collected 2008-09 2008-09 Income Stream 
In 2007-08 Target to 

31/12/08 
Collected to 
31/12/08 

Direction of 
Travel 

 % % %  
Business Rates 99.6 85 88 ↑ 
Central Income 74 82 79. ↓ 
Council Tax 94.7 81 81 ↔ 
Housing Rent 98.14 97.7 96.5 ↓ 
Major Works 7.4 7.5 7.6 ↑ 

Parking Fines  69.4 65 65 ↔ 

Service Charges 35.3 51.4 44.3 ↓ 
 
11.2 Performance Analysis 
 

11.2.1 Central Income 
 
The figure reported relates to the period to the 31st December. Since then, 
two invoices outstanding for over 6 months totalling £1m have been paid, 
bringing the percentage collected in line with target. 
 

Page 40



 
11.2.2 Housing Rent 
 
Recovery work and weekly monitoring continues to support our recovery 
from this reduction in rent collection. Quarterly rent statements have been 
issued in January, which usually generates a good response from residents 
and often results in increased payments.  
 
Payment files were not posted to the rent accounting system during the 
Christmas period.  Early indications in January show these indicators are 
improving. 
 
 
11.2.3 Service Charges 
 
'The arrears recovery has been on hold due to the Data Integrity project 
which affected the number of accounts we could chase for a variety of 
reasons. 
 
The project was due to deliver on a number of work streams during January 
and ending on 27 February 2009 which would have released more accounts 
to chase.  There has been some progress but not all the elements were 
delivered. 
 
Therefore letters will be sent to the 'clean' accounts in the next week and 
active arrears recovery will commence. 
 

 
12 COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

12.1 This report sets out the performance of the authority against priority 
performance indicators for the third quarter of the year together with budget 
monitoring against the General Fund revenue budget, which is the main 
budget influencing performance in the short term.  This represents good 
practice as it enables performance in both areas to be considered alongside 
one another and thus actions can be taken on the basis of a balanced 
overall view.  

12.2 This report projects a net General Fund underspend for 2008/09 of 
£2.328m based on spending to the end of December 2008.  If this is carried 
through to the end of the financial year, this will result in an increase in 
general reserves of the same amount. 

12.3 It is the responsibility of officers to ensure that budgets are adhered to 
where possible.  The corporate director for Resources will be monitoring 
closely the position to ensure the implications are reported to Members and 
reflected in financial plans. Financial regulations require corporate directors 
to take measures to eliminate or reduce overspends and report this to 
Cabinet. 

Page 41



12.4 The 2008/2009 budget process also included an assessment of the 
robustness of expenditure and income forecasts including identification of 
the key risk areas. This report continues the development of that process by 
explicitly commenting on the current status of those risk areas within 
Appendix 3A-G. 

 
13 CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 

13.1 The Local Government Act 1999, Section 3, requires all authorities to ‘make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness’.  Performance monitoring of corporate plans is 
an important way in which that obligation can be fulfilled and regular 
monitoring reports to members on performance and actions arising from 
those reports will demonstrate that the Council has undertaken activity to 
satisfy the statutory duty. 

13.2 Under the Local Government Act 1972, the budget monitoring framework 
underpins the Council’s section 151 legal framework to ensure there are 
sound and robust systems of financial administration, financial management 
and strategic financial planning advice for the Authority as a whole.  In 
addition, it enables the Council to plan and control its income and 
expenditure through the financial year and report to managers and 
members the Authority’s financial position. 

13.3 Further, the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Finance Officer 
to review the robustness of the budget estimates and its impact on reserves 
periodically in year through regular budget monitoring.  Also, where there 
has been deterioration in the Authority’s financial position it requires the 
Authority to take action to address the situation.  

 
 

14 ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 

14.1 The Council’s Strategic Plan is focused upon meeting the needs of the 
diverse communities living in Tower Hamlets.  The Key Themes reflect 
diversity issues and there are key equality milestones in relation to 
delivering One Tower Hamlets.  

 
 

15 SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 

15.1 An element of the monitoring report deals with environmental milestones 
within the Safe and Supportive agenda.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 42



16 RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
16.1 In line with the Council’s risk management strategy, the information 

contained within the Strategic Indicator Monitoring will assist the Cabinet, 
Corporate Directors and relevant service managers in delivering the 
ambitious targets set out in the Strategic Plan.  Regular monitoring reports 
will enable Members and Corporate Directors to keep progress under 
regular review. 

 
16.2 There is a risk to the integrity of the authority’s finances if an imbalance 

occurs between resources and needs. This is mitigated by regular 
monitoring and, where appropriate, corrective action.  This report provides a 
corporate overview to supplement more frequent monitoring that takes 
place at detailed level.   

 
16.3 The explanations provided by the Directorates for the budget variances also 

contain analyses of risk factors. 
 
16.4 The projected favourable variance on the revenue outturn is mainly due to 

the receipt of interest on investments.  This has become a high risk area 
with the current volatility in the economy and financial markets. 

 
 

17 EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 
17.1 The efficiency statement is included within the body of the report at section 

10 and Appendix 6; risk factors are covered throughout the report and at 
Appendix 3A-G. 

 
 

18 INDEX OF APPENDICES 
Appendix Detailing the following: 

1 Tower Hamlets Index Progress Report to 31st December 2008 
2 Tower Hamlets Priority Indicators 

3A-G Directorates’ projected outturns 
4 Trading Accounts 
5 Budget Adjustments 
6 Efficiency Savings Targets 2008/09 

 

Page 43



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

Brief description of "background paper  Name and telephone number of holder and 
address where open to inspection 

 
 

 Performance Manager 
 
Corporate Finance 
 

Lucy Sutton 
 
Martin McGrath 
 

x3186 
 
x 4645 

 

Page 44



APPENDIX 1

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Nov

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend

RES038,

Strategic101

Percentage of Undisputed 

Invoices Paid on Time

Good performance: HIGH

% 87.87 85.35 84.69 85 97 97 Paul 

McDermott

CE045a,

RES045a,

Strategic102

Percentage of top 5% of 

earners of Local Authority 

staff that are women.

Good performance: HIGH

% 52.71 49.98 49.76 50.02 50 50 Deb Clarke

RES044a,

Strategic103

The percentage of the top 

5% of Local Authority staff 

who are from an ethnic 

minority.

Good performance: HIGH

% 17.43 15.69 16.19 16.54 21 22 Deb Clarke

Theme 1: One Tower Hamlets

Monthly Performance:   The last four months are showing slight month on month increases, demonstrating progress towards target. Population is very small therefore a single change can significantly 

impact the outcome. Aspiring leaders and Step Up Now programmes continue and are expected to impact in the longer term.

Monthly Performance: Monthly Performance: The report of the peer review has been considered by management and presented to PRG. The proposals are being reviewed by colleagues in internal audit 

following a visit to LB Havering.  The declared performance is advesely affected by software restrcitions require the backdating of invoices in order to pre-1st December to ensure the correct level of VAT is 

paid and declared.

R R

R R

R R

R

R

G

 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

78%
80%
82%
84%
86%
88%
90%
92%
94%
96%
98%

2007/08 May Jun

(Q1)

Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Dec

(Q3)

Jan Mar

(Q4)

0

5

10

15

20

25

2007/08 Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Jan Mar

(Q4)

R

0.5

47%

48%

49%

50%

51%

52%

53%

Mar May Jun

(Q1)

Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Dec

(Q3)

Jan Mar

(Q4)

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\Tower Hamlets Index\2008-09\Quarter 3\LAB\Appendix 1 - THI Q3 - LAB - 10-feb-09.xls 1

P
a
g
e

 4
5



APPENDIX 1

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Nov

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

RES002,

Strategic104

Percentage of the top paid 

5% of staff who have a 

disability (excluding those in 

maintained schools.)

Good performance: HIGH

% 3.51 3.31 2.7 2.74 3.9 4.1 Deb Clarke

CE046a,

RES046a,

Strategic105

Number of working 

days/shifts lost to sickness 

absence per employee.

Good performance:  LOW

days 8.69 8.93 8.56 8.56 7.7 7.5 Deb Clarke

CE001a,

Strategic106

Response time to members 

enquiries - % completed 

within 10 working days - 

Corporate

Good performance: HIGH

% 70.06 78.9 86.09 88.37 85 85 Beverley 

McKenzie

Monthly Performance:   8.56* provisional figure - absence stats run one month in arrears. Although indicator is Red, the trend has been an overall reduction in sickness absence since the start of the 

financial year. Month on month modest reductions has resulted in average of number of days falling by 0.61 days per employee which is a significant improvement. The focus on sickness absence 

continues with HR support and improved reporting. Actual Dec figure available first week of Feb 09.

Monthly Performance:   Although behind target, the staff population included in this indicator is very small and therefore highly sensitive to any changes. The indicator remain amber as the difference 

between target and actual equates to just over 1.5 FTE employees with a disability to be included in the population.

R  G

R R

R R
R

R

G

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Jul Aug Sep (Q2) Oct Nov Dec (Q3) Jan Feb Mar (Q4)

0

1

2

3

4

5

2007/08 Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Jan Mar

(Q4)

5

6

7

8

9

10

Mar May Jun

(Q1)

Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Dec

(Q3)

Jan Mar

(Q4)

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\Tower Hamlets Index\2008-09\Quarter 3\LAB\Appendix 1 - THI Q3 - LAB - 10-feb-09.xls 2

P
a
g

e
 4

6



APPENDIX 1

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Nov

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

CE053a,

RES053a,

Strategic107

Percentage of complaints 

completed in time - Council 

as a whole - Stage 1

Good performance: HIGH

% 74 71 74 77 80 80 Ruth Dowden

RES057,

Strategic109

Percent of calls to Hot Lines 

answered

Good performance: HIGH

% N/A 93.6 92.9 94.2 95 95 Keith Paulin

RES058,

Strategic110

Average waiting time for calls

to Hot Lines to be answered

Good performance:  LOW

Numbe

r

N/A 39 34 29 30 30 Keith Paulin

Monthly Performance:   The stand alone monthly outturn was 88% in time. Robust monitoring and escalation is currently producing monthly average of over 85%. However to eliminate seasonal variation, 

the indicator is being measured on rolling total. This is rising month on month and should achieve 80 by the year end

Monthly Performance:   Performance improved in December to 0.8% below target.

R R

R R

R R

A

R

G

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

2007/08 May Jun

(Q1)

Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Dec

(Q3)

Jan Mar

(Q4)

92%

92%

93%

93%

94%

94%

95%

95%

96%

2007/08 May Jun

(Q1)

Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Dec

(Q3)

Jan Mar

(Q4)

0
5

10
15
20

25
30
35

40
45

2007/08 May Jun

(Q1)

Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Dec

(Q3)

Jan Mar

(Q4)

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\Tower Hamlets Index\2008-09\Quarter 3\LAB\Appendix 1 - THI Q3 - LAB - 10-feb-09.xls 3

P
a
g
e

 4
7



APPENDIX 1

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Nov

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

RES059,

Strategic111

First contact resolution of 

calls to Hot Lines

Good performance: HIGH

% N/A 84 93 90 80 80 Keith Paulin

 G  G
G

74%
76%
78%
80%
82%
84%
86%
88%
90%
92%

2007/08 May Jun

(Q1)

Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Dec

(Q3)

Jan Mar

(Q4)

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\Tower Hamlets Index\2008-09\Quarter 3\LAB\Appendix 1 - THI Q3 - LAB - 10-feb-09.xls 4

P
a
g

e
 4

8



APPENDIX 1

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Nov

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

LAALocal213,

Strategic201

The number of households 

who considered themselves 

as homeless, who 

approached the local 

authority’s housing advice 

service(s), and for whom 

housing advice casework 

intervention resolved their 

situation.

number 7 6.34 N/R Not 

availabl

e

6 8 John Roog

CPAC02c,

Strategic202

Number of physical visits to 

public library premises per 

1000 population

Good performance: HIGH

number 9710.7 4724.6 6255 6,809 7079.18 9438.9 Paul Martindill

D&RAMRH2(b),

LAANI154,

National154,

Strategic207

Net additional homes 

provided

Good performance: HIGH

Numbe

r

596 N/R 638 2249 2999 Jackie Odunoye

Monthly Performance:   Construction work above the Canary Wharf Idea Store has resulted in a considerable decrease on visits. Trend is for visitor numbers to increase significantly during and after 

February half term. Planned activities are anticipated to meet the existing short fall in visitor

Monthly Performance: Figures from December are unavailable due to system issues.

Theme 2: A Great Place to Live

Monthly Performance:   638 comes from schemes completed. 860 units completed.  With Private developers reigning back on building plans in the current economic climate the delivery of this housing 

provision target has suffered. This has taken the form of developers sitting on approved planning applications, or commencing work but slowing down and delaying completion. This has affected a number 

of key sites and ultimately the delivery of affordable and net additional homes. Consequently the target for this indicator is not likely to be met (see projected figure). New 3 year targets are to be agreed 

with GoL in light of this national trend.   In view of the credit crunch and subsequent economic downturn, the Council is working with the Homes and Communities Agency to identify and prioritise housing 

delivery projects, with a particular focus on Central and Poplar Riverside locations. The Council is focusing on sites which are in the Council's ownership or owned by other public/social sector partners, and 

are deliverable and not dependent on market housing for delivery. A number of sites have been identified that will make contributions to future housing output and deliver wider regeneration benefits 

beyond housing. These sites include Ocean Estate, Blackwall Reach, Bow Lock, Ailsa Street and St. Andrew's Hospital

 G R R

R

R

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

0

2

4

6

8

10

Mar Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

R

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

2007/08 May Jun

(Q1)

Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Dec

(Q3)

Jan Mar

(Q4)

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\Tower Hamlets Index\2008-09\Quarter 3\LAB\Appendix 1 - THI Q3 - LAB - 10-feb-09.xls 5

P
a
g
e

 4
9



APPENDIX 1

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Nov

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

LAANI155,

National155,

Strategic208

Number of affordable homes 

delivered (gross)

Good performance: HIGH

Numbe

r

306 N/R 398 1266 1688 Jackie Odunoye

LAANI186,

National186,

Strategic210

Per capita reduction in CO2 

emissions in the LA area

Good performance: LOW

% -15.5 N/R -15.5 N/R 2 Jackie Odunoye

LAANI192,

National192,

Strategic211

Percentage of household 

waste sent for reuse, 

recycling and composting

Good performance: HIGH

% 12.89 15.28 18.13 18.32 17.8 19 Heather 

Bonfield

Monthly performance:  More than 90% of the increase is attributable to industrial and commercial electricity users. We are working with the commercial sector to promote the assistance schemes available 

to them, and are focusing on ensuring sustainable development policies are in place to reduce emissions.   One factor that has impacted our emissions is the significant increase in new developments in the

borough. Growth in new development is currently faster than other parts of the country.  We are committed to cutting CO2 emissions in the borough, and all major new developments are now required to 

adhere to the Mayor of London's energy policies. The council is also working to cut its own operational CO2 emissions, and is supporting the development of decentralised energy - which we believe can 

play a significant role in cutting CO2 emissions

Monthly Performance:   398 comes from schemes completed. 488 units completed (social rented and intermediate).  Further comments have been requested to explain whats being done to mitigate the 

effect of the economic slowdown.

GR G

R

0

500

1000

1500

2000

Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

R

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

2007/08 May Jun

(Q1)

Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Dec

(Q3)

Jan Mar

(Q4)

-20

-15

-10

-5

0

5

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\Tower Hamlets Index\2008-09\Quarter 3\LAB\Appendix 1 - THI Q3 - LAB - 10-feb-09.xls 6

P
a
g

e
 5

0



APPENDIX 1

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Nov

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

D&R03a,

LAALocal03,

Strategic223

Number of social rented 

housing completions for 

family housing

Good performance: HIGH

Numbe

r

70 N/R 69 351 467 Jackie Odunoye

Monthly Performance:   In view of the credit crunch and subsequent economic downturn, the Council is working with the Homes and Communities Agency to identify and prioritise housing delivery projects,

with a particular focus on Central and Poplar Riverside locations. The Council is focusing on sites which are in the Council's ownership or owned by other public/social sector partners, and are deliverable 

and not dependent on market housing for delivery. A number of sites have been identified that will make contributions to future housing output and deliver wider regeneration benefits beyond housing. 

These sites include Ocean Estate, Blackwall Reach, Bow Lock, Ailsa Street and St. Andrew's Hospital.  End of year projection: 143 (gross) 116 (net).

R

0

100

200

300

400

500

Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

R

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\Tower Hamlets Index\2008-09\Quarter 3\LAB\Appendix 1 - THI Q3 - LAB - 10-feb-09.xls 7

P
a
g
e

 5
1



APPENDIX 1

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Nov

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

Strategic301 Improving A Level attainment

- A Level Average Points 

Score per student in Tower 

Hamlets.

Good performance: HIGH

number 621.5 625.6 670 670 Carmel 

Littleton

LAANI117,

National117,

Strategic308

16 to 18 year olds who are 

not in education, 

employment or training 

(NEET)

Good performance:  LOW

% 8.2 10.9 6.5 7.2 7.06 7 Mary Durkin

LAANI151,

National151,

Strategic311

Overall Employment rate 

(working-age)

Good performance: HIGH

% 58.4 56.9 58.4 60.8 54 54 Sue Hinds

Monthly Performance: Note that the latest statistical data available is 8 months out of date.

Monthly Performance:   Although Tower Hamlets did not meet its ambitious target of 670, there was a significant improvement in both average points score per pupil (APS) and average points score per 

entry. The APS per pupil increased from 621 to 639.5. In terms of points score per pupil this represents the highest attainment in inner London. Nevertheless there is more to do to meet our ambititious 

target for the next A level cohort. The LA is working closely with the LSC in supporting schools and the college in increasing the fit between students and courses, raising attainment at all levels including 

the higher grades, and supporting providers in delivering high quality teaching. These should ensure that the ambitious targets for 2009 are achievable.

Theme 3: A Prosperous Community

Monthly Performance:   The December 2008 of 7.2% compares to 8.3% in December 2007, representing a significant improvement in reducing NEET by 1.1%. The last nine months estimate (April-Dec) 

indicates we are on track to meet the annual target.

 G  G

 G  G G

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

2007/08 May Jun

(Q1)

Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Dec

(Q3)

Jan Mar

(Q4)

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Jul Sep Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

R

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2006/07 2007/08 2008/09

R

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\Tower Hamlets Index\2008-09\Quarter 3\LAB\Appendix 1 - THI Q3 - LAB - 10-feb-09.xls 8

P
a
g

e
 5

2



APPENDIX 1

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Nov

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

LAANI152,

National152,

Strategic312

Working age people on out of 

work benefits

Good performance:  LOW

% 17.4 19.7 17.2 17.2 18.3 18.3 Sue Hinds

LAANI153,

National153,

Strategic313

Working age people claiming 

out of work benefits in the 

worst performing 

neighbourhoods

Good performance:  LOW

% 27.1 N/R 26.8 26.8 29 29 Sue Hinds

Monthly Performance: Note that the latest statistical data available is 8 months out of date.

Monthly Performance: Note that the latest statistical data available is 8 months out of date.

R  G

 G

G

 G

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Nov Dec (Q3) Jan Mar (Q4)

15%

16%

17%

18%

19%

20%

Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Nov Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\Tower Hamlets Index\2008-09\Quarter 3\LAB\Appendix 1 - THI Q3 - LAB - 10-feb-09.xls 9

P
a
g
e

 5
3



APPENDIX 1

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Nov

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

LAANI016,

National016,

Strategic403

Number of serious acquisitive

crimes per 1,000 population

Good performance:  LOW

Numbe

r

33.44 14.61 18.55 20 24 32.04 Andy Bamber

LAANI033i,

National033i,

Strategic407

Arson incidents - Number of 

deliberate primary fires per 

10,000 population.

Good performance:  LOW

Numbe

r

N/A 5.55 6.56 6.56 9.17 12.22 Andy Bamber

LAANI033ii,

National033ii,

Strategic408

Number of deliberate 

secondary fires per 10,000 

population. (Arson)

Good performance:  LOW

Numbe

r

38 13.53 17.46 17.46 27.67 36.89 Andy Bamber

Theme 4: A Safe and Supportive Community

G

G

G

G G

G G

G G

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

May Jun (Q1) Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Dec

(Q3)

Jan Mar

(Q4)

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40

2007/08 May Jun

(Q1)

Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Dec

(Q3)

Jan Mar

(Q4)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

2007/08 May Jun

(Q1)

Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Dec

(Q3)

Jan Mar

(Q4)

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\Tower Hamlets Index\2008-09\Quarter 3\LAB\Appendix 1 - THI Q3 - LAB - 10-feb-09.xls 10

P
a
g

e
 5

4



APPENDIX 1

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Nov

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

LAANI040,

National040,

Strategic410

Number of drug users 

recorded as being in effective 

treatment

Good performance: HIGH

Numbe

r

1069 N/R 1387 1397 1461 Andy Bamber

LAANI135,

National135,

Strategic412

Carers receiving needs 

assessment or review and a 

specific carer’s service, or 

advice and information

Good performance: HIGH

% 26.3 17.9 15.7 20.9 John Goldup

Monthly Performance:  Data is available three months in arrears. In September we reported May data. This target is the September target to match the data that we are reporting now. Quarter 3 data will 

be available in April 09, and 08/09 outturn will be available in July 09.

Monthly Performance:  Data not yet provided. The service has been requested to provide the data or a comment to explain why data is not reported.

R

 G

800

900

1000

1100

1200

1300

1400

1500

1600

Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Mar Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

G

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\Tower Hamlets Index\2008-09\Quarter 3\LAB\Appendix 1 - THI Q3 - LAB - 10-feb-09.xls 11

P
a
g
e

 5
5



APPENDIX 1

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Nov

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

LAANI056d,

National056d,

Strategic504

Percentage of children in 

Year 6 with height and 

weight recorded who are 

obese.

Good performance: LOW

% 23 NR NR 24.49 23.4 23.4 Esther 

Trenchard-

Mabere (PCT)

Red

LAANI123,

National123,

Strategic509

Stopping smoking

Good performance: 

Numbe

r

1220 693 1137 1150 1025 Alwen Williams

(PCT)

Key to symbols

Arrow up

Arrow across

Arrow down

No arrow

Colour

Performance has improved since the last comparable period (for cumulative indicators e.g. library visits we compare to the same period last year).

Monthly Performance:   1137 for month Dec 08 and this is for the 4 week smoking quitters.

Monthly Performance:   24.49% of children in Year 6 with height and weight recorded who are obese.

Theme 5: A Healthy Community

Colour represents whether performance is On Target (Green), Off Target (Red), or whether performance is off target, but will return to target (Amber).

Octagon shape represents Traffic Light for previous period. The two most recent reporting periods are shown.

No previous data to compare to (for cumulative indicators we can only compare to the same period the previous year)

Performance has deteriorated since the last comparable period (for cumulative indicators we compare to the same period last year).

Performance maintained since the last comparable period (for cumulative indicators we compare to the same period last year).

R

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\Tower Hamlets Index\2008-09\Quarter 3\LAB\Appendix 1 - THI Q3 - LAB - 10-feb-09.xls 12

P
a
g

e
 5

6



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend

BV014, RES003 Percentage of early 

retirements (excluding ill-

health retirements) as a 

percentage of the total 

workforce.

Good performance: LOW

% 0.66 0.49 0.61 0.23 0.3 Deb Clarke

BV015, RES004 Percentage of employees 

retiring on grounds of ill 

health as a percentage of the 

total workforce.

Good performance:  LOW

% 0.14 0.09 0.14 0.1 0.13 Deb Clarke

Theme 1: One Tower Hamlets

Monthly Performance:   Total early retirments (first 9 months) linked to redundancy/efficiency savings but excluding ill health cases: Schools - 12, Borough - 28, Total - 40 Target for year now not 

achievable.  Majority of redundancies, year to date, linked to Almo. Efficiency savings linked redundancies in last quarter include 2 more from Housing (Almo associated), 2 linked to Procurement 

departmental restructure and 1 each from Adults and Children's services.

Monthly Performance:   Target for year now unachievable. However, the numbers remain low. Total ill health retirements for year to date is 9 (schools 3, council staff 6). The new ill health 

retirement arrangements under LGPS changes mean that this indicator, using the current definition, now covers all three tiers of ill health retirement. However, one tier does not offer permanent 

ill health payments and all tiers offer different levels of pension enhancements.

R

R

 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

0.3

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

0.13

0

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

0.1

0.12

0.14

0.16

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

R

R

1

P
a
g
e

 5
7



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

BV016a, CE005, 

RES005

Percentage of staff declaring 

that they meet the Disability 

Discrimination Act disability 

definition.

Good performance: HIGH

% 4.7 4.55 4.59 5.3 5.5 Deb Clarke

BV017a, CE063a, 

RES006

Percentage of authority 

employees from minority 

ethnic communities as a 

percentage of the total 

workforce.

Good performance: HIGH

% 46.79 47.19 47.37 47 47 Deb Clarke

CE060, RES009, 

SP502a

CPA use of resources 

indicator - overall score

Good performance: HIGH

3 N/R 3 4 4 Alan Finch

Monthly Performance: The council improved its detailed scores overall and its theme score on Financial Reporting, but lost one mark on Financial Standing, where we had benefited from notable 

practice in 2007, so maintained our 2007 overall score of 3 out of 4.

Monthly Performance:   The outcome has remained constant throughout the year to date. As part of the Service planning for 09/10, the HR plan will need to consider focussed initiatives to ensure 

that we return to the planned trajectory.

R

 G

R

G

5.5

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

43.5
44

44.5
45

45.5
46

46.5
47

47.5
48

Actual

07/08

Jun Sep Dec Mar

0

1

2

3

4

5

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

R

2

P
a
g

e
 5

8



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

CE061, RES010, 

SP502b

CPA use of resources 

indicator - VFM score

Good performance: HIGH

3 N/R 3 3 3 Alan Finch

BV079b(iii) Housing Benefit (HB) 

overpayments written off as 

a percentage of the total 

amount of HB overpayment 

debt outstanding at the start 

of the year, plus amount of 

HB overpayments identified 

during the year.

Good performance: HIGH

% 2.08 n/a 1 16 16 Steve Hill RED

BV078a, SP218 Average time for processing 

new housing benefit and 

council tax benefit claims 

(days).

Good performance:  LOW

days 24.63 23.64 23.33 24.6 24.6 Steve Hill

Monthly Performance: The service is aiming to increase its write offs during the last quarter of the current financial year by undertaking a write off exercise for irrecoverable overpayments, before 

the end of February.

G

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

Actual

07/08

Jun Sep Dec Mar

1

3

5

7

9

11

13

15

17

19

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

 G

3

P
a
g
e

 5
9



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

BV076b Number of benefit fraud 

investigators employed, per 

1,000 caseload

Good performance: LOW

number 0.29 0.33 0.32 0.29 0.29 Steve Hill RED

BV076c Number of Housing Benefit 

and Council Tax Benefit 

*HB/CTB) fraudi 

investigations carried out by 

the Local Authority per year, 

per 1,000 caseload

Good performance: HIGH

number 26.02 12.07 14.45 34 34 Steve Hill RED

Monthly performance: The target for the number of Fraud Investigations closed has not been met because of the problems with the DWP data match sharing which was suspended for part of this 

year.  The data matches have been resumed by the DWP and the Benefits Fraud Team's output is returning to normal.

Monthly performance: This PI is in respect of the number of Fraud Investigators.  The fact that the Benefits Service isnot meeting this target but still maintaining a comparatively high rate of 

prosecutions and sanctions demonstrates value for money.  The recent increase in Benefits caseload has blown us off course in terms of meeting this PI this year and as the remedy would involve 

increasing the Fraud Team complement by less than one Investigator, current action is for the SErvice to monitor the situation.

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1

Actual

07/08

Jun Sep Dec Mar Est 08/09

1

6

11

16

21

26

31

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

R

R

4

P
a
g

e
 6

0



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

BV076d The number of Housing 

Benefit and Council Tax 

Benefit (HB/CTB) 

prosecutions and sanctions, 

per year, per 1,000 caseload,

in the Local Authority Area

Good performance: HIGH

number 5 2.31 3.3 4.5 4.5 Steve Hill RED

BV079b(i) The amount of Housing 

Benefit overpayments (HB) 

recovered as a percentage of 

all HB overpayments

Good performance: HIGH

% 70.33 n/a 60 60 64.4 Steve Hill

Monthly performance: Performance in relation to Prosecutions and Sanctions has not met target due to the problems with the DWP data match sharing and suspension of the same during the 

year.  this has impacted on most LA's performance in this area, however comparatively, Tower Hamlets is achieving a higher rate of prosecutions and sanctions than other Inner London LA's.  This 

is the key performance indicator for Benefit Fraud and everything is being done to achieve this year's target despite the problems with the DWP data matches this year.  The team have a number 

of prosecutions and sanctions in the pipeline awaiting approval.

Monthly performance: 

The Council's Benefits Core System suppliers Northgate have nationally changed the suite of Overpayments reports.  There are problems with the reconciliation of these reports and a call has been

logged with Northgate.  The problem has been reported by other Northgate sites and is presently with Northgate developers.  The figures supplied should therefore be used as indicative only, at 

this time.

R

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

4.5

5

5.5

6

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

R

5

P
a
g
e

 6
1



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

BV079b(ii) HB overpayments recovered 

as a percentage of the total 

amount of HB overpayment 

debt outstanding at the start 

of the year, plus amount of 

HB overpayments identified 

during the year.

Good performance: HIGH

% 23.03 n/a 21 21 39.9 Steve Hill

BV080a Satisfaction with the facilities 

to get in touch with the 

benefits office.

Good performance: HIGH

% n/a n/a 93 93 78.49 Steve Hill GREEN

BV080b Satisfaction with the service 

in the actual office.

Good performance: HIGH

% n/a n/a 77.2 74.6 74.6 Steve Hill GREEN

Monthly performance: The Council's Benefits Core System suppliers Northgate have nationally changed the suite of Overpayments reports.  There are problems with the reconciliation of these 

reports and a call has been logged with Northgate.  The problem has been reported by other Northgate sites and is presently with Northgate developers.  The figures supplied should therefore be 

used as indicative only, at this time.

R

1

6

11

16

21

26

31

36

41

46

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

6

P
a
g

e
 6

2



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

BV080c Satisfaction with the 

telephone service

Good performance: HIGH

% n/a n/a 75.9 59.03 59.03 Steve Hill GREEN

BV080e Satisfaction with the clarity 

and understandability of the 

forms, leaflets and letters

Good performance: HIGH

% n/a n/a 90.9 76.1 76.1 Steve Hill GREEN

BV080f Satisfaction with the amount 

of time it took them to tell 

me whether my claim was 

successful

Good performance: HIGH

% n/a n/a 92.1 70.2 70.2 Steve Hill GREEN

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

75

80

85

90

95

100

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

7

P
a
g
e

 6
3



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

BV080g Satisfaction with benefits 

service

Good performance: HIGH

% n/a n/a 77.8 77 77 Steve Hill GREEN

RES061 Percentage of staff from 

workforce - Bangladeshi

Good performance: HIGH

% 23.7 23.46 19.5 19.5 Deb Clarke GREEN

R

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

0

5

10

15

20

25

Actual

07/08

Jun Sep Dec Mar

8

P
a
g

e
 6

4



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National191 Residual household waste per

household

Cumulative performance

Good performance:  LOW

% 347.91 437.27 495 660 Heather 

Bonfield

GREEN

National193 Percentage of municipal 

waste land filled

Good performance:  LOW

kg 87.19 86.42 86 85 Heather 

Bonfield

National199 Children and young people’s 

satisfaction with parks and 

play areas For introduction in 

2009/10

Good performance: HIGH

% 49 Heather 

Bonfield

Monthly Performance:   Contamination of recycling loads was a concern in November and December and as a result an increase in material was rejected and sent to landfill. Contamination is the 

main focus of the Contract Review Meetings with Veolia and Viridor, including the review of reporting/sampling arrangements. Review is on -going with Veolia, and expected completion by end 

February. We expect to meet the year end target.

Theme 2: A Great Place to Live

Monthly Performance:   In the Tellus 3 Survey 2008, 49% of respondents in Tower Hamlets think that parks and play areas in their area are very good/Fairly good compared to 44% nationally. ( 

This figure is a baseline figure so targets need to be set for 2009 and 2010)

R

R

660

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

85

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

R

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Actual

07/08

Jun Sep Dec Mar

9

P
a
g
e

 6
5



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National157a Processing of planning 

applications within 13 weeks 

for Major applications

Good performance: HIGH

% 56.92 58.33 50 60 60 Michael Kiely

National157b Processing of planning 

applications within 8 weeks 

for Minor applications

Good performance: HIGH

% 84.4 86.57 87.53 81 81 Michael Kiely

Monthly Performance:  Tower Hamlets receives a comparatively high number of large-scale major (e.g. greater than 100 residential units) planning applications. These are very complex 

applications that often include Environmental Impact Assessments and require liaison with outside agencies which increases the length of time needed to arrive at a decision. This has historically 

hindered our performance.  With these larger or more contentious applications, Planning Performance Agreements (PPA) are now being negotiated with the applicants. PPA’s are a recent change to

legislation which set out a time scale for the determination of the application that more reasonably relates to its complexity, rather than set Government targets. Where the time-scales in the PPA 

are met, the application is removed from this indicator, thus improving the Council’s overall score, providing the PPA is delivered as agreed with the applicant.  Applications with PPAs have now 

started to show in our data, as they were only introduced in April 2008. This are illustrated below.

Performance in Quarter 3, 2008/2009 (%), Type of Major / Month.  Large scale: October = 0%, November = 100%, December = 0% , Quarter 3 Total = 50%, Quarter 1 Total = 25%, Quarter 2 to

Small scale: October = 50 %, November = 80 %, December = 83.33 %, Quarter 3 Total = 66.67 %, Quarter 1 Total = 44.83 %, Quarter 2 totals = 58.33 % 

The table clearly shows improvements quarter by quarter and this is expected to continue in Quarter 4 and beyond as the impact of PPA’s becomes more imbedded in the planning process.

Officers continue to monitor this statistic carefully. Small scale applications are prioritised by Management and this area is showing significant improvement (a 21.84% increase between Quarter 1 

and Quarter 3). Furthermore, PPA’s for larger schemes are being strongly encouraged with the proviso that, if they are not signed, the Council will deal with applications within the statutory period 

otherwise.   As stated above, performance is expected to continue in Quarter 4 and beyond as the impact of PPA’s becomes more imbedded in the planning process.  Officers expect targets to be 

met in 2009/10 as the impact of PPA’s becomes more imbedded in the planning process.

R

 G G

R

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

76

78

80

82

84

86

88

90

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

10

P
a
g

e
 6

6



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National157c Processing of planning 

applications within 8 weeks 

for Other applications

Good performance: HIGH

% 86.6 90.59 88.39 86 86 Michael Kiely

BV215a The average number of days 

taken to repair a street 

lighting fault, which is under 

the control of the local 

authority - non DNO -

Good performance:  LOW

days 2.28 0.44 0.42 0.18 0.18 Heather 

Bonfield

BV066a, CPAH06 Local authority rent collection

and arrears: proportion of 

rent collected.

Good performance: HIGH

% 99.91 99.65 99.31 99.92 99.92 Jackie Odunoye

Monthly Performance:   Recovery work and monitoring continues to support our recovery from this reduction in rent collection. We will also be issuing our quarterly rent statements, in January, 

which usually generates a good response from residents and often results in increased payments.

Monthly Performance:   Cost efficiencies in the scouting process led to unforeseen delays in the response from contractors to fixing faults. This has been addressed by introducing a self-scouting 

system from January which will be piloted over the next 3 months. The contractor is committed to raising the performance of this indicator but even at this lower level, the performance remains 

extremely high - top quartile is 2 and below. We expect to meet the year end target.

 G

R

R
R

G

99.92

98

98.5

99

99.5

100

100.5

101

101.5

2007/08 Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Jan Mar

(Q4)

82

84

86

88

90

92

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

R

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

11

P
a
g
e

 6
7



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

BV179, CPAE22 Percentage of standard 

searches carried out in 10 

working days.

Good performance: HIGH

% 99.98 98.92 96 100 100 Michael Kiely

BV212, CPAH08, 

SP204, THI007

Average time taken to re-let 

local authority housing.

Good performance:  LOW

days 33.99 35.76 33.3 31 31 Jackie Odunoye

CPAH04, SP203, 

THI006

Percentage of urgent repairs 

completed in government 

time limits

Good performance: HIGH

% 97.67 98.3 97.26 98 98 Jackie Odunoye

Monthly Performance:   Although the monthly performance is at 100%, due to lower performance earlier on in the year the YTD figure is below target. Missed targets earlier on in the year were a 

result of lower responses from departments completing the return. Increased monitoring of those teams carrying out searches has contributed to the improvement in performance.

Monthly Performance:   November’s improved performance has been sustained into December [with an improvement of almost 7 days compared to the previous month]. This is a result of 

implementing some of the recommendations from the voids review; and an increased focus on robust performance management at patch level and consistency across local service centres.

Monthly Performance:   The performance has fallen this month and is mainly due to the performance of one contractor. The contractor, EPS, have been put on notice to improve. They will be 

monitored intensively to ensure the measures they have taken are effective and they meet the set target level.  In Dec they completed 49.58% of works within time limits.

R

R

 G

R

R
98

96.6

96.8

97

97.2

97.4

97.6

97.8

98

98.2

98.4

2007/08 Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Jan Mar

(Q4)

31

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

2007/08 Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Jan Mar

(Q4)

100

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

102

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

R

12

P
a
g

e
 6

8



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

CPAH05 Average time for non-urgent 

repairs

Good performance:  LOW

days 8.05 7.63 7.43 7.2 7.2 Jackie Odunoye

D&R04 Percentage of intermediate 

and market housing 

completions for family 

housing

Good performance: HIGH

% 3.96 2.25 NR 12 Jackie Odunoye

D&R10 % of repairs complete right 

first time

Good performance: HIGH

% 78.33 77 80.63 80 80 Jackie Odunoye

Monthly Performance:   The monthly and YTD target of 7.2 days has been missed. However, performance is improving and the year to date is continuing to move towards the target for the year. 

We will continue monitoring this indicator to ensure that the movement continues towards the year end target.

R

R

R

R

G
80

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

2007/08 Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Jan Mar

(Q4)

12

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

7.2

6.6

6.8

7

7.2

7.4

7.6

7.8

8

8.2

2007/08 Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Jan Mar

(Q4)

 

13

P
a
g
e

 6
9



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

SP205 Percentage of residents 

satisfied with the Council's 

repairs service

Good performance: HIGH

% 86.01 83 85.94 88 88 Jackie Odunoye

R

88

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

2007/08 Aug Oct Dec

(Q3)

Feb

G

14

P
a
g

e
 7

0



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

Priority314 Number of under 16s who 

are active users of the Idea 

Stores and libraries

Good performance: HIGH

number 16008 13,025 13,176 13,942 14405 Judith St John RED

National073,

Priority3004

Achievement at level 4 or 

above in both English and 

Maths at Key Stage 2

Good performance: HIGH

% 72 72.2 72.2 79 79 Helen Jenner

National074,

Priority3005

Achievement at level 5 or 

above in both English and 

Maths at Key Stage 3

Good performance: HIGH

% 58 55.9 57.7 71 71 Carmel 

Littleton

Theme 3: A Prosperous Community

Monthly Performance:   End of December actual is falling short of target. Analysis to determine if there is a problem with retention of members is underway. The trend is upwards and this figure 

represents a 7% increase in active membership since April 2008. February half terms brings in many new members and are expected to put us back on target.

Monthly Performance:   57.7% is the achievement at level 5 or above in both English and Maths at Key Stage 3 and this is a provisional result dated Dec 08 as based on NAA/DCSF data. Following 

Government decision there will be no final 2008 KS3 results, and KS3 tests will be abolished from 2008/09 onwards. This result is collected annually.

Monthly Performance:   72.2% is the confirmed result for achievement at level 4 or above in both English and Maths at Key Stage 2.

R

R

RR

14405

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

 R

R

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

2007/08 Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

2007/08 Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

15

P
a
g
e

 7
1



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National075,

Priority3006

Achievement of 5 or more A*-

C grades at GCSE or 

equivalent including English 

and Maths

Good performance: HIGH

% 36.5 40 41.2 43 43 Carmel 

Littleton

National084,

Priority3015

Achievement of 2 or more A*-

C grades in Science GCSEs or

equivalent

Good performance: HIGH

% 46.9 49 49 48 48 Carmel 

Littleton

National085b,

Priority3017

Post-16 participation in 

physical sciences A Level 

Chemistry

Good performance: HIGH

Number 86 86 102 102 Carmel 

Littleton

Monthly Performance:   41.2% is the academic year 2007/08 (financial year 2008-09) results for achievement of 5 or more A*- C grades at GCSE or equivalent including English and Maths.

Monthly Performance:   Academic year 2007/08 there was 86 entries for Chemistry. This is a provisional result from the National Pupil Database (EPAS Post-16 provisional scores for both schools 

and Tower Hamlets College). We are not able to make a judgement regarding performance at this stage because we are waiting for Tower Hamlets College to confirm the target setting figures for 

the next three years. LA and Tower Hamlets College are still negotiating targets and no agreement has been reached. The current targets were set by Research & Performance team and are 

provisional.

R

 G

R

R

 G

 R

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2007/08 Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

2007/08 Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

32

34

36

38

40

42

44

2007/08 Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

16

P
a
g

e
 7

2



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National085c,

Priority3018

Post-16 participation in 

physical sciences A Level 

Mathematics

Good Performance: HIGH

Number 105 105 99 99 Carmel 

Littleton

National089a,

Priority3022

Reducing the number of 

failing schools - Reduction of 

number of schools judged as 

requiring special measures 

and improvement in time 

taken to come out of the 

category

Good Performance: LOW

Number 0 0 0 0 0 Helen Jenner

National092,

Priority3026

Narrowing the gap between 

the lowest achieving 20% in 

the Early Years Foundation 

Stage Profile and the rest

Good performance:  LOW

% 40.7 37.3 37.3 31.8 31.8 Helen Jenner

Monthly Performance:   37.3% is the 2007/08 academic year result for narrowing the gap between the lowest achieving 20% in the Early Years Foundation Stage Profile and the rest. This result is 

provisional and is subject to change following result updates between schools, LA's and DCSF. This result is collected annually.

 G

 G

 G

0
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2007/08 Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3)

 G

 G

 R

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

2007/08 Dec (Q3)

0

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

5

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

17

P
a
g
e

 7
3



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

D&R01 No. residents assisted into 

sustainable employment by 

Skillsmatch

Cumulative measure

Good performance: HIGH

148 353 173 600 Sue Hinds GREEN

SP308, THI022 Percentage of young people 

in Tower Hamlets aged 16 - 

24 claiming unemployment-

related benefits

Good performance:  LOW

% 18.2 20.6 20.4 15 15 Sue Hinds

BV218a Percentage of new reports of 

abandoned vehicles 

investigated within 24hrs of 

notification

Good performance: HIGH

% 99.46 99.68 99.61 99.5 99.5 John Chilton

Theme 4: A Safe and Supportive Community

Monthly Performance:   Inner London and London averages increased on a marginal level and remain far above the rates in early 2008. Over the last quarter Inner London averages stayed on a 

similar level as the quarter before settling at 13.6%. School leavers and graduates are strongly affected by the economic downturn as they lack experience to enter a highly competitive market. It 

seems highly unlikely that the SP308 target of 15.1% will be met if current economic trends will continue. As the GB is going through a recession it can be expected that the PI won’t be achieved. 

SP308 will not show more positive trends until the London and UK economy will return to new growth. Analysts do not expect this to be before 2010 or 2011.  Data for this PI is published on a 

monthly basis (approximately 2 weeks after the end of the month)

 G

R

R
R

0.00%

0.20%

0.40%

0.60%

0.80%

1.00%

1.20%

2007/08 Jun

(Q1)

Sep

(Q2)

Dec

(Q3)

Mar

(Q4)

D&R01

15

0

5

10

15

20

25

2007/08 Jul Sep

(Q2)

Nov Jan Mar

(Q4)

600

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

G

18

P
a
g

e
 7

4



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

CPAE30 Consumer satisfaction with 

trading standards service.

Good performance: HIGH

% 83.14 92 77 63.75 85 Bryan Jones

CPAE33a Trading standards, levels of 

business compliance, high-

risk premises.

Good performance: HIGH

% 89.8 71 84 69.75 93 Colin Perrins

CPAE33b Trading standards, levels of 

business compliance, medium

risk premises.

% 91.42 60 93 69.75 93 Colin Perrins

 G

 G

 G

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

2007/08 Jun

(Q1)

Sep

(Q2)

Dec

(Q3)

Mar

(Q4)

G

G

G

19

P
a
g
e

 7
5



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

CPAE33c Trading standards, levels of 

business compliance, low-risk

premises.

Good performance: HIGH

% 93.62 66 88 69.75 93 Colin Perrins

National028 Number of serious violent 

knife crimes per 1,000 

population (Delayed Until 

09/10)

Cumulative measure

Good performance: LOW

Number 1 1.63 1.52 2.03 Andy Bamber RED

National029 Number of gun crimes per 

1,000 population

Cumulative measure

Good performance: LOW

Number 27 38 57.71 76.95 Andy Bamber GREEN

Monthly Performance:   This indicator is slightly off target during this period however this is not audited data and we expect to meet the target at the end of the year due to pending police 

operations.

 G

G

 G

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

0

20

40

60

80

100

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

G

20

P
a
g

e
 7

6



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National030 The change in convictions for 

Prolific and other Priority 

Offenders (PPOs) over a 12 

month period

Good performance:  LOW

Number N/A N/A 30 30 Andy Bamber

National034 Number of domestic 

homicides per 1,000 

population

Good performance:  LOW

Number 0 0 0 0 Andy Bamber

National043 Young people within the 

Youth Justice System 

receiving a conviction in court

who are sentenced to 

custody

Good performance:  LOW

% 7.4 12.8 7.3 5 5 Mary Durkin

Monthly Performance:   A high number of serious offences left the courts no option but to impose custodial sentences and we have not met the target. The number of custodial sentences in the 

quarter was 9, which was 7.3% of all disposals by the court. Comparison data for the quarter will be available in March 2009. The YOT quarterly figure of 7.3% is the same as the London average 

in 2007/08 of 7.3%. In 5 out of the 9 custodial sentences in the quarter, the offence seriousness was 6 (Scale 1 to 8, ascending seriousness). In the other 4 cases, the offence seriousness was 4. 

In these cases, the young people had previously been sentenced respectively 3, 4, 4, and 6 times before the custodial sentences were imposed. The YOT will continue to co-ordinate and run 

preventative and diversionary interventions to avoid young people's behaviour escalating to the point where custody is inevitable. At sentencing stage, the YOT will continue to present to the court 

robust community-based alternatives to custodial sentences commensurate with the seriousness of the offence(s) before the court.

Monthly Performance:   This data is published by the Home Office and we are unsure when the data is going to be released.

 G

R

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Actual

07/08

Jun Sep Dec Mar Est 08/09

0 0 0 00 0 0 0

0

-2
-1
0
1
2
3
4
5

Actual

07/08

Jun Sep Dec Mar Est 08/09

 G

R

21

P
a
g
e

 7
7



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National049a Total number of primary fires 

per 100,000 population - 

primary fires and related 

fatalities and non-fatal 

casualties (excluding 

precautionary checks).

Cumulative measure

Good performance:  LOW

Number N/A 159.31 201.2 268.3 Andy Bamber GREEN

National049b Total number of fatalities due 

to primary fires per 100,000 

population - primary fires and

related fatalities and non-

fatal casualties (excluding 

precautionary checks).

Cumulative measure

Good performance:  LOW

Number N/A 0 0 0 Andy Bamber GREEN

National049c Total number of non-fatal 

casualties per 100,000 

population - primary fires and

related fatalities and non-

fatal casualties (excluding 

precautionary checks).

Cumulative measure

Good performance: LOW

Number n/a 5.6 12.7 16.9 Andy Bamber GREEN

268.3

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

16.9

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

00

0 0 0 0

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

5

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

22

P
a
g

e
 7

8



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National143 Offenders under probation 

supervision living in settled 

and suitable accommodation 

at the end of their order or 

licence

Good performance: HIGH

% 73 N/A 67.7 70 70 Andy Bamber RED

National144 Offenders under probation 

supervision in employment at

the end of their order or 

licence

Good performance: HIGH

% N/A 32 40 40 Andy Bamber RED

National182 Satisfaction of business with 

local authority regulation 

services - %

Good performance: HIGH

69 72 n/a Bryan Jones

Monthly Performance: There is one month reporting time lag with this indicator hence the data goes up to November 08.  Latest FYTD Performance is 32%. Possible reason for  underperforming 

may be due to managers not completing all fields in final reviews in Eoasys.  Guidelines have been re issued to offender managers to recording reviews correctly.  Probation service have adjusted 

80/09 target from 31% to 40

Monthly Performance: Given that this is a new indicator, we are developing systems to capture and report on the information needed.  An end of year target will therefore be nothing more than a 

guesstimate, although interim reports will be possible.  Targets for subsequent years can be set when we have assessed this years performance and have access to other LA data.

Monthly Performance:   There is one month reporting time lag with this indicator hence the data goes up to November 08. Latest FYTD Performance is 67.70%. Possible reason for 

underperforming may be due to managers not completing all fields in final reviews in Eoasys. Guidelines have been re issued to offender managers to record correctly.

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

0

10

20

30

40

50

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

23

P
a
g
e

 7
9



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National183 Impact of local authority 

trading standards services on 

the fair trading environment

Good performance:  LOW

% 0.35 0.35 n/a Bryan Jones

National184 Food establishments in the 

area which are broadly 

compliant with food hygiene

Good performance: HIGH

% 70 78.5 60.75 62 Bryan Jones

Priority001 The percentage of hate crime 

cases with identified 

perpetrators investigated by 

the Community Safety 

Service resulting in formal 

action

Good performance:  HIGH

0 0 52.5 70 Andy Bamber

Monthly performance: CSS has undertaken a full case audit of each case and the Operations Manager is developing an action plan to urgently deal with this issue. It is likely that there is under 

recording of data and this is being investigated.

Monthly Performance: Given that this is a new indicator, we are developing systems to capture and report on the information needed.  An end of year target will therefore be nothing more than a 

guesstimate, although interim reports will be possible.  Targets for subsequent years can be set when we have assessed this years performance and have access to other LA data.

 G

R

62

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

70

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

G

R

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

24

P
a
g

e
 8

0



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National039 Rate of Hospital Admissions 

per 100,000 for Alcohol 

Related Harm

Good performance: LOW

Number N/A N/A 1425 1900 Andy Bamber

National045 Young offenders’ 

engagement in suitable 

education, training and 

employment

Good performance: HIGH

% 81.7 86 80.2 90 90 Mary Durkin

Monthly Performnace: Data not yet received from the PCT.

Monthly Performance:   80.2% of young people were in suitable education, training and employment (ETE) during the last week of their orders with the Youth Offending Team. This is a reduction 

of 5.8 percentage points on the previous quarter, and a reduction of 1.5% compared to the average for 2007/08. The YOT figures remain well above the London average of 68.8%. The quarterly 

ETE figures vary from quarter to quarter depending on the individual circumstances of the young people serving orders with the YOT. In the current quarter, 13 young people did not meet the 

criteria for suitable ETE at the end of their order. Of these, 3 school age young people were at Pupil Referral Units and receiving 16 hours ETE per week instead of the required 25 hours; 4 young 

people did not engage with the ETE services that were provided by the YOT; 1 young person was not suitable for ETE referral due to serious substance misuse and mental health concerns; 2 

young people started full time ETE within 1 month of the completion of their orders; 2 young people who were above statutory school age were receiving between 1 - 15 hours ETE per week 

instead of the required 16 hours; and 1 young person was receiving 8 hours per week due to lack of resources in the college that he was attending, although he had requested more tuition.

R

90

70
72
74
76
78
80
82
84
86
88
90
92

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

R

300

500

700

900

1100

1300

1500

1700

1900

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

25

P
a
g
e

 8
1



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National046 Young Offenders’ access to 

suitable accommodation

Good performance: HIGH

% 93.4 97.4 97.4 95 95 Mary Durkin

CPAE32 Trading standards, visits to 

high-risk premises.

Good performance: HIGH

% 100 51 57 75 100 Colin Perrins

National126 Early Access for Women to 

Maternity Services

Good performance: HIGH

% 61 69 69 65 65 Esther 

Trenchard-

Mabere (PCT)

Monthly Performance:   Other enforcement work has prevented Officers from carrying out programmed inspections, but the programme is planned to achieve 100% target

 G

 G

 G

0.65

56%

58%

60%

62%

64%

66%

68%

70%

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

100

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

R

 G

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

 G

26

P
a
g

e
 8

2



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National130 Social care clients receiving 

Self Directed Support per 

100,000 population

Good performance: HIGH

Number 166.75 178.96 183.08 180.44 185 John Goldup

National132 Timeliness of social care 

assessment (all adults)

Good performance: HIGH

Months 83.8 76.8 87.4 90 90 John Goldup

Monthly Performance: Why: Staff shortages in the Occupational Therapy Team have contributed to longer waiting times for assessment. Data quality issues have been highlighted within SWIFT 

resulting in a misrepresentation of performance.  What is being done about it?  A Management Action Plan is in place to focus on a swift response to staffing issues. Action is still ongoing to finalise 

the auditing of records that contribute to performance to address data quality issues.  The early warning system in development last quarter is due to go ‘LIVE’ this month to provide operational 

Team Managers with daily information around Assessments to allow allocation of resources to Performance critical cases.  Will Performance get back on track to achieve year end target?  We have 

already seen an increase in Performance of 10.6% last quarter having addressed certain issues. We expect performance to meet target by year end.  When will performance get back on track?

Each month remaining in the year will mark an improvement on the overall performance of this indicator.

 G

R

185

150

155

160

165

170

175

180

185

190

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

90

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

G

R

27

P
a
g
e

 8
3



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National133 Timeliness of social care 

packages following 

assessment

Good performance: HIGH

% 93.8 95.8 95.9 96 96 John Goldup

National141 Percentage of vulnerable 

people achieving independent

living

Good performance: HIGH

% 59 52.13 N/A 65 John Goldup

National142 Percentage of vulnerable 

people who are supported to 

maintain independent living

Good performance: HIGH

% 98 97.7 N/A 99 John Goldup

Monthly Performance:  Clients that make up this indicator are in the process of being audited to correct inaccuracy of performance, therefore no performance information will be reported this 

quarter.

Monthly Performance:  Why is performance off target?  Performance remains excellent in this indicator and is now only 0.1% off of target. Data quality issues are preventing a small number of 

cases appearing positively in performance terms.   What is being done about it?  Action is ongoing to finalise the auditing of records alongside the clients for NI132 that contribute to this indicator.

Will Performance get back on track to achieve year end target?  We expect performance to rise and meet target by year end.  When will performance get back on track?  Within the next two 

months all issues should be resolved and performance targets exceeded.

Monthly Performance:  Clients that make up this indicator are in the process of being audited to correct inaccuracy of performance, therefore no performance information will be reported this 

quarter.

R

96

92.5

93

93.5

94

94.5

95

95.5

96

96.5

2007/08 Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

65

50

52

54

56

58

60

62

64

66

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Actual

07/08

Jun Sep Dec Mar Est 08/09

R

65

50

52

54

56

58

60

62

64

66

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

28

P
a
g

e
 8

4



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

BV218b, LAA122 Percentage of abandoned 

vehicles removed within 24 

hours from the point at which

the Authority is legally 

entitled to remove the 

vehicle

Good performance: HIGH

% 99.12 98.01 96.2 99.5 99.5 John Chilton

Monthly Performance:   Top quartile performance is 98.5 and above.  Our current performance places us in the 2nd quartile. The target shortfall represents 6 failures in 158. For the additional 4 

failures, 3 were due to errors with the contractor not locating vehicles from the instructions given and 1 followed a technical error when an order was sent by fax but not received. The service is 

looking into potential arrangements for back-up vehicles if mechanical problems recur.

R

99.5

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

2007/08 Jun (Q1) Sep (Q2) Dec (Q3) Mar (Q4)

R

29

P
a
g
e

 8
5



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National055d Percentage of children in 

Reception with height and 

weight recorded who are 

obese.

Good performance:  LOW

% 14.6 NR 13.75 13.75 15 Esther 

Trenchard-

Mabere (PCT)

National059 Percentage of initial 

assessments for children’s 

social care carried out within 

7 working days of referral

% 35.45 54.04 62.92 75 Kamini 

Rambellas

National113a Percentage of the resident 

population aged 15-24 

accepting tests/screen for 

Chlamydia

Good performance: HIGH

% 18.4 7.2 4.4 4 20 Esther 

Trenchard-

Mabere (PCT)

Theme 5: A Healthy Community

Monthly performance: comments requested

R

 G
G

G

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

0

20

40

60

80

100

Actual

07/08

Jun Sep Dec Mar

0

5

10

15

20

25

Actual 07/08 Jun Sep Dec Mar

30

P
a
g

e
 8

6



APPENDIX 2

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. 

In

Actual

07/08

Actual

Sep

Actual

Dec

Target

Dec

Target

08/09

Responsible

Officer

Traffic

Light

Trend
 Performance

 Yearly Target

 Monthly Estimate

2007/08 

National156 Number of households living 

in temporary accommodation

Good performance:  LOW

Number 2483 2614 2511 2127 2127 John Goldup

Key to symbols

Arrow up

Arrow across

Arrow down

No arrow

Colour

Performance has deteriorated since the last comparable period (for cumulative indicators we compare to the same period last year).

No previous data to compare to (for cumulative indicators we can only compare to the same period the previous year)

Monthly performance: comments requested

Colour represents whether performance is On Target (Green), Off Target (Red), or whether performance is off target, but will return to target (Amber).

Octagon shape represents Traffic Light for previous period. The two most recent reporting periods are shown.

Performance has improved since the last comparable period (for cumulative indicators e.g. library visits we compare to the same period last year).

Performance maintained since the last comparable period (for cumulative indicators we compare to the same period last year).

R
R

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Actual

07/08

Jun Sep Dec Mar

31

P
a
g
e

 8
7



P
a
g

e
 8

8

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3A

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

Expenditure 376 176 176 0

Income -7 0
 A02  Divisional Management & Administration 369 176 176 0

Expenditure 334 0 0

Income 0
 A03  Access and Systems Capacity 334 0 0 0

Expenditure 267 174 174 0

Income -267 -174 -174 0
 A04  Preventative Technology 0 0 0 0

Expenditure 779 1,049 1,049 0

Income -780 -1,049 -1,049 0
 A05  Carers Programme -1 0 0 0

Expenditure 2,482 2,081 2,081 0

Income 0
 A09  Elders Assessment & Care Management 2,482 2,081 2,081 0

Expenditure 170 108 108 0

Income 0
 A11  Physical Disabilities Sub Division 170 108 108 0

Expenditure 1,074 1,083 1,083 0

Income 0
 A12  Physical Disabilities Assessment 1,074 1,083 1,083 0

Expenditure 89 89 89 0

Income -34 -34 -34 0
 A13  Learning Disabilities Sub Division 55 55 55 0

Expenditure 1,032 797 797 0

Income -319 -77 -77 0
 A14  Learning Disabilities Assessment 713 720 720 0

Expenditure 1,589 1,852 1,802 -50

Income -4 -4 4
 A15  Occupational Therapy 1,585 1,848 1,802 -46

Expenditure 1,144 891 911 20

Income 0
 A16  Occupational Therapy - Contribution 1,144 891 911 20

Expenditure 479 481 481 0

Income -126 -126 -126 0
 A17  HIV Drugs Alcohol 353 355 355 0

Expenditure 1,401 1,463 1,463 0

Income 0
 A18  Hospital Social Work Teams 1,401 1,463 1,463 0

ADULTS, HEALTH & WELLBEING Comment/ Risk Areas

FULL YEAR

P
a
g
e

 8
9



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3A

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

ADULTS, HEALTH & WELLBEING Comment/ Risk Areas

FULL YEAR

Expenditure 138 230 230 0
Income -27 -27 0

 A19 Vulnerable Adults 138 203 203 0

Expenditure 71 297 209 -88

Income -49 -273 -209 64
 A23  Mental Health Sub Division M&A 22 24 0 -24

Expenditure 2,738 3,272 3,518 246

Income -768 -867 -1,045 -178
 A24  Area Mental Health Teams 1,970 2,405 2,473 68

Expenditure 488 491 475 -16

Income -73 -73 -73 0
 A25  Mental Health Day Centres 415 418 402 -16

Expenditure 101 102 102 0

Income 0
 A30  Adult Resources Sub Division 101 102 102 0

Expenditure 682 683 603 -80

Income -1 -1 -1 0
 A31  Physical Disabilities 681 682 602 -80

Expenditure 453 455 455 0

Income -5 -5 -5 0
 A32  Learning Disabilities Day Centre 448 450 450 0

Expenditure 1,648 1,666 1,666 0

Income -43 -43 -43 0
 A33  Elders Day Centres 1,605 1,623 1,623 0

Expenditure 6,465 6,511 6,066 -445

Income 0
 A34  Home Care 6,465 6,511 6,066 -445

Expenditure 249 252 245 -7

Income 0
 A37  Emergency Duty Team 249 252 245 -7

Expenditure 0 169 169 0

Income 0
 A38  Older People And Homele 0 169 169 0

Following restrictions on referrals in 2007-08 to deal with budget 

pressures, the service is now accepting referrals for high 

intensity care packages. To date the demand has been 

somewhat less than predicted, leading to the projected 

underspend. Although a £445,000 underspend is the best 

estimate at this stage, it is anticipated that this will reduce over 

the remainder of the year,with an even more intensive focus on 

care at home as an alternative to institutional care.

Additional expenditure has been incurred on staffing, in response 

to service pressures. However, this has largely been funded by 

an increase in income from the East London Foundation Trust, 

under our established partnership arrangements. 

P
a
g

e
 9

0



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3A

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

ADULTS, HEALTH & WELLBEING Comment/ Risk Areas

FULL YEAR

Expenditure 522 522 522 0

Income -178 -178 -178 0
 A41  Personalisation 344 344 344 0

Expenditure 24,066 23,675 24,688 1,013

Income -3,897 -3,617 -4,215 -598
 A42  Elders Commissioning 20,169 20,058 20,473 415

Expenditure 20,062 20,425 21,388 963

Income -2,156 -2,591 -4,013 -1,422
 A43  Learning Disabilities Commissioning 17,906 17,834 17,375 -459

Expenditure 9,009 9,021 9,963 942

Income -1,444 -1,398 -2,332 -934
 A44  Mental Health Commissioning 7,565 7,623 7,631 8

Expenditure 7,253 7,007 7,226 219

Income -1,452 -1,241 -1,198 43
 A45  Physical Disabilities Commissioning 5,801 5,766 6,028 262

Expenditure 258 258 232 -26

Income -151 -151 -151 0
 A46  HIV Commissioning 107 107 81 -26

Expenditure 783 0 0 0

Income 0
 A47  Drugs Commissioning 783 0 0 0

Expenditure 263 0 0 0

Income 0
 A48  Alcohol Commissioning 263 0 0 0

This variance in expenditure represents increases in demand for 

direct payments and other service areas concurrent with 

changes in policy and legislation towards more independent 

living. However, as a result of successful negotiations with the 

PCT over the appropriate sharing or distribution of  costs in a 

number of complex cases of clients receiving very high levels of 

support, additional income will cover these costs and contribute 

to a net underspend. However this position is liable to significant 

change throughout the year as individual cases are reviewed 

and re-assessed.

This variance in expenditure represents increases in demand for 

direct payments and other service areas concurrent with 

changes in policy and legislation towards more independent 

living.

The overspend can be attributed mainly to residential and 

nursing care.  There has been a significant increase in referrals 

for residential and nursing care, mainly related to the high needs 

of increasing numbers of people with dementia.   Additionally 

there is an increase in expenditure in Linkage Plus matched 

mainly by additional income from PCT.

P
a
g
e

 9
1



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3A

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

ADULTS, HEALTH & WELLBEING Comment/ Risk Areas

FULL YEAR

Expenditure 38,807 38,477 40,286 1,809

The gross expenditure variance is mainly due to over spends on 

the Premises Related Budget Heads in consequence of there 

being more households in temporary accommodation than 

originally budgeted for.

Income -35,648 -35,648 -38,617 -2,969

The Gross Income variance likewise reflects increased 

temporary accommodation placements, with more households 

contributing to Administration Charges than originally budgeted 

for.

 A49  Homeless & Housing Advice Services 3,159 2,829 1,669 -1,160

Expenditure 15,821 17,485 17,207 -278

Income -15,744 -17,483 -17,207 276
 A50 Supporting People 77 2 0 -2

Expenditure 50 173 173 0

Income 0
 A53  Strategic Division M&A 50 173 173 0

Expenditure 621 586 586 0

Income -225 -188 -188 0
 A54  Policy and Planning 396 398 398 0

Expenditure 383 386 386 0

Income 0
 A55  Quality and Performance 383 386 386 0

Expenditure 388 388 388 0

Income 0
 A56  Adult Services IT 388 388 388 0

Expenditure 396 397 397 0

Income -72 -72 -72 0
 A57  Strategic Projects 324 325 325 0

Expenditure 1,381 575 575 0

Income -27 -27 -27 0
 A58  Technical Resources 1,354 548 548 0

Expenditure 598 644 644 0

Income 0
 A59  Corporate Services 598 644 644 0

Expenditure 8 8 8 0

Income 0
 A60  Communications 8 8 8 0

Expenditure 818 588 588 0

Income -273 -43 -43 0
 A66  Learning and Development 545 545 545 0

P
a
g

e
 9

2



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3A

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

ADULTS, HEALTH & WELLBEING Comment/ Risk Areas

FULL YEAR

Expenditure 41 26 26 0

Income 0
 A68  Supported Employment 41 26 26 0

Expenditure 710 1,111 1,111 0

Income -25 -9 -9 0
 A71  Finance Services 685 1,102 1,102 0

Expenditure 128 128 128 0

Income 0
 A72  Budget Shortfall Contingency 128 128 128 0

Expenditure 3,433 3,433 3,433 0

Income 0

 A90  Support Services Holding Account 3,433 3,433 3,433 0

 Adults' Health & Wellbeing Total 86,278 84,286 82,794 -1,492

P
a
g
e

 9
3



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3B

FULL YEAR

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

Expenditure 3,924 5,451 5,451 0

Income -3,895 -5,315 -5,315 0
 G02  Pre-Primary Education 29 136 136 0

Expenditure 110,455 133,730 133,730 0

Income -107,856 -129,709 -129,709 0
 G04  Primary Education 2,599 4,021 4,021 0

Expenditure 89,366 123,134 123,134 0

Income -86,819 -117,762 -117,762 0
 G06  Secondary Education 2,547 5,372 5,372 0

Expenditure 10,222 15,546 15,546 0

Income -9,984 -15,062 -15,062 0
 G08  Special Education 238 484 484 0

Expenditure 657 662 688 26

Income -254 -268 -297 -29
 G10  EYCL M&A 403 394 391 -3

Expenditure 5,506 7,107 6,327 -780

Income -5,049 -6,267 -5,487 780

 G11  Early Years 457 840 840 0

Expenditure 2,720 3,034 3,043 9

Income -98 -98 -107 -9
 G12  Local Authority Day Nurseries 2,622 2,936 2,936 0

Expenditure 10,510 10,895 11,002 107

Income -10,510 -10,510 -10,617 -107
 G13  Childrens Centres 0 385 385 0

Expenditure 459 1,291 1,272 -19

Income -40 -377 -358 19
 G14  School Improvement Primary 419 914 914 0

Expenditure 1,828 2,530 2,611 81

Income -413 -889 -980 -91
 G15  Pupil & Student Services 1,415 1,641 1,631 -10

Expenditure 9,332 10,304 11,014 710

Income -5,227 -5,936 -6,646 -710

 G16  Special Educational Needs 4,105 4,368 4,368 0

Expenditure 2,184 3,593 3,931 338

Income -2,173 -3,614 -3,978 -364
 G17  Support For Learning Service 11 -21 -47 -26

Expenditure 1,080 1,550 1,621 71

Income -427 -728 -733 -5
 G18  Educational Psychology 653 822 888 66

Expenditure 625 2,655 3,063 408

Income -174 -1,062 -1,470 -408
 G19  Equalities and Parental Engagement 451 1,593 1,593 0

The variances from gross expenditure and gross 

income budgets are due to recent additional grant, 

which has yet to be reflected in the budget

The variance from gross expenditure and gross income 

is due to recent additional WNF grant, which has yet to 

be reflected in the budget

Additional expenditure and income reflects a new 

service level agreement between two Childrens 

Centres that has yet to be incorporated in the budget

Underspend (offset by reduced grant) due to restricted 

grants where there is insufficient demand to meet the 

narrow criteria required to access funding (NEG, 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES Comment/Risk Area

This difference in this budget relates to Recoupment 

Expenditure.  This due to the increase in other LEA 

charges for school palcements and the number of 

pupils placed in other LEA schools.  This has been 

offset a little by a reduction in the level of Independent 

school fees.

P
a
g

e
 9

4



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3B

FULL YEAR

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

CHILDREN'S SERVICES Comment/Risk Area

Expenditure 169 206 206 0

Income 0 0
 G20  Governors Services 169 206 206 0

Expenditure 256 281 281 0

Income 0 0
 G21  One O'clock Clubs 256 281 281 0

Expenditure 148 163 163 0

Income 0 0
 G25  Young People & Learning M&A 148 163 163 0

Expenditure 879 1,058 1,058 0

Income -472 -481 -481 0
 G26  School Improvement Secondary 407 577 577 0

Expenditure 0 472 214 -258

Income 0 -472 -214 258
 G27  14 - 19 Year Olds 0 0 0 0

Expenditure 0 1,282 1,214 -68

Income 0 -1,264 -1,208 56
 G28  Educational Improvement P'ship 0 18 6 -12

Expenditure 4,031 4,363 4,692 329

Income -4,031 -4,431 -4,760 -329

 G29  PRU 0 -68 -68 0

Expenditure 0 480 116 -364

Income 0 -480 -116 364
 G30 Music/Arts Education 0 0 0 0

Expenditure 391 432 420 -12

Income -10 -10 -2 8
 G33  E-Learning 381 422 418 -4

Expenditure 424 425 570 145

Income -145 -145
 G37  Youth & Community Learning M&A 424 425 425 0

Expenditure 4,051 4,215 4,600 385

Income -3,403 -3,305 -3,690 -385
 G38  Lifelong Learning 648 910 910 0

Expenditure 5,456 12,177 12,767 590

Income -1,535 -7,115 -7,705 -590
 G39  Youth & Connexions Service 3,921 5,062 5,062 0

Expenditure 1,283 1,693 1,671 -22

Income -344 -344 -322 22
 G40  Junior Youth Service 939 1,349 1,349 0

Delays in appointing project manager but funding 

agency has agreed that underspend can be c/f to 

2009/10

The expenditure figure reflects additional services to 

schools/pupils and the temporary additional staffing 

costs  to work with pupils on managed moves and 

exclusions, this figure is offset by the additional income 

generated from this work from schools and SEN 

section.

The additional spend (netted off 100% by additional 

income) results from the application of LSC grant not 

used in 2007/08 

The variance from gross expenditure and gross income 

is due to recent additional Play Pathfinder grant, which 

has yet to be reflected in the budget

The variance in gross expenditure and gross income is 

due to recent additional LDA and WNF grant funding, 

which has yet to be reflected in the budget

The budget variances result from the expenditure being 

profiled to the academic year

P
a
g
e

 9
5



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3B

FULL YEAR

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

CHILDREN'S SERVICES Comment/Risk Area

Expenditure 0 153 153 0

Income 0 -111 -111 0
 G41  Health Through Education 0 42 42 0

Expenditure 746 861 922 61

Income -14 -14 -75 -61
 G42  Community Languages Team 732 847 847 0

Expenditure 59 69 69 0

Income 0 0
 G43  Out-of-hours Learning & Study Support 59 69 69 0

Expenditure 1,334 1,454 120

Income -1,328 -1,448 -120
 G44  Extended Schools 0 6 6 0

Expenditure 931 938 938 0

Income -931 -931 -931 0
 G46  Community Premises 0 7 7 0

Expenditure 633 286 335 49

Income 0 0
 G49  Childrens Social Care M&A 633 286 335 49

Expenditure 1,817 2,217 2,280 63

Income -63 -159 -159 0
 G50  Child Protection & Reviewing 1,754 2,058 2,121 63

Expenditure 648 758 758 0

Income 0 0
 G51  Childrens Resources : Management 648 758 758 0

Expenditure 1,510 1,989 1,973 -16

Income -281 -265 16
 G52  Childrens Resources : Resident 1,510 1,708 1,708 0

Expenditure 2,480 2,826 2,849 23

Income -31 -31 -54 -23
 G53  Childrens Resources : Family 2,449 2,795 2,795 0

Expenditure 17,488 17,979 17,937 -42

Income -596 -924 -882 42
 G54  Childrens Resources : Commissioning 16,892 17,055 17,055 0

Expenditure 2,516 2,616 2,564 -52

Income -208 -76 -24 52

 G55  Children Looked After 2,308 2,540 2,540 0

Expenditure 2,489 2,764 2,670 -94

Income -169 -169 -75 94
 G56  Leaving Care 2,320 2,595 2,595 0

The variance in gross expenditure and gross income is 

due to recent additional Breakfast Club grant, which 

has yet to be reflected in the budget

P
a
g

e
 9

6



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3B

FULL YEAR

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

CHILDREN'S SERVICES Comment/Risk Area

Expenditure 6,155 7,087 7,974 887

Income -12 -213 -238 -25

 G57  Fieldwork 6,143 6,874 7,736 862

Expenditure 2,318 2,658 2,396 -262

Income 0 -219 -228 -9
 G58  Integrated Services for CWD 2,318 2,439 2,168 -271

Expenditure 423 353 369 16

Income -263 -44 -44 0
 G59  Emergency Duty Team 160 309 325 16

Expenditure 1,544 1,699 2,160 461

Income -864 -864 -1,325 -461
 G60  Youth Offending Service 680 835 835 0

Expenditure 1,825 1,714 1,714 0

Income -1,270 -1,049 -1,049 0
 G61  Children-Mental Health (CAMHS) 555 665 665 0

Expenditure 469 535 519 -16

Income 0 0
 G65  SPP M&A 469 535 519 -16

Expenditure 1,129 2,816 2,880 64

Income -225 -1,292 -1,304 -12

 G67  Commissioned Services 904 1,524 1,576 52

Expenditure 30,275 37,381 37,381 0

Income -30,207 -36,761 -36,761 0
 G68  External Funding & Partnership 68 620 620 0

Expenditure 85 107 107 0

Income 0 0
 G69  Communications 85 107 107 0

Expenditure 155 325 323 -2

Income -155 -296 -296 0
 G70  CIS 0 29 27 -2

Expenditure 484 1,265 1,215 -50

Income -5 -5 0 5
 G71  Performance Research & Statistics 479 1,260 1,215 -45

Expenditure 283 292 261 -31

Income -28 0 0
 G72  Programme Management 255 292 261 -31

There remain significant budget pressures in relation to 

the requirement to maintain agency staff, in order to 

provide a safe service and ensure children are 

safeguarded. A detailed strategy is underway to re-

shape the service with a particular emphasis on early 

intervention and prevention and to refocus the delivery 

of services to families to reduce the demands on the 

service. It is anticipated that this strategy will reduce 

the level of overspend in the medium term.

The variance from gross expenditure and gross income 

is due to recent additional Youth Offending grant, which 

has yet to be reflected in the budget.

Safer recruitment process delayed recruitment of link 

carers. Delay will not reoccur next year

P
a
g
e

 9
7



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3B

FULL YEAR

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

CHILDREN'S SERVICES Comment/Risk Area

Expenditure 476 0 0 0

Income 0 0 0
 G73  Quality Audit &Project Management 476 0 0 0

Expenditure 205 0 0 0

Income 0 0 0
 G74  Quality & Performance 205 0 0 0

Expenditure 687 752 714 -38

Income -387 -379 -379 0
 G75  IT Social Care 300 373 335 -38

Expenditure 264 279 279 0

Income -26 -26 -26 0
 G79  Childrens Services Resources 238 253 253 0

Expenditure 433 455 455 0

Income 0 0

 G80  Information & Support Services 433 455 455 0

Expenditure 1,004 1,232 1,171 -61

Income -465 -510 -529 -19
 G81  Building Dev & Tech Service 539 722 642 -80

Expenditure 10,952 2,735 2,735 0

Income -661 -579 -579 0
 G82  Childrens Services  Finance 10,291 2,156 2,156 0

Expenditure 1,718 1,718 1,718 0

Income 0 0
 G83  Childrens Services  HR 1,718 1,718 1,718 0

Expenditure 170 58 67 9

Income -84 -2 -2
 G84  Teacher Recruitment 86 58 65 7

Expenditure 1,016 1,288 1,449 161

Income -449 -680 -841 -161
 G85  Learning & Development 567 608 608 0

Expenditure 782 874 1,217 343

Income -421 -421 -864 -443
 G86  PDC 361 453 353 -100

Expenditure 132 301 301 0

Income 0
 G89  Building Schools for the Future 132 301 301 0

Expenditure 0 18 18 0

Income 0 0 0 0

 G91 Holding accounts 0 18 18 0

 Total 80,006 86,596 87,077 477

 Add: Trading Accounts (See Appendix 6) 359 359

 Children's Services Total 80,006 86,596 87,436 836

Additional expenditure (largely offset by additional 

income) relates to Every Child Matters Grant

Surplus relates to additional business generated from 

Goresfield and the PDC

P
a
g

e
 9

8



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3C

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

Expenditure 1,343 1,562 1,562 0

Income -1,343 -1,562 -1,562 0

  E01  Management & Support 0 0 0 0

Expenditure 935 900 900 0

Income -935 -897 -897 0

  E10  Street Services Management & Admin 0 3 3 0

Expenditure 29,117 29,141 28,921 -220

Income -5,026 -4,689 -4,689 0

  E11  Waste & Cleansing Services 24,091 24,452 24,232 -220

Expenditure 11,287 12,403 12,403 0

Income -1,976 -2,211 -2,211 0

  E12  Transportation & Highways 9,311 10,192 10,192 0

Expenditure 1,744 1,743 1,743 0

Income -1,744 -1,744 -1,744 0

  E14  Local Enforcement Teams 0 -1 -1 0

Expenditure 121 121 121 0

Income -121 -121 -121 0

  E20  Environment Control Manager 0 0 0 0

Expenditure 1,923 2,335 2,335 0

Income -300 -717 -717 0

  E21  Trading Standards 1,623 1,618 1,618 0

COMMUNITIES, LOCALITIES & CULTURE

FULL YEAR

Comment/ Risk Areas

Original budget projections assumed a requirement to purchase 

LATS allowances at a cost of £12 per ton. The current Market value 

at which LATS are being traded has reduced to £0.10 this will result 

in a saving of £223,000. The trading price for LATS is extremely 

volatile and given current economic circumstances and the fact that 

unused allowances cannot be carried forward costs are anticipated to

increase in 2009/10. It will be necessary for the Council to purchase 

LATS in 2009/10 and as a consequenceis a request will be made to 

carry forward this balance to offset the liability.

P
a
g
e

 9
9



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3C

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

COMMUNITIES, LOCALITIES & CULTURE

FULL YEAR

Comment/ Risk Areas

Expenditure 6,136 6,662 6,662 0

Income -758 -1,264 -1,264 0

  E22  Environmental Health 5,378 5,398 5,398 0

Expenditure 5,020 5,020 5,020 0

Income -3 -3 -3 0

  E23  Concessionary Fares 5,017 5,017 5,017 0

378 378 0

-378 -378 0

  E24  Parking Control 0 0 0 0

Expenditure 540 1,056 906 -150

Income -210 -443 -443 0

  E36  Health & Safety 330 613 463 -150

Expenditure 974 973 973 0

Income -974 -974 -974 0

  E40  Divisional Management 0 -1 -1 0

Expenditure 10,666 10,060 10,060 0

Income -1,672 -1,588 -1,588 0

  E41  Idea Stores Management 8,994 8,472 8,472 0

Expenditure 5,596 5,562 5,562 0

Income -655 -636 -636 0

  E42  Sports & Physical Activity 4,941 4,926 4,926 0

Expenditure 7,327 7,327 7,327 0

Income -758 -758 -758 0

  E43  Parks & Open Spaces 6,569 6,569 6,569 0

Expenditure 1,843 1,894 1,894 0

Income -279 -324 -324 0

  E44  Arts & Events 1,564 1,570 1,570 0

Expenditure 751 774 774 0

Income -751 -774 -774 0

  E45  Mile End Park 0 0 0 0

£250k was originally allocated for provision of a generator at 

Mulberry Place, delays in obtaining the landlord approval for the 

sighting of the generator has allowed for further consideration of the 

most appropriate use of this funding. This has resulted in the 

identification of a more cost effective method of providing business 

continuity options. Four separate projects have been identified by the 

Business Continuity Planning Group these are now in the process of 

being implemented but because of initial landlord delays not all 

funding will be expended in this financial year. A request will be 

made to carry forward the balance into 2009/10.   One of the options 

is to purchase a mobile generator, and the underspend will fund this 

cost in the new financial year.

P
a
g
e

 1
0
0



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3C

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

COMMUNITIES, LOCALITIES & CULTURE

FULL YEAR

Comment/ Risk Areas

Expenditure 1,340 1,363 1,363 0

Income -401 -390 -390 0

  E51  Head of Crime Reduction 939 973 973 0

Expenditure 711 1,466 1,466 0

Income -333 -915 -915 0

  E53  Partnership and Performance 378 551 551 0

Expenditure 2,108 2,300 2,300 0

Income -374 -741 -741 0

  E54  Operations 1,734 1,559 1,559 0

Expenditure 808 874 874 0

Income -627 -300 -300 0

  E55  Policy & Victims 181 574 574 0

Expenditure 2,984 3,053 3,053 0

Income -2,282 -2,051 -2,051 0

  E56  Drugs Action Team 702 1,002 1,002 0

Expenditure 620 642 642 0

Income -307 -329 -329 0

  E61  Participation & Engagement 313 313 313 0

Expenditure 0 1,563 1,563 0

Income 0 -1,563 -1,563 0

  E62  Working Neighbourhoods Fund 0 0 0 0

  Total 72,065 73,800 73,430 -370

  Add: Trading Accounts (See Appendix 6) 0 0 0 0

  Communities, Localities & Culture Total 72,065 73,800 73,430 -370

P
a
g
e

 1
0
1



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3D

FULL YEAR

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

Expenditure 2,990 2,984 2,811 -173

Income -907 -1,068 -931 137
 J04  Major Project & Development 2,083 1,916 1,880 -36

Expenditure 2,861 3,395 3,515 120

Income -2,975 -3,509 -3,734 -225

  J06  Development Decisions -114 -114 -219 -105

Expenditure 3,203 6,578 6,578 0

Income -1,611 -4,986 -4,986 0
 J08  External Project Funding 1,592 1,592 1,592 0

Expenditure 680 680 680 0

Income 0
 J10  Match Funding 680 680 680 0

Expenditure 1,833 2,116 2,030 -86

Income -378 -471 -450 21
 J12  Resources 1,455 1,645 1,580 -65

Expenditure 3,019 3,154 3,173 19

Income -151 -305 -305 0
 J14  Management & Support Services 2,868 2,849 2,868 19

Expenditure 2,607 1,787 2,417 630

Income -1,191 -675 -890 -215

 J16 Asset Management 1,416 1,112 1,527 415

DEVELOPMENT & RENEWAL Comment/ Risk Areas

The Directorate budget includes a high level of income from 

development fees and land charges. These are forecast to decline 

sigificantly as a  direct consequence of both the current 'credit crunch' 

and its impact on the property market and the introduction of Home 

Improvement Packs (HIPS). Earlier in the financial year, large shortfalls 

in fee income were projected. Over the last few months, significant fees 

have been received for major planning applications and this has meant 

that the projected pressure for the 2008-09 financial year is not 

expected to arise. It must be stressed however that these are one-off 

applications and very few major applications are anticipated in the near 

future. This will cause severe budgetary pressures in 2009-10 and later 

years.

Expenditure is significantly higher than initially estimated to reflect the 

costs of the development and implementation of the corporate asset 

management system, together with the on-going additional costs that 

are being incurred to deliver comprehensive building surveys and 

backlog health and safety maintenance. 

P
a
g
e

 1
0
2



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3D

FULL YEAR

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

DEVELOPMENT & RENEWAL Comment/ Risk Areas

Expenditure 610 843 843 0

Income -233 -233 0
 J18  Olympics 610 610 610 0

Expenditure 5,911 9,786 9,750 -36

Income -1,870 -6,017 -5,770 247

 J20  Regeneration Strategy Sustainability 4,041 3,769 3,980 211

 Total 14,632 14,053 14,492 440

 Add: Trading Accounts (See Appendix 6) 0 0 66 66

 Development & Renewal Total 14,632 14,053 14,556 506

 The Local Labour in Construction service has been historically funded 

through a combination of Housing Capital, HRA and Section 106 

resources, and trading income. The service transferred to Development 

and Renewal from the former Housing Directorate in April 2008, and it 

soon became apparent that the assumed levels of external funding 

would not be realised. A review of the service was agreed as part of the 

2009-10 budget process and this will deliver some £150,000 of savings 

to ease pressures in future years.

P
a
g
e

 1
0
3



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3E

Original

Budget

£'000

 Latest 

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

Expenditure 911 0 0 0

Income 0 0 0 0

C04 Local Training & Employment 911 0 0 0

Expenditure 2,783 2,913 3,327 414

Income -2,783 -2,913 -3,259 -346

C14 Communications 0 0 68 68

Expenditure 620 619 619 0

Income 0 0 0 0

C16 Strategy & Performance 620 619 619 0

Expenditure 3,574 3,965 3,965 0

Income -3,574 -3,474 -3,474 0

C52 Legal Services 0 491 491 0

Expenditure 1,450 1,864 1,864 0

Income -139 -553 -553 0

C54 Scrutiny & Equalities 1,311 1,311 1,311 0

Expenditure 702 1,023 852 -171

Income -337 -337 -337 0

C56 Registation of Births, Deaths 365 686 515 -171

Expenditure 492 537 537 0

Income 0 0 0 0

C58 Electoral Registation 492 537 537 0

Expenditure 30 30 30 0

Income 0 0 0 0

C60 Borough Elections 30 30 30 0

Expenditure 2,817 2,816 2,887 71

Income -387 -387 -387 0

C62 Democratic Services 2,430 2,429 2,500 71

Expenditure 812 812 812 0

Income 0 0 0 0

C78 Demo Representation & Mgt 812 812 812 0

Expenditure 4,259 4,662 4,662 0

Income -160 -160 -160 0

C80 Corporate Management 4,099 4,502 4,502 0

Chief Executive's Total 11,071 11,415 11,385 -32

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 

Directorate

FULL YEAR

Comment/Risk Area

Budget includes £321k for subsidy payments for Burials outside the borough, 

however the projected spend this year is only £100k.  This anticipated 

underspend reflects the fact that the scheme was launched midway through 

the financial year.  It is expected that spend will be closer to the budget figure 

next year as (i) the scheme will be in place for the whole year; (ii) take-up is 

increasing as people get to know about the scheme; and (iii) a review, and 

possible extension, of the scheme is pending at the end of the pilot period.

P
a
g
e

 1
0
4



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3F

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

Expenditure 2,215 2,215 2,255 40

Income -2,215 -2,215 -2,215 0

R32 Corporate Finance 0 0 40 40

Expenditure 905 905 905 0

Income -905 -905 -905 0

R34 Internal Audit 0 0 0 0

Expenditure 34,589 34,589 34,589 0

Income -30,572 -30,572 -31,554 -982

R36 Council Tax & NNDR 4,017 4,017 3,035 -982

Expenditure 884 884 982 98

Income -732 -734 -734 0

R38 Procurement 152 150 248 98

Expenditure 480 580 580 0

Income -480 -580 -580 0

R40 Risk Management 0 0 0 0

Expenditure 1,160 1,160 1,122 -38

Income -1,160 -1,160 -1,160 0

R42 Debtors Income Service 0 0 -38 -38

Expenditure 435 434 494 60

Income -433 -434 -434 0

R44 Cashiers 2 0 60 60

Expenditure 848 848 788 -60

Income -848 -848 -848 0

R46 Payments 0 0 -60 -60

Expenditure 9,473 9,543 9,640 97

Income -9,473 -9,473 -9,473 0

R48 Information Services 0 70 167 97

Expenditure 8,384 8,533 8,533 0

Income -4,639 -4,730 -4,730 0

R50 Contact Centre 3,745 3,803 3,803 0

A surplus of around £658k is expected arising from C-Tax Benefits 

subsidy; also additional income from fines of approximately £332k 

and £30k savings on running costs, offset by reduced NNDR 

reimbursement £38k. 

However this is a demand-led service which may be affected by the 

present financial uncertainty.

RESOURCES

Directorate

FULL YEAR

Comment/Risk Area

P
a
g
e

 1
0
5



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3F

Original

Budget

£'000

Latest

Budget

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

RESOURCES

Directorate

FULL YEAR

Comment/Risk Area

Expenditure 20,916 24,239 24,239 0

Income -19,483 -19,475 -19,475 0

R52 Admin Buildings 1,433 4,764 4,764 0

Expenditure 0 184,504 184,504 0

Income 0 -184,009 -184,009 0

R54 Housing Benefits 0 495 495 0

Expenditure 439 458 537 79

Income -424 -435 -435 0

R56 Depots 15 23 102 79

Expenditure 0 5,848 5,848 0

Income 0 -6,012 -6,012 0

R58 Benefits Admin Team 0 -164 -164 0

Expenditure 417 417 417 0

Income -417 -417 -417 0

R60 Reprographics 0 0 0 0

Expenditure 2,165 2,161 2,161 0

Income -2,163 -2,161 -2,161 0

R64 Shared Services 2 0 0 0

Expenditure 2,704 3,611 3,611 0

Income -2,704 -3,584 -3,584 0

R72 Human Resources 0 27 27 0

Expenditure 1,292 380 460 80

Income -1,290 -64 -64 0

R74 Occupational Health 2 316 396 80

Expenditure 4,225 3,881 4,181 300

Income -3,328 -3,327 -3,327 0

R76 HR/Learning & Development 897 554 854 300

Expenditure 930 859 859 0

Income 0 0 0 0

R82 Non-Distributed Costs 930 859 859 0

Resources Total 11,198 14,914 14,588 -326

The projected overspend has arisen due to commitments entered 

into in previous years for positive action schemes.combined with a 

mismatch between expenditure and grant income.  This has now 

been resolved and will not occur in 2009/2010

P
a
g
e

 1
0
6



CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

FULL YEAR PROJECTED OUTTURN BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 3G

Latest

Budget

Projected

Outturn
Variance

Latest

Budget

Projected

Outturn
Variance

Latest

Budget

Projected

Outturn
Variance Comments/Risks

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Expenditure/(Income) 34,127 27,361 (3,866) (22,804) (17,488) (884) 11,323 9,873 (1,450)

Primarily from investment income and reduced cost of 

external borrowing. However recent interest rate falls will 

result in a reduction of surpluses from investment 

income and this constitues a rist to the Council's budget 

in 2009/2010

CORPORATE COSTS / 

CAPITAL FINANCING

Expenditure Income Net Variance

P
a
g
e

 1
0
7



P
a
g
e

 1
0
8

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



TRADING ACCOUNT  MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

 BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 4A

Latest

Budget

to

31/12/08

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

Expenditure 1,172 1,172

Income -1,172 -1,172

Contract Services: Building Cleaning 0 0 0

Expenditure 1,158 1,158

Income -1,158 -1,158

Contract Services: Welfare Catering 0 0 0

Expenditure 8,859 8,859

Income -8,500 -8,500

Contract Services: Schools Catering 0 359 359

Expenditure 264 264

Income -264 -264

Schools Finance Trading A/c 0 0 0

Expenditure 181 181

Income -181 -181

Development Trading A/c 0 0 0

Expenditure 670 670

Income -670 -670

School Keeping Trading A/c 0 0 0

Expenditure 1,999 1,999

Income -1,999 -1,999

Building & Technical Services Trading A/c 0 0 0

Expenditure 662 662

Income -662 -662

89101 Sch. Library Service 0 0 0

Expenditure 160 160

Income -160 -160

89002 HEC. Disbursement 0 0 0

Expenditure 132 132

Income -132 -132

89102 HEC. Trading 0 0 0

Expenditure 590 590

Income -590 -590

89107 Music Trading 0 0 0

Expenditure 482 482

Income -482 -482

89105 IT. Trading 0 0 0

Children's Services Comment/ Risk Areas

Attributable to increased costs for meals and 

transport

P
a
g
e

 1
0
9



TRADING ACCOUNT  MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

 BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 4A

Latest

Budget

to

31/12/08

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

Children's Services Comment/ Risk Areas

Expenditure 209 209

Income -209 -209

89108 Govenors Trading Account 0 0 0

Expenditure 560 560

Income -560 -560

81506 Attendance and Welfare Services SLA Account 0 0 0

Expenditure 120 120

Income -120 -120

89010 Workplace Nursery 0 0 0

Expenditure 1,292 1,292

Income -1,292 -1,292

81602 SLS Trading A/c 0 0 0

Children's Services Total 0 359 359

P
a
g
e

 1
1
0



TRADING ACCOUNT  MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

 BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 4B

Latest

Budget to 

31/12/08

£'000

Forecast

Outturn

£'000

Variance

£'000

Trading Accounts

Expenditure 1,805 1,805 0

Income -1,805 -1,805 0

  E30  Fleet Management 0 0 0

Expenditure 4,544 4,544 0

Income -4,544 -4,544 0

  E31  Passenger Transport 0 0 0

Expenditure 396 396 0

Income -396 -396 0

 E32  DSO Vehicle Workshop 0 0 0

Communities, Localities & Culture Trading AC 0 0 0

Non General Fund Account

Expenditure 2,193 2,193 0

Income -2,193 -2,193 0

 E25  Street Trading 0 0 0

Communities, Localities & Culture Total 0 0 0

Communities, Localities & Culture Comment/ Risk Areas

P
a
g
e

 1
1
1



TRADING ACCOUNT  MONITORING 2008/09 (3rd QUARTER)

 BASED ON EXPENDITURE AS AT 31/12/08

APPENDIX 4C

Latest

Budget to 

31/12/08

£'000

Projected

Outturn

Variance

£'000

£'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure 1,732 1,571 -161

Income -1,732 -1,505 227

Building Control 0 66 66

Development & Renewal Total 0 66 66

Development & Renewal Comment/ Risk Areas

FULL YEAR

P
a
g
e

 1
1
2



BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 2008/2009 APPENDIX 5

Cabinet

03/12/08

Pension

Contributions

Health & 

Safety
Mela

One Stop 

Shop

recharges

Support

Costs

Housing

Benefits

Prudential

Borrowing

Early

Retirements

Early

Retirements

Reimbursement

Latest

Targets

2008/2009

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Service Budgets

Adult Services 84,111 208 (33) 8 (486) 83,808

Children's Services 85,959 637 2 (384) (46) (127) 36 86,077

Communities, Localities & Culture 73,767 246 33 220 109 (650) (279) (64) 67 73,449

Development and Renewal 14,053 117 2,508 (245) (18) 16,415

Chief Executive 11,415 60 32 - (17) 11,490

Resources 14,914 186 (151) (988) 245 (27) 137 14,316

Corporate/Capital 12,168 (1,454) 325 253 (240) 11,052

296,387 - - 220 - - - - - - 296,607

Payments to/from Balances

Corporate Contingency 424 424

Local Public Service Agreement Reserve (610) (610)

Parking Control Reserve (3,385) (3,385)

Housing Choice Earmarked Reserve 1,978 1,978

E-Govt Loan Repayment 689 689

Asset Management Reserve 500 500

Insurance Fund Earmarked Reserve 500 500

General Balances (985) (985)

TOTAL NET BUDGET 295,498 - - 220 - - - - - 295,718

P
a
g
e

 1
1
3



P
a
g
e

 1
1
4

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



EFFICIENCY SAVINGS SUMMARY 2008-09 APPENDIX 6

Reported Annual Annual Annual

Efficiency Gains Efficiency Gains Efficiency Gains Comment

Forecast Forecast to Q3 Actuals to Q3

2008/09 2008/09 2008/09

£000 £000 £000

Adults Health & Wellbeing

SAV/COR/01 Horizontal Savings 73 55 55

SAV/AHWB/01 Efficiencies in Management & Monitoring of Home care 205 154 128

Difficulties in the 

procurement process has 

led to a slight delay 

however this will be 

contained within the 

Service budget this year

SAV/AHWB/02 Improved efficiency of procurement of Supplies & Services 150 113 113

SAV/AHWB/03 Deletion of Vacant Posts 150 113 113

SAV/AHWB/04 Restructuring of Hospital Social Work Services 386 290 290

SAV/AHWB/05 Business Process Reengineering 600 450 450

SAV/AHWB/06 Efficiency Savings - Commissioning of Services for Older People 210 158 158

SAV/AHWB/07 Efficiency Savings – Third Party Providers 150 113 113

sub-total 1,924                 1,443                   1,417

Children's Services:

SAV/COR/01 Horizontal Savings 606 455 455

SAV/CS/01 Service Reviews 354 266 266

SAV/CS/02 Streamlining Support for Families in need 108 81 81

SAV/CS/03 Children’s Social Care Commissioning 165 124 124

SAV/CS/04 Organisational Restructure YPL 50 38 38

SAV/CS/05 Invest to Save - Attendance Welfare Service 25 19 19

SAV/CS/06 Non-Statutory Support to Schools 90 68 68

SAV/CS/07 Home to School Travel 50 38 38

SAV/CS/08 Vendor Managed Service 40 30 30

SAV/CS/09 Integration of Children's Services 237 178 178

SAV/CS/10 Young People Outside School 100 75 75

SAV/CS/11 Lifelong Learning 30 23 23

sub-total 1,855                 1,391                   1,391

Communitites, Localities & Culture

SAV/COR/01 Horizontal Savings 163 122 122

SAV/CLC/01 Idea Stores income initiative 20 15 15

SAV/CLC/02 Tree Planting Projects 30 23 23

SAV/CLC/03 Ideas Store - Procurement 50 38 38

SAV/CLC/04 Reduce Street Light Maintenance 35 26 0 Efficiency will not be met

SAV/CLC/05 Traffic Enhancements - reduce provision 100 75 75

SAV/CLC/06 Close Non-Automatic Toilets 50 38 38

SAV/CLC/07 Reduction in Highways Insurance Premiums 350 263 263

SAV/CLC/08 30 23 30

SAV/CLC/09 Highways Maintenance - Reduce Reactive Maintenance 71 53 53

SAV/CLC/10 Closure of Parking shop 175 131 131

sub-total 1,074                 806                      787

Development & Renewal:

SAV/COR/01 Horizontal Savings - D & R 25 19 15

SAV/DR/01 Improved business Processes 35 26 10

SAV/DR/02 Utilisation of IT to produce Planning Consultation Documents 30 23 0

SAV/DR/03 Procurement of agency staff through vendor management 35 26 25

SAV/DR/04 Corporate Match funding 100 75 75

SAV/DR/05 Digitisation Project 20 15 0 Efficiency will not be met

SAV/DR/06 Improved Efficiency in the administration of benefits 29 22 0

Slippage in this project will 

result in unrealised 

savings.  However the 

required software package 

is currently being 

considered.

SAV/DR/07 Procurement of agency staff through vendor management 19 14 15

SAV/COR/01 Horizontal Savings - Housing General fund 28 21 20

sub-total 321 241 160

Chief Executive's

SAV/COR/01 Horizontal Savings 542 407 407

SAV/CE/01 Debt Restructuring 293 220 220

SAV/CE/02 Change of telephone supplier 70 53 53

SAV/CE/03 Rationalisation of Hardware & Maintenance Costs 102 77 77

SAV/CE/04 Insurance premiums 120 90 90

SAV/CE/05 Procurement of agency staff  through vendor management 20 15 15

SAV/CE/06 Reduction in Communications Expenditure 25 19 19

sub-total 1,172 879 879

Total 6,346 4,760 4,634

Template for Forecast Cumulative Gains 2008/09 efficiency gains

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



1  

Committee 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Date 
 
10th March 2009 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 
 

10.1 
 

Report of:  
 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Originating Officer(s):  
 
Afazul Hoque/ Farhana Khan  
Scrutiny & Equalities  
 

Title:  
 
Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation Tracking 
Report: Update 
 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 

 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report provides a progress report on Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s 

recommendations.   
 
2.  Recommendations 
 
2.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to note the progress in implementing its 

recommendations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
 

LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
Background paper 
 
Recommendation Tracking Report – October 2008 

Name and telephone number of and address where open to 
inspection 
 
 

Agenda Item 10.1

Page 117



2  

3 Report  
 
3.1 As part of its regular work programme, Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) 

receives a regular, 6-monthly, recommendation tracking report to monitor progress in 
implementing past recommendations. This report had been monitoring all its 
recommendations since 2003/04, including those from the Committee and Working 
Group reviews, however as many of these have now been completed, these are no 
longer monitored. This report incorporates all the action plans from those reviews 
undertaken since 2006/07 

 
3.2 In considering the monitoring and tracking of scrutiny recommendations it was 

suggested that it may be useful for Members to consider revisiting reviews through 
Scrutiny Challenge sessions to look at progress, its impact and the potential lessons for 
future reviews.  Two reviews were explored in this way in 2007/08 resulting in revised 
action plans for the Youth Services Plan and Access to GP & Dentistry Services 
reviews. 

 
3.3 The tracking report shows that overall services are implementing the majority of the 

recommendations made by Overview and Scrutiny and that outcomes and ongoing 
work streams are in line with the spirit of the original recommendations.  The report 
demonstrates that action plans have influenced key strategies and campaigns in a 
number of ways including actions being mainstreamed into ongoing service 
development through to specific initiatives.   

 
3.4 Appendix 1 provides an update of the tracking system.  It is organised by the broad 

themes from the new Community Plan with the additional area of Excellent Public 
Services to focus on Value for Money, performance and customer services. Where 
there are changes since the last update, they are highlighted like this.  

 
3.5 As noted in the report of 7th October 2008 meeting, many of the updates will not 

change significantly from one tracking report to the next given the nature of the 
recommendations.  For each recommendation there is an indication of whether 
monitoring should continue and, if so, when a detailed update will be sought.  

 
3.6 Appendix 1 summarises the progress made in implementing the recommendations 

arising from the reviews.  This summary highlights some of the challenges faced in 
implementing the recommendations. Agreed recommendations can be affected by 
issues such as delays due to budget constraints, as highlighted in both appendix 2 
(improving recycling) and appendix 15 (interpreting and translation provision). Further 
to this, the update attached at appendix 10 (determination of planning applications) 
demonstrates that the Council has no power to compel external bodies (with the 
exception of the PCT) to comply with scrutiny recommendations.  Where possible 
service areas have tackled these issues in alternative ways for example, highlighting 
the benefits to external bodies of the benefits to using independent facilitators for 
consultation on major planning applications (Appendix 10, Recommendations 2 & 3).   

 
3.7 A number of the reviews are now monitored on an annual basis and were last 

considered at the March 2008 meeting. This report therefore includes updates on 
reviews monitored annually. 

 
3.8 As with other corporate monitoring reports, a traffic light system is used to indicate 

progress.  Red highlights an area where there has been no progress or there is 
significant delay in implementing the recommendations.  Yellow indicates that the 
recommendation is in the planning stage or that, although there is some progress, this 

Page 118



3  

is less than satisfactory.  Green shows that the recommendation has been achieved or 
progress in its implementation is satisfactory.  

 
3.9 The report shows that in terms of the 18 action plans being monitored, 11 are at green 

with 7 currently at yellow.  Six of these are due to these reviews being in the early 
stages of implementation or that have only recently been agreed by Cabinet.  The 
Improving Recycling action plan is assessed as being Yellow because of ongoing areas 
of work in progressing the recommendations and reflect some of the longer term 
challenges in improving levels of recycling in the borough. 

 
3.10 A number of reviews have been successfully tracked through to the completion of 

activities within the action plan.  It is recommended that monitoring of these as part of 
the OSC Tracking Report should cease.  These are the action plans for the Domestic 
Violence, Major Planning, Youth Services Plan, School Exclusions and Delivering 
Choosing Health reviews.  

 
4 Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
 
4.1 Under Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council has a duty to deliver 

an effective and robust Overview and Scrutiny function.  Monitoring the progress and 
impact of recommendations made by Overview and Scrutiny ensures that this duty is 
discharged effectively. 

 
5 Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
5.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 
6 One Tower Hamlets considerations 
 
6.1 Equalities considerations are central to the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee. A number of reports and reviews have specific equalities themes including 
the interpreting and translation challenge session, which sought to respond to the issue 
of local and new residents’ access to services, as well as those with sensory 
impairments. 

 
6.2 Anti-poverty is key to many aspects of the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee. This theme is reflected in both the graduate unemployment review and the 
access to GP and dentistry services review, which sought to respond to local health 
inequalities through the issue of local residents’ access to vital services. 

 
7 Risk Management 
 
7.1 There are no direct risk management implications arising from this report.  Monitoring of 

the implementation of the Committee’s recommendations is important to make sure that 
the Council responds to the suggestions and findings of Overview and Scrutiny’s work.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 119



4  

 
Appendix 1 Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation Tracking Update 
Appendix 2 Improving Recycling  
Appendix 3 Leaseholders – A Study of Customer Care 
Appendix 4 Licensing of Strip Clubs 
Appendix 5 Choice Based Lettings 
Appendix 6 Young people’s participation in sports leading up to the Olympics 
Appendix 7 Tower Hamlets Hostel Strategy 
Appendix 8 Domestic Violence 
Appendix 9 Tackling Anti Social Behaviour 
Appendix 10 Determination of Major Planning Applications  
Appendix 11 Graduate Unemployment 
Appendix 12 Youth Service Plan – Challenge Session 
Appendix 13 School Exclusions 
Appendix 14 Evaluation of Neighbourhood Renewal Funding 
Appendix 15 Interpreting and Translation Services – Challenge Session 
Appendix 16 Access to GP and Dentistry Services – Challenge Session 
Appendix 17 Tobacco and Smoking Cessation 
Appendix 18  Delivering Choosing Health 
Appendix 19  Use of Consultants 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 120



5  

Appendix 1 
Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation Tracking Update 

 
 
‘A great place to live’ 
 
Issue 
Improving Recycling 
 

Recommendation Date 
7 November 2007 Green 

Monitoring Status – Maintain annual monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review examined the issue of 
recycling to investigate the measures 
the Council has introduced and may 
introduce in the future and feed into 
the introduction of a new integrated 
waste contract in 2008. The final 
report made 11 recommendations for 
implementation.  
 

Response / Progress 
Progress has been made against all 11 
recommendations arising from the review. Some 
actions have not been fully implemented due to 
budgetary constraints. The update is attached at 
appendix 2 for Members’ information.  

 
 
Issue 
Leaseholders – A Study of Customer 
Care 
 

Recommendation Date 
3 October 2007 Green 

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This recent review was designed as a 
case study of the customer care 
received by people using Council 
services. In total 19 recommendations 
were made as a result, with 15 of 
these specifically for the leaseholder.  
 

Response / Progress 
Of the 19 recommendations made by the review 
group, all are either implemented or on track to be 
completed within the timescales. The update is 
attached at appendix 3.  

 
Issue 
Licensing of Strip Clubs 

Recommendation Date 
5 November 2008 Yellow 

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
The review investigated the impact of 
Strip Clubs in Tower Hamlets and 
considered approaches to regulation 
and licensing of Clubs in the future, 
within an appropriate legal framework.  
 

Response / Progress 
An action plan showing the 14 recommendations is 
attached at appendix 4 for members’ information. 
A full update will be reported in October 2009. 

 
Issue 
Choice Based Lettings 

Recommendation Date 
3 December 2008 Yellow 

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review looked into the councils 
approach to Choice Based Lettings 

Response / Progress 
An action plan showing the 20 recommendations is 
attached at appendix 5. A full update on the 

Page 121



6  

Scheme for the allocation of housing, 
with particular emphasis on 
overcrowding, homelessness, 
accessibility of the scheme for 
disabled and elderly residents and the 
medical assessment process. 
 

progress made in implementing the 
recommendations will be given in October 2009. 

 
Issue 
Young people’s participation in sports 
leading up to the Olympics 

Recommendation Date 
14 January 2009 Yellow 

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
The review looked into current 
initiatives in place around sports 
engagement for young people, 
strategy and development regarding 
young peoples participation in sports 
and the role of the PCT to address 
health issues using the Olympics as a 
catalyst to promote healthy lifestyles. 
 

Response / Progress 
This report was submitted in Cabinet January 
2009. An action plan showing all 16 
recommendations is attached at appendix 6. A full 
update will be reported in October 2009. 

 
 ‘A safe and supportive community’ 
 
Issue 
Tower Hamlets Hostels and Move On 
Strategy 
 

Recommendation Date 
7 November 2007 Green 

Monitoring Status – Maintain annual monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review was conducted in order to 
review the draft Tower Hamlets 
Hostels and Move-On Strategy. 
Twelve recommendations in total were 
presented to Cabinet arising out of the 
review.  
 

Response / Progress 
Of the 12 recommendations made, 9 have now 
been implemented and completed as shown in 
appendix 7. Three are ongoing but remain on 
track.  
 

 
Issue 
Review – Domestic Violence  
 

Recommendation Date 
4 April 2006 Green 

Monitoring Status – No further monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review considered domestic 
violence in Tower Hamlets and the 
multi-agency response to the issue.  
The report made 12 recommendations 
for action. 
 

Response / Progress  
.All actions against recommendations have been 
completed.  A full update on work following on from 
the action plan is provided in Appendix 8.   
 

 
Issue 
Review – Tackling Anti Social 

Recommendation Date 
14 January 2009 Yellow 

Page 122



7  

Behaviour  
 
Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review examined the future 
directions of the Council’s Anti Social 
Behaviour Strategy, in line with 
national developments and policy, with 
particular emphasis on the 
effectiveness of current methods for 
tackling the problem, partnership 
working and engagement with young 
people. 

Response / Progress  
This report was submitted into Cabinet in January 
2009. All 14 recommendations were accepted and 
an action plan detailing the recommendations is 
attached as appendix 9. a full update will be 
reported in Oct 2009. 

 
‘A prosperous community’  
 
Issue 
The Determination of Major Planning 
Applications 
 

Recommendation Date 
8th January 2008 Green 

Monitoring Status –No further monitoring 
Recommendation 
This recent Challenge Session 
examined how the Council determines 
major planning applications, with a 
particular focus on new arrangements 
to increase public consultation around 
the pre-application planning process. 
The session resulted in 7 
recommendations.  
 

Response / Progress 
Progress has been made against all 7 
recommendations following the Challenge 
Session in late 2007, as detailed in appendix 10.   
5 recommendations have now been completed 
and 2 ongoing but on track. 

 
Issue 
Graduate Unemployment 
 

Recommendation Date 
5 December 2007 Green 

Monitoring Status – Maintain annual monitoring 
Recommendation 
This recent review examined the issue 
of the transition from education to 
employment amongst young people in 
the borough. Seven resulting 
recommendations were presented to 
Cabinet. 
 

Response / Progress 
The action plan was submitted to the OSC in 
March 2008. Progress has been made against all 
seven recommendations, with the exception of 
recommendation 1, for which no further funding 
has been identified. Appendix 11 includes an 
update on continuing work around the 
recommendations. 
 

 
 
Issue 
Revisiting the Scrutiny Review of the 
Youth Service Plan 

Recommendation Date 
4 March 2008 
 

Green 
Monitoring Status – No further monitoring 
Recommendation 
This Challenge Session revisited the 

Response / Progress 
Progress has been made against all 8 

Page 123



8  

Scrutiny Review of Youth Services that 
was conducted in 2005. 8 new 
recommendations were made as a 
result of the session.  
 

recommendations. 5 recommendations have been 
implemented with ongoing work on the remaining 
recommendations. Therefore, no further 
monitoring is proposed. The Action plan is 
attached as appendix 12. 

 
 
Issue 
School Exclusions 
 

Recommendation Date 
4 April 2006 Green  

Monitoring Status – No further monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review looked at school 
exclusions within the borough to 
increase understanding of the issues, 
the support available and action being 
taken to deal with them. It made 10 
recommendations to Cabinet. 
 

Response / Progress 
All recommendations have been completed.  An 
update report showing further progress and 
outcomes against recommendations is attached at 
Appendix 13.  
 

 
 
Issue 
Evaluation of Neighbourhood Renewal 
Funding 

Recommendation Date 
5 November 2008 Yellow 

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review looked into how the 
Neighbourhood Renewal Funding is 
being used to deliver local priorities 
set out by local people through the 
Local Area Partnership and in the 
Community Plan; and the lessons for 
any similar funding that may be 
allocated through Tower Hamlets 
Partnership in the future. 

Response / Progress 
The report was submitted to Cabinet in November 
2008. All 17 recommendations were accepted. An 
action plan detailing the recommendation is 
attached as appendix 14 for member’s information. 
A full update will be reported in October 2009. 

 
‘One Tower Hamlets’ 
 
Issue 
Interpreting and Translation Provision 
Challenge Session 
 

Recommendation 
Date 
10 June 2008 
 

Yellow 

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This Challenge Session was held to 
examine current interpreting and 
translation provision within the Council 
in the light of publication of the DCLG 
report ‘Guidance for Local Authorities 
on translation of publications’. 7 
recommendations were made as a 
result of the session which was also 
attended by a number of 

Response / Progress 
The action plan and update from this recently held 
Challenge Session is attached at appendix 15. 
There has been further progress made against the 
9 recommendations from the last time this was 
reviewed in October 2008.  However the yellow 
traffic light status denotes that some of this work is 
in the early stages and there is further progress 
needed, as detailed in the appendix.   
 

Page 124



9  

representatives from partner 
organisations.  
 
‘A healthy community’  
 
Issue 
Access to GP and Dentistry Services 
 

Recommendation Date 
5 December 2007 Green 

Monitoring Status – Maintain annual monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review was conducted by the 
Health Scrutiny Panel and examined 
what level of access residents in the 
borough have to GP and dentistry 
services. Consequently 11 
recommendations were made to the 
PCT.  
 

Response / Progress 
Of the 11 recommendations made from the 
challenge session, all are either implemented or 
on track to be completed within the timescale. The 
update is attached at appendix 16.  

 
Issue 
Tobacco Cessation in Tower Hamlets  
 

Recommendation Date 
30 July 2008 
 

Green 
Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review was conducted by the 
Health Scrutiny Panel and examined 
the provision and impact of tobacco 
cessation services in Tower Hamlets. A 
total of 9 recommendations arose from 
the review, for both the PCT and 
LBTH. 
 

Response / Progress 
An update on progress made against the 
recommendations is attached at appendix 17. 
Progress has been made with all 
recommendations.  Delays in the tendering 
process related which had held up work against 
recommendation 9 have been addressed through 
alternative ways of engaging the voluntary and 
community sector.  
 

 
Issue 
Delivering Choosing Health: A Case 
Study of Obesity 

Recommendation Date 
26 September 2006 Green 

Monitoring Status – No further monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review considered the 
Government’s Delivering Choosing 
Health initiative through a case study of 
services and initiatives aimed at 
tackling obesity.   It made 12 
recommendations to the Council and 
Tower Hamlets PCT.   
 

Response / Progress 
All actions against the recommendations have 
been completed. A full update on the action plan 
is attached at appendix 18 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125



10  

‘Excellent public services’ 
 
Issue 
The use of consultants  

Recommendation Date 
30 July 2008 
 

Yellow 
Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review was established in order to 
investigate the use of consultants 
internally within the Council, leading to 
7 recommendations being made.  
 

Response / Progress 
There has been progress against all 
recommendations as shown in appendix 19.  The 
Yellow traffic light status reflects ongoing work 
towards achieving outcomes from the action plan.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 126



11
 

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 
Re

sp
on

se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n I
mp

ro
vin

g R
ec

yc
lin

g  
 Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n 

Re
sp

on
se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

R1
  

Th
e r

ev
iew

 co
mm

en
ds

 th
e w

ork
 

be
ing

 un
de

rta
ke

n w
ith

 th
e 

pri
va

te 
se

cto
r to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
am

ou
nt 

of 
wa

ste
 en

ter
ing

 th
e 

mu
nic

ipa
l w

as
te 

str
ea

m.
  

Inc
rea

sin
g r

ec
yc

lin
g o

f m
ark

et 
wa

ste
 m

us
t b

e a
 pr

ior
ity

, 
inc

lud
ing

 fo
od

 w
as

te.
   

 

Du
e t

o t
he

 de
lay

 in
 th

e t
en

de
r p

roc
es

s f
or 

the
 

ne
w 

rec
yc

lin
g c

on
tra

ct 
the

 im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f 
the

se
 ac

tio
ns

 ha
s b

ee
n d

ela
ye

d a
lso

. P
rog

res
s 

to 
da

te:
 

 W
hit

ec
ha

pe
l M

ark
et 

is 
no

w 
a 1

00
% 

rec
yc

lin
g 

ma
rke

t w
ith

 bo
th 

co
-m

ing
led

 dr
y r

ec
yc

lin
g a

nd
 

org
an

ic 
(fo

od
) w

as
te 

rec
yc

lin
g c

oll
ec

tio
ns

 in
 

pla
ce

. T
he

 la
un

ch
 ev

en
t w

as
 he

ld 
on

 5th
 Au

gu
st 

wh
ich

 re
ce

ive
d e

xte
ns

ive
 m

ed
ia 

co
ve

rag
e. 

 W
as

te 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

an
d M

ark
et 

Se
rvi

ce
s a

re 
cu

rre
ntl

y d
ev

elo
pin

g a
 pr

og
ram

me
 to

 fa
cili

tat
e 

the
 ro

ll o
ut 

of 
the

 W
hit

ec
ha

pe
l p

ilo
t to

 al
l o

the
r 

ma
rke

ts.
    

  Oc
t 2

00
7 

  Ja
n 2

00
8 

  Ap
ril 

20
08

 

 Do
ne

 
  W

as
te 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
an

d 
Ma

rke
t S

erv
ice

s a
re 

sti
ll 

de
ve

lop
ing

 a 
pro

gra
mm

e 
to 

fac
ilita

te 
the

 ro
ll o

ut 
of 

the
 W

hit
ec

ha
pe

l p
ilo

t to
 al

l 
oth

er 
ma

rke
ts.

 D
ela

ye
d 

du
e t

o b
ud

ge
t c

on
str

ain
ts 

in 
20

08
/09

. E
xp

ec
tat

ion
 is

 
tha

t th
e r

oll
 ou

t w
ill t

ak
e 

pla
ce

 in
 20

09
/10

 al
on

gs
ide

 
the

 ex
pa

ns
ion

 of
 th

e 
Ho

us
eh

old
 fo

od
 w

as
te 

co
lle

cti
on

 se
rvi

ce
    

   
R2

  
Th

e G
rou

p w
elc

om
es

 th
e 

pla
nn

ed
 w

ork
 to

 in
cre

as
e 

rec
yc

lin
g w

ith
in 

ho
sp

ita
ls,

 an
d 

oth
er 

ins
titu

tio
ns

, a
nd

 su
gg

es
ts 

tha
t th

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 

En
ga

ge
 te

mp
ora

ry 
ou

tre
ac

h s
taf

f to
 im

ple
me

nt 
the

 pr
og

ram
me

 of
 br

ing
ing

 re
cy

clin
g t

o 
ho

sp
ita

ls,
 ch

ari
tie

s a
nd

 ot
he

r in
sti

tut
ion

s e
lig

ibl
e 

for
 fre

e o
f c

ha
rge

 re
cy

clin
g. 

  
 

Au
gu

st 
20

07
 

Co
mp

let
ed

 
  

Dr
y m

ate
ria

ls 
rec

yc
lin

g i
s 

no
w 

av
ail

ab
le 

at 
mo

st 
ch

ari
tie

s, 
ho

sp
ita

ls,
 he

alt
h 

ce
ntr

es
, s

ch
oo

ls 
an

d o
the

r 
Co

un
cil 

pre
mi

se
s. 

 

Page 127



12
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 is
 a 

go
od

 ch
an

ne
l 

to 
de

live
r th

es
e c

ha
ng

es
 

thr
ou

gh
.  A

ll e
ffo

rts
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 

ma
de

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ary
 fu

nd
ing

 is
 se

cu
red

 
for

 th
e e

xp
an

sio
n o

f th
e s

erv
ice

 
to 

tak
e p

lac
e. 

Th
e G

rou
p w

ou
ld 

als
o s

ug
ge

st 
tha

t a
ll C

ou
nc

il 
bu

ild
ing

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e I

de
a 

Sto
res

 an
d l

eis
ure

 ce
ntr

es
 ar

e 
do

ing
 th

eir
 be

st 
to 

mi
nim

ise
 

wa
ste

.   

En
ga

ge
 To

we
r H

am
let

s P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
to 

as
sis

t 
wit

h t
he

 pr
og

ram
me

.   
 Ne

go
tia

te 
an

d p
rov

ide
 se

rvi
ce

 to
 M

ild
 M

ay
, M

ile
 

En
d a

nd
 th

e D
en

tal
 H

os
pit

als
  

 Co
nta

ct 
an

d o
ffe

r s
erv

ice
 to

 35
 ne

w 
org

an
isa

tio
ns

 a 
mo

nth
 

 Co
mp

let
e r

oll
 ou

t o
f c

o-m
ing

led
 re

cy
clin

g 
se

rvi
ce

 to
 re

ma
ini

ng
 ad

mi
nis

tra
tiv

e b
uil

din
gs

 
an

d I
de

a S
tor

es
  

 Ins
tal

l c
o-m

ing
led

 re
cy

clin
g i

n a
ll L

eis
ure

 
Ce

ntr
es

 
Yo

rk 
Ha

ll, 
Mi

le 
En

d L
eis

ure
 C

en
tre

, M
ile

 En
d 

Sta
diu

m,
 St

 G
ero

rge
’s 

Po
ol,

 Ti
lle

r L
eis

ure
 

Ce
ntr

e, 
W

hit
ec

ha
pe

l, J
oh

n O
rw

ell
. 

  La
ng

do
n P

ark
 

 Im
ple

me
nt 

wa
ste

 m
ini

mi
sa

tio
n p

lan
 de

ve
lop

ed
 

by
 Lo

nd
on

 R
em

ad
e A

nc
ho

rag
e H

ou
se

 an
d 

Mu
lbe

rry
 Pl

ac
e 

Co
mp

let
ed

 
  Co

mp
let

ed
 

  On
-go

ing
 

 De
c 2

00
7 

    Au
gu

st 
20

07
 

Co
mp

let
ed

 
    De

c 2
00

7 
 Oc

t 2
00

7 
  

 Th
e r

oll
 ou

t o
f th

is 
wil

l 
co

nti
nu

e u
nti

l a
ll p

rem
ise

s 
are

 co
ve

red
. 

 A p
roj

ec
t h

as
 co

mm
en

ce
d 

to 
rol

l o
ut 

foo
d w

as
te 

co
lle

cti
on

s t
o s

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
a p

ilo
t s

ch
em

e w
ill b

e s
et 

up
 fo

r h
os

pit
al 

foo
d w

as
te 

Page 128



13
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

R3
 

W
hil

st 
the

 gr
ou

p u
nd

ers
tan

ds
 

the
 im

po
rta

nc
e o

f re
cy

clin
g 

pla
sti

c i
n o

rde
r to

 ac
hie

ve
 

tar
ge

ts,
 th

ere
 is

 co
nc

ern
 ab

ou
t 

the
 po

llu
tio

n o
f C

hin
a w

ith
 th

es
e 

rec
yc

led
 pl

as
tic

s a
nd

 th
e w

ide
r 

iss
ue

 of
 ex

ce
ss

ive
 pa

ck
ag

ing
.  

Th
e r

ev
iew

 gr
ou

p w
ou

ld 
the

ref
ore

 su
pp

ort
 th

e L
oc

al 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t A

ss
oc

iat
ion

’s 
ca

lls 
for

 to
ug

he
r la

ws
 an

d s
eri

ou
s 

fin
es

 fo
r e

xc
es

siv
e p

ac
ka

gin
g. 

 
At 

a l
oc

al 
lev

el,
 th

e g
rou

p w
ou

ld 
like

 to
 ra

ise
 th

e a
wa

ren
es

s o
f 

thi
s i

ss
ue

 lo
ca

lly,
 in

clu
din

g t
he

 
me

rits
 of

 bu
yin

g p
rod

uc
ts 

in 
alt

ern
ati

ve
 co

nta
ine

rs 
an

d 
rec

yc
lin

g t
he

ir p
las

tic
 ba

gs
.  I

t is
 

su
gg

es
ted

 th
at 

thi
s s

ho
uld

 be
 

pu
rsu

ed
 th

rou
gh

 th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
. 

 

W
hil

st 
ev

ery
 ef

for
t w

as
 m

ad
e o

n t
he

 te
nd

er 
of 

the
 ne

w 
rec

yc
lin

g c
on

tra
ct 

to 
ac

hie
ve

 lo
ca

l 
ma

rke
ts 

for
 th

e r
ep

roc
es

sin
g o

f th
e d

ry 
rec

yc
lat

e, 
it h

as
 ha

d t
o b

e a
cc

ep
ted

 th
at 

for
 

so
me

 m
ate

ria
ls 

the
re 

is 
no

t s
uff

icie
nt 

rep
roc

es
sin

g c
ap

ac
ity

 in
 th

is 
co

un
try

 to
 de

al 
wit

h t
he

 qu
an

tity
 of

 m
ate

ria
ls 

no
w 

be
ing

 
co

lle
cte

d. 
 

 Th
e b

an
 on

 th
row

 ou
t s

ho
pp

ing
 ba

gs
 ha

s n
ot 

ye
t b

ee
n i

mp
lem

en
ted

 in
 Lo

nd
on

 ho
we

ve
r, 

ma
ny

 su
pe

rm
ark

et 
ch

ain
s a

re 
no

w 
wit

hd
raw

ing
 

the
se

 in
 fa

vo
ur 

of 
“ba

gs
 fo

r li
fe”

. 
  

Se
p 2

00
7 

    Se
p 2

00
7 

        Oc
t 2

00
7 

 No
v 2

00
7 

       On
-go

ing
 

 No
 fu

rth
er 

co
mm

en
t o

n t
his

 
ma

tte
r (r

efe
r to

 O
cto

be
r 0

8 
up

da
te)

 
     Th

e b
an

 on
 th

row
 ou

t 
sh

op
pin

g b
ag

s h
as

 st
ill n

ot 
ye

t b
ee

n i
mp

lem
en

ted
 in

 
Lo

nd
on

. H
ow

ev
er,

 m
an

y 
su

pe
rm

ark
et 

ch
ain

s a
re 

no
w 

wit
hd

raw
ing

 th
es

e i
n 

fav
ou

r o
f “b

ag
s f

or 
life

”. 
Th

is 
ap

pro
ac

h w
ill b

e 
su

pp
ort

ed
 un

til 
su

ch
 tim

e 
as

 a 
ba

n o
n “

thr
ow

 ou
t” 

sh
op

pin
g b

ag
s i

s 
im

ple
me

nte
d i

n L
on

do
n  

R4
 

A k
ey

 co
nc

ern
 fo

r th
e r

ev
iew

 is
 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

sta
te 

of 
the

 br
ing

 
sit

es
.  M

ore
 w

ork
 ne

ed
s t

o b
e 

W
hil

st 
ma

ny
 ac

tio
ns

 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 th

e b
rin

g 
ba

nk
 im

pro
ve

me
nt 

pro
gra

mm
e h

av
e t

ak
en

 
pla

ce
 th

ere
 ar

e s
om

e i
tem

s s
till 

ou
tst

an
din

g. 
Se

pt 
20

07
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 
 Th

e i
nit

ial
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 
up

gra
din

g t
he

 si
tes

 is
 no

w 

Page 129



14
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

do
ne

 to
 m

ak
e s

ure
 th

at 
the

se
 

sit
es

 ar
e w

ell
 m

an
ag

ed
 an

d a
re 

a m
ore

 at
tra

cti
ve

 pa
rt o

f th
e 

loc
al 

lan
ds

ca
pe

.  I
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

wo
uld

 ne
ed

 to
 in

clu
de

 m
ak

ing
 

the
 si

tes
 m

ore
 at

tra
cti

ve
, th

at 
the

y a
re 

em
pti

ed
 m

ore
 

fre
qu

en
tly

 an
d t

ha
t th

ey
 ar

e i
n 

the
 be

st 
loc

ati
on

.  
Im

pro
ve

me
nts

 sh
ou

ld 
als

o b
e 

ma
de

 to
 th

e s
ign

ag
e o

f th
e 

bri
ng

 si
tes

.   

  Cle
an

ing
 ar

ou
nd

 si
tes

 ha
s i

mp
rov

ed
 an

d 
co

lle
cti

on
s a

re 
no

w 
tw

ice
 w

ee
kly

. 
 A m

ini
 re

cy
clin

g s
ite

 is
 no

w 
in 

pla
ce

 fo
r V

irg
ini

a 
Qu

ay
. 

    Th
e c

om
mu

ter
 re

cy
clin

g s
ch

em
e i

s b
ein

g r
oll

ed
 

ou
t a

cro
ss

 th
e b

oro
ug

h a
nd

 in
clu

de
s f

ac
iliti

es
 in

 
Pa

rks
 as

 w
ell

 as
 at

 Tr
an

sp
ort

 hu
bs

 

  Se
pt 

20
07

 
Co

mp
let

e 
 Oc

t 2
00

7 
  No

v 2
00

7 
   Au

g 2
00

7 
Co

mp
let

e 
   De

c 2
00

7 
  Ju

ne
 20

07
 

Co
mp

let
e 

   Oc
t 2

00
7 

co
mp

let
e. 

 Th
e W

as
te 

Se
rvi

ce
s T

ea
m 

Pla
n h

as
 in

clu
de

d a
 fu

rth
er 

pro
gra

mm
e o

f u
pg

rad
e 

wo
rks

 fo
r n

ew
 si

gn
ag

e f
or 

rec
yc

lin
g s

ite
s. 

Fu
nd

ing
 fo

r 
thi

s f
urt

he
r p

rog
ram

me
 is

 
NO

T y
et 

ide
nti

fie
d. 

  
                Th

e c
om

mu
ter

 re
cy

clin
g 

sc
he

me
 co

nti
nu

es
 to

 be
 

rol
led

 ou
t. H

ow
ev

er,
 th

e 
up

gra
de

 w
ork

s t
o D

LR
 

Page 130



15
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

sta
tio

ns
 ha

s d
ela

ye
d t

he
 

pro
vis

ion
 of

 bi
ns

 in
 so

me
 

loc
ati

on
s. 

R5
  

W
hil

st 
the

 re
vie

w 
co

mm
en

ds
 

the
 se

rvi
ce

 of
fer

ed
 at

 
No

rth
um

be
rla

nd
 W

ha
rf r

eu
se

 
an

d r
ec

yc
le 

ce
ntr

e, 
it a

lso
 no

tes
 

tha
t it

 is
 on

ly 
ac

ce
ss

ibl
e b

y c
ar,

 
wh

ich
 ex

clu
de

s t
he

 m
ajo

rity
 of

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s r
es

ide
nts

. T
he

 
gro

up
 w

ou
ld 

the
ref

ore
 lik

e t
o 

se
e t

he
 in

tro
du

cti
on

 of
 sm

all
er 

co
lle

cti
on

 po
int

s a
cro

ss
 th

e 
bo

rou
gh

 to
 co

mp
lim

en
t s

om
e o

f 
the

 se
rvi

ce
s o

ffe
red

 at
 

No
rth

um
be

rla
nd

 W
ha

rf. 
  

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il is
 cu

rre
ntl

y r
ev

iew
ing

 th
e M

un
icip

al 
W

as
te 

Str
ate

gy
 w

hic
h w

ill e
nc

om
pa

ss
 a 

rev
iew

 
of 

all
 se

rvi
ce

s. 
A d

raf
t re

po
rt o

n t
he

 st
rat

eg
y i

s 
ex

pe
cte

d i
n D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
8 

   W
hil

st 
the

 co
lle

cti
on

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 fo

r b
ulk

 
wa

ste
 re

ma
in 

the
 sa

me
, th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 
co

ntr
ac

tor
 Ve

oli
a a

re 
no

w 
se

pa
rat

ing
 ad

dit
ion

al 
bu

lk 
wa

ste
 fo

r re
cy

clin
g. 

To
nn

ag
es

 ha
ve

 
do

ub
led

 si
nc

e t
his

 ne
w 

ac
tiv

ity
 w

as
 in

tro
du

ce
d 

in 
Ju

ly 
20

08
 

      Ja
n 2

00
8 

    Ja
n 2

00
8 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il is
 cu

rre
ntl

y 
rev

iew
ing

 th
e M

un
icip

al 
W

as
te 

Str
ate

gy
 w

hic
h w

ill 
en

co
mp

as
s a

 re
vie

w 
of 

all
 

se
rvi

ce
s. 

A d
raf

t S
tra

teg
y 

is 
ex

pe
cte

d i
n J

uly
 20

09
 

     En
ha

nc
ed

 bu
lk 

wa
ste

 
so

rtin
g p

roc
es

se
s a

re 
in 

pla
ce

 at
 N

ort
hu

mb
erl

an
d 

W
ha

rf t
o m

ax
im

ise
 on

 th
e 

se
pa

rat
ion

 of
 w

oo
d a

nd
 

me
tal

s f
rom

 th
e b

ulk
y 

co
lle

cti
on

 se
rvi

ce
s 

R6
 

An
 ar

ea
 of

 gr
av

e c
on

ce
rn 

for
 

the
 gr

ou
p i

s t
he

 la
ck

 of
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 re
cy

clin
g f

ac
iliti

es
 

an
d a

cc
es

s t
o f

ac
iliti

es
 in

 ne
w 

ho
us

ing
 de

ve
lop

me
nts

.  T
he

 
gro

up
 un

de
rst

an
ds

 th
at 

pla
nn

ing
 is

 ab
le 

to 
pe

na
lise

 

Re
vie

w 
an

d i
mp

lem
en

t p
roc

es
s f

or 
joi

nt 
wo

rki
ng

 an
d e

nfo
rce

me
nt.

 
 Co

nd
itio

ns
 ar

e a
tta

ch
ed

 to
 pl

an
nin

g 
pe

rm
iss

ion
s r

eq
uir

ing
 th

e 
pro

vis
ion

 an
d a

pp
rov

al 
of 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 w
as

te 
an

d r
ec

yc
lin

g 

Au
gu

st 
20

07
 

Co
mp

let
e 

    

 

Page 131



16
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

de
ve

lop
ers

 vi
a a

 br
ea

ch
 of

 
co

nd
itio

n n
oti

ce
.  I

t th
ere

for
e 

rec
om

me
nd

s t
ha

t th
ere

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 a 
mo

re 
joi

ne
d u

p a
pp

roa
ch

, 
be

tw
ee

n t
he

 re
cy

clin
g t

ea
m 

an
d 

pla
nn

ing
 to

 m
on

ito
r n

ew
 

de
ve

lop
me

nts
 an

d e
nfo

rce
 

ac
tio

n. 
 Th

e w
ork

ing
 gr

ou
p 

ex
pre

ss
es

 co
nc

ern
 th

at 
the

 
Co

un
cil 

do
es

 no
t h

av
e t

he
 

res
ou

rce
s t

o c
he

ck
 ne

w 
ho

us
ing

 de
ve

lop
me

nts
 fo

r 
bre

ac
h o

f c
on

tra
ct 

(in
clu

din
g f

or 
rec

yc
lin

g f
ac

iliti
es

) a
nd

 si
gn

 
the

m 
off

 as
 

co
mp

lia
nt,

 es
pe

cia
lly 

wit
h t

he
 

lar
ge

 nu
mb

er 
of 

de
ve

lop
me

nts
 

un
de

r c
on

str
uc

tio
n. 

 Ad
dit

ion
al 

res
ou

rce
s n

ee
d t

o b
e 

co
ns

ide
red

 to
 m

ak
e s

ure
 th

at 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

is 
giv

en
 gr

ea
ter

 
pri

ori
ty.

  T
his

 is
 vi

tal
 in

 
sa

feg
ua

rdi
ng

 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 th

e 
bo

rou
gh

’s 
en

vir
on

me
nt.

 
 

fac
iliti

es
 pr

ior
 to

 th
e o

cc
up

ati
on

 or
 co

mp
let

ion
 of

 
the

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt.

  A
t  b

oth
 th

e p
re-

ap
pli

ca
tio

n a
nd

 
for

ma
l 

ap
pli

ca
tio

n s
tag

es
 W

as
te 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
off

ice
rs 

giv
e g

uid
an

ce
  

on
 th

e p
lan

s f
or 

wa
ste

 an
d r

ec
yc

lin
g f

ac
iliti

es
 

pro
po

se
d T

his
 

inc
lud

es
 ac

ce
ss

 fo
r c

oll
ec

tio
n v

eh
icle

s, 
ca

pa
cit

y 
of 

co
nta

ine
rs 

an
d m

ain
ten

an
ce

 of
 th

e b
ins

 an
d s

tor
es

.   
  On

ce
 ei

the
r a

 ce
rtif

ica
te 

of 
oc

cu
pa

tio
n o

r a
 fin

al 
co

mp
let

ion
 ce

rtif
ica

te 
arr

ive
s a

t th
e C

ou
nc

il a
 

W
as

te 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

off
ice

r v
isit

s t
he

 pr
em

ise
s t

o 
en

su
re 

tha
t 

ac
ce

ss
ibl

e b
ins

 fo
r re

cy
clin

g a
nd

 re
sid

ua
l 

rub
bis

h a
re 

in 
pla

ce
, o

f a
de

qu
ate

 ca
pa

cit
y a

nd
 ke

pt 
cle

an
 an

d 
tid

y. 
If 

fac
iliti

es
 ar

e f
ou

nd
 to

 be
 in

 br
ea

ch
 of

 th
e 

pla
nn

ing
 co

nd
itio

ns
 

the
 R

ec
yc

lin
g O

ffic
er 

im
me

dia
tel

y r
efe

rs 
the

 
ca

se
 to

 a 
Pla

nn
ing

 O
ffic

er 
for

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 en
for

ce
me

nt 
ac

tio
n. 
 

 

Page 132



17
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

R7
  

Th
is 

rev
iew

 re
co

gn
ise

s t
he

 
de

cis
ion

 fo
r th

e n
ew

 co
ntr

ac
t to

 
ce

as
e d

oo
r to

 do
or 

co
lle

cti
on

s 
in 

hig
h r

ise
 ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
, 

ba
se

d o
n t

he
 in

cre
as

ed
 va

lue
 

for
 m

on
ey

 of
 th

e n
ea

r e
ntr

y 
ap

pro
ac

h, 
an

d s
ug

ge
sts

 th
e 

fol
low

ing
 pr

ov
iso

s: 
i   

a w
ide

 ra
ng

e o
f c

on
su

lta
tio

n i
s 

un
de

rta
ke

n t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

the
 

ma
jor

ity
 of

 hi
gh

 ris
e r

es
ide

nts
 

are
 su

pp
ort

ive
 of

 ad
op

tin
g t

he
 

ne
ar 

en
try

 ap
pro

ac
h. 

  
ii  

 If 
the

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 is

 po
sit

ive
 

an
d t

he
 ne

ar 
en

try
 ap

pro
ac

h i
s 

ad
op

ted
 th

at 
eff

ec
tiv

e 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

n i
s u

nd
ert

ak
en

 to
 

ex
pla

in 
wh

y i
t h

as
 be

en
 

int
rod

uc
ed

 an
d t

he
 be

ne
fits

 of
 

the
 ch

an
ge

s  
iii T

ha
t th

is 
ch

an
ge

 m
us

t n
ot 

ma
ke

 
it h

ard
er 

for
 pe

op
le 

livi
ng

 in
 

hig
h r

ise
 ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
 to

 
rec

yc
le,

 w
ith

 pa
rtic

ula
r 

em
ph

as
is 

on
 ho

w 
the

 re
cy

clin
g 

is 
mo

ve
d f

rom
 th

e h
om

e t
o t

he
 

co
mm

un
al 

fac
ility

.   
  

Th
e c

on
ve

rsi
on

 of
 do

or 
ste

p c
oll

ec
tio

ns
 to

 
co

mm
un

al 
co

lle
cti

on
s i

s s
till 

on
go

ing
 in

 lin
e w

ith
 

the
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

 of
 th

e L
on

do
n F

ire
 Br

iga
de

. 
 To

 da
te 

mo
re 

tha
n 1

/3 
of 

the
 hi

gh
 ris

e 
pro

pe
rtie

s i
n t

he
 bo

rou
gh

 ha
ve

 be
en

 co
nv

ert
ed

 
wit

h t
he

 re
ma

ini
ng

 pr
op

ert
ies

 du
e t

o b
e 

co
mp

let
ed

 by
 M

arc
h 2

00
9. 

 
 Th

is 
co

nv
ers

ion
 pr

oc
es

s i
s u

nd
ert

ak
en

 w
ith

 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 th
e m

an
ag

em
en

t c
om

pa
nie

s, 
lan

dlo
rds

 an
d r

es
ide

nts
    

      Se
p 2

00
7 

Co
mp

let
e 

   Ma
rch

 20
08

 
  Ma

rch
 20

09
 

Th
e c

on
ve

rsi
on

 of
 do

or 
ste

p c
oll

ec
tio

ns
 to

 
co

mm
un

al 
co

lle
cti

on
s i

s 
sti

ll o
ng

oin
g i

n l
ine

 w
ith

 th
e 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
of 

the
 

Lo
nd

on
 Fi

re 
Br

iga
de

. 
 Th

e c
on

ve
rsi

on
 

pro
gra

mm
e i

s e
xp

ec
ted

 to
 

rol
l o

ve
r in

to 
the

 ne
w 

fin
an

cia
l y

ea
r (0

9/1
0) 

giv
en

 
tha

t th
e C

on
tra

cto
r, V

eo
lia

, 
is 

req
uir

ed
 to

 un
de

rta
ke

 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 th
e 

La
nd

lor
d a

nd
 re

sid
en

ts.
  

  

Page 133



18
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

R8
 

Th
e r

ev
iew

 gr
ou

p w
ou

ld 
ex

pe
ct 

the
 ne

w 
co

ntr
ac

tor
 to

 us
e t

he
 

res
ult

s o
f re

ce
nt 

wa
ste

 an
aly

sis
 

to 
he

lp 
de

ve
lop

 a 
se

rvi
ce

 ba
se

d 
on

 th
e r

ec
yc

lin
g n

ee
ds

 
pa

rtic
ula

r to
 To

we
r H

am
let

s. 
  

Th
e R

ev
iew

 w
ou

ld 
the

ref
ore

 
we

lco
me

 th
e r

e-i
nv

es
tig

ati
on

 of
 

the
 op

tio
n t

o i
ntr

od
uc

e f
oo

d 
wa

ste
 re

cy
clin

g. 
 W

hil
st 

the
 

gro
up

 is
 aw

are
 th

at 
the

 m
ajo

rity
 

of 
Lo

nd
on

 Au
tho

riti
es

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 
thi

s s
erv

ice
 on

ly 
do

 so
 fo

r s
tre

et 
lev

el 
pro

pe
rtie

s, 
the

 re
vie

w 
wo

uld
 w

elc
om

e a
n i

nn
ov

ati
ve

 
ap

pro
ac

h a
s t

o h
ow

 fo
od

 w
as

te 
rec

yc
lin

g c
ou

ld 
be

 ro
lle

d o
ut 

to 
all

 pr
op

ert
ies

. 

Fo
od

 w
as

te 
co

lle
cti

on
s f

or 
all

 st
ree

t p
rop

ert
ies

 
co

mm
en

ce
d o

n 1
st
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
. T

he
 ne

w 
se

rvi
ce

 ha
s a

lso
 in

clu
de

d a
 pi

lot
 fo

r 7
,00

0 h
igh

 
ris

e p
rop

ert
ies

. 
 A f

urt
he

r ro
ll o

ut 
to 

hig
h r

ise
 pr

op
ert

ies
 is

 
de

pe
nd

en
t o

n f
urt

he
r fu

nd
ing

 be
ing

 se
cu

red
. 

Se
pt 

20
07

 
  Oc

t 2
00

8 
             

Fo
od

 w
as

te 
co

lle
cti

on
s f

or 
all

 st
ree

t p
rop

ert
ies

 
co

mm
en

ce
d o

n 1
st
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08

. T
he

 ne
w 

se
rvi

ce
 ha

s a
lso

 in
clu

de
d a

 
pil

ot 
for

 7,
00

0 h
igh

 ris
e 

pro
pe

rtie
s. 

 Fu
nd

ing
 ha

s b
ee

n s
ec

ure
d 

fro
m 

W
RA

P t
o m

ak
e 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 th
e 

fac
iliti

es
 in

 pl
ac

e f
or 

hig
h 

ris
e p

rop
ert

ies
 on

 a 
co

mm
un

al 
bin

 co
lle

cti
on

 
se

rvi
ce

. M
ore

 se
cu

re 
foo

d 
bin

s w
ill b

e l
oc

ate
d a

t 
ma

ny
 si

tes
. 

 Dis
cu

ss
ion

s a
re 

tak
ing

 
pla

ce
 w

ith
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Ho

me
s t

o i
de

nti
fy 

fun
din

g 
an

d d
ete

rm
ine

 a 
po

ten
tia

l 
pro

gra
mm

e t
o r

oll
 ou

t fo
od

 
wa

ste
 se

rvi
ce

s t
o T

HH
 

pro
pe

rtie
s d

uri
ng

 20
09

/10
. 

R9
  

Th
e r

ev
iew

 w
ou

ld 
en

co
ura

ge
 

the
 co

ntr
ac

t p
rop

os
al 

to 
ma

ke
 

ref
ere

nc
e t

o t
he

 re
ce

nt 
na

tio
na

l 
W

ith
 th

e c
ha

ng
e o

f M
ay

or 
of 

Lo
nd

on
 it 

is 
un

like
ly 

tha
t in

 th
e f

ore
se

ea
ble

 fu
tur

e t
he

re 
wil

l 
be

 a 
sin

gle
 w

as
te 

au
tho

rity
 fo

r L
on

do
n. 

on
go

ing
 

 
As

 pe
r th

e O
cto

be
r 0

8 
up

da
te,

 w
ith

 th
e c

ha
ng

e o
f 

Ma
yo

r o
f L

on
do

n i
t is

 

Page 134



19
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

po
licy

 gu
ida

nc
e o

n r
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d r
eg

ion
al 

Lo
nd

on
-w

ide
 

ch
an

ge
s t

ha
t m

igh
t b

e 
int

rod
uc

ed
.  B

as
ed

 on
 th

e 
ev

ide
nc

e o
f th

is 
rev

iew
, th

e 
gro

up
 w

ou
ld 

we
lco

me
 an

y 
ch

an
ge

s t
ha

t w
ou

ld 
str

ea
m 

lin
e 

the
 ap

pro
ac

h t
o r

ec
yc

lin
g a

nd
 

de
ve

lop
 a 

mo
re 

co
-or

din
ate

d 
ap

pro
ac

h t
o w

as
te 

mi
nim

isa
tio

n 
ac

ros
s t

he
 ca

pit
al,

 in
clu

din
g t

he
 

pro
po

se
d L

on
do

n S
ing

le 
W

as
te 

Au
tho

rity
. 

 

 To
we

r H
am

let
s i

s c
urr

en
tly

 re
vie

win
g a

nd
 

rev
isin

g t
he

 W
as

te 
Str

ate
gy

 w
hic

h w
ill e

va
lua

te 
the

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 to

 jo
in 

tog
eth

er 
wit

h o
the

r 
wa

ste
 au

tho
riti

es
. A

s a
bo

ve
 a 

dra
ft r

ep
ort

 is
 

an
tic

ipa
ted

 in
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
8  

 

un
like

ly 
tha

t in
 th

e 
for

es
ee

ab
le 

fut
ure

 th
ere

 
wil

l b
e a

 si
ng

le 
wa

ste
 

au
tho

rity
 fo

r L
on

do
n. 

 A r
ep

ort
 on

 th
e p

rop
os

ed
 

pro
ce

ss
 fo

r d
eli

ve
rin

g t
he

 
ne

w 
W

as
te 

Str
ate

gy
 w

ill b
e 

pre
se

nte
d t

o C
ab

ine
t o

n 
11

th
 M

arc
h 2

00
9 

R1
0  

Th
e g

rou
p w

ou
ld 

su
pp

ort
 

inc
rea

sin
g p

ub
lici

ty 
aro

un
d 

rec
yc

lin
g, 

pa
rtic

ula
rly

 ar
ou

nd
 

wh
at 

ha
pp

en
s t

o t
he

 re
cy

clin
g 

wh
en

 it 
is 

pic
ke

d u
p. 

 Th
e g

rou
p 

co
mm

en
ds

 th
e n

ew
 pa

mp
hle

t 
ex

pla
ini

ng
 re

cy
clin

g i
n a

 ra
ng

e 
of 

co
mm

un
ity

 la
ng

ua
ge

s b
ut 

wo
uld

 pr
op

os
e t

ha
t o

the
r 

me
tho

ds
 of

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
n a

re 
als

o u
tilis

ed
 us

ing
 a 

ran
ge

 of
 

me
dia

.  T
he

 R
ec

yc
lin

g t
ea

m 
sh

ou
ld 

ha
ve

 a 
pre

se
nc

e a
t th

e 
bo

rou
gh

s w
ide

 ra
ng

e o
f 

Re
cy

clin
g f

ac
iliti

es
 ar

e n
ow

 in
 pl

ac
e f

or 
all

 
ma

jor
 ev

en
ts 

in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
 

 A m
ajo

r re
cy

clin
g c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s c

am
pa

ign
 is

 
du

e t
o l

au
nc

h o
n 7

th
 O

cto
be

r, t
o f

oll
ow

 up
 on

 
the

 ne
w 

rec
yc

lin
g s

erv
ice

s t
ha

t th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 
im

ple
me

nte
d (

foo
d a

nd
 ga

rde
n w

as
te 

co
lle

cti
on

s) 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il w

ill b
e i

mp
lem

en
tin

g a
 R

ec
yc

lin
g 

Ch
am

pio
ns

 sc
he

me
, a

fte
r th

e l
au

nc
h. 

Th
e 

rec
yc

lin
g c

ha
mp

ion
s w

ill h
elp

 w
ith

 th
e 

dis
se

mi
na

tio
n o

f in
for

ma
tio

n t
o r

es
ide

nts
. 

 

   Ma
y 2

00
7-

Co
mp

let
ed

 
  Au

g 2
00

7 
Co

mp
let

ed
 

 Se
p 2

00
7 

   

          Do
or 

Ste
pp

ing
 an

d 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 of

 Pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n 
is 

no
w 

un
de

rta
ke

n b
y t

he
 

Re
cy

clin
g O

utr
ea

ch
 Te

am
  

Page 135



20
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

fes
tiv

als
 an

d c
om

mu
nit

y e
ve

nts
 

to 
pro

vid
e i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 an
d 

rec
yc

lin
g f

ac
iliti

es
 to

 re
sid

en
ts.

  
A r

eg
ula

r p
ag

e o
r c

olu
mn

 in
 

Ea
st 

En
d L

ife
, h

igh
lig

hti
ng

 
so

me
 of

 th
e m

ore
 in

no
va

tiv
e 

ap
pro

ac
he

s t
o r

ec
yc

lin
g s

ho
uld

 
als

o b
e c

on
sid

ere
d. 

An
 es

tat
e 

rec
yc

lin
g r

oa
d s

ho
w 

ma
y b

e 
an

oth
er 

op
tio

n. 

 A n
ew

 sc
ho

ols
 re

cy
clin

g p
rog

ram
me

 is
 be

ing
 

lau
nc

he
d S

ep
tem

be
r 2

00
8 w

hic
h w

ill 
co

nc
en

tra
te 

on
 fo

od
 w

as
te 

rec
yc

lin
g  

Oc
t 2

00
7 

  Fe
b 2

00
8  

   Ma
ch

 20
08

 
  On

-go
ing

 
    On

-go
ing

 
   Ja

n 2
00

8 
    Oc

t 2
00

7 
   Se

pt 

          A m
ajo

r re
cy

clin
g 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 ca
mp

aig
n 

is 
lau

nc
he

d o
n 7

th
 O

cto
be

r, 
int

rod
uc

ing
 th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 
ne

w 
rec

yc
lin

g a
mb

as
sa

do
r 

“M
r R

ec
yc

le 
Mo

re”
. 

 Mr
 R

ec
yc

le 
Mo

re 
ha

s 
att

en
de

d m
an

y c
om

mu
nit

y 
ev

en
ts 

sin
ce

 th
e l

au
nc

h 
an

d t
oo

k p
art

 in
 th

e M
ay

or 
of 

Lo
nd

on
’s 

Ne
w 

Ye
ar’

s 
da

y P
ara

de
 an

d h
as

 w
on

 
se

co
nd

 pr
ize

 at
 th

at 
ev

en
t. 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 R

ec
yc

lin
g 

Ch
am

pio
ns

 sc
he

me
 w

ill b
e 

lau
nc

hin
g i

n t
he

 ne
xt 

few
 

mo
nth

s. 

Page 136



21
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

Co
mp

let
ed

 
 On

-go
ing

 
 A n

ew
 w

as
te 

an
d r

ec
yc

lin
g 

ed
uc

ati
on

al 
DV

D 
ha

s b
ee

n 
pro

du
ce

d a
nd

 is
 du

e t
o b

e 
dis

trib
ute

d t
o a

ll s
ch

oo
ls 

in 
To

we
r H

am
let

s s
ho

rtly
 

  
R1

1 
Sc

he
me

s s
uc

h a
s t

he
 

co
mm

un
ity

 co
mp

os
tin

g s
ho

uld
 

be
 ro

lle
d o

ut 
to 

all
 re

sid
en

ts 
livi

ng
 in

 hi
gh

 ris
e 

ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

, a
s w

ell
 as

 
sc

ho
ols

.  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il s

ho
uld

 
loo

k a
t fu

rth
er 

wa
ys

 to
 

inc
en

tiv
es

 re
sid

en
ts 

to 
rec

yc
le.

   
 

De
sp

ite
 th

e f
ac

t th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il h
as

 
im

ple
me

nte
d t

he
 fo

od
 w

as
te 

co
lle

cti
on

 se
rvi

ce
, 

To
we

r H
am

let
s i

s c
on

tin
uin

g t
o p

rom
ote

 ho
me

 
an

d c
om

mu
nit

y c
om

po
sti

ng
 as

 th
e t

wo
 se

rvi
ce

s 
are

 co
mp

lem
en

tar
y a

s c
oo

ke
d f

oo
d w

as
te 

is 
oft

en
 no

t s
uit

ab
le 

for
 co

mm
un

ity
 or

 ho
me

 
co

mp
os

tin
g b

ut 
is 

co
lle

cte
d a

s p
art

 of
 th

e f
oo

d 
wa

ste
 re

cy
clin

g s
erv

ice
.   

       Ju
ne

 20
07

 
Co

mp
let

ed
 

      Se
pt 

20
07

 
Co

mp
let

ed
 

  

W
hil

st 
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

co
mm

un
ity

 an
d h

om
e 

co
mp

os
tin

g s
ch

em
es

 
co

nti
nu

e, 
the

 ne
w 

foo
d 

wa
ste

 co
lle

cti
on

 se
rvi

ce
 

all
ow

s f
or 

a g
rea

ter
 ra

ng
e 

of 
org

an
ic 

wa
ste

 to
 be

 
co

mp
os

ted
.  

 It i
s a

nti
cip

ate
d t

ha
t th

e 
foo

d w
as

te 
co

lle
cti

on
 

se
rvi

ce
 cu

rre
ntl

y p
rov

ide
d 

to 
26

,00
0 h

ou
se

ho
lds

 w
ill 

be
 ex

pa
nd

ed
 in

 20
09

/10
 

 

Page 137



22
 

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

3 
Re

sp
on

se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n L
ea
se
ho

lde
rs 

an
d C

us
tom

er 
Ca

re 
 Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n 

Re
sp

on
se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

  2
00
9 

R1
 

Ho
us

ing
 sh

ou
ld 

ex
plo

re 
the

 
po

ten
tia

l m
eri

t o
f e

sta
bli

sh
ing

 a 
ne

w 
bo

rou
gh

-w
ide

 
lea

se
ho

lde
r’s

 fo
rum

. T
he

 
W

ork
ing

 G
rou

p w
ou

ld 
su

gg
es

t 
tha

t a
ny

 ne
w 

for
um

 sh
ou

ld 
se

e 
a b

ala
nc

ed
 ra

ng
e o

f 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

 in
clu

din
g: 

Co
un

cil 
off

ice
rs,

 C
ou

nc
illo

rs,
 

Le
as

eh
old

er 
Re

pre
se

nta
tiv

e 
Bo

die
s. 

 Fu
nc

tio
ns

 of
 th

is 
for

um
 m

igh
t in

clu
de

; in
ter

ali
a, 

  
• 

Us
er 

tes
t s

erv
ice

 ch
arg

es
  

• 
Us

er 
tes

t a
ll f

utu
re 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

  
• 

Me
as

ure
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ag
ain

st 
an

 ag
ree

d s
et 

of 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
ind

ica
tor

s. 
  

• 
Re

vie
w 

all
 co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 

wit
h l

ea
se

ho
lde

rs 
in 

an
 ef

for
t 

to 
red

uc
e t

he
 nu

mb
er 

of 
co

mp
lai

nts
 an

d m
ini

mi
se

 th
e 

nu
mb

er 
of 

lea
se

ho
lde

rs 
wit

hh
old

ing
 pa

ym
en

t.  
Th

is 
wo

uld
 in

clu
de

 m
ore

 de
tai

led
 

Pr
op

os
als

 fo
r th

e f
utu

re 
TH

H 
res

ide
nt 

inv
olv

em
en

t 
str

uc
tur

e h
av

e b
ee

n d
ev

elo
pe

d i
n c

on
su

lta
tio

n w
ith

 
the

 re
sid

en
t g

rou
p s

et 
up

 to
 co

ns
ide

r re
sid

en
t 

inv
olv

em
en

t.  
In 

ad
dit

ion
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

foc
us

 gr
ou

ps
 

ha
ve

 be
en

 he
ld 

wit
h l

ea
se

ho
lde

rs 
on

 sp
ec

ific
 

iss
ue

s i
nc

lud
ing

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

, s
erv

ice
 ch

arg
es

 
an

d p
erf

orm
an

ce
. 

 Th
e p

rop
os

als
 fo

r th
e f

utu
re 

TH
H 

res
ide

nt 
inv

olv
em

en
t s

tru
ctu

re 
se

t o
ut 

a r
an

ge
 of

 op
tio

ns
 

inc
lud

ing
 an

 op
tio

n f
or 

a b
oro

ug
hw

ide
 le

as
eh

old
er 

for
um

 re
po

rtin
g t

o a
n o

ve
rar

ch
ing

  re
sid

en
t p

an
el.

  
Co

ns
ult

ati
on

 on
 th

e o
pti

on
s i

s c
urr

en
tly

 be
ing

 
ca

rrie
d o

ut 
thr

ou
gh

 a 
su

rve
y o

f re
sid

en
ts 

on
 th

e 
Ge

ttin
g I

nv
olv

ed
 R

eg
ist

er 
wh

ich
 is

 sc
he

du
led

 to
 

co
mp

let
e i

n S
ep

tem
be

r. 
 W

he
n f

ina
lisi

ng
 th

e p
rop

os
als

 fo
r fu

tur
e r

es
ide

nt 
inv

olv
em

en
t s

tru
ctu

res
 al

l fe
ed

ba
ck

 w
ill b

e t
ak

en
 

int
o a

cc
ou

nt.
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Le
as

eh
old

er 
foc

us
 gr

ou
p 

me
eti

ng
 m

on
thl

y. 
 Fu

rth
er 

dis
cu

ss
ion

 ta
kin

g p
lac

e t
o 

co
ns

ide
r a

rea
 gr

ou
ps

 an
d 

lea
se

ho
lde

r re
pre

se
nta

tiv
e o

n 
se

rvi
ce

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pro

jec
t. 

Page 138



23
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

  2
00
9 

ex
pla

na
tio

n o
f s

erv
ice

 ch
arg

es
 

inc
lud

ing
 th

e d
iffe

ren
ce

s a
nd

 
rea

so
ns

 fo
r e

sti
ma

ted
 an

d 
ac

tua
l b

ills
 an

d w
hy

 
lea

se
ho

lde
rs 

in 
the

 sa
me

 
blo

ck
 m

ay
 be

 pa
yin

g d
iffe

ren
t 

lev
els

 of
 ch

arg
e 

R2
 

Ho
us

ing
 sh

ou
ld 

de
live

r g
rea

ter
 

tra
ns

pa
ren

cy
 on

 th
e 

de
lib

era
tio

ns
 an

d d
ec

isio
ns

 of
 

Du
e R

eg
ard

 Pa
ne

ls 
(fo

r M
ajo

r 
W

ork
s) 

inc
lud

ing
 gi

vin
g 

lea
se

ho
lde

r re
pre

se
nta

tiv
es

 an
 

op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o p

res
en

t th
eir

 
ca

se
 ag

ain
st 

wo
rks

 to
 th

e 
pa

ne
l, p

rov
idi

ng
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 to

 
loc

al 
lea

se
ho

lde
rs 

on
 th

e 
ou

tco
me

s a
nd

 re
as

on
s f

or 
its

 
de

cis
ion

s. 

Th
e p

roc
ed

ure
 in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f th
e D

ue
 R

eg
ard

 Pa
ne

l 
ha

s b
ee

n a
me

nd
ed

 an
d f

urt
he

r in
for

ma
tio

n 
reg

ard
ing

 th
e p

an
els

 ha
s b

ee
n p

rov
ide

d. 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
 

R3
 

Ho
us

ing
 sh

ou
ld 

im
ple

me
nt 

a 
ke

y l
es

se
e s

ys
tem

, s
ee

kin
g 

ma
xim

um
 es

tat
e c

ov
era

ge
, 

sim
ila

r to
 th

e o
ne

 de
live

red
 by

 
Cit

y W
es

t H
om

es
. 

W
e h

av
e e

xp
lor

ed
 th

is 
ini

tia
tiv

e w
ith

 C
ity

 W
es

t 
Ho

me
s. 

  
 Re

lev
an

t a
sp

ec
ts 

of 
the

 C
ity

 W
es

t k
ey

 le
ss

ee
 

sc
he

me
 ha

ve
 be

en
 bu

ilt 
int

o o
ur 

pro
po

sa
ls 

for
 

se
rvi

ce
 ch

arg
es

 an
d e

sta
te 

ins
pe

cti
on

s a
s w

ell
 as

 
lea

se
ho

lde
r c

on
su

lta
tio

n. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 

R4
 

Th
e k

ey
 el

em
en

ts 
of 

se
rvi

ce
 

pro
vis

ion
 at

 a 
loc

al 
lev

el,
 su

ch
 

A c
are

tak
ing

 re
sid

en
ts 

pa
ne

l h
as

 be
en

 es
tab

lish
ed

 
an

d t
his

 pa
ne

l h
as

 ag
ree

d n
ew

 ca
ret

ak
ing

 se
rvi

ce
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

  

Page 139



24
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

  2
00
9 

as
 cl

ea
nin

g, 
ne

ed
 to

 be
 su

bje
ct 

to 
gre

ate
r in

de
pe

nd
en

t q
ua

lity
 

rev
iew

 an
d t

ha
t th

e 
inv

olv
em

en
t o

f le
as

eh
old

ers
 in

 
es

tat
e i

ns
pe

cti
on

s n
ee

ds
 to

 be
 

en
ha

nc
ed

.  T
he

 W
ork

ing
 

Gr
ou

p b
eli

ev
es

 th
e k

ey
 le

ss
ee

 
sy

ste
m 

wo
uld

 su
pp

ort
 th

is.
   

sta
nd

ard
s a

nd
 re

sp
on

se
 tim

es
 w

hic
h a

re 
no

w 
be

ing
 im

ple
me

nte
d. 

 
 Th

e C
are

tak
ing

 R
es

ide
nts

 pa
ne

l h
as

 al
so

 id
en

tifi
ed

 
a r

es
ide

nt 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 pa

ne
l w

ho
 ar

e s
ch

ed
ule

d t
o 

rec
eiv

e t
rai

nin
g o

n m
on

ito
rin

g s
tan

da
rds

.  T
he

 
pa

ne
l w

ill b
e u

nd
ert

ak
ing

 re
gu

lar
 m

on
ito

rin
g o

f 
cle

an
ing

 st
an

da
rds

 on
 es

tat
es

 fro
m 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
. 

Mo
nit

ori
ng

 ta
kin

g p
lac

e. 
 

Pr
es

en
tat

ion
 of

 cu
rre

nt 
pla

ns
 

an
d p

rog
res

s w
ith

 ca
ret

ak
ing

 
too

k p
lac

e w
ith

 le
as

eh
old

er 
foc

us
 gr

ou
p i

n N
ov

em
be

r 
20

08
. 

  
R5

 
Ho

us
ing

 sh
ou

ld 
co

nd
uc

t a
 

rev
iew

 of
 its

 le
as

eh
old

er 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
, a

nd
 gu

ida
nc

e 
pa

ck
 w

ith
 a 

vie
w 

to 
inc

rea
sin

g 
ac

ce
ss

ibi
lity

 an
d p

en
etr

ati
on

 of
 

lea
se

ho
lde

rs.
 

A l
ea

se
ho

lde
rs 

foc
us

 gr
ou

p w
as

 he
ld 

to 
dis

cu
ss

 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
. 

 A r
ea

de
rs 

pa
ne

l h
as

 no
w 

be
en

 es
tab

lish
ed

. 
 Le

as
eh

old
er 

inf
orm

ati
on

 is
 no

w 
inc

lud
ed

 as
 a 

sp
ec

ific
 se

cti
on

 of
 O

pe
n D

oo
r, o

ur 
ne

ws
let

ter
 to

 al
l 

res
ide

nts
.  T

he
 le

as
eh

old
ers

 gu
ide

 is
 cu

rre
ntl

y 
un

de
r re

vie
w.

 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Fu
rth

er 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 in
 

lea
se

ho
lde

r c
om

mu
nic

ati
on

 
be

ing
 in

co
rpo

rat
ed

 in
to 

se
rvi

ce
 im

pro
ve

me
nt 

pro
jec

t. 
     

R6
 

Ho
us

ing
 m

us
t p

ub
lish

 th
e 

“ap
po

rtio
nm

en
t o

f ti
me

” d
ata

 
tha

t in
for

me
d t

he
 H

ou
se

ma
rk 

be
nc

hm
ark

ing
 ex

erc
ise

. 
Ho

us
ing

 sh
ou

ld 
un

de
rta

ke
, in

 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 le

as
eh

old
ers

, 
a r

ev
iew

 pr
og

ram
me

 fo
cu

se
d 

on
 im

pro
vin

g s
erv

ice
 ch

arg
e 

tra
ns

pa
ren

cy
 an

d d
ata

 
pro

vis
ion

.  

Th
e h

ou
se

ma
rk 

be
nc

hm
ark

ing
 ex

erc
ise

 ha
s b

ee
n 

pla
ce

d i
n t

he
 pu

bli
c d

om
ain

.   
 Fu

rth
er 

wo
rk 

is 
ne

ed
ed

 w
ith

 le
as

eh
old

ers
 to

 
de

ve
lop

 th
is 

are
a. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Ca
lcu

lat
ion

 of
 ch

arg
es

 be
ing

 
rev

ise
d a

s p
art

 of
 se

rvi
ce

 
im

pro
ve

me
nt 

pro
jec

t.  
Co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 
lea

se
ho

lde
rs 

an
d r

efe
ren

ce
 to

 
ho

us
em

ark
 w

ill b
e i

nc
lud

ed
. 

R7
 

Ho
us

ing
 sh

ou
ld 

se
nd

 al
l 

Ca
ret

ak
ing

 sc
he

du
les

 ha
ve

 be
en

 pl
ac

ed
 in

 th
e 

Oc
tob

er 
Gr

ou
nd

s m
ain

ten
an

ce
 

Page 140



25
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

  2
00
9 

lea
se

ho
lde

rs 
– a

nd
 te

na
nts

 – 
the

 ca
ret

ak
ing

 sc
he

du
le 

for
 

the
ir b

loc
k, 

de
tai

ls 
of 

the
 

an
nu

al 
ho

rtic
ult

ura
l 

ma
int

en
an

ce
 pr

og
ram

me
, a

nd
 

cla
rify

 w
hic

h o
the

r b
loc

ks
 ar

e 
inc

lud
ed

 in
 th

e e
sta

te 
cle

an
ing

 
se

rvi
ce

 ch
arg

e. 
 Th

e W
ork

ing
 

Gr
ou

p w
ou

ld 
als

o e
nc

ou
rag

e 
Ho

us
ing

 to
 co

ns
ide

r in
clu

din
g 

ful
l d

eta
ils 

of 
the

 w
ork

s 
co

ve
red

 by
 th

e b
loc

k 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 ch
arg

e i
n t

he
 

‘Ac
tua

l’. 

no
tic

eb
oa

rds
 of

 ea
ch

 bl
oc

k a
nd

 w
ork

 is
 on

go
ing

 to
 

pro
vid

e s
im

ila
r in

for
ma

tio
n o

n h
ort

icu
ltu

re.
  W

e a
re 

als
o m

ak
ing

 th
is 

inf
orm

ati
on

 av
ail

ab
le 

on
 ou

r 
we

bs
ite

. 
  

20
08

 
sc

he
du

les
 be

ing
 pl

ac
ed

 in
 

no
tic

eb
oa

rds
 du

rin
g M

arc
h 

20
09

. 

R8
 

Th
e W

ork
ing

 G
rou

p w
elc

om
e 

the
 st

ep
s b

ein
g t

ak
en

 to
 

im
pro

ve
 st

aff
 tra

ini
ng

 an
d 

Le
as

eh
old

er 
op

en
 da

ys
.  

Th
es

e a
cti

on
s s

ho
uld

 be
 

ma
int

ain
ed

 an
d e

mb
ed

de
d 

fur
the

r to
 im

pro
ve

 le
as

eh
old

er 
en

ga
ge

me
nt.

  

Co
mp

let
ed

 an
d s

ub
jec

t to
 an

nu
al 

rev
iew

. 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
 

R9
 

Ho
us

ing
 sh

ou
ld 

en
su

re 
tha

t it
 

im
ple

me
nts

 an
d e

mb
ed

s f
ull

y 
all

 as
pe

cts
 of

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 

Cu
sto

me
r P

rom
ise

, in
 bo

th 
pro

ce
ss

 an
d c

ult
ure

. 

Co
mp

let
ed

 an
d s

ub
jec

t to
 an

nu
al 

rev
iew

. 
 All

 st
aff

 tra
ns

fer
red

 to
 TH

H 
rec

eiv
ed

 a 
sp

ec
ific

 
ind

uc
tio

n o
n t

he
 va

lue
s a

nd
 cu

sto
me

r e
tho

s o
f 

TH
H,

 an
d t

his
 is

 on
go

ing
. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 

R1
0 

Th
ere

 is
 cl

ea
r e

vid
en

ce
 th

at 
a 

Dis
cu

ss
ion

s h
av

e t
ak

en
 pl

ac
e w

ith
 TH

LA
 an

d a
 

Oc
tob

er 
Dis

cu
ss

ion
s c

on
tin

ue
s w

ith
 

Page 141



26
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

  2
00
9 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

nu
mb

er 
of 

lea
se

ho
lde

rs 
lac

k c
on

fid
en

ce
 

in 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
Alt

ern
ati

ve
 

Dis
pu

te 
Re

so
lut

ion
 (A

DR
) 

sc
he

me
’s 

ind
ep

en
de

nc
e a

nd
 

fai
rne

ss
.  T

he
 W

ork
ing

 G
rou

p 
be

lie
ve

 th
at 

3 o
pti

on
s s

ho
uld

 
be

 co
ns

ide
red

 by
 H

ou
sin

g a
nd

 
Ca

bin
et,

 fo
llo

win
g c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
wit

h l
ea

se
ho

lde
rs 

an
d t

he
ir 

rep
res

en
tat

ive
s: 

i. 
Re

lau
nc

h t
he

 cu
rre

nt 
AD

R 
sc

he
me

. T
he

re 
wo

uld
 ne

ed
 to

 
be

 cl
ea

r c
om

mu
nic

ati
on

 to
 

lea
se

ho
lde

rs 
tha

t th
e s

ys
tem

 
ha

d c
ha

ng
ed

 an
d w

ha
t th

e 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 w
ere

 in
ten

de
d 

to 
ac

hie
ve

. T
his

 w
ou

ld 
inc

lud
e:  

cle
are

r in
for

ma
tio

n a
bo

ut 
the

 ne
w 

tra
ns

pa
ren

t A
DR

 pr
oc

es
s 

inc
lud

ing
; 

- T
ha

t th
e A

DR
 is

 on
e o

pti
on

 an
d 

cle
arl

y s
et 

ou
t th

e d
iffe

ren
t 

op
tio

ns
, a

nd
 w

he
n e

ac
h o

ne
 is

 
mo

st 
ap

pro
pri

ate
.  

- C
lea

rer
 gu

ide
lin

es
 ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

sp
ec

ific
s o

f th
e p

roc
es

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e r

igh
ts 

an
d 

res
po

ns
ibi

litie
s o

f b
oth

 pa
rtie

s. 
  

pa
pe

r s
ett

ing
 ou

t fo
ur 

po
ten

tia
l A

DR
 op

tio
ns

 ha
s 

be
en

 de
ve

lop
ed

. 
 Th

is 
pa

pe
r is

 cu
rre

ntl
y s

ub
jec

t to
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 
TH

LA
. 

 On
ce

 ag
ree

d a
 w

ide
r c

on
su

lta
tio

n i
nv

olv
ing

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 st
ak

eh
old

ers
 w

ill b
e c

arr
ied

 ou
t a

nd
 fir

m 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s d

ev
elo

pe
d f

or 
TH

H 
Bo

ard
 an

d 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 C
ab

ine
t. 

 In 
the

 m
ea

nti
me

, w
e h

av
e b

ee
n o

bta
ini

ng
 im

pro
ve

d 
fee

db
ac

k f
rom

 th
e c

urr
en

t s
ch

em
e a

nd
 w

e a
re 

co
nti

nu
ing

 to
 en

su
re 

lea
se

ho
lde

r s
erv

ice
 ch

arg
e 

dis
pu

tes
 ar

e p
rop

erl
y i

nv
es

tig
ate

d a
nd

 se
ttle

d 
wh

ere
 po

ss
ibl

e. 

20
08

 
TH

LA
, w

hic
h h

as
 be

en
 in

vit
ed

 
to 

su
bm

it p
rop

os
als

 fo
r a

n 
am

en
de

d s
ch

em
e. 

 
Me

an
wh

ile
, im

pro
ve

me
nts

 to
 

the
 pr

oc
es

s o
f d

ea
lin

g w
ith

 
co

mp
lai

nts
 ar

e b
ein

g 
co

ns
ide

red
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e 

se
rvi

ce
 im

pro
ve

me
nts

 pl
an

. 

Page 142



27
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

  2
00
9 

ii. 
Dis

ba
nd

 th
e A

DR
 pr

oc
es

s a
nd

 
ma

ke
 al

l c
om

pla
int

s g
o 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e c
orp

ora
te 

co
mp

lai
nts

 pr
oc

ed
ure

.  I
f th

is 
op

tio
n w

as
 ta

ke
n i

t w
ou

ld 
be

 
ne

ce
ss

ary
 fo

r a
n o

pti
on

 of
 

arb
itra

tio
n/ 

me
dia

tio
n t

o t
ak

e 
pla

ce
 be

tw
ee

n s
tag

e t
wo

 an
d 

thr
ee

 of
 th

e c
om

pla
int

s 
pro

ce
du

re.
  

iii. 
De

ve
lop

 a 
ne

w 
AD

R 
sc

he
me

 
ref

lec
tin

g c
urr

en
t in

du
str

y b
es

t 
pra

cti
ce

 
R1

1 
Th

e c
urr

en
t re

lat
ion

sh
ip 

be
tw

ee
n t

he
 AD

R 
sc

he
me

, th
e 

us
e o

f a
 Le

as
eh

old
er 

Va
lua

tio
n 

Tri
bu

na
l a

nd
 C

orp
ora

te 
Co

mp
lai

nts
 Pr

oc
es

s i
s n

ot 
cle

ar.
 As

 a 
ma

tte
r o

f u
rge

nc
y, 

Ho
us

ing
 sh

ou
ld,

 in
 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ith
 ke

y 
lea

se
ho

lde
r g

rou
ps

, p
rov

ide
 

cle
ar 

gu
ida

nc
e t

o s
taf

f a
nd

 
lea

se
ho

lde
rs 

on
 th

e r
ole

 of
 

ea
ch

 pr
oc

es
s. 

Th
is 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 is
 lin

ke
d t

o r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
 

10
 ab

ov
e. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 

R1
2 

Th
e W

ork
ing

 G
rou

p w
ou

ld 
en

co
ura

ge
 H

ou
sin

g t
o a

do
pt 

a 
mo

de
l w

hic
h i

nc
lud

es
:  

Re
str

uc
tur

ing
 of

 Lo
ca

l S
erv

ice
 C

en
tre

s a
nd

 th
e 

Ho
me

 O
wn

ers
hip

 Se
rvi

ce
 ha

s n
ow

 be
en

 
co

mp
let

ed
 an

d a
lig

nm
en

t to
 LS

C 
are

as
 ha

s b
ee

n 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
Tri

al 
lin

kin
g L

ea
se

ho
lde

r 
off

ice
rs 

to 
pa

tch
es

 co
nti

nu
ing

.  
W

ide
r re

vie
w 

wil
l ta

ke
 pl

ac
e 

Page 143



28
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

  2
00
9 

• 
off

ice
rs 

wit
hin

 th
e c

en
tra

l te
am

 
be

ing
 gi

ve
n g

eo
gra

ph
ica

l 
pa

tch
es

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 a 
mo

re 
co

he
siv

e s
erv

ice
  

• 
Sp

ec
ific

 Le
as

eh
old

er 
Of

fic
ers

 
wit

hin
 th

e L
oc

al 
Ho

us
ing

 
Of

fic
e, 

pro
po

rtio
na

te 
to 

the
 

nu
mb

er 
of 

lea
se

ho
lde

r 
pro

pe
rtie

s 
• 

Mo
re 

lea
se

ho
lde

r s
erv

ice
s t

o 
be

 pr
ov

ide
d a

t th
e L

oc
al 

Ho
us

ing
 O

ffic
e. 

  

ca
rrie

d o
ut 

wh
ere

ve
r p

os
sib

le.
 

 W
e a

re 
in 

the
 pr

oc
es

s o
f c

arr
yin

g o
ut 

a t
ria

l, g
ivin

g 
tea

ms
 w

ith
in 

the
 ce

ntr
al 

lea
se

ho
lde

r te
am

s s
pe

cif
ic 

res
po

ns
ibi

lity
 fo

r e
ac

h L
SC

 ar
ea

.  W
e w

ill k
ee

p t
his

 
un

de
r re

vie
w 

to 
en

su
re 

clo
se

 w
ork

ing
 co

nti
nu

es
 to

 
de

ve
lop

 be
tw

ee
n t

he
 ce

ntr
al 

tea
m 

an
d t

he
 LS

C 
off

ice
s. 

wh
en

 se
rvi

ce
 im

pro
ve

me
nts

 
ac

hie
ve

d. 

R1
3 

Ho
us

ing
 sh

ou
ld 

rev
iew

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt 
co

ntr
ac

t w
ith

 C
itiz

en
s 

Ad
vic

e B
ure

au
 (C

AB
) s

o t
ha

t it
 

pro
vid

es
 a 

se
rvi

ce
 th

at 
de

als
 

sp
ec

ific
all

y w
ith

 m
an

ag
ing

 th
e 

fin
an

cia
l is

su
es

 fa
ce

d b
y 

lea
se

ho
lde

rs.
 

A r
ep

ort
 on

 th
e C

AB
 an

d t
he

 op
tio

ns
 av

ail
ab

le 
ha

s 
be

en
 pr

ep
are

d f
or 

fur
the

r d
isc

us
sio

n. 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
Fu

rth
er 

rev
iew

 in
 lig

ht 
of 

‘cr
ed

it c
run

ch
’ b

ein
g 

un
de

rta
ke

n i
n M

arc
h 2

00
9. 

R1
4 

Ho
us

ing
 sh

ou
ld 

me
et 

wit
h 

To
we

r H
am

let
s C

om
mu

nit
y 

Cr
ed

it U
nio

n t
o e

xp
lor

e 
de

ve
lop

ing
 sp

ec
ific

 su
pp

ort
 fo

r 
lea

se
ho

lde
rs 

so
 th

at 
the

y c
an

 
ac

ce
ss

 af
for

da
ble

 lo
an

s. 

Ini
tia

l d
isc

us
sio

ns
 he

ld 
wit

h T
H 

Cr
ed

it U
nio

n i
n 

20
07

.  A
 bi

d h
as

 be
en

 m
ad

e f
or 

Su
pp

ort
ing

 Pe
op

le 
fun

din
g t

o d
ev

elo
p s

pe
cif

ic 
pro

po
sa

ls.
  T

his
 ha

s 
be

en
 di

sc
us

se
d w

ith
 TH

 C
red

it U
nio

n w
ho

 ar
e 

tak
ing

 pr
op

os
als

 to
 th

eir
 Bo

ard
 in

 Se
pt/

Oc
t 2

00
8. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 

R1
5  

Ho
us

ing
 sh

ou
ld 

pro
vid

e c
lea

r 
gu

ida
nc

e t
o l

ea
se

ho
lde

rs 
on

 
the

 la
w 

su
rro

un
din

g s
tat

ute
 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 is
 pr

ov
ide

d o
n a

 ca
se

 by
 ca

se
 ba

sis
 as

 
the

 ex
ten

t to
 w

hic
h a

ny
 de

bt 
is 

sta
tut

e b
arr

ed
 

de
pe

nd
s o

n t
he

 pa
rtic

ula
r c

irc
um

sta
nc

es
 of

 ea
ch

 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
 

Page 144



29
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

  2
00
9 

ba
rre

d d
eb

t.  
ca

se
. 

R1
6  

  C
om

mu
nic

ati
on

 un
de

rpi
ns

 ho
w 

the
 C

ou
nc

il d
ea

ls 
wit

h l
oc

al 
res

ide
nts

.  I
n i

mp
rov

ing
 th

e 
res

po
ns

ive
ne

ss
 of

 se
rvi

ce
s ,

 
the

 C
ou

nc
il n

ee
ds

 to
 in

ve
st 

fur
the

r s
o t

ha
t c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
 

is 
cle

ar,
 ac

ce
ss

ibl
e a

nd
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 to
 se

rvi
ce

s. 
 Th

is 
is 

pa
rtic

ula
rly

 im
po

rta
nt 

in 
ex

pla
ini

ng
 th

e r
ea

so
ns

 fo
r th

e 
wa

y t
ha

t s
erv

ice
s a

re 
de

live
red

, p
art

icu
lar

ly 
wh

ere
 

ind
ivid

ua
l c

ha
rge

s a
re 

be
ing

 
rai

se
d. 

 

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es

 (T
HH

) h
as

 in
ve

ste
d i

n a
 

pe
rm

an
en

t C
om

mu
nic

ati
on

s M
an

ag
er 

to 
en

ha
nc

e 
an

d i
mp

rov
e c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s w

ith
 TH

H 
res

ide
nts

. 
A c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
 pr

oto
co

l h
as

 be
en

 es
tab

lish
ed

 
be

tw
ee

n t
he

 C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 To

we
r H

am
let

s H
om

es
 

(TH
H)

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 te
am

 to
 en

su
re 

tar
ge

ted
 

an
d p

rec
ise

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

. 
Th

es
e i

nc
lud

e a
 st

rat
eg

y f
or 

the
 Es

tat
e 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pr

og
ram

me
 an

d t
he

 la
un

ch
 of

 th
e 

Ov
erc

row
din

g S
tra

teg
y. 

Re
gu

lar
 lia

iso
n m

ee
tin

gs
 ta

ke
 pl

ac
e b

etw
ee

n t
he

 
LB

TH
 & 

TH
H 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 co
lle

ag
ue

s. 
A T

HH
 w

eb
sit

e h
as

 be
en

 es
tab

lish
ed

. 
TH

H 
is 

co
mm

un
ica

tin
g r

eg
ula

rly
 w

ith
 te

na
nts

 an
d 

lea
se

ho
lde

rs 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e ‘

Op
en

 D
oo

r’ n
ew

sle
tte

r 
wh

ich
 is

 di
str

ibu
ted

 ev
ery

 tw
o m

on
ths

. 
A c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s s

tra
teg

y w
ill b

e c
on

sid
ere

d b
y 

the
 TH

H 
bo

ard
 in

 O
cto

be
r. 

 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Up
gra

de
d c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s 

pla
n a

gre
ed

.  M
ore

 fre
qu

en
t 

inf
orm

ati
on

 fo
r a

ll r
es

ide
nts

 
inc

lud
ed

. 

R1
7 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il n
ee

ds
 to

 ex
plo

re 
fur

the
r h

ow
 it 

ca
n g

et 
clo

se
r to

 
cu

sto
me

rs.
  F

or 
fro

nt-
lin

e h
igh

 
vo

lum
e s

erv
ice

s s
uc

h a
s 

ho
us

ing
, it

 w
ou

ld 
se

em
 

be
ne

fic
ial

 to
 ha

ve
 a 

str
on

g 
co

nn
ec

tio
n b

etw
ee

n s
erv

ice
 

pro
vid

ers
 an

d l
oc

ali
tie

s. 
 Th

is 

So
uth

 Po
pla

r O
SS

 op
en

ed
 in

 Ap
ril 

20
08

 an
d 

pro
vin

g t
o b

e a
 po

pu
lar

 lo
ca

tio
n f

or 
cu

sto
me

rs.
  

Th
e f

ive
 O

SS
 ar

e w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 th

e L
SC

’s 
to 

pro
vid

e s
erv

ice
s t

o c
us

tom
ers

. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 

Page 145



30
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

  2
00
9 

se
em

s t
o p

rov
ide

 th
e g

rea
tes

t 
po

ten
tia

l to
 bu

ild
 a 

str
on

g 
cu

sto
me

r re
lat

ion
sh

ip 
ba

se
d 

aro
un

d b
oth

 ow
ne

rsh
ip 

an
d 

ac
co

un
tab

ility
.  

R1
8 

Th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Co

mp
lai

nts
 

Pr
oc

es
s i

s a
 cr

uc
ial

 pa
rt o

f th
e 

Co
un

cil’
s d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

the
 

cu
sto

me
r p

rom
ise

.  T
he

 
Co

un
cil 

sh
ou

ld 
en

su
re 

tha
t it

s 
rel

ati
on

sh
ip 

wit
h a

ny
 ot

he
r 

sta
tut

ory
 or

 no
n-s

tat
uto

ry 
pro

ce
ss

es
 th

at 
dir

ec
tor

ate
s 

ma
y u

se
 is

 cl
ea

r to
 bo

th 
sta

ff 
an

d r
es

ide
nts

. 

Pr
oc

ed
ure

s h
av

e b
ee

n p
ut 

in 
pla

ce
 an

d a
re 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ell
 in

 re
lat

ion
 to

 co
mp

lai
nts

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
be

tw
ee

n t
he

 C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 TH

H.
  T

he
 co

mp
lai

nts
 

pro
ce

du
re 

is 
pro

mo
ted

 on
 TH

H 
we

bs
ite

. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 

R1
9 

Th
e C

us
tom

er 
Pr

om
ise

 is
 a 

vit
al 

sta
tem

en
t o

f th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 

cu
ltu

re 
an

d d
eli

ve
ry 

of 
Ex

ce
lle

nt 
Pu

bli
c S

erv
ice

s. 
 Th

e 
Co

un
cil 

sh
ou

ld 
de

ve
lop

 cl
ea

rer
 

me
ch

an
ism

s f
or 

en
su

rin
g b

oth
 

the
 sp

irit
 an

d c
on

ten
t o

f th
e 

Cu
sto

me
r P

rom
ise

 ar
e b

ein
g 

de
live

red
 in

 D
ire

cto
rat

es
.   

Ne
w 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

dic
ato

rs 
ha

ve
 be

en
 ag

ree
d a

s 
pa

rt o
f th

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f th
e n

ew
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Pla

n. 
 

A r
ev

iew
 of

 th
e C

us
tom

er 
pro

mi
se

 is
 al

so
 un

de
r 

wa
y a

nd
 w

ill b
e p

res
en

ted
 to

 M
em

be
rs 

in 
du

e 
co

urs
e. 

 Ne
w 

me
tho

ds
 to

 m
on

ito
r c

us
tom

er 
sa

tis
fac

tio
n 

ha
ve

 no
w 

be
en

 pu
t in

 pl
ac

e. 
 Th

es
e i

nc
lud

e k
ios

ks
 

in 
OS

S a
nd

 au
tom

ate
d s

urv
ey

s w
ith

 th
e c

on
tac

t 
ce

ntr
e a

s w
ell

 as
 m

ys
ter

y s
ho

pp
ing

. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 

   

Page 146



31
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
4 

Re
sp

on
se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n t
he

 Li
ce
ns

ing
 of

 St
rip

 C
lub

s 
 Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n 

Re
sp

on
se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

R1
  

Th
at 

an
 ex

tra
 po

st 
is 

cre
ate

d i
n 

the
 Li

ce
ns

ing
 D

ep
art

me
nt,

 w
ith

 a 
rem

it f
oc

us
ing

 on
 th

e 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

of 
lice

ns
ing

 
co

nd
itio

ns
 ap

ply
ing

 to
 st

rip
 cl

ub
s 

in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
. F

urt
he

rm
ore

, th
at 

thi
s o

ffic
er 

lia
ise

s v
ery

 cl
os

ely
 

wit
h t

he
 Po

lice
 to

 en
su

re 
inf

orm
ati

on
 is

 pr
op

erl
y s

ha
red

. 
 

Th
e 

Dir
ec

tor
 fo

r C
om

mu
nit

ies
, L

oc
ali

tie
s 

an
d 

Cu
ltu

re 
ha

s 
ag

ree
d t

ha
t n

ec
es

sa
ry 

res
ou

rce
s e

qu
ati

ng
 to

 on
e F

TE
 w

ill 
be

 m
ad

e a
va

ila
ble

 to
 fo

cu
s o

n t
he

 en
for

ce
me

nt 
of 

lice
ns

ing
 

co
nd

itio
ns

 a
pp

lyin
g 

to 
str

ip 
clu

bs
 a

nd
 w

ill 
en

su
re 

thi
s 

res
ou

rce
 w

ork
s c

los
ely

 w
ith

 P
oli

ce
 in

 te
rm

s o
f in

for
ma

tio
n 

sh
ari

ng
, 

thi
s 

wil
l 

en
su

re 
tha

t 
ne

ce
ss

ary
 e

xp
ert

ise
 i

s 
de

ve
lop

ed
 in

 th
is 

are
a. 

Th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ary

 re
so

urc
e 

wil
l b

e 
ide

nti
fie

d 
fro

m 
wit

hin
 e

xis
tin

g 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

str
uc

tur
es

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of 
the

 g
en

eri
c 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
rev

iew
 b

ein
g 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
wit

hin
 th

e D
ire

cto
rat

e. 
It i

s a
lso

 pr
op

os
ed

 th
at 

the
 ou

tco
me

s 
fro

m 
Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n 2

,3,
4 &

 5 
are

 as
se

ss
ed

 be
for

e e
xtr

a 
res

ou
rce

s a
re 

co
mm

itte
d 

 Ac
tio

n  
 ○ 

Re
vie

w 
Lic

en
sin

g r
es

ou
rce

s, 
pro

ce
ss

es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s  
○ 

An
aly

se
 in

tel
lig

en
ce

 an
d i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 fr
om

 ou
tpu

ts 
fro

m 
Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 2,
3,4

&5
 

○ 
An

aly
se

 t
he

 d
em

an
ds

 n
ee

de
d 

for
 e

xtr
a 

str
ipt

ea
se

 
ac

tiv
ity

 
○ 

Ide
nti

fy 
ne

ce
ss

ary
 re

so
urc

e 
via

 re
vie

w 
of 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
str

uc
tur

es
 w

ith
in 

the
 D

ire
cto

rat
e  

  

He
ad

 of
 Tr

ad
ing

 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s M
an

ag
er  

               ○ 
Au

g 2
00

8 
○ 

Oc
t 2

00
8 

 ○ 
Oc

t 2
00

8 
 ○ 

No
v 2

00
8 

 ○ 
No

v 2
00

8 
 

R2
  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il w
ork

s c
los

ely
 

Str
ipt

ea
se

 c
an

no
t b

e 
hig

hli
gh

ted
 a

s 
a 

pa
rtic

ula
r a

rea
 fo

r 
He

ad
 of

 Tr
ad

ing
 

 

Page 147



32
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

wit
h t

he
 Po

lice
 to

 m
ak

es
 cl

ea
r to

 
res

ide
nts

 th
e p

rop
er 

ch
an

ne
ls 

for
 

rep
ort

ing
 an

y i
nc

ide
nts

 ar
isin

g 
fro

m 
ex

ist
ing

 pr
em

ise
s. 

Sh
ou

ld 
inf

orm
ati

on
 be

 pu
bli

sh
ed

 or
 

dis
trib

ute
d, 

thi
s s

ho
uld

 be
 do

ne
 

bil
ing

ua
lly.

 W
ay

s t
o r

ep
ort

 
inc

ide
nts

 m
us

t in
clu

de
 ef

fec
tiv

e 
wa

ys
 of

 ca
ptu

rin
g a

ny
 

inf
orm

ati
on

 or
 ev

ide
nc

e r
es

ide
nts

 
co

lle
ct,

 so
 th

at 
sa

nc
tio

ns
 m

ay
 

the
n b

e a
pp

lie
d, 

inc
lud

ing
 th

e 
ult

im
ate

 po
ss

ibi
lity

 of
 a 

rev
iew

 of
 

the
 lic

en
se

 an
d i

t b
ein

g r
ev

ok
ed

. 
 

sc
rut

iny
. 

Th
is 

ini
tia

tiv
e 

sh
ou

ld 
inc

lud
e 

all
 

Lic
en

se
d 

pre
mi

se
s. 

 Th
e 

me
tho

d 
of 

pu
bli

cit
y a

nd
 m

ark
eti

ng
 w

ill 
be

 th
rou

gh
 th

e 
Co

un
cil 

we
b 

sit
e 

an
d 

Ea
st 

En
d 

Lif
e. 

A 
pro

gra
mm

e 
wil

l b
e 

de
ve

lop
ed

 w
ith

 c
oll

ea
gu

es
 in

 C
orp

ora
te 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 
an

d C
LC

 St
rat

eg
ies

 an
d P

rog
ram

me
s 

 Ac
tio

n 
 ○ 

De
ve

lop
 an

d i
mp

lem
en

t a
 co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 pl

an
 to

 ra
ise

 
aw

are
ne

ss
 o

n 
ho

w 
an

d 
wh

en
 s

tak
eh

old
ers

 c
an

 ra
ise

 
iss

ue
s a

bo
ut 

Lic
en

se
d p

rem
ise

s a
nd

 ho
w 

Lic
en

ce
s c

an
 

be
 re

vie
we

d  

Sta
nd

ard
s /

 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l 
He

alt
h 

 Lic
en

sin
g 

Se
rvi

ce
s M

an
ag

er 
 Co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 

 CL
C 

Str
ate

gy
 an

d 
Pr

og
ram

me
s 

          ○ 
Au

g 2
00

8 

R3
  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il c
on

sid
er 

tar
ge

tin
g m

ob
ile

 C
CT

V i
n t

he
 

vic
ini

ty 
of 

pre
mi

se
s o

pe
rat

ing
 

str
ipt

ea
se

, to
 pr

ov
ide

 ev
ide

nc
e o

f 
the

 ex
ten

t o
f c

rim
e a

nd
 di

so
rde

r 
as

so
cia

ted
 w

ith
 th

es
e p

rem
ise

s. 
To

 th
is 

en
d, 

the
 C

ou
nc

il s
ho

uld
 

als
o c

on
sid

er 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 
res

ea
rch

 to
 ve

rify
 cl

aim
s t

ha
t 

the
re 

are
 di

rec
t li

nk
s b

etw
ee

n 
str

ip 
clu

bs
 an

d c
rim

e a
nd

 
dis

ord
er 

(pa
rtic

ula
rly

 cr
im

e o
f a

 
se

xu
al 

na
tur

e).
 

W
he

re 
fix

ed
 

CC
TV

 
ex

ist
s 

ne
ar 

str
ipt

ea
se

 
pre

mi
se

s 
su

rve
illa

nc
e 

is 
str

aig
ht 

for
wa

rd.
 I

f 
tem

po
rar

y 
CC

TV
 is

 
req

uir
ed

 p
rop

os
als

 w
ill 

ha
ve

 t
o 

be
 d

ev
elo

pe
d 

wit
h 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Sa
fet

y 
 It 

is 
su

gg
es

ted
 th

at 
res

ea
rch

 s
ho

uld
 ta

ke
 p

lac
e 

if 
ex

tra
 

co
mp

lai
nts

 a
re 

rec
eiv

ed
 a

s a
 re

su
lt o

f r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
 2

 
ini

tia
tiv

e 
an

d 
an

y 
int

ell
ige

nc
e 

tha
t 

co
me

s 
fro

m 
CC

TV
 

su
rve

illa
nc

e. 
  

 Ac
tio

n  
 ○ 

Pr
ep

are
 a

 su
rve

illa
nc

e 
pro

po
sa

l fo
r C

om
mu

nit
y S

afe
ty 

He
ad

 of
 Tr

ad
ing

 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s M
an

ag
er  

 Co
mm

un
ity

 
Sa

fet
y 

 

            ○ 
Au

g 2
00

8 

Page 148



33
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

 
to 

co
ns

ide
r.  

○ 
As

se
ss

 re
so

urc
es

 an
d d

ev
elo

p a
cti

on
 pl

an
 

○ 
Re

vie
w 

pla
n b

as
ed

 on
 ne

w 
int

ell
ige

nc
e a

nd
 in

for
ma

tio
n 

rec
eiv

ed
 

 ○ 
Se

pt 
20

08
 

○ 
Oc

t 2
00

8 

R4
  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il r
em

ind
s a

ll 
ow

ne
rs 

of 
the

ir o
bli

ga
tio

ns
 un

de
r 

the
 re

ce
ntl

y a
me

nd
ed

 Li
ce

ns
ing

 
Po

licy
 to

 pr
ev

en
t a

dv
ert

isin
g o

n 
an

d a
rou

nd
 th

eir
 pr

em
ise

s 
ca

us
ing

 of
fen

ce
 to

 lo
ca

l 
res

ide
nts

. F
oll

ow
ing

 th
is,

 th
e 

off
ice

rs 
sh

ou
ld 

inv
es

tig
ate

 w
ha

t 
ad

ve
rtis

ing
 is

 in
 pl

ac
e, 

an
d i

f it
 

co
ntr

av
en

es
 th

e p
oli

cy
, to

 ta
ke

 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 ac

tio
n. 

 
 

All
 lic

en
se

d p
rem

ise
s t

ha
t h

old
 st

rip
tea

se
 ha

ve
 a 

co
nd

itio
n 

tha
t b

an
s o

ffe
ns

ive
 ad

ve
rtis

ing
. 

 All
 p

rem
ise

s w
ill 

be
 in

sp
ec

ted
 a

nd
 if 

off
en

siv
e 

ad
ve

rtis
ing

 
ex

ist
s 

the
 p

rem
ise

s 
wil

l b
e 

wa
rne

d 
an

d 
if 

the
y 

pe
rsi

st 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

ac
tio

n w
ill t

ak
e p

lac
e 

 All
 st

rip
tea

se
 pr

em
ise

s w
ill 

be
 re

mi
nd

ed
 of

 th
eir

 ob
lig

ati
on

s 
wh

en
 th

eir
 an

nu
al 

fee
 is

 du
e. 

 
 Ac

tio
n  

 ○ 
Ca

rry
 o

ut 
a 

pro
gra

mm
e 

of 
Ins

pe
cti

on
 o

f a
ll s

trip
tea

se
 

pre
mi

se
s 

in 
the

 B
oro

ug
h 

to 
ad

ve
rtis

ing
 a

nd
 c

arr
y 

ou
t 

an
y r

em
ed

ial
 en

for
ce

me
nt 

ac
tio

n 
○ 

All
 s

trip
tea

se
 p

rem
ise

s 
to 

be
 r

em
ind

ed
 o

f 
the

ir 
ad

ve
rtis

ing
 ob

lig
ati

on
s w

he
n t

he
ir a

nn
ua

l fe
e i

s d
ue

 

He
ad

 of
 Tr

ad
ing

 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s M
an

ag
er  

  

            ○ 
Ju

ly 
20

08
 

  ○ 
On

go
ing

 
R5

  
Th

at 
the

 C
ou

nc
il s

ho
uld

 m
ak

e 
wr

itte
n r

ep
res

en
tat

ion
s t

o o
wn

ers
 

of 
bil

lbo
ard

s a
nd

 th
e o

wn
ers

 of
 

pre
mi

se
s w

he
re 

the
 bi

llb
oa

rds
 

are
 pu

t u
p t

o r
eq

ue
st 

tha
t th

ey
 do

 
no

t p
ut 

up
 ad

ve
rtis

em
en

ts 
for

 

All
 bi

llb
oa

rd 
ow

ne
rs 

wil
l b

e w
ritt

en
 to

, to
 as

k t
he

m 
no

t to
 pu

t 
up

 ad
ve

rtis
em

en
ts 

for
 st

rip
 cl

ub
s 

 Ex
ist

ing
 a

nd
 n

ew
 s

trip
tea

se
 p

rem
ise

s 
wil

l b
e 

wr
itte

n 
to 

as
kin

g n
ot 

to 
ad

ve
rtis

e i
ns

ide
 or

 ou
tsi

de
 th

e B
oro

ug
h 

 

He
ad

 of
 Tr

ad
ing

 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 

      

Page 149



34
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

str
ip 

clu
bs

. F
urt

he
rm

ore
, th

at 
ex

ist
ing

 st
rip

tea
se

 lic
en

se
 ho

lde
rs 

as
 w

ell
 as

 ne
w 

ap
pli

ca
nts

 ar
e 

as
ke

d n
ot 

to 
ad

ve
rtis

e, 
eit

he
r 

wit
hin

 th
e b

oro
ug

h o
r o

uts
ide

. 
 Co

mm
en

ts 
fro

m 
Le

ga
l S

erv
ice

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

inc
orp

ora
ted

 
int

o t
he

 bo
dy

 of
 th

e r
ep

ort
. 

 Ac
tio

n 
 ○ 

Ob
tai

n f
rom

 Pl
an

nin
g d

eta
ils 

of 
all

 bi
ll b

oa
rd 

ow
ne

rs 
wit

hin
 th

e B
oro

ug
h 

○ 
Co

mm
un

ica
te 

wit
h a

ll b
ill b

oa
rd 

ow
ne

rs 
as

kin
g t

he
m 

no
t 

to 
ad

ve
rtis

e s
trip

tea
se

 pr
em

ise
s i

n t
he

 Bo
rou

gh
 

○ 
All

 ex
ist

ing
 st

rip
tea

se
 pr

em
ise

s a
sk

ing
 th

em
 no

t to
 

ad
ve

rtis
e e

ith
er 

wit
hin

 or
 ou

tsi
de

 th
e B

oro
ug

h 
 

Se
rvi

ce
s M

an
ag

er 
 

  ○ 
Au

g 2
00

8 
 ○ 

Se
pt 

20
08

 
 ○ 

Au
g 2

00
8 

R6
 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il lo
bb

ies
 th

e A
SA

 
in 

ord
er 

to 
pre

ve
nt 

str
ip 

clu
bs

 
fro

m 
ad

ve
rtis

ing
 on

 bi
llb

oa
rds

. 
Th

e 
AS

A 
co

de
 w

ill 
be

 e
xa

mi
ne

d 
to 

as
se

ss
 w

he
the

r 
str

ipt
ea

se
 b

illb
oa

rd 
ad

ve
rtis

ing
 c

om
es

 w
ith

in 
the

re 
rem

it. 
Lo

bb
yin

g w
ill t

he
n t

ak
e p

lac
e 

 Ac
tio

n  
 ○ 

AS
A c

od
e e

xa
mi

ne
d a

nd
 as

se
ss

ed
 

○ 
AS

A l
ob

bie
d i

f a
pp

rop
ria

te 

He
ad

 of
 Tr

ad
ing

 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s M
an

ag
er  

 

      ○ 
Au

g 2
00

8 
○ 

Se
pt 

20
08

 
R7

 
Th

at 
qu

art
erl

y m
ee

tin
gs

 ar
e h

eld
 

be
tw

ee
n o

ffic
ers

 in
 Pl

an
nin

g a
nd

 
Lic

en
sin

g t
o d

isc
us

s a
ny

 
pro

sp
ec

tiv
e a

pp
lica

tio
ns

 th
at 

are
 

or 
wil

l b
e r

ele
va

nt 
to 

bo
th 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts.
 M

ee
tin

gs
 sh

ou
ld 

als
o t

ak
e p

lac
e a

s a
nd

 w
he

n 
po

ten
tia

l is
su

es
 ar

ise
. S

ho
uld

 Th
ere

 is
 a

 s
eri

es
 o

f m
ee

tin
gs

 is
 a

lre
ad

y p
rog

ram
me

d 
for

 
se

nio
r m

an
ag

ers
. 

 Me
eti

ng
s 

ev
ery

 th
ree

 m
on

ths
 w

ou
ld 

no
t b

e 
res

po
ns

ive
 

en
ou

gh
. 

Ap
pli

ca
tio

ns
 f

or 
str

ipt
ea

se
 p

rem
ise

s 
are

 v
ery

 
irre

gu
lar

. I
t i

s 
su

gg
es

ted
 th

at 
me

eti
ng

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d L
ice

ns
ing

 ta
ke

 pl
ac

e t
ak

e p
lac

e w
he

n a
pp

lica
tio

ns
 ar

e 
rec

eiv
ed

.  

Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d –

 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l 
Co

ntr
ol 

 He
ad

 of
 Tr

ad
ing

 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 

        

Page 150



35
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

the
se

 m
ee

tin
gs

 ra
ise

 qu
es

tio
n 

ma
rks

 ov
er 

ce
rta

in 
pre

mi
se

s, 
ap

pli
ca

nts
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 st

ron
gly

 
inf

orm
ed

 th
at 

op
era

tin
g w

ith
ou

t 
bo

th 
a l

ice
ns

e a
nd

 pl
an

nin
g 

pe
rm

iss
ion

 co
uld

 re
su

lt i
n 

pro
se

cu
tio

n. 

 Ac
tio

n 
 ○ 

Qu
art

erl
y m

ee
tin

gs
 ar

ran
ge

d b
etw

ee
n s

en
ior

 m
an

ag
ers

 
fro

m 
Lic

en
sin

g 
an

d 
Pla

nn
ing

 to
 d

isc
us

s 
joi

nt 
iss

ue
s 

wh
ich

 w
ill 

inc
lud

e 
an

y 
iss

ue
 r

ela
tin

g 
to 

str
ipt

ea
se

 
pre

mi
se

s 
○ 

Lic
en

sin
g 

Ma
na

ge
rs 

to 
en

su
re 

the
re 

is 
a 

me
eti

ng
 

be
tw

ee
n 

Lic
en

sin
g 

an
d 

Pla
nn

ing
 O

ffic
ers

 to
 d

isc
us

s 
ne

w 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r p

rem
ise

s w
ish

ing
 to

 ho
ld 

str
ipt

ea
se

 

 Lic
en

sin
g 

Se
rvi

ce
s M

an
ag

er 
 Se

rvi
ce

 H
ea

d –
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
De

cis
ion

s 

   ○ 
Co

mp
let

ed
 

   ○ 
Ju

ne
 20

08
 

R8
 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il m
ak

es
 a 

cle
ar 

(bi
lin

gu
al)

 pu
bli

c s
tat

em
en

t th
at 

it 
do

es
 no

t w
an

t s
trip

 cl
ub

s i
n t

he
 

bo
rou

gh
, in

 or
de

r to
 di

sc
ou

rag
e 

ap
pli

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r s
uc

h p
rem

ise
s.  

Co
mm

en
ts 

fro
m 

Le
ga

l S
erv

ice
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
inc

orp
ora

ted
 

int
o t

he
 bo

dy
 of

 th
e r

ep
ort

.  
 If a

 st
ate

me
nt 

is 
ma

de
 it 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 m
ult

ilin
gu

al.
  

Ac
tio

n  
 ○ 

En
ga

ge
 w

ith
 re

lev
an

t s
tak

eh
old

ers
 a

nd
 d

ete
rm

ine
 w

ho
 

an
d h

ow
 st

ate
me

nt 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 m

ad
e 

○ 
Pu

bli
sh

 st
ate

me
nt 

 He
ad

 of
 Tr

ad
ing

 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s M
an

ag
er  

 

    ○ 
Au

g  
20

08
 

 ○ 
Se

pt 
20

08
 

R9
 

Th
at 

res
ide

nts
 w

ith
in 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

40
m 

rad
ius

 fro
m 

an
y p

rem
ise

s 
tha

t a
re 

ap
ply

ing
 fo

r a
 st

rip
tea

se
 

lice
ns

e (
in 

ke
ep

ing
 w

ith
 th

e s
et 

lim
it f

or 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 fo
r a

ll t
yp

es
 

of 
lice

nc
e a

pp
lica

tio
ns

) a
re 

giv
en

 
de

tai
led

 in
for

ma
tio

n o
f w

ha
t th

ey
 

ne
ed

 to
 do

 sh
ou

ld 
the

y w
ish

 to
 

ma
ke

 re
pre

se
nta

tio
ns

 to
 ob

jec
t. 

Co
mm

en
ts 

fro
m 

Le
ga

l S
erv

ice
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
inc

orp
ora

ted
 

int
o t

he
 bo

dy
 of

 th
e r

ep
ort

.  
 In 

lig
ht 

of 
the

 l
eg

al 
ad

vic
e 

the
 a

cti
vit

y 
fro

m 
thi

s 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
 is

 lin
ke

d t
o R

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 2 
 Ac

tio
n  

 ○ 
De

ve
lop

 an
d i

mp
lem

en
t a

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 pl
an

 to
 ra

ise
      He

ad
 of

 Tr
ad

ing
 

Sta
nd

ard
s /

 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l 
He

alt
h 

       ○ 
Se

pt 
20

08
 

Page 151



36
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

In 
pa

rtic
ula

r, i
t s

ho
uld

 be
 m

ad
e 

cle
ar 

tha
t o

bje
cti

on
s m

us
t b

e 
fra

me
d w

ith
 re

fer
en

ce
 to

 th
e f

ou
r 

Lic
en

sin
g O

bje
cti

ve
s, 

an
d n

ot 
un

de
r a

ny
 ot

he
r a

rgu
me

nts
.  

aw
are

ne
ss

 o
n 

ho
w 

an
d 

wh
en

 s
tak

eh
old

ers
 c

an
 ra

ise
 

iss
ue

s a
bo

ut 
Lic

en
se

d p
rem

ise
s a

nd
 ho

w 
Lic

en
ce

s c
an

 
be

 re
vie

we
d 

 

 Lic
en

sin
g 

Se
rvi

ce
s M

an
ag

er 
 

R1
0  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il c
on

sid
ers

 w
ay

s 
in 

wh
ich

, fo
r s

trip
 cl

ub
s, 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 ca

n b
e u

nd
ert

ak
en

 
on

 a 
wid

er 
sc

ale
 th

an
 th

e c
urr

en
t 

40
m 

rad
ius

.  Co
mm

en
ts 

fro
m 

Le
ga

l S
erv

ice
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
inc

orp
ora

ted
 

int
o t

he
 bo

dy
 of

 th
e r

ep
ort

.  
 So

me
 re

se
arc

h 
is 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 sc
op

e 
the

 a
cti

vit
y r

ela
ted

 to
 

thi
s r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

.  
 Ac

tio
n 

  ○ 
Co

ns
ult

 fu
rth

er 
wit

h L
eg

al 
Se

rvi
ce

s o
n t

his
 is

su
e 

○ 
Be

nc
hm

ark
 o

the
r C

ou
nc

ils 
to 

se
e 

if t
ier

ed
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 
is 

be
ing

 us
ed

 
○ 

Pr
ep

are
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r a

cti
on

 

     He
ad

 of
 Tr

ad
ing

 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s M
an

ag
er  

 

       ○ 
Au

g 2
00

8 
○ 

Oc
t 2

00
8 

 ○ 
No

v 2
00

8 
    

R1
1  

Th
at 

the
 po

ss
ibi

litie
s f

or 
ref

err
al 

to 
the

 ‘s
atu

rat
ion

’ p
oli

cy
 ar

e 
ex

plo
red

 fu
lly,

 to
 ex

am
ine

 
wh

eth
er 

thi
s c

ou
ld 

be
 ut

ilis
ed

 to
 

mi
nim

ise
 th

e n
um

be
r o

f c
lub

s i
n 

the
 bo

rou
gh

.   Co
mm

en
ts 

fro
m 

Le
ga

l S
erv

ice
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
inc

orp
ora

ted
 

int
o t

he
 bo

dy
 of

 th
e r

ep
ort

.  
 Fu

rth
er 

res
ea

rch
 o

n 
thi

s 
ma

tte
r 

is 
req

uir
ed

 a
nd

 t
he

 
ev

ide
nc

e 
, i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 a
nd

 in
tel

lig
en

ce
 fr

om
 th

e 
ac

tiv
itie

s 
rel

ati
ng

 to
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 2,
3,4

 &5
 

 

       

       

Page 152



37
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Ac
tio

n 
 ○ 

Co
ns

ult
 fu

rth
er 

wit
h L

eg
al 

Se
rvi

ce
s o

n t
his

 is
su

e 
○ 

Be
nc

hm
ark

 o
the

r C
ou

nc
ils 

to 
se

e 
if c

um
ula

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct 
ha

s b
ee

n u
se

d t
o l

im
it s

trip
tea

se
 pr

em
ise

s i
s b

ein
g u

se
d 

○ 
Re

vie
w 

ev
ide

nc
e ,

 in
for

ma
tio

n a
nd

 in
tel

lig
en

ce
 fro

m 
the

 
ac

tiv
itie

s r
ela

tin
g t

o r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 2

,3,
4 &

5 
○ 

Pr
ep

are
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r a

cti
on

 

He
ad

 of
 Tr

ad
ing

 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s M
an

ag
er 

 

  ○ 
Au

g 2
00

8 
○ 

Oc
t 2

00
8 

 ○ 
No

v 2
00

8 
 ○ 

Ja
n 2

00
9 

 
R1

2  
Th

at 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 Eq
ua

litie
s 

Te
am

 pe
rfo

rm
s a

n E
QI

A o
n t

he
 

lice
ns

ing
 of

 st
rip

 cl
ub

s f
rom

 th
e 

pe
rsp

ec
tiv

e o
f g

en
de

r, t
o 

es
tab

lish
 ev

ide
nc

e i
n s

up
po

rt o
f a

 
mo

re 
as

se
rtiv

e a
pp

roa
ch

 to
 

lice
ns

ing
 an

d e
xp

lor
e o

the
r 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r le
ga

l c
ha

lle
ng

e 
(se

e r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
 3)

.   Th
e D

ive
rsi

ty 
an

d E
qu

ali
ty 

Te
am

 ha
ve

 ad
vis

ed
: 

 An
 EQ

IA 
wo

uld
 pr

ov
ide

 an
 op

po
rtu

nit
y t

o e
xp

lor
e t

he
 im

pa
ct 

of 
str

ip 
clu

b 
lice

ns
ing

 p
roc

ed
ure

s a
nd

 p
oli

cie
s o

n 
eq

ua
lity

 
tar

ge
t g

rou
ps

. U
nd

er 
the

 E
qu

ali
ty 

Ac
t 2

00
6 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il h
as

 
a 

du
ty 

to 
be

 p
roa

cti
ve

 in
 e

lim
ina

tin
g 

dis
cri

mi
na

tio
n 

an
d 

ha
ras

sm
en

t i
n 

rel
ati

on
 to

 g
en

de
r r

ath
er 

tha
n 

wa
itin

g 
for

 
ind

ivid
ua

ls 
to 

tak
e o

ut 
ha

ras
sm

en
t c

as
es

.   
 A 

me
an

ing
ful

 E
QI

A 
pro

ce
ss

 re
lie

s 
on

 th
e 

co
lle

cti
on

 a
nd

 
an

aly
sis

 of
 ac

cu
rat

e d
ata

 re
lat

ing
 to

 ea
ch

 of
 th

e e
qu

ali
tie

s 
tar

ge
t g

rou
ps

.  
 Fu

rth
er 

res
ea

rch
 o

n 
the

 im
pa

ct 
of 

lice
ns

ed
 st

rip
 cl

ub
s o

n 
va

rio
us

 e
qu

ali
ty 

tar
ge

t 
gro

up
s 

is 
the

ref
ore

 r
eq

uir
ed

. 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
ari

sin
g 

fro
m 

the
 

ac
tiv

itie
s 

rel
ati

ng
 

to 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 

2 
an

d 
3 

wil
l 

su
pp

ort
 

thi
s 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

. 
 

He
ad

 of
 Tr

ad
ing

 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Div

ers
ity

 an
d 

Eq
ua

lity
 

Co
ord

ina
tor

 

                   

Page 153



38
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Ac
tio

n 
 ○ 

A 
EQ

IA 
of 

str
ip 

clu
b 

lice
ns

ing
 b

e 
sc

he
du

led
 in

to 
the

 
CL

C 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 pr

og
ram

me
 fo

r 2
00

8-0
9 

○ 
Re

vie
w 

ev
ide

nc
e ,

 in
for

ma
tio

n a
nd

 in
tel

lig
en

ce
 fro

m 
the

 
ac

tiv
itie

s r
ela

tin
g t

o r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 2

 an
d 3

 
○ 

CL
C 

Lic
en

sin
g 

Te
am

 to
 u

nd
ert

ak
e 

an
 E

QI
A 

wit
h 

the
 

su
pp

ort
 of

 th
e D

ive
rsi

ty 
an

d E
qu

ali
ty 

Te
am

 
 

  Ju
ne

 20
08

 
 Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
 Ma

rch
 20

09
 

  
R1

3  
Th

at 
the

 C
ou

nc
il s

ee
ks

 to
 lo

bb
y 

go
ve

rnm
en

t to
 ch

an
ge

 pr
im

ary
 

leg
isla

tio
n (

as
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 
Lic

en
sin

g A
ct 

20
03

) s
o t

ha
t s

trip
 

clu
bs

 ca
n b

e c
las

sif
ied

 as
 se

x 
en

co
un

ter
 es

tab
lish

me
nts

.   Re
ce

ntl
y t

he
 D

urh
am

 M
P V

ict
ori

a B
lac

km
an

-W
oo

ds
 so

ug
ht 

to 
int

rod
uc

e a
 Pr

iva
te 

Me
mb

ers
 Bi

ll w
hic

h p
rop

os
ed

 
na

tio
na

l le
gis

lat
ion

 to
 de

sig
na

te 
str

ip 
clu

bs
 an

d l
ap

 da
nc

ing
 

ve
nu

es
 as

 se
xu

al 
en

co
un

ter
 es

tab
lish

me
nts

. It
 is

 no
t li

ke
ly 

tha
t th

is 
Bil

l w
ill b

e e
na

cte
d b

ut 
it h

as
 le

d t
o t

he
 G

ov
ern

me
nt 

ini
tia

tin
g a

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 pr

oc
es

s w
ith

 al
l lo

ca
l a

uth
ori

tie
s. 

Th
e M

ini
ste

r re
sp

on
sib

le 
ha

s w
ritt

en
 to

 lo
ca

l a
uth

ori
tie

s 
ou

tlin
ing

 pl
an

s t
o c

on
sid

er 
lim

itin
g t

he
 in

cre
as

e o
f s

trip
tea

se
 

an
d l

ap
 da

nc
ing

 pr
em

ise
s a

nd
 co

ntr
oll

ing
 th

e a
cti

vit
ies

 th
at 

tak
e p

lac
e w

ith
in 

the
m.

 Th
is 

wil
l in

clu
de

 co
ns

ide
rin

g 
wh

eth
er 

or 
no

t la
p d

an
ce

 cl
ub

s s
ho

uld
 be

 cl
as

sif
ied

 as
 "s

ex
 

en
co

un
ter

 es
tab

lish
me

nts
". A

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

is 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 
wil

l b
e g

ive
n a

nd
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 lo
bb

yin
g d

ev
elo

pe
d 

 Ac
tio

n  
 ○ 

Se
ek

 vi
ew

s o
n 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 p

roc
es

s b
ein

g 
ca

rrie
d o

ut 
by

 C
en

tra
l G

ov
ern

me
nt 

○ 
Re

sp
on

d t
o t

he
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

  

He
ad

 of
 Tr

ad
ing

 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s M
an

ag
er  

 

                ○ 
Ju

l 2
00

8 
 ○ 

Au
g 2

00
8 

Page 154



39
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

○ 
Pr

od
uc

e a
nd

 de
live

r a
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 ac
tio

n 
○ 

Se
pt 

20
08

 

R1
4  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il h
os

ts 
a p

an
-

Lo
nd

on
 ev

en
t (w

ith
 th

e s
up

po
rt o

f 
OB

JE
CT

) to
 en

ga
ge

 w
ith

 ot
he

r 
co

mm
un

itie
s a

nd
 ge

t g
rea

ter
 

lev
els

 of
 su

pp
ort

 an
d c

oo
pe

rat
ion

 
in 

the
se

 at
tem

pts
 to

 lo
bb

y 
go

ve
rnm

en
t.  Th

is 
ev

en
t w

ill l
ink

 w
ith

 R
13

 ac
tiv

ity
. 

 Ac
tio

n 
 ○ 

W
ith

 s
tak

eh
old

ers
 p

rod
uc

e 
ob

jec
tiv

es
 a

nd
 s

co
pe

 o
f 

ev
en

t 
○ 

De
live

r e
ve

nt 

He
ad

 of
 Tr

ad
ing

 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s M
an

ag
er  

 

    ○ 
Oc

t 2
00

8 
 ○ 

Fe
b 2

00
9 

 
              

Page 155



40
 

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

5 
Re

sp
on

se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n C
ho

ice
 B
as
ed

 Le
ttin

gs
  

 Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

R1
.Th

at 
res

ea
rch

 is
 un

de
rta

ke
n t

o i
de

nti
fy 

wh
eth

er 
bid

din
g h

ab
its

 ar
e b

as
ed

 on
 po

sit
ive

 
att

rib
ute

s o
r c

on
str

ain
ing

 fa
cto

rs 
an

d t
o 

ide
nti

fy 
the

 ab
ility

 of
 th

e s
ys

tem
 to

 w
ork

 w
ith

 
dif

fer
en

t c
om

mu
nit

y n
ee

ds
 to

 id
en

tify
 ho

w 
far

 C
BL

 pr
om

ote
s o

r o
the

rw
ise

 co
mm

un
ity

 
co

he
sio

n; 
 

 

It i
s p

rop
os

ed
 to

 sp
ec

ify
 th

at 
foc

us
 gr

ou
ps

 ar
e 

he
ld 

wit
h s

up
po

rt a
ge

nc
ies

 an
d g

rou
ps

 as
 pa

rt o
f 

the
 EI

A t
o e

ns
ure

 th
is 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 is
 

im
ple

me
nte

d. 
 Th

e f
oc

us
 gr

ou
ps

 w
ill l

oo
k a

t th
e 

un
de

rly
ing

 re
as

on
s b

eh
ind

 re
sid

en
ts 

bid
din

g 
ch

oic
es

 an
d t

o a
ss

es
s a

ny
 C

om
mu

nit
y C

oh
es

ion
 

im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 ar

isin
g. 

 Th
is 

wil
l lo

ok
 at

 th
e s

ize
, 

typ
e a

nd
 ar

ea
s o

f b
idd

ing
.  A

n a
na

lys
is 

of 
bid

din
g 

pa
tte

rns
 by

 et
hn

icit
y w

ill t
o b

e c
arr

ied
 ou

t. 
 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 Le
ad

 of
fic

er 
Aa

ron
 C

ah
ill, 

Ho
us

ing
 St

rat
eg

y 
Ma

na
ge

r (I
nte

rim
) 

 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 

R2
.Th

at 
a f

ull
 Eq

ua
lity

 Im
pa

ct 
As

se
ss

me
nt 

of 
CB

L i
s u

nd
ert

ak
en

 in
 20

09
/20

10
 in

clu
din

g 
giv

ing
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 to
 im

pa
ct 

on
 co

mm
un

ity
 

co
he

sio
n; 

 

A f
ull

 EI
A w

ill b
e c

arr
ied

 ou
t o

nc
e a

ny
 po

licy
 

ch
an

ge
s a

ris
ing

 fro
m 

the
 O

&S
 re

vie
w 

ha
ve

 be
en

 
as

se
ss

ed
, to

 en
su

re 
po

licy
 pr

op
os

als
 do

 no
t h

av
e 

a n
eg

ati
ve

 im
pa

ct 
on

 an
y g

rou
p. 

 It 
is 

int
en

de
d 

tha
t th

is 
be

 co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 w

ith
 a 

tw
o s

tag
e r

ev
iew

 lo
ok

ing
 at

 th
e c

urr
en

t p
os

itio
n 

an
d p

rop
os

als
 as

 w
ell

 as
 w

he
n p

oli
cy

 pr
op

os
als

 
are

 fir
ml

y d
ev

elo
pe

d, 
an

d l
ink

 th
is 

to 
the

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
the

 ov
era

ll h
ou

sin
g s

tra
teg

y. 
 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

  Le
ad

 of
fic

er 
Aa

ron
 C

ah
ill, 

Ho
us

ing
 St

rat
eg

y 
Ma

na
ge

r (I
nte

rim
) 

 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 

R3
.Th

at 
wo

rk 
is 

de
ve

lop
ed

  to
 ad

dre
ss

 th
e 

iss
ue

 of
 th

e l
ac

k o
f tr

an
sp

are
nc

y i
n d

ec
isio

n 
ma

kin
g t

o i
mp

rov
e c

om
mu

nit
y 

To
 im

pro
ve

 tra
ns

pa
ren

cy
 in

 th
e s

ho
rt t

erm
 ad

ve
rts

 
wil

l c
on

tai
n i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 on
 w

hic
h r

eh
ou

sin
g g

rou
p  

pre
fer

en
ce

 w
ill b

e g
ive

n i
n r

es
pe

ct 
of 

pa
rtic

ula
r 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

Ap
ril 

20
09

. 

Page 156



41
 

 

un
de

rst
an

din
g a

nd
 ex

pe
cta

tio
ns

 of
 C

BL
, 

inc
lud

ing
 co

mm
un

ica
tin

g p
os

itiv
e s

tor
ies

 to
 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
 to

 ad
dre

ss
 pe

rce
pti

on
s o

f 
un

fai
r c

om
mu

nit
y l

ets
, c

ha
ng

ing
 th

e p
oli

cy
 to

 
all

ow
 2 

bid
s o

nly
 pe

r a
pp

lica
nt 

pe
r b

idd
ing

 
cy

cle
, re

pla
cin

g t
he

 co
up

on
 sy

ste
m;

 
 pro

pe
rtie

s. 
Th

is 
wil

l b
e d

on
e i

n a
cc

ord
an

ce
 w

ith
 

the
 ne

w 
Co

de
 of

 G
uid

an
ce

1  w
hic

h s
tat

es
: 

“It 
is 

im
po

rta
nt 

tha
t th

e p
rac

tic
al 

ap
pli

ca
tio

n o
f 

su
ch

 la
be

llin
g s

ho
uld

 be
 op

era
ted

 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h c

rite
ria

 an
d p

oli
cie

s w
hic

h a
re 

se
t o

ut 
cle

arl
y 

in 
the

 au
tho

rity
’s 

all
oc

ati
on

 sc
he

me
, a

nd
 th

e e
ffe

ct 
sh

ou
ld 

no
t b

e d
ire

ctl
y o

r in
dir

ec
tly

 di
sc

rim
ina

tor
y” 

 Pr
op

os
als

 w
ill b

e f
urt

he
r d

ev
elo

pe
d t

o a
dd

res
s 

thi
s r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

, in
clu

din
g r

es
tric

tin
g b

idd
ing

 
an

d r
ep

lac
ing

 co
up

on
s, 

wh
ich

 co
uld

 en
ab

le 
fee

db
ac

k a
t th

e t
im

e o
f b

idd
ing

, a
s w

ell
 as

 
im

pro
vin

g o
the

r fe
ed

ba
ck

 m
ec

ha
nis

ms
.  A

s p
art

 of
 

the
 pr

op
os

als
 an

aly
sis

 of
 us

e o
f c

ou
po

ns
 w

ill b
e 

ca
rrie

d o
ut 

an
d a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
pu

t in
 pl

ac
e w

ith
 th

e 
On

e S
top

 Sh
op

s t
o e

nc
ou

rag
e u

se
 of

 te
lep

ho
ne

 
an

d i
nte

rne
t b

idd
ing

. 
 

(In
ter

im
) 

 Le
ad

 of
fic

er 
Ra

fiq
ul 

Ho
qu

e 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Ho

me
s L

ett
ing

s 
Se

rvi
ce

 M
an

ag
er 

R4
. T

ha
t s

erv
ice

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
ac

tiv
itie

s a
re 

de
ve

lop
ed

 ba
se

d o
n t

he
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 ob

tai
ne

d 
fro

m 
the

 us
ers

 an
d p

rov
ide

rs 
se

rvi
ce

 
im

pro
ve

me
nt 

foc
us

 gr
ou

p w
ith

 pa
rtic

ula
r 

foc
us

 on
 im

pro
vin

g a
cc

es
s f

or 
tho

se
 w

ho
 

ha
ve

 se
ns

ory
 di

sa
bil

itie
s a

nd
 im

pro
vin

g 
cu

sto
me

r u
nd

ers
tan

din
g o

f C
BL

; 
 

Se
rvi

ce
 im

pro
ve

me
nt 

ac
tiv

itie
s w

ill b
e d

ev
elo

pe
d 

to 
ad

dre
ss

 th
is 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

.  T
his

 w
ill i

nc
lud

e 
rev

isio
ns

 to
 th

e c
urr

en
t h

ou
sin

g a
pp

lica
tio

n f
orm

 to
 

be
tte

r id
en

tify
 di

sa
bil

ity
 an

d s
up

po
rt n

ee
ds

. 
 Ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 ar
e a

lso
 be

ing
 pu

t in
 pl

ac
e t

o 
up

gra
de

 th
e H

om
es

ee
ke

rs 
we

bs
ite

, w
hic

h w
ill 

all
ow

 th
e f

on
t s

ize
 to

 be
 ad

jus
ted

 fo
r th

os
e w

ith
 

vis
ua

l im
pa

irm
en

t, a
nd

 ta
lkin

g h
ea

ds
 (b

row
se

 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 Le
ad

 of
fic

er 
Ra

fiq
ul 

Ho
qu

e 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Ho

me
s L

ett
ing

s 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
08

 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

Page 157



42
 

 

alo
ud

) fa
cili

ty.
 

 All
 lit

era
tur

e p
rod

uc
ed

 w
ill c

on
tai

n i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 on

 
se

rvi
ce

s a
va

ila
ble

 fo
r th

os
e w

ho
 ne

ed
 as

sis
tan

ce
 

wit
h b

idd
ing

.  T
his

 w
ill b

e r
ev

iew
ed

 as
 pa

rt o
f th

e 
EIA

. 
    

Se
rvi

ce
 M

an
ag

er 

R5
. T

ha
t L

BT
H 

joi
ns

 th
e E

as
t L

on
do

n L
ett

ing
s 

co
mp

an
y s

ub
jec

t to
 a 

ful
l fe

as
ibi

lity
 st

ud
y o

f 
wh

at 
EL

LC
 ca

n o
ffe

r to
 LB

TH
 re

sid
en

ts;
  

 

LB
TH

 w
ill c

on
su

lt w
ith

 an
d a

gre
e t

he
 sc

op
e o

f th
e 

fea
sib

ility
 st

ud
y w

ith
 ou

r C
om

mo
n H

ou
sin

g 
Re

gis
ter

 pa
rtn

ers
 as

 al
l p

art
ne

rs 
wil

l n
ee

d t
o a

gre
e 

to 
joi

n t
he

 sc
he

me
. 

 It i
s a

lso
 pr

op
os

ed
 to

 ca
rry

 ou
t a

 fu
ll f

ea
sib

ility
 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
to 

inc
lud

e, 
co

st,
 se

rvi
ce

s p
rov

ide
d, 

va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey

, s
taf

fin
g i

mp
lica

tio
ns

 an
d b

es
t 

pra
cti

ce
 an

d m
ak

e r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s t

o t
he

 
Co

un
cil 

an
d C

HR
 pa

rtn
ers

. 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 Le
ad

 of
fic

ers
 

CH
R 

pa
rtn

ers
 

By
 M

arc
h 2

00
9 

R6
. T

ha
t a

 Lo
ca

l L
ett

ing
s P

lan
 is

 ad
op

ted
 fo

r a
ll 

ne
w 

de
ve

lop
me

nts
 of

 20
 un

its
 or

 m
ore

 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

me
s t

o p
rom

ote
 m

ixe
d t

en
ure

, 
mi

xe
d c

om
mu

nit
ies

 an
d s

us
tai

na
ble

 ho
us

ing
 

an
d d

eli
ve

rin
g p

rio
rity

 fo
r a

du
lt c

hil
dre

n o
f 

ex
ist

ing
 so

cia
l te

na
nts

 by
 se

ttin
g a

 sp
ec

ific
 

pro
po

rtio
n f

or 
thi

s g
rou

p; 
 

It i
s p

rop
os

ed
 to

 de
ve

lop
 pr

op
os

als
 fo

r lo
ca

l 
let

tin
gs

 pl
an

s [
for

 la
rge

r d
ev

elo
pm

en
ts]

 w
ith

 
Co

mm
on

 H
ou

sin
g R

eg
ist

er 
pa

rtn
ers

 as
 pa

rt o
f th

e 
pro

po
sa

ls 
for

 po
licy

 ch
an

ge
s a

nd
 as

se
ss

 ho
w 

tra
ns

pa
ren

cy
 an

d p
rio

rity
 w

ill b
e m

et 
in 

thi
s 

co
nte

xt,
 as

 w
ell

 as
 en

su
rin

g d
ec

an
tin

g 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

ca
n c

on
tin

ue
 to

 be
 m

et.
  T

his
 w

ill b
e 

de
ve

lop
ed

 as
 pa

rt o
f th

e o
ve

ral
l h

ou
sin

g s
tra

teg
y. 

An
y p

rop
os

als
 fo

r lo
ca

l le
ttin

gs
 pl

an
s w

ill n
ee

d t
o 

tak
e a

cc
ou

nt 
of 

the
 ne

w 
Co

de
 of

 G
uid

an
ce

 w
hic

h 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 Le
ad

 of
fic

er 
Aa

ron
 C

ah
ill 

Ho
us

ing
 St

rat
eg

y 
Ma

na
ge

r (I
nte

rim
) 

Sa
nd

ra 
Fa

wc
ett

, 

By
 M

arc
h 2

00
9 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

Page 158



43
 

 

sta
tes

: 
 “it 

wil
l n

ot 
us

ua
lly 

be
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 to

 ap
ply

 to
 ap

ply
 

loc
al 

let
tin

gs
 po

lici
es

 to
 m

ore
 th

an
 a 

lim
ite

d p
art

 of
 

a l
oc

al 
au

tho
rity

’s 
sto

ck
 (o

r s
toc

k t
o w

hic
h t

he
 

au
tho

rity
 ha

s n
om

ina
tio

n r
igh

ts)
”2   

 Th
es

e p
rop

os
als

 w
ill n

ee
d t

o b
e s

ub
jec

t to
 fu

ll 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 re
sid

en
ts.

 
 

Ch
air

 of
 th

e 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Ho

us
ing

 Fo
rum

 

R7
. T

ha
t a

n o
pe

n, 
no

n-d
isc

rim
ina

tor
y S

on
s a

nd
 

Da
ug

hte
rs 

po
licy

 be
 co

ns
ide

red
 fo

r a
do

pti
on

 
as

 pa
rt o

f th
e n

ew
 le

ttin
gs

 po
licy

 an
d a

s p
art

 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 af

for
da

ble
 ho

me
s p

oli
cy

;   
 Th

e c
urr

en
t S

on
s &

 D
au

gh
ter

s p
oli

cy
 is

 de
sig

ne
d 

to 
as

sis
t th

os
e h

ou
se

ho
lds

 w
he

re 
ov

erc
row

din
g 

wit
hin

 th
e h

os
t h

ou
se

ho
ld 

is 
mo

st 
ac

ute
. A

ny
 

ex
ten

sio
n o

f th
is 

po
licy

 w
ill n

ee
d t

o c
om

ply
 w

ith
 

the
 ne

w 
Co

de
 of

 G
uid

an
ce

. It
 is

 in
ten

de
d t

ha
t 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r a
 ne

w 
sc

he
me

 w
ill b

e d
ev

elo
pe

d a
im

ed
 

at 
co

mp
lem

en
tin

g s
tra

teg
ies

 to
 re

du
ce

 
ov

erc
row

din
g a

nd
 pr

ev
en

t h
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

. P
oli

cy
 

pro
po

sa
ls 

de
ve

lop
ed

 w
ill n

ee
d t

o b
e s

ub
jec

t to
 

de
tai

led
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 re
sid

en
ts.

 
  

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 Le
ad

 of
fic

er 
Ra

fiq
ul 

Ho
qu

e 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Ho

me
s L

ett
ing

s 
Se

rvi
ce

 M
an

ag
er 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 

R8
. T

ha
t th

e w
ork

 be
tw

ee
n C

hil
dre

n’s
 Se

rvi
ce

s 
an

d D
ev

elo
pm

en
t a

nd
 R

en
ew

al 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
s 

co
nti

nu
e w

ith
 a 

vie
w 

to 
ide

nti
fyi

ng
 ho

us
ing

 
so

lut
ion

s t
ha

t a
cc

om
mo

da
te 

mo
re 

Lo
ok

ed
 

Aft
er 

Ch
ild

ren
. 

    
To

 lia
ise

 w
ith

 h
ou

sin
g 

in 
rel

ati
on

 to
 a

dju
sti

ng
 th

e 
fos

ter
ing

 p
rot

oc
ol 

so
 th

at 
ad

ult
 ch

ild
ren

 of
 fo

ste
r 

ca
rer

s 
ca

n 
be

 p
rio

riti
se

d 
in 

rel
ati

on
 to

 b
e 

be
ing

 
off

ere
d 

the
ir 

ow
n 

ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

. 
 T

his
 i

s 
de

pe
nd

en
t o

n 
the

 a
du

lt 
ch

ild
ren

 a
gre

ein
g 

to 
be

 
reh

ou
se

d. 
 It i

s a
nti

cip
ate

d t
ha

t to
 id

en
tify

 sh
are

d o
wn

ers
hip

 

Ka
mi

ni 
Ra

mb
ell

as
, 

Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d 

Ch
ild

ren
's 

So
cia

l 
Ca

re 
/H

ila
ry 

Bu
ll, 

Se
rvi

ce
 M

an
ag

er 
Re

so
urc

es
  

No
ve

mb
er 

20
08

 
      Ja

nu
ary

 20
09

 

Page 159



44
 

 

wit
h f

os
ter

 ca
rer

s a
nd

 th
e l

oc
al 

au
tho

rity
 is

 lik
ely

 
to 

be
 co

mp
lex

 in
 th

e c
urr

en
t e

co
no

mi
c c

lim
ate

.  
Ho

we
ve

r w
e p

lan
 to

 re
se

arc
h w

ha
t o

the
r lo

ca
l 

au
tho

riti
es

 ar
e d

oin
g i

n t
his

 ar
ea

. 
R9

. T
ha

t a
 re

vie
w 

is 
un

de
rta

ke
n o

f th
e m

ed
ica

l 
as

se
ss

me
nt 

pro
ce

ss
 to

 ad
dre

ss
 co

nc
ern

s o
f 

ac
cu

rac
y a

nd
 qu

ali
ty 

an
d g

ive
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 
to 

be
st 

pra
cti

ce
,  w

ith
 a 

vie
w 

to 
im

pro
vin

g 
the

 tra
ns

pa
ren

cy
 of

 th
e p

roc
es

s, 
ex

ten
din

g 
the

 tim
e f

or 
ap

pe
als

, , 
res

ea
rch

ing
 ot

he
r 

po
ten

tia
l p

rov
ide

rs 
for

 th
e s

erv
ice

, s
am

pli
ng

 
a w

ork
 un

de
rta

ke
n b

y N
ow

 M
ed

ica
l a

nd
 

co
ns

ide
rin

g i
ntr

od
uc

ing
 se

lf a
ss

es
sm

en
ts;

 

It i
s p

rop
os

ed
 to

 un
de

rta
ke

 a 
rev

iew
 of

 th
e 

me
dic

al 
an

d a
pp

ea
l p

roc
es

s a
nd

 id
en

tify
 w

ay
s o

f 
fur

the
r im

pro
vin

g a
cc

ura
cy

 an
d q

ua
lity

 as
 w

ell
 as

 
ex

plo
rin

g a
lte

rna
tiv

e p
rov

ide
rs.

  T
his

 w
ill i

nv
olv

e 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith

 th
e P

CT
 an

d C
HR

 pr
ov

ide
rs 

as
 w

ell
 

as
 re

se
arc

hin
g p

rac
tis

e e
lse

wh
ere

. In
 ad

dit
ion

, 
thi

s w
ou

ld 
inv

olv
e c

on
su

ltin
g s

erv
ice

 us
ers

. 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 Le
ad

 of
fic

er 
Ra

fiq
ul 

Ho
qu

e 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Ho

me
s L

ett
ing

s 
Se

rvi
ce

 M
an

ag
er 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 

R1
0. 

Th
at 

To
we

r H
am

let
s s

ho
uld

 ac
tiv

ely
 lo

bb
y 

DC
LG

 M
ini

ste
rs 

to 
iss

ue
 gu

ida
nc

e a
nd

 if 
ne

ce
ss

ary
 le

gis
lat

ion
, a

llo
win

g l
oc

al 
au

tho
riti

es
 to

 in
tro

du
ce

 th
e w

ait
ing

 tim
e-

ba
se

d a
pp

roa
ch

 to
 le

ttin
gs

.  L
BT

H 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 

pre
pa

red
 to

 ca
mp

aig
n i

n s
up

po
rt o

f th
es

e 
ch

an
ge

s i
n p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

wit
h o

the
r lo

ca
l 

au
tho

riti
es

. 
 

A w
ait

ing
 tim

e a
pp

roa
ch

 w
ou

ld 
bri

ng
 gr

ea
ter

 
tra

ns
pa

ren
cy

 an
d s

im
pli

cit
y t

o t
he

 le
ttin

gs
 sy

ste
m,

 
ho

we
ve

r it
 w

ou
ld 

me
an

 th
at 

the
 po

licy
 w

ou
ld 

be
 

les
s r

es
po

ns
ive

 to
 in

div
idu

al 
ne

ed
s. 

 A 
ch

an
ge

 in
 

leg
isla

tio
n w

ou
ld 

be
 ne

ed
ed

 in
 or

de
r to

 im
ple

me
nt 

a w
ait

ing
 tim

e a
pp

roa
ch

. 
 CL

G 
Gu

ida
nc

e p
ub

lish
ed

 on
 27

th
 Au

gu
st 

20
08

, 
str

es
se

s t
he

 im
po

rta
nc

e o
f L

oc
al 

Au
tho

riti
es

 gi
vin

g 
rea

so
na

ble
 pr

efe
ren

ce
 to

 ho
us

ing
 ne

ed
 in

 
de

cid
ing

 on
 th

eir
 pr

ior
ity

 sc
he

me
s. 

Th
e g

uid
an

ce
 

sta
tes

:  
“It 

is 
rec

om
me

nd
ed

 th
at 

au
tho

riti
es

 ad
op

t a
 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

Page 160



45
 

 

sc
he

me
 w

hic
h p

rio
riti

se
s a

pp
lica

nts
 ac

co
rdi

ng
 to

 
ho

us
ing

 ne
ed

 in
 pl

ac
e o

f a
 sc

he
me

 ba
se

d 
pri

ma
rily

 on
 w

ait
ing

 tim
e.”

3  
 A r

ev
iew

 of
 th

e c
urr

en
t p

rio
rity

 sy
ste

m 
an

d 4
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 G
rou

ps
 w

ill b
e u

nd
ert

ak
en

 w
ith

 th
e 

CH
R 

pa
rtn

ers
 w

ith
in 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

sta
tut

ory
 

fra
me

wo
rk 

wit
h a

 vi
ew

 to
 m

ak
ing

 th
e s

ch
em

e 
ea

sie
r fo

r re
sid

en
ts 

to 
un

de
rst

an
d. 

Page 161



46
 

 

 R1
1. 

Th
at 

a t
ran

sit
ion

al 
pe

rio
d o

f b
etw

ee
n 1

2 
mo

nth
s a

nd
 tw

o y
ea

rs 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 pu

t in
 

pla
ce

 to
 pr

ote
ct 

tho
se

 ho
me

les
s f

am
ilie

s 
alr

ea
dy

 in
 th

e s
ys

tem
 sh

ou
ld 

wa
itin

g-t
im

e 
ba

se
d a

pp
roa

ch
 be

 su
cc

es
sfu

l. 
 

A t
ran

sit
ion

al 
pe

rio
d w

ill b
e i

nc
orp

ora
ted

 in
to 

po
licy

 re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
 ar

isin
g f

rom
 R

es
po

ns
e 

10
 ab

ov
e. 

 
 Ag

ree
 th

at 
in 

the
 ev

en
t a

 w
ait

ing
 tim

e p
oli

cy
 is

 
po

ss
ibl

e, 
a f

urt
he

r re
po

rt w
ill b

e b
rou

gh
t to

 
Ca

bin
et 

to 
pro

po
se

 a 
ch

an
ge

 in
 po

licy
.  

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 
   N/

A 

R1
2. 

Th
at 

tar
ge

ted
 w

ork
 be

 de
ve

lop
ed

 to
 ta

ck
le 

ov
erc

row
din

g, 
inc

lud
ing

 ta
rge

ted
 w

ork
 w

ith
 

un
de

r-o
cc

up
ier

s, 
as

 pa
rt o

f th
is 

wo
rk 

rev
iew

 
the

 C
as

h I
nc

en
tiv

e S
ch

em
e a

nd
 th

e 
fin

an
cia

l in
ce

nti
ve

s f
or 

un
de

r-o
cc

up
ier

s a
s 

to 
en

su
re 

 th
e h

ou
sin

g s
toc

k i
s u

se
d i

n t
he

 
be

st 
wa

y t
o r

ed
uc

e o
ve

rcr
ow

din
g ,

wo
rki

ng
 

wit
h p

art
ne

r R
SL

s t
o d

ev
elo

p a
nd

 fu
nd

 
ini

tia
tiv

es
; 

 

In 
res

po
ns

e t
o t

his
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n w

e a
re 

de
ve

lop
ing

 pr
op

os
als

 in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f th

e 
go

ve
rnm

en
t p

ath
fin

de
r p

roj
ec

t, w
hic

h i
nc

lud
es

 
tar

ge
ted

 w
ork

 w
ith

 un
de

r o
cc

up
ier

s a
nd

 se
ve

rel
y 

ov
erc

row
de

d c
ou

nc
il t

en
an

ts.
  A

 H
ou

sin
g O

pti
on

s 
ap

pro
ac

h t
o i

nc
lud

e a
 pr

iva
te 

se
cto

r te
na

nc
y 

op
tio

n i
s b

ein
g d

ev
elo

pe
d, 

en
ha

nc
ed

 ca
sh

 
inc

en
tiv

es
 to

 un
de

r o
cc

up
ier

s a
nd

 a 
rem

ov
al 

an
d 

pa
ck

ing
 se

rvi
ce

 fo
r v

uln
era

ble
 te

na
nts

.  
 A r

ev
iew

 of
 fin

an
cia

l in
ce

nti
ve

s p
rov

ide
d b

y 
pa

rtn
er 

RS
Ls

 is
 to

 be
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
an

d p
rop

os
als

 
for

 a 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ap

pro
ac

h d
ev

elo
pe

d. 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 Le
ad

 of
fic

er 
Ra

fiq
ul 

Ho
qu

e 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Ho

me
s L

ett
ing

s 
Se

rvi
ce

 M
an

ag
er 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 

R1
3. 

Th
at 

Ov
erv

iew
 an

d S
cru

tin
y C

om
mi

tte
e 

co
nd

uc
t a

 th
rou

gh
 re

vie
w 

of 
ov

erc
row

din
g 

wh
ich

 w
ill a

ss
ist

 th
e C

ou
nc

il in
 de

ve
lop

ing
 

an
 ef

fec
tiv

e O
ve

rcr
ow

din
g S

tra
teg

y, 
po

ten
tia

lly 
inc

lud
ing

 re
se

arc
h i

nto
 th

e 
im

pa
ct 

of 
ov

erc
row

din
g o

n h
ea

lth
 an

d 
ed

uc
ati

on
 an

d u
sin

g t
his

 to
 as

sis
t h

ou
sin

g t
o 

se
cu

re 
fun

din
g t

o r
oll

-ou
t th

e O
ve

rcr
ow

din
g 

Pr
oje

ct 
wit

h a
 vi

ew
 to

 as
sis

tin
g m

ore
 

ov
erc

row
de

d f
am

ilie
s;  

As
 pa

rt o
f 2

00
8/0

9 O
&S

 w
ork

 pr
og

ram
me

, th
e 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us

ing
 re

vie
w 

wil
l a

dd
 va

lue
 to

 th
e 

ov
erc

row
din

g a
ge

nd
a, 

foc
us

ing
 on

 ho
w 

ho
me

ow
ne

rsh
ip 

ca
n a

ss
ist

 in
 re

du
cin

g 
ov

erc
row

din
g. 

Je
bin

 Sy
ed

a, 
Sc

rut
iny

 Po
licy

 
Of

fic
er 

    

Ma
rch

 20
09

 

Page 162



47
 

 

R1
4. 

Th
at 

the
 Le

ttin
gs

 po
licy

 be
 re

vis
ed

 to
 

ref
lec

t th
e c

ha
ng

es
 pr

op
os

ed
 un

de
r th

e 
‘Be

dro
om

 St
an

da
rds

’ 
 

In 
res

po
ns

e t
o t

his
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n, 

we
 w

ill 
de

ve
lop

 pr
op

os
als

 on
 th

e i
ntr

od
uc

tio
n o

f th
e 

be
dro

om
 st

an
da

rd 
an

d c
on

su
lt w

ith
 pa

rtn
ers

.  A
ny

 
po

licy
 ch

an
ge

s a
ris

ing
 fro

m 
thi

s w
ill b

e s
ub

jec
t to

 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 re
sid

en
ts.

 
 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 

R1
5. 

Th
at 

RS
L p

art
ne

rs 
se

ek
 to

 us
e R

igh
t to

 
Ac

qu
ire

 re
ce

ipt
s t

o b
uy

 ba
ck

 pr
op

ert
ies

 
dir

ec
t fr

om
 le

as
eh

old
ers

; T
ha

t ta
rge

ted
 w

ork
 

be
 de

ve
lop

ed
 to

 ta
ck

le 
ov

erc
row

din
g, 

inc
lud

ing
 ta

rge
ted

 w
ork

 w
ith

 un
de

r-
oc

cu
pie

rs 
giv

ing
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 to
 al

loc
ati

ng
 

dir
ec

t le
ts 

sim
ila

r to
 N

ew
ha

m’
s p

oli
cy

. A
s 

pa
rt o

f th
is 

wo
rk 

rev
iew

 th
e C

as
h I

nc
en

tiv
e 

Sc
he

me
 an

d t
he

 fin
an

cia
l in

ce
nti

ve
s f

or 
un

de
r-o

cc
up

ier
s w

ith
 a 

vie
w 

to 
us

ing
 th

e 
sto

ck
 in

 w
ay

s t
o r

ed
uc

e o
ve

rcr
ow

din
g 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ith
 pa

rtn
er 

RS
L t

o d
ev

elo
p a

nd
 

fun
d i

nit
iat

ive
s; 

 

In 
res

po
ns

e t
o t

his
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n w

e w
ill 

co
ns

ult
 w

ith
 R

SL
 pa

rtn
ers

 an
d c

on
tin

ue
 to

 de
ve

lop
 

ou
r p

rop
os

al 
for

 un
de

r o
cc

up
ier

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 di
rec

t 
let

s. 
W

e w
ill c

on
tin

ue
 to

 lo
ok

 at
 w

ay
s t

o a
ttra

ct 
fun

din
g a

nd
 co

ns
ult

 on
 ad

op
tin

g a
 si

ng
le 

po
licy

 
pro

vis
ion

 ac
ros

s t
he

 so
cia

l h
ou

sin
g s

ec
tor

 in
 

res
pe

ct 
of 

fin
an

cia
l in

ce
nti

ve
s f

or 
un

de
r o

cc
up

ier
s 

inc
lud

ing
 pa

rtn
er 

an
d n

on
 pa

rtn
er 

lan
dlo

rds
.   

 An
y p

oli
cy

 pr
op

os
als

 ar
isin

g f
rom

 th
is 

wil
l b

e 
su

bje
ct 

to 
res

ide
nt 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
. 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

     Le
ad

 of
fic

er 
Sa

nd
ra 

Fa
wc

ett
, 

Ch
air

 of
 th

e 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Ho

us
ing

 Fo
rum

 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 

R1
6. 

Th
at 

To
we

r H
am

let
s s

ho
uld

 pr
es

s t
he

 
Ma

yo
r o

f L
on

do
n a

nd
 th

e G
ov

ern
me

nt 
to 

red
uc

e t
he

 pr
op

ort
ion

 of
 le

ttin
gs

 on
 ne

w-
bu

ild
 th

rou
gh

 C
ap

ita
l M

ov
es

 to
 25

 pe
r c

en
t, 

an
d t

o e
qu

ali
se

 th
e n

um
be

rs 
of 

ac
ce

ss
ibl

e 
ho

me
s l

et 
thr

ou
gh

 C
ap

ita
l M

ov
es

.  I
t s

ho
uld

 
als

o i
ns

ist
 th

at 
Ca

pit
al 

Mo
ve

s d
ev

elo
p a

 
mi

nim
um

 st
an

da
rd 

of 
ad

ve
rtis

ing
 of

 th
e 

pro
pe

rtie
s a

llo
ca

ted
 th

rou
gh

 th
e P

an
-

Lo
nd

on
 Sc

he
me

 to
 se

cu
re 

a c
om

mo
n 

sta
nd

ard
 of

 ac
ce

ss
ibi

lity
.  R

es
ide

nts
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 fu

lly 
co

ns
ult

ed
 be

for
e a

 de
cis

ion
 is

 
rea

ch
ed

 w
he

the
r to

 in
tro

du
ce

 th
e s

ch
em

e.  

Th
e C

ou
nc

il w
ill c

on
tin

ue
 to

 w
ork

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t 

To
we

r H
am

let
s m

ax
im

ise
s t

he
 be

ne
fits

 fro
m 

Ca
pit

al 
Mo

ve
s i

nc
lud

ing
 th

e p
rop

ort
ion

 of
 le

ts 
to 

be
 m

ad
e a

va
ila

ble
, a

cc
es

sib
ility

 is
su

es
 an

d 
ad

ve
rtis

ing
 of

 pr
op

ert
ies

. 
 An

y p
oli

cy
 ch

an
ge

s a
ris

ing
 fro

m 
the

 C
ap

ita
l 

Mo
ve

s p
rop

os
als

 w
ill n

ee
ds

 to
 be

 su
bje

ct 
to 

res
ide

nt 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

. 
 Fu

rth
er 

inf
orm

ati
on

 on
 ho

w 
Ca

pit
al 

Mo
ve

s w
ill b

e 
tak

en
 fo

rw
ard

 is
 cu

rre
ntl

y a
wa

ite
d. 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 

N/
A 

Page 163



48
 

 

  R1
7. 

Th
at 

To
we

r H
am

let
s s

ho
uld

 pr
es

s t
he

 
Ma

yo
r o

f L
on

do
n a

nd
 H

ou
sin

g C
orp

ora
tio

n 
to 

ma
ke

 fu
nd

ing
 av

ail
ab

le 
to 

ex
pa

nd
 th

e 
Se

as
ide

 an
d C

ou
ntr

y H
om

es
 Sc

he
me

; 
 

It i
s p

rop
os

ed
 th

at 
if C

ab
ine

t s
up

po
rt t

his
 

pro
po

sa
l, o

ffic
ers

 w
ill c

on
tac

t b
oth

 th
e G

LA
 an

d 
Ho

us
ing

 C
orp

ora
tio

n t
o s

ee
k s

up
po

rt f
or 

an
 

ex
pa

ns
ion

 of
 th

is 
pro

gra
mm

e. 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
08

 

R1
8. 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il s
ho

uld
 in

vit
e o

the
r lo

ca
l 

au
tho

riti
es

 in
 Lo

nd
on

 to
 id

en
tify

 be
st 

pra
cti

ce
 in

 pr
om

oti
ng

 an
d f

ac
ilita

tin
g m

utu
al 

ex
ch

an
ge

s; 
 

In 
res

po
ns

e t
o t

his
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n w

e w
ill s

ee
k 

to 
ide

nti
fy 

be
st 

pra
cti

ce
 in

 Lo
nd

on
 on

 m
utu

al 
ex

ch
an

ge
s a

nd
 ad

op
t th

em
 to

 im
pro

ve
 se

rvi
ce

 
de

live
ry.

  

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 Le
ad

 of
fic

er 
Ra

fiq
ul 

Ho
qu

e 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Ho

me
s L

ett
ing

s 
Se

rvi
ce

 M
an

ag
er 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
08

 

R1
9.T

ha
t th

e C
ou

nc
il s

ho
uld

 un
de

rta
ke

 a 
rev

iew
 of

 Ke
y W

ork
er 

Ho
us

ing
 in

 th
e 

Bo
rou

gh
, s

pe
cif

ica
lly 

loo
kin

g a
t it

s 
aff

ord
ab

ility
 an

d t
he

 pr
ob

lem
s e

xp
eri

en
ce

d 
by

 th
os

e w
ith

 fa
mi

lie
s i

n n
on

-
se

cu
re/

as
su

red
 te

na
nc

ies
; 

 

A r
ev

iew
 of

 ke
y w

ork
er 

ho
us

ing
 w

ill b
e u

nd
ert

ak
en

 
wit

h R
SL

 pa
rtn

ers
.  W

e w
ill a

lso
 ex

plo
re 

the
 

po
ten

tia
l fo

r a
ll k

ey
 w

ork
er 

sc
he

me
s t

o h
av

e a
 

lin
ke

d m
ov

e o
n s

tra
teg

y. 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y 

& D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

(In
ter

im
) 

 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 

R2
0. 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il s
ho

uld
 un

de
rta

ke
 a 

rev
iew

 of
 Sh

elt
ere

d H
ou

sin
g L

ett
ing

s P
oli

cy
 

to 
ma

ke
 su

re 
tha

t th
is 

res
ou

rce
 is

 us
ed

 
eff

ec
tiv

ely
. 

 

Th
is 

wil
l b

e a
ss

es
se

d a
s p

art
 of

 th
e B

es
t V

alu
e 

Re
vie

w 
of 

Sh
elt

ere
d H

ou
sin

g. 
Ja

ck
ie 

Od
un

oy
e, 

He
ad

 of
 St

rat
eg

y 
& D

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
(In

ter
im

) 
 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
08

 

Page 164



49
 

 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
6 

Re
sp

on
se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n Y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le’

s p
art

ici
pa

tio
n i

n s
po

rts
 le

ad
ing

 up
 to

 th
e O

lym
pic

s 
 Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n 

Re
sp

on
se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

R1
. T

ha
t a

 re
vie

w 
is 

un
de

rta
ke

n o
f th

e c
urr

en
t 

pri
cin

g p
oli

cy
 of

 le
isu

re 
an

d p
hy

sic
al 

ac
tiv

itie
s 

an
d v

en
ue

s w
ith

 a 
vie

w 
to:

 
1. 

Re
du

cin
g c

os
ts 

for
 pa

ren
ts 

on
 lo

w 
inc

om
e; 

  
2. 

Re
du

cin
g t

he
 pr

ice
 of

 pr
ov

isio
ns

 fo
r 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
; 

3. 
Fo

rm
ula

tin
g a

 po
licy

 fo
r h

irin
g a

nd
 pr

icin
g 

of 
co

mm
un

ity
 ac

ce
ss

 sp
ort

s f
ac

iliti
es

 an
d 

pu
bli

sh
ing

 th
is;

 
4. 

Gi
vin

g f
ree

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 le
isu

re 
ce

ntr
es

 fo
r 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 w

ho
 ar

e l
oo

ke
d a

fte
r; 

  

1. 
Th

ere
 i

s 
alr

ea
dy

 a
 c

on
ce

ss
ion

ary
 p

ric
ing

 
po

licy
 fo

r p
eo

ple
 o

n 
low

 in
co

me
s 

an
d 

the
ir 

de
pe

nd
an

ts,
 

red
uc

ing
 

pri
cin

g 
fur

the
r 

wil
l 

req
uir

e 
ad

dit
ion

al 
res

ou
rce

s. 
Th

e 
pri

cin
g 

po
licy

 is
 in

 th
e 

30
,00

0 
Le

isu
re 

ce
ntr

e 
gu

ide
 

bo
ok

let
s 

pu
bli

sh
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly 

an
d 

dis
trib

ute
d 

thr
ou

gh
 ou

t th
e b

oro
ug

h. 
 2. 

Th
e 

pri
cin

g 
rev

iew
 g

rou
p 

wil
l c

on
sid

er 
thi

s a
t 

the
 ne

xt 
me

eti
ng

 in
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
8 

    3. 
Th

ere
 is

 a
 s

ch
ed

ule
 o

f c
ha

rge
s 

for
 le

isu
re 

ce
ntr

es
 w

hic
h 

is 
ap

pro
ve

d 
an

d 
pu

bli
sh

ed
 

an
nu

all
y. 

 W
e w

ill r
ev

iew
 th

e p
rog

ram
me

s a
nd

 
us

ag
e o

f L
eis

ure
 F

ac
iliti

es
 in

 or
de

r t
o e

ns
ure

 
ma

xim
um

 ac
ce

ss
ibi

lity
 fo

r c
hil

dre
n a

nd
 ad

ult
s 

wit
hin

 bu
dg

eta
ry 

pro
vis

ion
.  

 4. 
Dis

cu
ss

ion
s 

wil
l 

be
 h

eld
 w

ith
 C

hil
dre

n’s
 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

to 
de

ter
mi

ne
 a

 p
rog

ram
me

 o
f f

ree
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 le
isu

re 
ce

ntr
es

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

ple
 1. 

Mi
ch

ell
e 

Da
vie

s  
Le

isu
re 

Co
ntr

ac
ts 

an
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
Ma

na
ge

r 
   2. 

Mi
ch

ell
e 

Da
vie

s L
eis

ure
 

Co
ntr

ac
ts 

an
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
Ma

na
ge

r 
 3. 

Mi
ch

ell
e 

Da
vie

s L
eis

ure
 

Co
ntr

ac
ts 

an
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
Ma

na
ge

r 
  4 H

ea
d o

f S
po

rt 
an

d P
hy

sic
al 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

1. 
Ap

ril 
20

09
 

       2. 
Ja

n 2
00

9  
     3. 

Ap
ril 

20
09

 
      4.O

cto
be

r 
20

08
  

 

Page 165



50
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

wh
o a

re 
loo

ke
d a

fte
r.  

 5. 
 Fr

ee
 sw

im
mi

ng
 fo

r y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

ag
ed

 16
 an

d 
un

de
r (

fun
de

d 
by

 G
ov

ern
me

nt 
gra

nt)
 w

ill 
be

 
im

ple
me

nte
d f

rom
 1 

Ap
ril 

20
09

 an
d r

un
 fo

r tw
o 

ye
ars

 
 

  5. 
Mi

ch
ell

e 
Da

vie
s L

eis
ure

 
Co

ntr
ac

ts 
an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

    5. 
Ap

ril 
20

09
  

  
R2

. T
ha

t th
e r

es
ult

s o
f th

e Y
ou

ng
 Pe

op
le 

an
d 

the
 O

lym
pic

s S
urv

ey
 is

 us
ed

 to
 in

for
m 

the
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

str
ate

gie
s f

or 
yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 an
d 

sp
ort

s, 
in 

pa
rtic

ula
r th

at 
the

 Bu
ild

ing
 Sc

ho
ols

 fo
r 

the
 Fu

tur
e p

rog
ram

me
 co

ns
ide

rs 
the

 vi
ew

s o
f 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 in

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 a 
va

rie
ty 

of 
sp

ort
s, 

co
ac

hin
g a

nd
 tra

ini
ng

 ba
se

d o
n t

he
 ex

pre
ss

ion
s 

of 
int

ere
st,

 ba
rrie

rs 
an

d e
xp

eri
en

ce
 of

 yo
un

g 
pe

op
le 

in 
sp

ort
s; 

 

Th
e 

res
ult

s 
of 

the
 O

lym
pic

 S
cru

tin
y 

Re
vie

w 
    

  
ha

ve
 al

rea
dy

 in
for

me
d i

nit
ial

 de
sig

ns
 at

 S
t P

au
l’s 

W
ay

 sc
ho

ol 
an

d w
ill 

inf
orm

 B
SF

 pr
og

ram
me

 an
d 

wit
hin

 th
e b

oro
ug

h a
s a

 w
ho

le.
 

An
n S

utc
liff

e, 
Se

rvi
ce

 H
ea

d 
Bu

ild
ing

 Sc
ho

ols
 

for
 th

e F
utu

re 
Pa

ul 
Ma

rtin
dil

l, 
Se

rvi
ce

 H
ea

d 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

Fro
m 

20
08

 
an

d o
ng

oin
g 

to 
20

13
 

R3
. T

ha
t in

ce
nti

ve
s a

re 
int

rod
uc

ed
 (a

cti
vit

ies
 

an
d c

os
ts)

 to
 en

co
ura

ge
 br

ing
ing

 al
on

g  
an

d 
int

rod
uc

ing
 a 

frie
nd

 to
 an

 ac
tiv

ity
 or

 to
 le

isu
re 

ce
ntr

e f
ac

iliti
es

; 
 Op

tio
ns

 
wil

l 
be

 
de

ve
lop

ed
 

an
d 

co
ste

d 
in 

co
nju

nc
tio

n 
wit

h 
the

 
bo

rou
gh

’s 
lei

su
re 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
co

ntr
ac

tor
. 

Mi
ch

ell
e D

av
ies

 
Le

isu
re 

Co
ntr

ac
ts 

an
d P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 

Page 166



51
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

R4
. T

ha
t th

e s
erv

ice
 de

ve
lop

 in
no

va
tiv

e w
ay

s o
f 

en
ga

gin
g y

ou
ng

 gi
rls

 in
 sp

ort
s, 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ith
 

co
mm

un
ity

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
s, 

inc
lud

ing
 fa

ith
 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
, s

ch
oo

ls 
an

d p
are

nts
, ta

kin
g i

n t
o 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 th

e e
xp

res
sio

ns
 of

 in
ter

es
t in

 th
e 

Yo
un

g P
eo

ple
 an

d t
he

 O
lym

pic
s S

urv
ey

; 
 

1. 
De

ve
lop

 a 
ne

w 
pro

gra
mm

e o
f w

om
en

 an
d g

irls
 

sw
im

mi
ng

 
se

ss
ion

s 
fun

de
d 

fro
m 

the
 

su
cc

es
sfu

l 
He

alt
hy

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

Ch
all

en
ge

 
Fu

nd
 bi

d. 
  2. 

W
ork

 w
ith

 T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
to 

co
ns

ult
 

wit
h 

co
mm

un
ity

 
org

an
isa

tio
ns

 
to 

de
ve

lop
 ne

w 
wa

ys
 of

 en
ga

gin
g y

ou
ng

 gi
rls

 in
 

sp
ort

. 

1. 
Mi

ch
ell

e 
Da

vie
s L

eis
ure

 
Co

ntr
ac

ts 
an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 2. 
He

ad
 of

 Sp
ort

 
An

d P
hy

sic
al 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

1. 
Ap

ril 
20

09
 

     2. 
Ma

rch
 

20
09

 

R5
. T

ha
t th

e s
erv

ice
 lo

ok
 at

 w
ay

s t
he

 le
isu

re 
ce

ntr
es

 ca
n b

e e
nh

an
ce

d t
o a

cti
ve

ly 
en

ga
ge

 
an

d i
nc

rea
se

 yo
un

g d
isa

ble
d p

eo
ple

 w
ith

 sp
ort

s 
an

d p
hy

sic
al 

ac
tiv

itie
s l

ea
din

g u
p t

o 2
01

2 
inc

lud
ing

 in
cre

as
ing

 th
e a

va
ila

bil
ity

 of
 di

sa
bil

ity
 

sp
ec

ial
ist

 st
aff

 to
 su

pp
ort

 an
d a

cti
ve

ly 
en

ga
ge

 
yo

un
g d

isa
ble

d p
eo

ple
 in

to 
sp

ort
s, 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ith
 

the
m 

to 
ad

dre
ss

 tra
ns

po
rt b

arr
ier

s; 
  

1. 
Ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 t
o 

be
 u

nd
ert

ak
en

 w
ith

 G
LL

 
reg

ard
ing

 p
ote

nti
al 

to 
tra

in 
sta

ff 
in 

dis
ab

ility
 

sp
ort

s 
qu

ali
fic

ati
on

s, 
an

d 
oth

er 
ide

nti
fie

d 
op

tio
ns

 to
 be

 de
live

red
 by

 M
arc

h 2
01

0. 
  2. 

Dis
ab

led
 sp

ort
s a

nd
 ph

ys
ica

l a
cti

vit
y d

ay
 to

 be
 

org
an

ise
d 

in 
co

nju
nc

tio
n 

wit
h 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s f

or 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 to

 co
inc

ide
 w

ith
 

the
 la

un
ch

 of
 th

e P
ara

lym
pic

s i
n B

eij
ing

.  
   3. 

On
-go

ing
 

pro
gra

mm
e 

of 
dis

ab
ility

 
sp

ort
s 

se
ss

ion
s 

tak
ing

 p
lac

e 
at 

Mi
le 

En
d 

Le
isu

re 
Ce

ntr
e o

n a
 w

ee
kly

 ba
sis

.  
  

1. 
Mi

ch
ell

e 
Da

vie
s L

eis
ure

 
Co

ntr
ac

ts 
an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 2. 
Pa

uli
ne

 D
un

n 
    

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d H

ea
lth

y 
Lif

es
tyl

es
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 3. 
Pa

uli
ne

 D
un

n 
    

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d H

ea
lth

y 
Lif

es
tyl

es
 

1. 
Ma

rch
 

20
10

  
     2. 

Co
mp

let
ed

 
      3. 

on
-go

ing
 

   

Page 167



52
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

 
 

4. 
Sp

ec
ific

 p
ub

lici
ty 

to 
be

 p
rod

uc
ed

 to
 p

ub
lici

se
 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

wit
h d

isa
bil

itie
s 

to 
tak

e p
art

 in
 sp

ort
s. 

 
    

5. 
De

ve
lop

 
a 

ca
len

da
r 

of 
co

mp
eti

tiv
e 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r 
dis

ab
led

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
ple

 (
6 

co
mp

eti
tio

ns
 in

 12
 m

on
ths

). 
    

6. 
Ex

am
ine

 t
he

 e
sta

bli
sh

me
nt 

of 
a 

tra
ns

po
rt 

sc
he

me
 fo

r d
isa

ble
d Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

ple
 to

 ac
ce

ss
 

fac
iliti

es
. 

   7. 
Ad

dre
ss

 
thi

s 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
 

wit
hin

 
the

 
Le

isu
re 

Ce
ntr

e  
an

d P
lay

ing
 Pi

tch
 St

rat
eg

ies
  

 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 4. 
Pa

uli
ne

 D
un

n 
    

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d H

ea
lth

y 
Lif

es
tyl

es
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 5. 
Pa

uli
ne

 D
un

n 
    

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d H

ea
lth

y 
Lif

es
tyl

es
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 6. 
Pa

uli
ne

 D
un

n 
    

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d H

ea
lth

y 
Lif

es
tyl

es
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

7. 
Pa

ul 
Ma

rtin
dil

l 
He

ad
 of

 
Cu

ltu
ral

 
Se

rvi
ce

s 

   4 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
     5 

Co
mp

let
e

d 
      6. 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 
     

 
7. 

 U
nd

erw
ay

 
 

R6
. T

ha
t b

ud
ge

t p
rov

isio
ns

 be
 m

ad
e t

o 
Th

is 
(na

tio
na

l) 
pro

gra
mm

e 
is 

no
t d

es
ign

ed
 fo

r 
N/

A 
N/

A 

Page 168



53
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

ma
ins

tre
am

 Sp
ort

s S
ea

rch
 in

 th
e w

ork
 th

at 
the

 
Co

un
cil 

do
es

, e
xp

lor
ing

 th
e p

ote
nti

al 
to 

rol
l o

ut 
Sp

ort
s S

ea
rch

 to
 sp

ec
ial

 sc
ho

ols
 in

 th
e b

oro
ug

h 
wit

h a
 vi

ew
 to

 ca
ptu

rin
g d

ata
 fo

r d
isa

ble
d y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le;

 
 yo

un
g 

pe
op

le 
wit

h 
dis

ab
iliti

es
. N

RF
 fu

nd
ing

 fo
r 

Sp
ort

s S
ea

rch
 en

de
d M

arc
h 2

00
8 a

nd
 th

e s
erv

ice
 

en
de

d i
n J

uly
 20

08
.  

 

 

R7
. T

ha
t th

e S
po

rts
 an

d P
hy

sic
al 

Ac
tiv

itie
s 

Se
rvi

ce
 se

ek
 to

 in
cre

as
e w

ay
s i

n w
hic

h b
ud

ge
t 

all
oc

ati
on

s c
an

 be
 in

cre
as

ed
 to

 fu
rth

er 
ma

ins
tre

am
 sp

ort
s a

cti
vit

ies
; 

 

Re
vie

w 
of 

co
ntr

ac
t 

to 
tak

e 
pla

ce
 t

o 
ex

plo
re 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r e
ffic

ien
cie

s 
an

d 
rea

llo
ca

tio
n 

of 
res

ou
rce

s. 
Th

e 
rev

iew
 w

ill 
inc

lud
e 

ev
alu

ati
on

 o
f 

all
 e

xte
rna

lly 
fun

de
d 

ini
tia

tiv
es

 f
or 

ch
ild

ren
 to

 
de

ter
mi

ne
 th

e s
uit

ab
ility

 fo
r m

ain
str

ea
m 

fun
din

g. 
 

He
ad

 of
 Sp

ort
 & 

Ph
ys

ica
l A

cti
vit

y 
   

Ma
rch

 20
09

  - 
20

12
 

R8
. T

ha
t a

nn
ua

l b
oro

ug
h-w

ide
 m

ajo
r c

om
mu

nit
y 

ev
en

ts 
are

 or
ga

nis
ed

 in
 w

hic
h y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
pa

rtic
ipa

te 
in 

Ol
ym

pic
 an

d P
ara

lym
pic

 sp
ort

s, 
bu

ild
ing

 ch
am

pio
ns

 to
 pa

rtic
ipa

te 
in 

the
 ev

en
ts 

thr
ou

gh
 sc

ho
ols

 an
d s

po
rts

 pr
og

ram
me

s; 
  

1. 
Cu

rre
nt 

pro
gra

mm
e 

of 
ev

en
ts 

wil
l 

be
 

de
ve

lop
ed

 to
 lin

k t
o O

lym
pic

 th
em

es
.  

2. 
2 

x 
Pa

ral
ym

pic
 s

po
rts

 d
ay

s 
wil

l 
be

 h
eld

 
an

nu
all

y u
nti

l 2
01

2. 
3. 

Th
at 

an
 O

lym
pic

 sp
ort

s p
res

en
ce

 be
 pr

ov
ide

d 
at 

the
 

bo
rou

gh
’s 

ex
ist

ing
 

lar
ge

 
sc

ale
 

co
mm

un
ity

 e
ve

nts
 in

 o
rde

r t
o 

en
ga

ge
 yo

un
g 

pe
op

le 
in 

the
 O

lym
pic

s a
nd

 Pa
ral

ym
pic

s. 

Pa
uli

ne
 D

un
n 

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

He
alt

hy
 Li

fes
tyl

es
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

    

An
nu

al 
pro

gra
mm

e 
sta

rtin
g M

arc
h 

20
09

 

R9
. T

ha
t th

e C
ou

nc
il e

xp
lor

e t
he

 po
ss

ibi
lity

 of
 

ne
go

tia
tin

g f
ree

 tic
ke

ts 
or 

su
bs

ide
d r

ate
 of

 en
try

 
to 

the
 O

lym
pic

s a
nd

 Pa
ral

ym
pic

s f
or 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le,

 pa
rtic

ula
rly

 fo
r d

isa
ble

d y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

to 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e t

he
 Pa

ral
ym

pic
 G

am
es

; 
   

1. 
Th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 O
rga

nis
ing

 C
om

mi
tte

e 
of 

the
 

Ol
ym

pic
 G

am
es

 (L
OC

OG
) h

as
 c

on
firm

ed
 it

s 
po

sit
ion

 th
at 

the
re 

wil
l b

e n
o f

ree
 tic

ke
ts.

  T
he

 
tic

ke
tin

g 
po

licy
 fo

r t
he

 2
01

2 
Ga

me
s 

wil
l b

e 
pu

bli
sh

ed
 

in 
20

11
. 

Th
ere

 
ma

y 
be

 
the

 
op

po
rtu

nit
y 

for
 t

he
 B

oro
ug

h 
to 

blo
ck

 b
uy

 
tic

ke
ts 

to 
ma

ke
 av

ail
ab

le 
at 

dis
co

un
ted

 / 
fre

e 
rat

es
 fo

r 
loc

al 
pe

op
le.

 T
his

 h
as

 b
ud

ge
tar

y 

1. 
Nic

k S
ma

les
 

Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d 

20
12

 
     

1. 
Au

gu
st 

20
11

 
      

Page 169



54
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 w

ill 
be

 c
on

sid
ere

d. 
Lo

ca
l 

res
ide

nt 
pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n 

in 
tes

t e
ve

nts
 w

ill 
als

o 
be

 co
ns

ide
red

.  
 2. 

Th
e 

ma
rat

ho
n 

an
d 

wa
lkin

g 
ev

en
ts 

in 
Vic

tor
ia 

Pa
rk 

wil
l b

e 
fre

e 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of 
the

 
Ga

me
s 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
str

an
d 

of 
the

 T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 20
12

 S
tra

teg
y a

cc
es

s f
or 

all
 se

cti
on

s 
of 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
 w

ill 
be

 co
ns

ide
red

. T
his

 w
ill 

inc
lud

e 
lia

iso
n 

wit
h 

the
 O

lym
pic

 S
ec

uri
ty 

Dir
ec

tor
ate

, O
DA

 an
d L

OC
OG

. 
 

    2. 
Nic

k S
ma

les
 

Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d 

20
12

 
  

     2. 
Au

gu
st 

20
11

 

R1
0. 

Th
at 

an
 ex

ten
siv

e p
ub

lici
ty 

ca
mp

aig
n i

s 
pu

t in
 pl

ac
e t

o p
rom

ote
 po

sit
ive

 im
ag

es
 of

 
yo

un
g d

isa
ble

d p
eo

ple
 ta

kin
g p

art
 in

 sp
ort

s a
s 

pa
rt o

f th
e p

ub
lici

ty 
str

ate
gy

 to
 pr

om
ote

 
Ol

ym
pic

s a
nd

 Pa
ral

ym
pic

s i
n T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
;  

  

A 
de

dic
ate

d 
20

12
 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 
an

d 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

En
ga

ge
me

nt 
Ma

na
ge

r 
is 

be
ing

 
rec

rui
ted

 in
to 

the
 2

01
2 

Un
it 

wit
h 

a 
rem

it 
to 

de
ve

lop
 a

 2
01

2 
Co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 P

lan
 fo

r t
he

 
Bo

rou
gh

 w
hic

h 
wil

l d
ev

elo
p 

ou
r 

ap
pro

ac
h 

for
 

pro
mo

tin
g p

os
itiv

e i
ma

ge
s o

f d
isa

ble
d p

eo
ple

. 
 

Pa
ul 

Ar
mi

tag
e 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 
an

d C
om

mu
nit

y 
En

ga
ge

me
nt 

Ma
na

ge
r –

 20
12

 
Un

it 
 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
08

 

R1
1. 

Th
at 

the
 se

rvi
ce

 fin
d w

ay
s i

n w
hic

h t
he

 
rel

ati
on

sh
ip 

wit
h t

he
 pr

iva
te 

se
cto

r c
an

 be
 

fur
the

r d
ev

elo
pe

d t
o e

nh
an

ce
 th

e f
un

din
g 

av
ail

ab
le 

to 
su

pp
ort

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
’s 

en
ga

ge
me

nt 
in 

sp
ort

s a
nd

 ph
ys

ica
l a

cti
vit

ies
, 

ex
plo

rin
g i

n p
art

icu
lar

 w
ay

s i
n w

hic
h t

he
 Ta

ble
 

Te
nn

is 
for

 Ki
ds

 (T
TK

) m
od

el 
ca

n b
e a

do
pte

d  
to 

en
ga

ge
 th

e p
riv

ate
 se

cto
r to

 fu
nd

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 
sp

ort
s; 

1. 
Ex

plo
rat

ory
 d

isc
us

sio
ns

 t
o 

de
ter

mi
ne

 t
he

 
fea

sib
ility

 of
 de

ve
lop

ing
 lin

ks
 to

 m
ore

 sp
ort

s. 
   2. 

Of
fic

ers
 w

ill 
se

cu
re 

fun
din

g 
fro

m 
Ad

ida
s 

to 
de

ve
lop

 an
 ac

tiv
ity

 zo
ne

 in
 M

ile
 En

d P
ark

. 

1. 
Pa

ul 
Ma

rtin
dil

l 
He

ad
 of

 
Cu

ltu
ral

 
Se

rvi
ce

s  
 2. 

Pa
ul 

Ma
rtin

dil
l 

He
ad

 of
 

Cu
ltu

ral
 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

1. 
Ma

rch
 

20
09

 
    2. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Page 170



55
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

R1
2. 

Th
at 

for
ma

lise
d a

gre
em

en
ts 

as
 pa

rt o
f 

ho
us

ing
 st

oc
k t

ran
sfe

r a
re 

str
en

gth
en

ed
 to

 
se

cu
re 

the
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f s

po
rts

 fa
cili

tie
s b

as
ed

 on
 

a s
tud

y o
f th

e l
oc

al 
yo

uth
 po

pu
lat

ion
, in

clu
din

g 
dis

ab
led

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
, e

xis
tin

g f
ac

iliti
es

 an
d 

pro
jec

ted
 ne

ed
s; 

  

Th
is 

wil
l b

e 
co

ns
ide

red
 in

 re
lat

ion
 to

 a
ny

 fu
tur

e 
sto

ck
 t

ran
sfe

rs,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 t

he
 a

gre
em

en
ts 

are
 

no
rm

all
y l

im
ite

d t
o m

att
ers

 di
rec

tly
 re

lat
ed

 to
 th

e 
pro

vis
ion

 of
 ho

us
ing

. R
eg

ist
ere

d S
oc

ial
 La

nd
lor

ds
 

ha
ve

 
lim

ite
d 

ab
ility

 
to 

pro
vid

e 
co

mm
un

ity
 

fac
iliti

es
. 

 

Pa
ul 

Ev
an

s, 
Dir

ec
tor

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d R

en
ew

al 
  

NA
, T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

Ho
me

s t
he

 
Ar

ms
 Le

ng
th 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

 
is 

no
w 

live
 

an
d s

toc
k 

tra
ns

fer
 is

 no
 

lon
ge

r a
cti

ve
 

R1
3. 

Th
at 

wo
rk 

is 
de

ve
lop

ed
 w

ith
 W

oo
d W

ha
rf 

wit
h a

 vi
ew

 to
 se

cu
rin

g o
pp

ort
un

itie
s f

or 
wa

ter
 

sp
ort

s i
n t

he
 bo

rou
gh

; 
 

Th
is 

wil
l b

e c
on

sid
ere

d i
n t

he
 di

sc
us

sio
ns

 on
 th

e 
co

mm
un

ity
 be

ne
fits

 th
at 

ca
n b

e s
ec

ure
d f

rom
 th

e 
pro

po
se

d W
oo

d W
ha

rf d
ev

elo
pm

en
t. 

Pa
ul 

Ev
an

s, 
Dir

ec
tor

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d R

en
ew

al 
 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
08

 

R1
4. 

Th
at 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 be

 gi
ve

n t
o w

ha
t o

the
r 

ho
st 

bo
rou

gh
s h

av
e b

ee
n i

nv
olv

ed
 in

 to
 

inc
rea

se
 sp

ort
s p

art
icip

ati
on

 w
ith

 a 
vie

w 
to 

ad
op

tin
g w

ha
t w

ork
s w

ell
 in

 in
cre

as
ing

 
pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n, 

an
d t

ha
t a

ffo
rda

ble
 ac

ce
ss

 is
 

ne
go

tia
ted

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
in 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

to 
lei

su
re 

fac
iliti

es
 in

 ot
he

r h
os

t b
oro

ug
hs

, 
pa

rtic
ula

rly
 as

 a 
leg

ac
y o

f th
e O

lym
pic

s a
nd

 to
 

inc
rea

se
 co

nta
ct 

be
tw

ee
n y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
in 

the
 

dif
fer

en
t b

oro
ug

hs
 th

rou
gh

 ev
en

ts 
an

d 
co

mp
eti

tio
ns

; 
 

1. 
W

ith
 t

he
 5

 b
oro

ug
h 

sp
ort

s 
lea

d 
gro

up
,   

de
ve

lop
 a

 5
 b

oro
ug

h 
sp

ort
s 

pla
n 

to 
inc

lud
e 

inc
rea

se
 in

 pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n b
y y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le.
  

  2. 
Co

nti
nu

e 
to 

lob
by

 
Lo

nd
on

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Ag
en

cy
 a

nd
 O

lym
pic

 D
eli

ve
ry 

Au
tho

rity
 fo

r 
ac

ce
ss

  
  

for
 lo

ca
l c

om
mu

nit
y 

to 
leg

ac
y 

fac
iliti

es
. 

 3. 
Re

vie
w 

of 
the

 m
os

t s
uc

ce
ss

ful
 in

itia
tiv

es
 w

ill 
be

 u
nd

ert
ak

en
 a

nd
 id

en
tifi

ca
tio

n 
of 

fun
din

g 
so

urc
es

. 

1. 
He

ad
 of

 Sp
ort

 
An

d P
hy

sic
al 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

 2. 
He

ad
 of

 Sp
ort

 
An

d P
hy

sic
al 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

  3. 
He

ad
 of

 Sp
ort

 
An

d P
hy

sic
al 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

1. 
Ma

rch
 

20
09

 
   2. 

On
go

ing
 

    3. 
Ma

rch
 

20
10

 
R1

5. 
Th

at 
the

 PC
T d

ev
elo

p t
arg

ete
d w

ork
 w

ith
 

1. 
He

alt
hy

 L
ife

sty
les

 T
ea

m 
to 

de
live

r 1
0 

x 
10

 
1.P

au
lin

e D
un

n 
1. 

Se
pt 

20
08

 

Page 171



56
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

tho
se

 w
ho

 ar
e a

t h
ea

lth
 ris

k d
ue

 to
 ob

es
ity

, w
ith

 
pri

ma
ry 

foc
us

 on
 th

os
e w

ho
 ar

e p
art

icu
lar

ly 
ob

es
e a

nd
 m

ay
 la

ck
 co

nfi
de

nc
e t

o e
ng

ag
e i

n 
sp

ort
s a

nd
 ph

ys
ica

l a
cti

vit
ies

; 
  

we
ek

 p
rog

ram
me

s 
pe

r 
ye

ar 
un

til 
20

10
 t

o 
red

uc
e 

ob
es

ity
 in

 yo
un

g 
pe

op
le.

 ( 
BE

ST
 a

nd
 

ME
ND

) 
   2. 

He
alt

hy
 L

ife
sty

les
 T

ea
m 

to 
de

live
r 

1 
x 

10
 

we
ek

 p
rog

ram
me

 p
er 

ye
ar 

un
til 

20
10

 t
o 

red
uc

e 
ob

es
ity

 
in 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le 

wit
h 

dis
ab

iliti
es

. (B
ES

T a
nd

 M
EN

D)
 

  
3. 

Th
e P

CT
 ha

s c
om

mi
ss

ion
ed

 an
d i

s d
ev

elo
pin

g 
a 

ran
ge

 o
f 

tar
ge

ted
 w

ork
 t

o 
en

co
ura

ge
 

ov
erw

eig
ht 

an
d 

ob
es

e 
ch

ild
ren

 a
nd

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le 
to 

en
ga

ge
 i

n 
sp

ort
s 

an
d 

ph
ys

ica
l 

ac
tiv

itie
s. 

 Th
is 

inc
lud

es
: 

 
Es

tab
lish

ed
 pr

og
ram

me
s: 

    
-  

W
ee

kly
 ph

ys
ica

l a
cti

vit
y s

es
sio

ns
 fo

r 
ov

erw
eig

ht 
an

d o
be

se
 ch

ild
ren

 an
d y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le 

inc
lud

ing
 ‘J

un
ior

 Ac
tiv

8’,
’Ac

tiv
8’ 

an
d ‘

Mi
ss

Ac
tiv

8’,
 de

live
red

 by
 PC

T C
hil

d 
Ob

es
ity

 Se
rvi

ce
  

   -
   

LB
TH

 ‘B
ES

T’ 
pro

gra
mm

e (
pa

rt f
un

de
d b

y 
 

PC
T) 

inc
lud

es
 ra

ng
e o

f p
hy

sic
al 

ac
tiv

ity
 

 
se

ss
ion

s f
or 

ov
erw

eig
ht 

an
d o

be
se

 ch
ild

ren
 

 
an

d y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

 

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d H

ea
lth

y 
Lif

es
tyl

es
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 2.P
au

lin
e D

un
n 

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d H

ea
lth

y 
Lif

es
tyl

es
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 3.E
sth

er 
Tre

nc
ha

rd-
Ma

be
re 

– 
As

so
cia

te 
Dir

ec
tor

y o
f 

Pu
bli

c H
ea

lth
 

        4.E
sth

er 

to 
Ma

rch
 

20
10

 
     2. 

Se
pt 

20
08

 
to 

Ma
rch

 
20

10
 

    3. 
Es

tab
lish

e
d  

 
pro

gra
mm

es
 – 

on
go

ing
 

         

Page 172



57
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

4. 
Ne

w 
pro

gra
mm

es
: 

    
-  

Aft
er 

sc
ho

ol 
ph

ys
ica

l a
cti

vit
y s

ch
em

es
 

 
be

ing
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 jo
int

ly 
by

 PC
T &

  
 

LB
TH

) 
-  

Ac
tiv

e p
lay

 an
d s

po
rts

 pr
og

ram
me

s h
av

e 
be

en
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 by
 PC

T f
rom

 To
y 

Ho
us

e L
ibr

ari
es

, P
lay

 As
so

cia
tio

n T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 (P
AT

H)
 an

d E
lite

 Yo
uth

 
 5. 

Th
e P

CT
 w

ill a
lso

 co
mm

iss
ion

 a 
he

alt
h 

pro
mo

tio
n /

 so
cia

l m
ark

eti
ng

 ca
mp

aig
n (

se
e 

R1
6) 

tha
t w

ill s
pe

cif
ica

lly 
ad

dre
ss

 th
e i

ss
ue

 of
 

en
co

ura
gin

g o
ve

rw
eig

ht 
an

d o
be

se
 yo

un
g 

pe
op

le,
 an

d o
the

r g
rou

ps
 w

ith
 lo

we
r 

pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n, 
to 

en
ga

ge
 in

 sp
ort

s a
nd

 ph
ys

ica
l 

ac
tiv

itie
s  

 

Tre
nc

ha
rd-

Ma
be

re 
– 

As
so

cia
te 

Dir
ec

tor
y o

f 
Pu

bli
c H

ea
lth

 
   5.E

sth
er 

Tre
nc

ha
rd-

Ma
be

re 
– 

As
so

cia
te 

Dir
ec

tor
y o

f 
Pu

bli
c H

ea
lth

 
  

    4. 
Im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

  
ne

w 
pro

gra
mm

es
 

co
mm

en
ci

ng
 

Se
pte

mb
e

r / 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
  5. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

    
R1

6. 
Th

at 
the

 PC
T i

n p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
wit

h L
BT

H 
sh

ou
ld 

de
live

r h
ea

lth
 pr

om
oti

on
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e 

Ol
ym

pic
s p

ub
lici

ty 
to 

inc
lud

e m
es

sa
ge

s o
n t

he
 

da
ma

gin
g e

ffe
cts

 of
 dr

ug
s a

nd
 sm

ok
ing

 an
d t

ha
t 

the
 pu

bli
cit

y c
am

pa
ign

 be
 su

pp
ort

ed
 by

 
ce

leb
riti

es
 to

 pr
om

ote
 a 

‘co
ol’

 im
ag

e o
f 

Th
e P

CT
 is

 cu
rre

ntl
y d

raw
ing

 up
 a 

sp
ec

ific
ati

on
 fo

r 
a h

ea
lth

 pr
om

oti
on

 / s
oc

ial
 m

ark
eti

ng
 ca

mp
aig

n t
o 

us
e i

n t
he

 le
ad

 up
 to

 th
e O

lym
pic

s a
nd

 
Pa

ral
ym

pic
s t

o p
rom

ote
 ac

tiv
e a

nd
 he

alt
hy

 
life

sty
les

.  T
his

 w
ill u

se
 im

ag
es

 an
d e

nd
ors

em
en

ts 
fro

m 
sp

ort
s c

ele
bri

tie
s t

o p
rom

ote
 he

alt
hy

 

Es
the

r T
ren

ch
ard

-
Ma

be
re 

– 
As

so
cia

te 
Dir

ec
tor

y o
f 

Pu
bli

c H
ea

lth
 

an
d N

ick
 Sm

ale
s 

Co
nv

en
e 

ste
eri

ng
 

gro
up

 – 
Se

pte
mb

er 
08

 
 

Page 173



58
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

pa
rtic

ipa
tin

g i
n s

po
rts

 at
 lo

ca
l v

en
ue

s. 
   

life
sty

les
 (in

clu
din

g m
es

sa
ge

s a
bo

ut 
sm

ok
ing

 an
d 

su
bs

tan
ce

 m
isu

se
) a

nd
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n i

n l
oc

al 
sp

ort
s 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
.  T

he
 ca

mp
aig

n w
ill t

arg
et 

the
 w

ho
le 

po
pu

lat
ion

 bu
t w

ill i
nc

lud
e m

es
sa

ge
s a

nd
 im

ag
es

 
tar

ge
ted

 at
 ov

erw
eig

ht 
an

d o
be

se
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

, 
dis

ab
led

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 (li

nk
ing

 to
 R

10
) a

nd
 gi

rls
 

as
 gr

ou
ps

 id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 th

e s
cru

tin
y r

ev
iew

 as
 

pa
rtic

ipa
tin

g l
es

s i
n s

po
rts

.  W
e w

ill t
en

de
r fo

r a
 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 / s
oc

ial
 m

ark
eti

ng
 co

mp
an

y t
o 

de
ve

lop
 an

d d
eli

ve
r th

e c
am

pa
ign

 an
d e

sta
bli

sh
 a 

mu
lti-

ag
en

cy
 st

ee
rin

g g
rou

p t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

the
 

ca
mp

aig
n l

ink
s i

nto
 ot

he
r s

po
rts

 an
d h

ea
lth

 
pro

gra
mm

es
 an

d e
ve

nts
. 

 Th
e S

oc
ial

 M
ark

eti
ng

 ca
mp

aig
n w

ill b
e l

ink
ed

 to
 

the
 Bo

rou
gh

’s 
20

12
 C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s P

lan
 w

ith
 

ele
me

nts
 lic

en
se

d t
o u

se
 th

e B
oro

ug
hs

 G
am

es
 

Br
an

d w
hic

h i
s c

urr
en

tly
 be

ing
 Tr

ad
e M

ark
ed

. 
 

Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d 

20
12

 U
nit

 
 

Fin
ali

se
 

sp
ec

ific
ati

on
 

an
d a

dv
ert

ise
 

ten
de

r –
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

08
 

 Aw
ard

 
co

ntr
ac

t 
No

ve
mb

er 
08

 
Co

mp
let

e 
ph

as
e 1

 
(re

se
arc

h a
nd

 
tes

tin
g o

f 
me

ss
ag

es
)  

Ap
ril 

09
 

Ph
as

e 2
 – 

Im
ple

me
nta

ti
on

 of
 

ca
mp

aig
n 

20
09

-12
 

 Tra
de

 M
ark

 
lice

ns
ed

 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
   

Page 174



59
 

 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
7 

Re
sp

on
se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n t
he

 H
os

tel
s S

tra
teg

y  
 Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n 

Re
sp

on
se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

R1
 

Th
at 

the
 Su

pp
ort

ing
 Pe

op
le 

Te
am

 w
ork

 w
ith

 al
l th

e h
os

tel
s 

to 
ex

plo
re 

the
 po

ten
tia

l fo
r 

fur
the

r in
fra

str
uc

tur
e 

im
pro

ve
me

nt.
 Sp

ec
ific

all
y t

he
 

Co
un

cil 
sh

ou
ld 

wo
rk 

wit
h L

oo
k 

Ah
ea

d H
ou

sin
g A

ss
oc

iat
ion

 to
 

de
ve

lop
 pr

op
os

als
 fo

r 
im

pro
vin

g t
he

 Al
dg

ate
 ho

ste
l 

wit
h t

he
 m

ini
mu

m 
po

ss
ibl

e 
los

s o
f b

ed
 sp

ac
es

 an
d 

co
ns

eq
ue

nt 
fun

din
g.  

 

Ke
y s

tag
es

 an
d m

ile
sto

ne
s: 

 
1. 

Dia
log

ue
 a

nd
 m

ee
tin

g 
to 

tak
e 

pla
ce

 
wit

h L
oo

k A
he

ad
 lin

ke
d t

o t
he

 H
ou

sin
g 

Co
rpo

rat
ion

 bi
dd

ing
 ro

un
d 0

8 –
 20

11
.  

2. 
Pu

bli
cis

e 
aim

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 im
pro

ve
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
to 

ho
ste

ls 
se

cto
r 

mo
re 

wid
ely

. 
3. 

Dis
cu

ss
 o

pti
on

s 
an

d 
pri

ori
tis

e 
bid

s 
(if 

no
t p

os
sib

le 
to 

su
bm

it a
ll o

f th
em

 to
 th

e 
Ho

us
ing

 C
orp

ora
tio

n),
 th

rou
gh

 SP
CB

.   
 

(Th
e n

um
be

rs 
in 

thi
s c

olu
mn

 
be

low
 re

fer
 to

 th
e 

sta
ge

s/ 
mi

les
ton

es
 in

 th
e 

res
po

ns
e/ 

co
mm

en
ts 

co
lum

n i
n e

ac
h 

row
).  

1. 
Ju

ly 
(co

mp
let

ed
) 

2. 
Au

gu
st 

 
3. 

  N
ov

em
be

r 

On
go

ing
  

Ini
tia

l d
ial

og
ue

 ha
s t

ak
en

 
pla

ce
 lin

ke
d t

o o
pti

on
s a

s 
pa

rt o
f th

e b
idd

ing
 ro

un
d 

for
 bo

th 
Ho

us
ing

 
Co

rpo
rat

ion
 in

 20
07

 an
d 

the
 ‘P

lac
es

 fo
r C

ha
ng

e’ 
ca

pit
al 

bid
din

g r
ou

nd
.  

 Fu
rth

er 
for

ma
l d

isc
us

sio
ns

 
ha

ve
 ta

ke
n p

lac
e o

ve
r th

e 
las

t 6
 m

on
ths

 an
d 

me
eti

ng
s w

/ L
AH

C,
 

co
ns

ide
rin

g t
he

 op
tio

ns
 fo

r 
the

 fu
tur

e o
f A

ldg
ate

 
Ho

ste
l, l

ink
ed

 to
 fu

rth
er 

op
tio

ns
 an

d c
ha

ng
es

 th
ey

 
are

 ac
tiv

ely
 ex

plo
rin

g a
nd

 
wh

ich
 fo

cu
s o

n d
eli

ve
rin

g 
im

pro
ve

d a
cc

om
mo

da
tio

n 
at 

thi
s o

r o
the

r s
ite

s, 
sh

ou
ld 

the
y b

e i
de

nti
fie

d. 
An

y d
efi

nit
e p

rop
os

als
 or

 
op

tio
ns

 w
ill b

e b
rou

gh
t 

Page 175



60
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

ba
ck

 to
 C

ab
ine

t fo
r 

dis
cu

ss
ion

 an
d a

pp
rov

al 
as

 ap
pro

pri
ate

.  
R2

 
Th

at 
the

 Pr
ov

ide
nc

e R
oa

d 
Ho

us
ing

 As
so

cia
tio

n (
PR

HA
) 

Ha
ck

ne
y R

oa
d s

erv
ice

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 op
en

ed
 up

 to
 ac

hie
ve

 di
rec

t 
loc

al 
ac

ce
ss

 by
 LB

TH
 ba

se
d 

ag
en

cie
s. 

In 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 

PR
HA

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 C

ab
ine

t 
sh

ou
ld 

ma
ke

 re
pre

se
nta

tio
ns

 
to 

DC
LG

 to
 th

is 
eff

ec
t.  

 

Co
mp

let
ed

 an
d L

BT
H 

Ho
me

les
sn

es
s 

se
rvi

ce
s n

ow
 ha

ve
 75

% 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 

va
ca

nc
ies

 at
 H

ac
kn

ey
 R

oa
d (

ag
ree

d 
tog

eth
er 

wit
h c

en
tra

l g
ov

ern
me

nt 
an

d 
PR

HA
). 2

5%
 of

 va
ca

nc
ies

 ar
e f

or 
ou

tre
ac

h 
tea

ms
 w

ho
 ar

ran
ge

 m
ov

e o
n 

ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

.   
 

Au
gu

st 
 

 Se
pte

mb
er 

 
 Oc

tob
er 

 
  

Co
mp

let
ed

.  
LB

TH
 no

w 
ha

ve
 75

% 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 va

ca
nc

ies
 at

 
Ha

ck
ne

y R
oa

d (
ag

ree
d 

tog
eth

er 
wit

h c
en

tra
l 

go
ve

rnm
en

t a
nd

 PR
HA

). 
25

% 
of 

va
ca

nc
ies

 ar
e f

or 
ou

tre
ac

h t
ea

ms
 w

ork
ing

 
wit

h r
ou

gh
 sl

ee
pe

rs,
 

pri
ma

rily
 in

 To
we

r H
am

let
s 

an
d t

he
 C

ity
.   

  
 

R3
 

Th
at 

res
ea

rch
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 

un
de

rta
ke

n t
o u

nd
ers

tan
d t

he
 

pe
rce

pti
on

 an
d c

ult
ura

l is
su

es
 

aff
ec

tin
g B

ME
 re

sid
en

ts 
aro

un
d a

cc
es

sin
g h

os
tel

s 
lea

din
g t

o a
n A

cti
on

 Pl
an

 
be

ing
 de

ve
lop

ed
 to

 im
pro

ve
 

BM
E a

cc
es

s.  
 

Pa
rtia

lly 
co

mp
let

ed
 – 

ini
tia

l d
isc

us
sio

n a
nd

 
co

mm
en

ts 
so

ug
ht 

fro
m 

the
 H

os
tel

s a
nd

 
Sin

gle
 H

om
ele

ss
 Fo

rum
, to

 fe
ed

 in
to 

ho
w 

the
 re

se
arc

h w
ork

 is
 un

de
rta

ke
n, 

wh
ich

 
ha

s n
ow

 ta
ke

n p
lac

e. 
    

 It i
s a

nti
cip

ate
d t

ha
t th

e r
es

ea
rch

er 
wil

l b
e 

in 
po

st 
by

 en
d o

f O
cto

be
r w

ith
 pr

oje
ct 

co
mp

let
ion

 by
 en

d o
f M

arc
h 2

00
8. 

Se
pt 

 
Oc

tob
er 

 
No

ve
mb

er 
On

go
ing

.  
Be

ing
 ta

ke
n f

orw
ard

 as
 

pa
rt o

f a
 sp

ec
ific

 re
se

arc
h 

pro
jec

t in
to 

ne
ed

s a
nd

 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 re

sp
on

se
s, 

wit
hin

 H
os

tel
s, 

tha
t w

ill b
e 

co
mp

let
ed

 in
 M

arc
h 2

00
9. 

R4
 

Th
at 

the
 H

OS
T t

ea
m 

wo
rks

 in
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l a
ge

nc
ies

 
to 

de
live

r a
 m

ore
 jo

ine
d u

p 
se

rvi
ce

s, 
ce

ntr
ed

 on
 de

live
rin

g 

Co
mp

let
ed

 – 
ini

tia
l d

isc
us

sio
n o

f H
OS

T 
op

era
tio

n t
ak

en
 pl

ac
e a

t th
e S

ing
le 

Ho
me

les
s a

nd
 H

os
tel

s f
oru

m,
 us

ing
 in

itia
l 

mo
nit

ori
ng

 da
ta 

(fo
r fi

rst
 6 

mo
nth

s o
f 

Ju
ly 

(co
mp

let
ed

) 
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
08

 
(ba

se
d o

n N
ov

 

Co
mp

let
ed

  
Ini

tia
l d

isc
us

sio
n o

f H
OS

T 
op

era
tio

n t
ak

en
 pl

ac
e a

t 
the

 Si
ng

le 
Ho

me
les

s a
nd

 

Page 176



61
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

a p
ers

on
ali

se
d s

erv
ice

 ta
ilo

red
 

to 
ind

ivid
ua

l c
lie

nts
.   op

era
tio

n).
 N

o m
ajo

r c
on

ce
rns

 ex
pre

ss
ed

, 
alt

ho
ug

h o
ng

oin
g d

eta
ile

d w
ork

 is
 ta

ke
n 

pla
ce

 to
 co

nti
nu

e t
o r

efi
ne

 pr
oc

ed
ure

s a
nd

 
lia

iso
n w

ith
 in

div
idu

al 
se

rvi
ce

s. 
   

07
 H

OS
T s

tar
t 

up
).  

 
Ho

ste
ls 

for
um

, u
sin

g i
nit

ial
 

mo
nit

ori
ng

 da
ta 

(fo
r fi

rst
 9 

mo
nth

s o
f o

pe
rat

ion
 of

 
HO

ST
). H

OS
T s

erv
ice

 
op

era
tin

g e
ffe

cti
ve

ly 
in 

ge
ne

ral
 an

d n
o m

ajo
r 

co
nc

ern
s e

xp
res

se
d, 

alt
ho

ug
h o

ng
oin

g d
eta

ile
d 

wo
rk 

is 
tak

en
 pl

ac
e t

o 
co

nti
nu

e t
o r

efi
ne

 
pro

ce
du

res
 an

d l
iai

so
n 

wit
h i

nd
ivid

ua
l s

erv
ice

s. 
   

R5
 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il s
ho

uld
 

pu
bli

cly
 ba

ck
s t

he
 Fo

ye
r 

Fe
de

rat
ion

’s 
ca

mp
aig

n t
o 

pe
rsu

ad
e t

he
 D

ep
art

me
nt 

of 
W

ork
 & 

Pe
ns

ion
s t

o w
aiv

e t
he

 
16

-ho
ur 

rul
e f

or 
res

ide
nts

 of
 

foy
ers

.   Co
mp

let
ed

 (s
ee

 at
tac

he
d r

es
po

ns
e f

rom
 

DW
P)

.  
Se

pte
mb

er.
  

Co
mp

let
ed

 (s
ee

 at
tac

he
d 

res
po

ns
e f

rom
 D

W
P)

.  

R6
  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il s
ho

uld
 

su
pp

ort
 C

itiz
en

s A
dv

ice
 an

d 
Sh

elt
er’

s c
am

pa
ign

 to
 sc

rap
 

the
 Si

ng
le 

Ro
om

 R
en

t 
Re

str
ict

ion
 an

d S
ha

red
 R

oo
m 

rat
e o

f L
HA

.   Co
mp

let
ed

 – 
as

 ab
ov

e. 
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

 
Co

mp
let

ed
 – 

as
 ab

ov
e. 

 

R7
 

Th
at 

the
 Su

pp
ort

ing
 Pe

op
le 

Co
mp

let
ed

 – 
all

 ho
ste

ls 
ha

ve
 in

itia
l ta

rge
ts 

Se
pte

mb
er 

 
Co

mp
let

ed
.   

Page 177



62
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

Te
am

 de
ve

lop
s i

n p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
wit

h s
erv

ice
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
a 

str
ate

gic
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 w
ork

 w
ith

 
clie

nts
 to

 re
du

ce
 ev

ict
ion

s a
nd

 
ab

an
do

nm
en

ts.
 Th

at 
the

 
res

po
ns

e e
ns

ure
s t

ha
t re

fer
ral

 
an

d a
ss

es
sm

en
t w

ork
 is

 
un

de
rta

ke
n, 

su
pp

ort
 ne

ed
s a

re 
ac

cu
rat

ely
 id

en
tifi

ed
 an

d 
as

se
ss

ed
, th

ere
 is

 so
me

 
ch

oic
e f

or 
clie

nts
 in

 te
rm

s o
f 

ho
ste

ls 
all

oc
ate

d a
nd

 th
at 

ho
ste

l s
taf

f h
av

e d
eta

ile
d p

lan
s 

to 
su

pp
ort

 cl
ien

ts.
   for

 ab
an

do
nm

en
t’s

 an
d e

vic
tio

ns
, a

 ne
w 

wa
y o

f c
oll

ec
tin

g d
ata

 ha
s b

ee
n d

ev
ise

d t
o 

all
ow

 gr
ea

ter
 an

aly
sis

 of
 w

he
re 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 ca

n b
e i

mp
rov

ed
 an

d t
he

 
un

de
rly

ing
 ca

us
es

 of
 un

pla
nn

ed
 m

ov
es

 
an

d a
 ‘g

oo
d p

rac
tic

e’ 
se

mi
na

r h
as

 be
en

 
arr

an
ge

d b
y t

he
 SP

 te
am

 fo
r O

cto
be

r 
20

08
, fo

r th
e w

ho
le 

ho
ste

ls 
se

cto
r.  

 Oc
tob

er 
 

No
ve

mb
er 

 
 Ja

nu
ary

 an
d A

pri
l 

08
 

 Ja
nu

ary
 08

. 
 Se

pte
mb

er 
07

  

All
 ho

ste
ls 

ha
ve

 ta
rge

ts 
to 

red
uc

e a
ba

nd
on

me
nts

 an
d 

ev
ict

ion
s (

70
% 

ge
ne

ral
ly 

is 
the

 ta
rge

t fo
r th

e 
pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 to
tal

 m
ov

es
, 

wh
ich

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 pl
an

ne
d).

 
Als

o a
 ne

w 
wa

y o
f 

co
lle

cti
ng

 da
ta 

ha
s b

ee
n 

de
vis

ed
 to

 al
low

 gr
ea

ter
 

an
aly

sis
 of

 w
he

re 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ca
n b

e 
im

pro
ve

d a
nd

 th
e 

un
de

rly
ing

 ca
us

es
 of

 
un

pla
nn

ed
 m

ov
es

 an
d a

 
‘go

od
 pr

ac
tic

e’ 
se

mi
na

r 
an

d d
isc

us
sio

n e
ve

nt 
wa

s 
arr

an
ge

d b
y t

he
 SP

 te
am

 
in 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
, fo

r th
e 

wh
ole

 ho
ste

ls 
se

cto
r. A

lso
, 

ind
ivid

ua
l h

os
tel

s h
av

e 
be

en
 as

ke
d t

o s
ub

mi
t 

ac
tio

n p
lan

s i
n r

es
po

ns
e t

o 
an

y h
igh

 ra
tes

 of
 

un
pla

nn
ed

 m
ov

es
. 

R8
 

Th
at 

the
 Su

pp
ort

ing
 Pe

op
le 

Te
am

 w
ork

s w
ith

 ho
ste

l 
pro

vid
ers

 to
 ex

plo
re 

the
 

po
ten

tia
l fo

r fu
rth

er 
ex

pa
ns

ion
 Co

mp
let

ed
 – 

aft
er 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ith
 th

e 
Ho

ste
ls 

an
d S

ing
le 

Ho
me

les
s f

oru
m,

 it 
ha

s 
be

en
 ag

ree
d t

o m
ov

e t
ow

ard
 m

ore
 of

 an
 

ind
ivid

ua
lise

d a
pp

roa
ch

; th
at 

is 
pe

op
le 

are
 

As
 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 1
 ab

ov
e. 

 
Co

mp
let

ed
.  

Aft
er 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ith
 th

e 
Ho

ste
ls 

an
d S

ing
le 

Ho
me

les
s f

oru
m,

 it 
ha

s 

Page 178



63
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

of 
se

co
nd

 st
ag

e 
ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
.   as

se
ss

ed
 an

d r
efe

rre
d t

o s
erv

ice
s w

ith
in 

the
 ho

ste
ls 

se
cto

r th
at 

ma
tch

 th
eir

 
pa

rtic
ula

r n
ee

ds
 an

d p
ref

ere
nc

es
 (w

he
re 

po
ss

ibl
e).

  It
 w

as
 ag

ree
d t

ha
t it

 w
as

 m
ore

 
he

lpf
ul 

to 
loo

k a
t h

os
tel

 se
rvi

ce
s a

s b
ein

g 
on

 a 
co

nti
nu

um
, p

rov
idi

ng
 a 

wid
e r

an
ge

 
an

d l
ev

el 
of 

su
pp

ort
, ra

the
r th

an
 

me
ch

an
ist

ica
lly 

div
idi

ng
 pr

oje
cts

 in
to 

firs
t 

an
d s

ec
on

d s
tag

e. 
 

be
en

 ag
ree

d t
o m

ov
e 

tow
ard

 m
ore

 of
 an

 
ind

ivid
ua

lise
d a

pp
roa

ch
; 

tha
t is

 pe
op

le 
are

 
as

se
ss

ed
 an

d r
efe

rre
d t

o 
se

rvi
ce

s w
ith

in 
the

 ho
ste

ls 
se

cto
r th

at 
ma

tch
 th

eir
 

pa
rtic

ula
r n

ee
ds

 an
d 

pre
fer

en
ce

s (
wh

ere
 

po
ss

ibl
e).

  It
 w

as
 ag

ree
d 

tha
t it

 w
as

 m
ore

 he
lpf

ul 
to 

loo
k a

t h
os

tel
 se

rvi
ce

s a
s 

be
ing

 on
 a 

co
nti

nu
um

, 
pro

vid
ing

 a 
wid

e r
an

ge
 an

d 
lev

el 
of 

su
pp

ort
, ra

the
r 

tha
n m

ec
ha

nis
tic

all
y 

div
idi

ng
 pr

oje
cts

 in
to 

firs
t 

an
d s

ec
on

d s
tag

e. 
 

R9
 

Th
at 

the
 Su

pp
ort

ing
 Pe

op
le 

Te
am

 w
ork

 w
ith

 se
rvi

ce
 

pro
vid

ers
 to

 en
su

re 
clie

nts
 ar

e 
no

t fo
rce

d t
o m

ov
e i

nto
 pr

iva
te 

ren
ted

 se
cto

r a
nd

 ar
e 

ad
eq

ua
tel

y p
rep

are
d t

o l
ive

 in
 

pri
va

te 
ren

ted
 ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
, 

inc
lud

ing
 pr

ov
idi

ng
 he

lp 
wit

h 
Re

nt 
De

po
sit

s, 
Ho

us
ing

 
Be

ne
fit 

/ L
oc

al 
Ho

us
ing

 Co
mp

let
ed

 – 
fol

low
ing

 an
 in

itia
l s

ho
rt t

erm
 

pro
jec

t, s
uc

ce
ss

ful
ly 

pil
ote

d a
nd

 le
d b

y 
Pr

ov
ide

nc
e R

ow
 H

ou
sin

g a
nd

 Lo
ok

 Ah
ea

d 
Ho

us
ing

 an
d C

are
, n

o f
ee

db
ac

k h
as

 be
en

 
rec

eiv
ed

 of
 an

yo
ne

 fe
eli

ng
 pr

es
su

red
 to

 
mo

ve
 in

to 
the

 pr
iva

te 
ren

ted
 se

cto
r.  

On
e 

to 
on

e m
ee

tin
gs

 ha
ve

 ta
ke

n p
lac

e b
etw

ee
n 

the
 H

OS
T t

ea
m 

an
d h

os
tel

 se
rvi

ce
s 

(in
clu

din
g d

ire
ct 

co
nta

ct 
wit

h s
erv

ice
 

us
ers

), w
ho

 ha
ve

 of
ten

 re
sp

on
de

d w
ith

 

Au
gu

st 
(co

mp
let

ed
).  

 Ja
nu

ary
 08

.  

Co
mp

let
ed

.  
Fo

llo
win

g a
n i

nit
ial

 sh
ort

 
ter

m 
pro

jec
t, s

uc
ce

ss
ful

ly 
pil

ote
d a

nd
 le

d b
y 

Pr
ov

ide
nc

e R
ow

 H
ou

sin
g 

an
d L

oo
k A

he
ad

 H
ou

sin
g 

an
d C

are
, n

o f
ee

db
ac

k h
as

 
be

en
 re

ce
ive

d o
f a

ny
on

e 
fee

lin
g p

res
su

red
 to

 m
ov

e 
int

o t
he

 pr
iva

te 
ren

ted
 

Page 179



64
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

All
ow

an
ce

, a
nd

 if 
ne

ce
ss

ary
, 

Dis
cre

tio
na

ry 
Ho

us
ing

 
Pa

ym
en

ts 
to 

co
ve

r b
en

efi
t 

sh
ort

fal
ls.

   int
ere

st 
to 

ex
plo

re 
an

y o
pti

on
s a

nd
 su

pp
ort

 
to 

mo
ve

 on
.   

se
cto

r.  
On

e t
o o

ne
 

me
eti

ng
s h

av
e t

ak
en

 pl
ac

e 
be

tw
ee

n t
he

 H
OS

T t
ea

m 
an

d h
os

tel
 se

rvi
ce

s 
(in

clu
din

g d
ire

ct 
co

nta
ct 

wit
h s

erv
ice

 us
ers

), w
ho

 
ha

ve
 of

ten
 re

sp
on

de
d w

ith
 

int
ere

st 
to 

ex
plo

re 
an

y 
op

tio
ns

 an
d s

up
po

rt t
o 

mo
ve

 on
.   

R1
0 

Th
at 

the
 Su

pp
ort

ing
 Pe

op
le 

Te
am

 ex
plo

re 
the

 po
ten

tia
l fo

r 
sp

ec
ific

 flo
ati

ng
 su

pp
ort

 
se

rvi
ce

 be
 m

ad
e a

va
ila

ble
 to

 
clie

nts
 m

ov
ed

 fro
m 

ho
ste

ls 
to 

pri
va

te 
ten

an
cie

s. 
  Co

mp
let

ed
 – 

the
 on

go
ing

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

flo
ati

ng
 su

pp
ort

 se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 dr

aft
 se

rvi
ce

 
sp

ec
ific

ati
on

s f
oll

ow
ing

 th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
rev

iew
 

of 
flo

ati
ng

 su
pp

ort
 se

rvi
ce

s, 
ex

pli
cit

ly 
no

tes
 

tha
t s

erv
ice

s w
ill s

up
po

rt p
eo

ple
 m

ov
ing

 on
 

fro
m 

ho
ste

ls.
   

Ju
ly 

(C
om

ple
ted

)  
 Ju

ly 
(C

om
ple

ted
)  

 Au
gu

st 
(C

om
ple

ted
).  

Co
mp

let
ed

. 
Th

e o
ng

oin
g d

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
of 

flo
ati

ng
 su

pp
ort

 se
rvi

ce
s 

an
d s

erv
ice

 sp
ec

ific
ati

on
s 

of 
the

 m
ain

 flo
ati

ng
 

su
pp

ort
 se

rvi
ce

s, 
ex

pli
cit

ly 
no

te 
tha

t s
erv

ice
s n

ee
d t

o 
su

pp
ort

 pe
op

le 
mo

vin
g o

n 
fro

m 
ho

ste
ls.

   
R1

1 
Th

at 
the

 Li
vin

g W
ell

 C
PA

G 
rev

iew
s t

he
 de

cis
ion

 to
 

wit
hd

raw
 th

e H
HE

LP
 se

rvi
ce

 
fro

m 
 

 h
os

tel
s a

nd
 sp

ec
ific

all
y 

ex
am

ine
s t

he
 ef

fec
tiv

en
es

s o
f 

its
 pr

op
os

ed
 re

pla
ce

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
 in

 re
ac

hin
g h

os
tel

 
res

ide
nts

. F
urt

he
rm

ore
 th

e 

Pa
rtia

lly 
co

mp
let

ed
 – 

co
lle

cti
on

 of
 vi

ew
s 

req
ue

ste
d f

rom
 ho

ste
l p

rov
ide

rs,
 bu

t li
ttle

 
wr

itte
n f

ee
db

ac
k r

ec
eiv

ed
 to

 da
te.

 SP
 te

am
 

to 
rev

isit
 w

ith
 ho

ste
l s

ec
tor

 an
d e

sta
bli

sh
 

an
y a

rea
s w

he
re 

co
ns

tru
cti

ve
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 or

 
su

gg
es

tio
ns

 ca
n b

e p
as

se
d t

o t
he

 EL
MH

 
Fo

un
da

tio
n T

rus
t, o

n f
utu

re 
se

rvi
ce

 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

 in
 th

is 
are

a. 
 

Oc
tob

er 
 

 No
ve

mb
er 

 
 Ja

nu
ary

.  

Co
mp

let
ed

. 
Vie

ws
 co

lle
cte

d f
rom

 th
e 

Ho
ste

ls 
an

d S
ing

le 
Ho

me
les

s f
oru

m 
an

d f
ed

 
ba

ck
 to

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

ma
na

ge
rs 

wit
hin

 LB
TH

/ 
Me

nta
l H

ea
lth

 Fo
un

da
tio

n 
Tru

st.
 So

me
 sl

ipp
ag

e o
n 

tim
es

ca
les

, s
o a

wa
itin

g 

Page 180



65
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
  

Liv
ing

 W
ell

 C
PA

G 
co

ns
ide

rs 
ho

w 
the

 Su
pp

ort
ing

 Pe
op

le 
Pr

og
ram

me
 ca

n b
e 

inc
orp

ora
ted

 in
to 

the
 w

ide
r 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 so
 th

at 
the

y a
re 

co
ns

ult
ed

 an
d i

nv
olv

ed
 ab

ou
t 

im
po

rta
nt 

ch
an

ge
s t

o s
erv

ice
 

de
live

ry 
an

d d
ev

elo
pm

en
t.  

 

res
po

ns
e a

nd
 th

en
 up

da
te 

se
nt 

to 
Ca

bin
et 

as
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

.  

R1
2 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il s
ho

uld
 

ex
am

ine
 th

e p
os

sib
ility

 of
 

inc
rea

sin
g i

ts 
su

pp
ort

 fo
r th

e 
Dr

ug
 Ac

tio
n T

ea
m 

to 
en

su
re 

it 
ha

s t
he

 ca
pa

cit
y t

o p
rov

ide
 

sa
tel

lite
 se

rvi
ce

s i
n l

oc
al 

ho
ste

ls.
   Pa

rtia
lly 

co
mp

let
ed

 – 
mu

lti 
ag

en
cy

 pa
rty

 
co

nv
en

ed
, to

ge
the

r w
ith

 th
e D

AA
T a

nd
 

sp
ec

ific
ati

on
 w

ritt
en

 bu
ild

ing
 on

 co
mm

en
ts 

an
d a

dv
ice

 fro
m 

the
 ho

ste
ls 

se
cto

r, t
o 

co
mm

iss
ion

 a 
res

ea
rch

er 
to 

tak
e f

orw
ard

.  
It i

s a
nti

cip
ate

d t
ha

t th
e r

es
ea

rch
er 

wil
l b

e 
in 

po
st 

by
 en

d o
f O

cto
be

r w
ith

 pr
oje

ct 
co

mp
let

ion
 by

 en
d o

f M
arc

h 2
00

8. 
Ad

dit
ion

all
y, 

ho
ste

ls 
ha

ve
 fo

rm
all

y b
ee

n 
as

ke
d t

o n
oti

fy 
the

 SP
 te

am
 of

 an
y i

ss
ue

s 
of 

co
nc

ern
 or

 ar
ea

s t
o w

ork
 on

 to
ge

the
r 

wit
h D

AA
T a

ge
nc

ies
 an

d t
his

 is
 be

ing
 

tak
en

 th
rou

gh
 th

e D
AA

T p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
gro

up
s. 

  

Oc
tob

er 
 

 No
ve

mb
er 

 Ja
nu

ary
 08

  
 Se

pte
mb

er 
07

  

Pa
rtia

lly 
co

mp
let

ed
.  

Mu
lti 

ag
en

cy
 st

ee
rin

g 
gro

up
 co

nv
en

ed
, to

ge
the

r 
wit

h t
he

 D
AA

T a
nd

 ho
ste

l 
pro

vid
ers

.  R
es

ea
rch

ers
 

en
ga

ge
d a

nd
 in

div
idu

al 
me

eti
ng

s h
eld

 w
ith

 w
ide

 
ran

ge
 of

 st
ak

eh
old

ers
 an

d 
se

cto
r w

ide
 ev

en
t h

eld
 (a

s 
mi

les
ton

es
). F

ina
l re

po
rt 

wil
l b

e c
om

ple
ted

 by
 en

d 
of 

Ma
rch

 20
09

. 
Ad

dit
ion

all
y, 

DA
AT

 ar
e 

ful
ly 

inv
olv

ed
 in

 th
e 

Ho
ste

ls 
an

d S
ing

le 
Ho

me
les

s f
oru

m 
an

d 
att

en
d m

ee
tin

gs
.   

  

Page 181



66
 

 

Ab
bre

via
tio

ns
:  

 SP
  

 
= S

up
po

rtin
g P

eo
ple

  
SP

TM
  

= S
up

po
rtin

g P
eo

ple
 Te

am
 M

an
ag

er 
 

CL
G 

  
= C

om
mu

nit
ies

 an
d L

oc
al 

Go
ve

rnm
en

t (p
ay

 SP
 G

ran
t to

 lo
ca

l a
uth

ori
tie

s a
nd

 de
ter

mi
ne

 th
e r

eg
ula

tio
ns

 un
de

r w
hic

h  
 

 
   S

P o
pe

rat
es

, a
s w

ell
 as

 m
on

ito
rin

g t
he

 pr
og

ram
me

).  
 

SP
CB

  
= S

up
po

rtin
g P

eo
ple

 C
om

mi
ss

ion
ing

 Bo
dy

 (S
PC

B)
, th

e p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
gro

up
 w

hic
h o

ve
rse

es
 an

d h
as

 fo
rm

al 
 

 
 

    
res

po
ns

ibi
lity

 fo
r th

e S
P p

rog
ram

me
 in

 LB
TH

.  I
t is

 ch
air

ed
 by

 Jo
hn

 G
old

up
.   

PR
HA

  
= P

rov
ide

nc
e R

ow
 H

ou
sin

g A
ss

oc
iat

ion
.  

PR
S  

 
= P

riv
ate

 R
en

ted
 Se

cto
r  

EL
MH

CT
 

= E
as

t L
on

do
n M

en
tal

 H
ea

lth
 C

are
 Tr

us
t  

                   

Page 182



67
 

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

8 
Re

sp
on

se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n D
om

es
tic

 Vi
ole

nc
e  

 Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

R1
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il c
on

sid
er 

fur
the

r o
pp

ort
un

itie
s f

or 
im

pro
vin

g t
he

 ab
ility

 of
 

vic
tim

s t
o r

ep
ort

 do
me

sti
c 

vio
len

ce
. F

or 
ex

am
ple

 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e u

se
 of

 th
e 

Co
un

cil’
s i

nte
rne

t, I
-ki

os
ks

 
an

d o
ne

 st
op

 sh
op

s. 
 

Th
is 

pro
gra

mm
e o

f w
ork

 ha
s c

on
tin

ue
d, 

wit
h n

ew
 do

me
sti

c v
iol

en
ce

 aw
are

ne
ss

 
ma

ter
ial

s l
au

nc
he

d i
n N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
7 

an
d a

 co
mp

let
e r

ev
isio

n o
f th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 
we

bs
ite

 in
for

ma
tio

n o
n d

om
es

tic
 

vio
len

ce
. T

he
 D

V T
ea

m 
is 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ith
 

ad
ve

rtis
ing

 ag
en

cy
 AM

V B
BD

O 
to 

pro
du

ce
 a 

sh
ort

 ci
ne

ma
 ad

ve
rtis

em
en

t 
rai

sin
g a

wa
ren

es
s o

f th
e s

eri
ou

sn
es

s o
f 

do
me

sti
c v

iol
en

ce
, a

nd
 ha

s r
ec

en
tly

 
tak

en
 ca

mp
aig

n m
ate

ria
ls 

on
 to

 th
e 

str
ee

t w
ith

 a 
va

len
tin

e’s
 da

y c
am

pa
ign

 
rep

ort
ed

 in
 Ea

st 
En

d L
ife

. 
 Ou

tre
ac

h s
tal

ls 
at 

co
mm

un
ity

 ev
en

ts 
an

d 
fes

tiv
als

 co
nti

nu
es

, w
ith

 th
e D

V t
ea

m 
ha

vin
g a

 pr
es

en
ce

 at
 20

 ev
en

ts 
so

 fa
r 

thi
s y

ea
r –

 re
ac

hin
g o

ve
r 2

,00
0 

me
mb

ers
 of

 th
e p

ub
lic.

 
 Th

e W
arr

ior
 W

om
en

 ho
list

ic 
pe

rso
na

l 
sa

fet
y p

rog
ram

me
 ha

s b
ee

n s
uc

ce
ss

ful
 

in 
en

ga
gin

g w
om

en
 fro

m 
mi

gra
nt,

 
ref

ug
es

 an
d h

om
ele

ss
 co

mm
un

itie
s, 

as
 

we
ll a

s w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 yo

un
g w

om
en

 an
d 

wo
me

n i
n r

efu
ge

s. 

Ma
rch

 20
07

 
Th

e D
om

es
tic

 Vi
ole

nc
e t

ea
m 

ha
s 

co
nti

nu
ed

 th
e p

rog
ram

me
 of

 
co

mm
un

ity
 ou

tre
ac

h i
n p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

wit
h 

me
mb

ers
 of

 th
e D

V F
oru

m 
an

d R
HI

AF
. 

So
 fa

r in
 20

08
-09

 26
 ou

tre
ac

h s
tal

l 
sh

av
e b

ee
n h

eld
 at

 co
mm

un
ity

 
fes

tiv
als

, e
ve

nts
 an

d v
en

ue
s, 

rea
ch

ing
 

ov
er 

6,0
00

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 pu
bli

c. 
 

 A n
ew

 bo
ok

let
 – 

Do
me

sti
c V

iol
en

ce
. 

Ge
t h

elp
. G

et 
Sa

fe.
 W

as
 pu

bli
sh

ed
 in

 
No

ve
mb

er 
– i

t is
 av

ail
ab

le 
in 

En
gli

sh
, 

Be
ng

ali
 an

d S
om

ali
 w

ith
 ot

he
r 

lan
gu

ag
es

 av
ail

ab
le 

on
 re

qu
es

t.  
 Tra

ini
ng

 ha
s b

ee
n p

rov
ide

d t
o s

taf
f in

 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 C
us

tom
er 

Co
nta

ct 
ce

ntr
e 

an
d O

ne
 St

op
 Sh

op
s t

o e
na

ble
 th

em
 to

 
ide

nti
fy 

DV
 an

d p
rov

ide
 ba

sic
 

sig
np

os
tin

g t
o a

pp
rop

ria
te 

se
rvi

ce
s. 

 12
 Th

ird
 Pa

rty
 R

ep
ort

ing
 si

tes
 ha

ve
 

be
en

 es
tab

lish
ed

 ac
ros

s t
he

 bo
rou

gh
 – 

the
se

 si
tes

  p
rov

ide
 vi

cti
ms

 w
ith

 an
 

ad
dit

ion
al 

wa
y t

o r
ep

ort
 do

me
sti

c 
vio

len
ce

 an
d h

ate
 cr

im
es

. 

Page 183



68
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

  
R2

 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il s

ho
uld

 
reg

ula
rly

 as
se

ss
 th

at 
the

 
ba

lan
ce

 of
 se

rvi
ce

s 
pro

vid
ed

 m
atc

he
s t

he
 

pro
file

 of
 vi

cti
ms

 of
 

do
me

sti
c v

iol
en

ce
. T

his
 w

ill 
en

su
re 

tho
se

 of
 di

ffe
ren

t 
ge

nd
er,

 et
hn

icit
y a

nd
 ag

e 
are

 gi
ve

n t
he

 he
lp 

the
y 

ne
ed

. 

Th
e p

rof
ile

 of
 vi

cti
ms

 co
mi

ng
 to

 th
e 

att
en

tio
n o

f th
e D

V T
ea

m 
fro

m 
1/0

4/0
7 –

 
18

/02
/08

 w
as

: 
 Nu

mb
er 

of 
ca

se
s: 

58
0  

 Ge
nd

er:
 

54
8 f

em
ale

 vi
cti

ms
 (9

4%
) 

32
 m

ale
 vi

cti
ms

 (6
%)

 
 Eth

nic
ity

: 
As

ian
 28

7 (
49

%)
 

W
hit

e 1
93

 (3
3%

) 
Bla

ck
 52

 (9
%)

 
Ot

he
r 2

3 (
4%

) 
No

t g
ive

n (
3%

) 
So

ma
li 5

 (1
%)

 
 Dis

ab
ility

: 
Ye

s 3
9 (

7%
) 

No
 54

1 (
93

%)
 

 Ag
e r

an
ge

:  
u1

9 (
28

)  –
 65

+ (
11

)  
lar

ge
st 

ag
e g

rou
p 2

6-3
4 y

rs 
(21

9) 
(37

%)
 

La
ng

ua
ge

 su
pp

ort
 ne

ed
ed

: 

Ma
rch

 20
07

 
All

 m
ain

 D
V s

erv
ice

s h
av

e s
ys

tem
s i

n 
pla

ce
 to

 m
on

ito
r g

en
de

r, e
thn

icit
y a

nd
 

ag
e o

f v
ict

im
s. 

Th
e p

rof
ile

 of
 th

os
e 

ac
ce

ss
ing

 se
rvi

ce
s r

em
ain

s c
on

sis
ten

t, 
alt

ho
ug

h t
he

re 
ha

s b
ee

n a
 sm

all
 

inc
rea

se
 in

 vi
cti

ms
 fro

m 
a r

an
ge

 of
 

“E
uro

pe
an

” b
ac

kg
rou

nd
s a

pp
roa

ch
ing

 
se

rvi
ce

s. 
In 

20
08

/9 
we

 ha
ve

 fo
rm

ali
se

d a
n 

ag
ree

me
nt 

wit
h V

ict
im

 Su
pp

ort
 to

 
pro

vid
e s

up
po

rt t
o m

ale
 vi

cti
ms

 an
d 

vic
tim

s i
n s

am
e s

ex
 re

lat
ion

sh
ips

 vi
a 

the
ir s

pe
cia

list
 LG

BT
 ha

te 
cri

me
 w

ork
er 

wh
o h

as
 re

ce
ive

d s
pe

cia
list

 D
V t

rai
nin

g 
to 

as
sis

t in
 th

is 
wo

rk 
– t

his
 m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
les

 vi
cti

ms
 ha

ve
 th

e o
pti

on
 to

 sp
ea

k 
wit

h a
 m

ale
 w

ork
er 

if t
he

y p
ref

er.
 

 Th
e D

V1
 fo

rm
 ha

s b
ee

n a
me

nd
ed

 to
 

inc
lud

e i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 ab

ou
t th

e v
ict

im
’s 

fai
th.

 

Page 184



69
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

Ye
s: 

12
6 (

22
%)

 
No

: 4
54

 (7
8%

) 
 Th

e n
um

be
r o

f c
as

es
 co

mi
ng

 to
 th

e D
V 

tea
m’

s a
tte

nti
on

 ha
s i

nc
rea

se
d, 

bu
t th

e 
pro

file
 of

 se
rvi

ce
 us

ers
 re

ma
ins

 qu
ite

 
co

ns
ist

en
t, w

ith
 a 

sm
all

 nu
mb

er 
of 

ma
le 

vic
tim

s s
ee

kin
g h

elp
, a

 sl
igh

t in
cre

as
e i

n 
the

 nu
mb

ers
 of

 di
sa

ble
d v

ict
im

s, 
an

d a
 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

pro
po

rtio
n o

f v
ict

im
s r

eq
uir

ing
 

lan
gu

ag
e s

up
po

rt. 
Th

is 
su

gg
es

ts 
tha

t th
e 

Co
un

cil’
s w

ork
 to

 re
ac

h m
igr

an
t w

om
en

, 
in 

pa
rtic

ula
r, i

s p
rov

ing
 su

cc
es

sfu
l. 

R3
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 C

orp
ora

te 
Po

licy
 on

 D
om

es
tic

 
Vio

len
ce

 be
 re

vis
ed

 an
d 

up
da

ted
 to

 re
fle

ct 
ch

an
ge

s 
na

tio
na

lly,
 ac

ros
s L

on
do

n 
an

d l
oc

all
y t

o d
om

es
tic

 
vio

len
ce

.  
 

Th
is 

ha
s p

rov
ed

 di
ffic

ult
 to

 pr
og

res
s d

ue
 

to 
the

 ra
pid

 pa
ce

 of
 ch

an
ge

 in
 do

me
sti

c 
vio

len
ce

 po
licy

 na
tio

na
lly 

an
d i

n L
on

do
n, 

co
mb

ine
d w

ith
 ke

y s
taf

f c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
DV

 Te
am

. F
or 

ex
am

ple
, n

ew
 Al

l L
on

do
n 

pro
ce

du
res

 on
 sa

feg
ua

rdi
ng

 ch
ild

ren
 at

 
ris

k d
ue

 to
 D

V w
ere

 du
e t

o b
e p

ub
lish

ed
 

in 
No

ve
mb

er 
20

07
, b

ut 
the

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 

pe
rio

d w
as

 ex
ten

de
d a

nd
 a 

ne
w 

pu
bli

ca
tio

n d
ate

 ha
s n

ot 
be

en
 se

t s
o f

ar.
 

All
 ne

w 
inf

orm
ati

on
 an

d t
rai

nin
g 

ma
ter

ial
s h

av
e b

ee
n u

pd
ate

d i
n l

ine
 w

ith
 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

go
ve

rnm
en

t d
efi

nit
ion

 of
 D

V. 
 

In 
Ma

y 2
00

7 t
he

 D
V F

oru
m 

lau
nc

he
d 

ne
w 

mu
lti-

ag
en

cy
 gu

ida
nc

e o
n 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
06

 
All

 pu
bli

c i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 m

ate
ria

ls,
 po

licy
 

an
d p

rac
tic

e g
uid

eli
ne

s h
av

e n
ow

 be
en

 
up

da
ted

 to
 re

fle
ct 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

go
ve

rnm
en

t d
efi

nit
ion

 on
 do

me
sti

c 
vio

len
ce

. 
Th

e g
ov

ern
me

nt 
an

d t
he

 M
ay

or 
of 

Lo
nd

on
 ar

e b
oth

 cu
rre

ntl
y d

ev
elo

pin
g 

Vio
len

ce
 Ag

ain
st 

W
om

en
 st

rat
eg

ies
, 

an
d i

t is
 lik

ely
 th

at 
LB

TH
 w

ill b
e 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o p
ull

 to
ge

the
r a

ll w
ork

 on
 

vio
len

ce
 ag

ain
st 

wo
me

n, 
inc

lud
ing

 
do

me
sti

c v
iol

en
ce

, in
to 

a v
iol

en
ce

 
ag

ain
st 

wo
me

n s
tra

teg
y i

n 2
00

9-1
0. 

Page 185



70
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

res
po

nd
ing

 to
 vi

cti
ms

 of
 D

V w
ho

 ha
ve

 
no

 re
co

urs
e t

o p
ub

lic 
fun

ds
 (s

ub
jec

t to
 

im
mi

gra
tio

n c
on

tro
l). 

Th
is 

ad
ds

 to
 th

e  
wid

e r
an

ge
 of

 lo
ca

l p
oli

cy
 an

d p
rac

tic
e 

gu
ida

nc
e o

n D
V i

ss
ue

s w
hic

h i
nc

lud
es

 
gu

ide
lin

es
 fo

r s
ch

oo
ls 

on
 re

sp
on

din
g t

o 
DV

 (c
ite

d a
s a

n e
xa

mp
le 

of 
be

st 
pra

cti
ce

 
by

 th
e L

oc
al 

Go
ve

rnm
en

t A
ss

oc
iat

ion
) 

an
d g

uid
eli

ne
s f

or 
Ho

us
ing

 St
aff

. 
 

R4
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 C

orp
ora

te 
Po

licy
 be

 de
ve

lop
ed

 in
 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ith
 th

e 
Do

me
sti

c V
iol

en
ce

 Fo
rum

 
an

d t
he

 Li
vin

g S
afe

ly 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Pl

an
 Ac

tio
n 

Gr
ou

p. 
 

Se
e a

bo
ve

 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

06
 

Se
e a

bo
ve

 

R5
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 de

fin
itio

n o
f 

do
me

sti
c v

iol
en

ce
 re

fle
cts

 
the

 na
tio

na
l d

efi
nit

ion
 of

 
do

me
sti

c v
iol

en
ce

. 
 

Se
e a

bo
ve

 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

06
 

Se
e a

bo
ve

  

R6
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il c
on

sid
er 

fur
the

r h
ow

 it 
ca

n i
mp

rov
e 

an
d m

on
ito

r th
e c

on
sis

ten
cy

 
of 

the
 re

sp
on

se
 gi

ve
n t

o 
do

me
sti

c v
iol

en
ce

 vi
cti

ms
.  

Sy
ste

ma
tic

 ap
pro

ac
he

s t
o c

us
tom

er 
fee

db
ac

k h
av

e n
ow

 be
en

 em
be

dd
ed

 
wit

hin
 th

e S
an

ctu
ary

 pr
oje

ct,
 w

ith
 se

rvi
ce

 
us

ers
 in

vit
ed

 to
 gi

ve
 st

ruc
tur

ed
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 

3 m
on

ths
 af

ter
 th

e w
ork

 ha
s b

ee
n 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
06

 
Th

e D
V T

ea
m 

co
nti

nu
es

 to
 un

de
rta

ke
 

fol
low

 up
 ca

lls 
to 

a s
am

ple
 of

 vi
cti

ms
 

wh
o h

av
e b

ee
n r

efe
rre

d v
ia 

the
 D

V1
 

sy
ste

m.
 A 

rep
ort

 ha
s b

ee
n p

rod
uc

ed
 

de
tai

lin
g t

he
ir f

ee
db

ac
k a

bo
ut 

the
ir 

Page 186



71
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

Th
is 

sh
ou

ld 
als

o b
e 

dis
cu

ss
ed

 th
rou

gh
 th

e 
Vio

len
t C

rim
e A

cti
on

 G
rou

p. 
 

co
mp

let
ed

. T
he

 D
V t

ea
m 

is 
pil

oti
ng

 a 
sp

ot 
ch

ec
k p

roc
es

s, 
ma

kin
g f

oll
ow

 up
 

ca
lls 

to 
a s

ma
ll s

am
ple

 of
 vi

cti
ms

 w
ho

se
 

ca
se

s h
av

e b
ee

n r
efe

rre
d v

ia 
the

 D
V1

 
pro

ce
ss

. T
his

 is
 pr

ov
idi

ng
 us

efu
l 

inf
orm

ati
on

 on
 se

rvi
ce

 us
ers

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of 

DV
 se

rvi
ce

s. 
Fe

ed
ba

ck
 is

 fo
rw

ard
ed

 
to 

rel
ev

an
t a

ge
nc

ies
 as

 ap
pro

pri
ate

. 

ex
pe

rie
nc

es
 of

 he
lp 

se
ek

ing
. 8

0%
 of

 
se

rvi
ce

 us
ers

 sa
id 

the
y f

elt
 a 

litt
le 

or 
mu

ch
 sa

fer
 fo

llo
win

g t
he

ir c
on

tac
t w

ith
 

ag
en

cie
s, 

an
d n

on
e s

aid
 th

ey
 fe

lt l
es

s 
sa

fe.
 91

% 
rep

ort
ed

 be
ing

 sa
tis

fie
d w

ith
 

the
 se

rvi
ce

s t
he

y r
ec

eiv
ed

, a
nd

 9%
 

rep
ort

ed
 be

ing
 di

ss
ati

sfi
ed

. T
he

 m
os

t 
co

mm
on

 re
as

on
 fo

r d
iss

ati
sfa

cti
on

 w
as

 
lac

k o
f fo

llo
w 

up
 in

for
ma

tio
n. 

Th
e r

ep
ort

 
ma

de
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
for

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
 an

d h
as

 be
en

 
dis

se
mi

na
ted

 to
 th

e D
V F

oru
m.

 Th
is 

ex
erc

ise
 w

ill b
e r

ep
ea

ted
 an

nu
all

y. 
 

R7
 

A s
ch

em
e, 

mo
de

lle
d o

n t
he

 
Sa

fet
y N

et 
Sc

he
me

 in
 

Ca
md

en
, b

e d
ev

elo
pe

d. 
 

Th
is 

sh
ou

ld 
inv

olv
e a

nd
 

co
ns

ult
 se

rvi
ce

 us
ers

 in
 its

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt.

 
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 C

o-o
rdi

na
ted

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Re

sp
on

se
 to

 D
V m

od
el 

ha
s b

ee
n 

ad
op

ted
 by

 th
e H

om
e O

ffic
e f

or 
rol

l o
ut 

na
tio

na
lly.

 R
ath

er 
tha

n f
oc

us
sin

g o
n c

o-
loc

ati
on

 of
 se

rvi
ce

s, 
thi

s m
od

el 
se

ek
s t

o 
es

tab
lish

 a 
co

-or
din

ate
d r

es
po

ns
e 

ac
ros

s d
iffe

ren
t a

ge
nc

ies
 in

clu
din

g 
un

ive
rsa

l, m
ain

str
ea

m,
 sp

ec
ial

ist
 an

d 
tar

ge
ted

 se
rvi

ce
s. 

Th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f a

 
“on

e s
top

 sh
op

” a
pp

roa
ch

 w
ill b

e c
os

tly
, 

an
d i

t is
 im

po
rta

nt 
to 

as
se

ss
 th

e c
os

t 
be

ne
fits

 of
 su

ch
 an

 ap
pro

ac
h. 

 
Fu

rth
er 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ith
 th

e D
V F

oru
m 

ha
s b

ee
n u

nd
ert

ak
en

 ab
ou

t d
ev

elo
pin

g 
a “

Fa
mi

ly 
Ju

sti
ce

 C
en

tre
” in

 To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

 an
d t

he
re 

is 
str

on
g s

up
po

rt f
or 

the
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
su

ch
 a 

se
rvi

ce
 

mo
de

l in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s f
rom

 fro
nt-

lin
e 

se
rvi

ce
s. 

Th
e c

en
tra

l is
su

e f
or 

the
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

su
ch

 a 
se

rvi
ce

 is
 th

e 
ide

nti
fic

ati
on

 of
 an

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d t

he
 co

sts
 of

 de
ve

lop
ing

 su
ch

 
pro

vis
ion

 – 
it i

s e
sti

ma
ted

 th
at 

a f
am

ily 
Ju

sti
ce

 C
en

tre
 w

ou
ld 

req
uir

e t
he

 
cre

ati
on

 of
 10

 ad
dit

ion
al 

po
sts

 to
 co

-
ord

ina
te 

the
 ce

ntr
e a

nd
 pr

ov
ide

 a 

Page 187



72
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

rec
ep

tio
n a

nd
 in

tak
e s

erv
ice

, a
nd

 th
ere

 
wo

uld
 al

so
 be

 ca
pit

al 
co

sts
 de

pe
nd

ing
 

on
 th

e p
rem

ise
s i

de
nti

fie
d. 

 
R8

 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il r

ec
og

nis
es

 th
at 

pe
er 

su
pp

ort
 is

 im
po

rta
nt 

in 
rec

ov
ery

 fro
m 

do
me

sti
c 

vio
len

ce
 an

d s
up

po
rts

 an
d 

se
cu

res
 su

sta
ina

ble
 fu

nd
ing

 
for

 th
e W

arr
ior

 W
om

en
 

pro
jec

t. 
 

11
 co

urs
es

 ha
ve

 be
en

 co
mp

let
ed

 so
 fa

r 
thi

s y
ea

r, w
ith

 14
5 w

om
en

 pa
rtic

ipa
tin

g. 
A f

urt
he

r 4
 co

urs
es

 w
ill b

e c
om

ple
ted

 by
 

Ma
rch

 20
08

. 
 Fu

nd
ing

 fo
r th

e p
roj

ec
t e

nd
s i

n M
arc

h 
20

08
. 

 Fu
nd

ing
 to

 co
nti

nu
e t

he
 pr

oje
ct 

is 
be

ing
 

so
ug

ht 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e L

ivin
g S

afe
ly 

CP
AG

.  
Th

e p
os

sib
ility

 of
 de

ve
lop

ing
 fo

rm
al 

ac
cre

dit
ati

on
 fo

r th
e t

rai
nin

g, 
an

d 
ex

ten
din

g t
o p

rog
ram

me
 to

 ad
dre

ss
 

iss
ue

s o
f fi

na
nc

ial
 ex

clu
sio

n a
nd

 ac
ce

ss
 

to 
ed

uc
ati

on
, e

mp
loy

me
nt 

an
d t

rai
nin

g i
s 

als
o b

ein
g e

xp
lor

ed
. 

 

Ma
rch

 20
07

 
A b

id 
ha

s b
ee

n s
ub

mi
tte

d t
o W

NF
 fo

r 
the

 co
nti

nu
ati

on
 an

d f
urt

he
r 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 W

arr
ior

 W
om

en
 

pro
gra

mm
e. 

R9
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il r
ec

og
nis

es
 th

at 
su

pp
ort

ing
 w

om
en

 to
 

ch
oo

se
 to

 st
ay

 in
 th

eir
 ow

n 
ho

me
 sa

fel
y i

s i
mm

en
se

ly 
va

lue
d b

y t
ho

se
 re

co
ve

rin
g 

fro
m 

do
me

sti
c v

iol
en

ce
 an

d 
se

cu
res

 su
sta

ina
ble

 fu
nd

ing
 

Th
e S

an
ctu

ary
 pr

oje
ct 

ha
s c

on
tin

ue
d 

wit
h a

 to
tal

 of
 89

 ho
us

eh
old

s n
ow

 
rec

eiv
ing

 th
is 

su
pp

ort
 si

nc
e t

he
 sc

he
me

 
sta

rte
d i

n 2
00

5. 
Fe

ed
ba

ck
 fro

m 
se

rvi
ce

 
us

ers
 ha

s b
ee

n o
ve

rw
he

lm
ing

ly 
po

sit
ive

, 
wit

h o
nly

 1 
se

rvi
ce

 us
er 

su
bs

eq
ue

ntl
y 

ha
vin

g t
o m

ov
e h

om
e b

ec
au

se
 of

 D
V, 

Ma
rch

 20
07

 
Th

e S
an

ctu
ary

 Pr
oje

ct 
is 

no
w 

fun
de

d 
by

 th
e H

om
ele

ss
ne

ss
 an

d H
ou

sin
g 

Ad
vic

e S
erv

ice
 an

d c
on

tin
ue

s t
o 

rec
eiv

e v
ery

 po
sit

ive
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 fro

m 
se

rvi
ce

 us
ers

. 

Page 188



73
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

for
 th

e S
an

ctu
ary

 pr
oje

ct.
 

an
d 9

4%
 sa

yin
g t

he
y f

ee
l s

afe
r a

s a
 

res
ult

 of
 th

e p
roj

ec
t. 

R1
0 

W
he

n v
ict

im
s o

f d
om

es
tic

 
vio

len
ce

 ar
e r

e-h
ou

se
d 

ou
tsi

de
 of

 To
we

r H
am

let
s, 

the
 C

ou
nc

il s
ho

uld
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

ey
 re

ce
ive

 
inf

orm
ati

on
 ab

ou
t th

e 
do

me
sti

c v
iol

en
ce

 se
rvi

ce
s 

the
y c

an
 ac

ce
ss

. 
 

Th
e p

ilo
t p

roj
ec

t d
eli

ve
red

 by
 TH

W
A 

ca
me

 to
 an

 ea
rly

 en
d b

ec
au

se
 of

 fu
nd

ing
 

iss
ue

s w
ith

in 
TH

W
A. 

Ho
we

ve
r, t

he
 pi

lot
 

wa
s a

ble
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
the

 ne
ed

 fo
r 

su
ch

 a 
se

rvi
ce

, a
nd

 th
e S

up
po

rtin
g 

Pe
op

le 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 bo
dy

 is
 

co
ns

ide
rin

g h
ow

 to
 ad

dre
ss

 th
is 

wit
hin

 
the

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 of

 Fl
oa

tin
g S

up
po

rt 
se

rvi
ce

s. 

Ma
rch

 20
07

 
W

e h
av

e c
on

tin
ue

d t
o d

ev
elo

p s
erv

ice
s 

for
 w

om
en

 pl
ac

ed
 in

 te
mp

ora
ry 

ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

 bo
th 

wit
hin

 an
d 

ou
tsi

de
 th

e b
oro

ug
h. 

Su
pp

ort
ing

 
Pe

op
le 

fun
din

g h
as

 be
en

 id
en

tifi
ed

 fo
r 

a f
loa

tin
g s

up
po

rt s
erv

ice
 lin

ke
d t

o 
Re

fug
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 th

at 
wil

l p
rov

ide
 

ho
us

ing
 re

lat
ed

 su
pp

ort
 to

 w
om

en
 

pla
ce

d i
n t

em
po

rar
y a

cc
om

mo
da

tio
n. 

 
Su

pp
ort

ing
 Pe

op
le 

fun
din

g h
as

 al
so

 
be

en
 pr

ov
ide

d f
or 

the
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a 

ha
nd

bo
ok

 fo
r w

om
en

 le
av

ing
 ab

us
ive

 
rel

ati
on

sh
ips

 – 
thi

s i
nc

lud
es

 in
for

ma
tio

n 
ab

ou
t h

ow
 to

 ac
ce

ss
 se

rvi
ce

s o
uts

ide
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s. 

R1
1 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il d
ev

elo
ps

 an
 

Ac
tio

n P
lan

 to
 de

al 
wit

h t
he

 
pe

rpe
tra

tor
s o

f d
om

es
tic

 
vio

len
ce

. T
his

 sh
ou

ld 
rec

og
nis

e t
he

 ne
ed

 to
 

im
pro

ve
 th

e w
ay

 
pe

rpe
tra

tor
s a

re 
de

alt
 w

ith
 

by
 th

e p
oli

ce
 an

d c
rim

ina
l 

jus
tic

e s
ys

tem
 an

d o
utl

ine
 

ac
tio

n t
o r

eh
ab

ilita
te 

pe
rpe

tra
tor

s t
o e

ns
ure

 re
-

Tra
ini

ng
 on

 w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 D

V 
pe

rpe
tra

tor
s h

as
 be

en
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 
an

d i
s b

ein
g d

eli
ve

red
 to

 25
 pa

rtic
ipa

nts
, 

inc
lud

ing
 so

cia
l w

ork
ers

, c
ou

ns
ell

ors
, 

ps
yc

ho
log

ist
s a

nd
 dr

ug
s w

ork
ers

 fro
m 

a 
ran

ge
 of

 lo
ca

l a
ge

nc
ies

. F
un

din
g i

s n
ow

 
be

ing
 so

ug
ht 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e L
SC

PA
G 

to 
co

mm
iss

ion
 a 

pe
rpe

tra
tor

 pr
og

ram
me

 
tha

t w
ork

s t
o n

ati
on

al 
sta

nd
ard

s o
f g

oo
d 

pra
cti

ce
, to

 pr
ov

ide
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 

pe
rpe

tra
tor

 se
rvi

ce
s f

or 
me

n o
n a

 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
06

 
Fu

nd
ing

 ha
s b

ee
n i

de
nti

fie
d t

o d
ev

elo
p 

a s
pe

cia
list

 D
V p

erp
etr

ato
r p

rog
ram

me
 

an
d t

his
 se

rvi
ce

 w
ill b

e d
ev

elo
pe

d i
n 

20
09

-10
. 

Page 189



74
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

off
en

din
g d

oe
s n

ot 
oc

cu
r. 

vo
lun

tar
y b

as
is 

(th
at 

is,
 th

os
e n

ot 
co

nv
ict

ed
 th

rou
gh

 th
e c

ou
rts

 – 
wh

o h
av

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 Pr

ob
ati

on
 pr

og
ram

me
s).

 
R1

2 
Inf

orm
ati

on
 be

 de
ve

lop
ed

 
ac

ros
s s

erv
ice

s a
nd

 
pro

vid
ed

 to
 do

me
sti

c 
vio

len
ce

 vi
cti

ms
 ab

ou
t th

e 
se

rvi
ce

s t
ha

t a
re 

av
ail

ab
le 

to 
the

m 
an

d t
he

 st
an

da
rds

 
of 

se
rvi

ce
 th

ey
 sh

ou
ld 

ex
pe

ct.
 

A n
ew

 D
V i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 di
rec

tor
y i

s d
ue

 to
 

be
 pu

bli
sh

ed
 w

hic
h i

nc
lud

es
 up

da
ted

 
be

st 
pra

cti
ce

 st
an

da
rds

, a
nd

 ha
s n

ew
 

ma
ter

ial
 on

 ris
k a

ss
es

sm
en

t in
 D

V 
ca

se
s. 

 Th
e n

ew
 “s

po
t c

he
ck

” s
ys

tem
  in

 pl
ac

e 
to 

fol
low

 up
 on

 D
V1

 fo
rm

s p
rov

ide
s 

op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o q

uic
kly

 id
en

tify
 if 

be
st 

pra
cti

ce
 st

an
da

rds
 ar

e b
ein

g m
ain

tai
ne

d 
ac

ros
s c

ou
nc

il d
ep

art
me

nts
 an

d i
n 

pa
rtn

er 
ag

en
cie

s. 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
06

 
Th

e n
ew

 D
om

es
tic

 Vi
ole

nc
e 

inf
orm

ati
on

 bo
ok

let
 in

clu
de

s a
 ba

sic
 

“cu
sto

me
r p

rom
ise

”  -
 lo

ca
l a

ge
nc

ies
 

list
ed

 ag
ree

 to
: 

• P
rio

riti
se

 yo
u a

nd
 yo

ur 
ch

ild
ren

’s 
sa

fet
y 

• R
es

po
nd

 to
 yo

u i
n a

 se
ns

itiv
e, 

su
pp

ort
ive

 an
d r

es
pe

ctf
ul 

wa
y 

• G
ive

 yo
u i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 ab
ou

t re
lev

an
t 

se
rvi

ce
s a

va
ila

ble
 

• R
efe

r y
ou

 to
 se

rvi
ce

s w
ith

 yo
ur 

co
ns

en
t 

• S
tor

e a
nd

 di
sp

os
e o

f y
ou

r 
inf

orm
ati

on
 co

nfi
de

nti
all

y 
• R

es
po

nd
 to

 yo
ur 

me
ss

ag
es

 
pro

mp
tly

 
• P

rov
ide

 in
for

ma
tio

n i
n a

 ra
ng

e o
f 

for
ma

ts 
an

d c
om

mu
nit

y l
an

gu
ag

es
 if 

yo
u n

ee
d t

his
. 

 
     

Page 190



75
 

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

9 
Re

sp
on

se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n T
ac
kli
ng

 A
nti

 So
cia

l B
eh

av
iou

r 
 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
Da

te 
 R1

 
Th

at 
the

 C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 al

l 
Re

gis
ter

ed
 So

cia
l L

an
dlo

rds
 

(R
SL

s) 
in 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

pro
vid

e C
ab

ine
t w

ith
 an

 
an

nu
al 

rep
ort

 de
tai

lin
g h

ow
 

the
y a

re 
me

eti
ng

 th
e s

ix 
str

an
ds

 of
 th

e R
es

pe
ct 

ag
en

da
. 

 Th
e 1

6 R
SL

s w
ho

 ha
ve

 si
gn

ed
 up

 to
 th

e 
sta

nd
ard

s w
ill b

e a
ble

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 th
e 

inf
orm

ati
on

.  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il w

ill w
ork

 w
ith

 th
e 

res
t o

f th
e R

SL
s t

o g
ath

er 
inf

orm
ati

on
 fro

m 
the

m.
  

 Th
is 

wo
rk 

wil
l a

lso
 pr

ov
ide

 in
for

ma
tio

n f
or 

the
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 St
rat

eg
ic 

As
se

ss
me

nt 
of 

Cr
im

e 
an

d D
iso

rde
r R

ed
uc

tio
n P

art
ne

rsh
ips

 
(C

DR
P)

. T
he

 pu
rpo

se
 of

 th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
as

se
ss

me
nt 

is 
to 

pro
vid

e k
no

wle
dg

e a
nd

 
un

de
rst

an
din

g o
f c

om
mu

nit
y s

afe
ty 

pro
ble

ms
 

in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
. T

his
 as

se
ss

me
nt 

wil
l o

ffe
r 

inf
orm

ati
on

 on
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 R

LS
s 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o t
ac

klin
g c

rim
e a

nd
 di

so
rde

r 
ma

tte
rs,

 lin
ke

d t
o t

he
 ol

d R
es

pe
ct 

ag
en

da
. 

 Ac
tio

n;  
 

1. 
Ga

the
r in

for
ma

tio
n a

lre
ad

y a
va

ila
ble

  
2. 

Un
de

rta
ke

 di
sc

us
sio

ns
 w

ith
 ot

he
r 

RS
Ls

 to
 ob

tai
n i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 fro
m 

the
m 

3. 
Str

ate
gic

 As
se

ss
me

nt 
co

mm
en

ce
s 

4. 
Str

ate
gic

 As
se

ss
me

nt 
to 

CD
RP

 
5. 

A r
ep

ort
 w

ill b
e c

om
pil

ed
 w

ith
 fin

din
gs

 

 He
ath

er 
Ma

llin
de

r 
Op

era
tio

ns
 M

an
ag

er,
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Sa
fet

y 
Se

rvi
ce

s 

                    Co
mp

let
ed

 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

08
 

 Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Ja
nu

ary
 20

09
 

 

Page 191



76
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
Da

te 
an

d s
ub

mi
tte

d t
o C

ab
ine

t 
 

 
  

Ma
rch

 20
09

 

 R2
    

  T
ha

t th
e C

ou
nc

il c
on

tin
ue

s t
o 

ide
nti

fy 
tac

klin
g A

SB
 as

 a 
ke

y C
orp

ora
te 

Pr
ior

ity
. T

his
 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 re
fle

cte
d i

n 
fun

din
g d

ec
isio

ns
 an

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ag
ain

st 
am

bit
iou

s t
arg

ets
, 

ref
lec

tin
g t

he
 em

ph
as

is 
tha

t 
res

ide
nts

 pl
ac

e o
n t

his
 is

su
e. 

 AS
B c

on
tin

ue
s t

o b
e a

 pr
ior

ity
 fo

r th
e C

ou
nc

il. 
It h

as
 be

en
 in

clu
de

d w
ith

in 
the

 LA
A a

nd
 is

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
ed

 ac
co

rdi
ng

ly.
  T

o 
bri

dg
e t

he
 AS

B a
nd

 En
vir

on
me

nt 
Cr

im
e 

iss
ue

s C
om

mu
nit

ies
, L

oc
ali

tie
s a

nd
 C

ult
ure

 
(C

LC
) a

re 
as

se
ss

ing
 th

e o
pp

ort
un

itie
s t

o 
de

ve
lop

 th
e c

on
ce

pt 
of 

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d 

En
for

ce
me

nt 
Of

fic
ers

 an
d t

o h
av

e t
he

m 
ac

cre
dit

ed
 w

ith
 ad

dit
ion

al 
po

we
rs 

by
 th

e 
po

lice
. 

 Ac
tio

n:  
 Co

mm
un

ity
 Sa

fet
y S

erv
ice

 is
 ar

ran
gin

g a
 

nu
mb

er 
of 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
da

ys
 ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

bo
rou

gh
 to

 pr
om

ote
 th

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
ap

pro
ac

h 
to 

tac
klin

g A
SB

.  M
ore

ov
er 

the
 LA

 ha
s b

ee
n 

giv
en

 £6
0k

, fo
r a

dd
itio

na
l e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

da
ys

 
thr

ou
gh

 to
 31

st
 M

arc
h 2

00
9. 

Th
es

e h
av

e b
ee

n 
pla

nn
ed

 on
 a 

mo
nth

ly 
ba

sis
. 

 An
dy

 Ba
mb

er 
Se

rvi
ce

 H
ea

d 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Sa

fet
y 

Se
rvi

ce
s  

 Ap
ril 

20
09

 
            On

go
ing

 up
 to

 M
arc

h 
20

09
 

 R3
  

Th
at 

the
 C

om
mu

nit
y S

afe
ty 

 
    

    
    

Se
rvi

ce
 pr

ov
ide

s M
em

be
rs 

wit
h a

 br
ief

ing
 ex

pla
ini

ng
 

 Th
e n

ew
 da

tab
as

e w
en

t li
ve

 in
 Se

pte
mb

er 
thi

s y
ea

r.  
 

 He
ath

er 
Ma

llin
de

r 
Op

era
tio

ns
 M

an
ag

er,
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Sa
fet

y 

    

Page 192



77
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
Da

te 
ho

w 
the

 AS
B d

ata
ba

se
 

fun
cti

on
s a

nd
 co

mp
lai

nts
 

are
 in

ve
sti

ga
ted

. T
his

 m
ay

 
we

ll b
e a

 on
e o

ff t
rai

nin
g 

se
ss

ion
 or

 si
te 

de
mo

ns
tra

tio
n. 

Ac
tio

n: 
 

1. 
Br

ief
ing

 on
 ne

w 
da

tab
as

e p
rov

ide
d 

thr
ou

gh
 M

em
be

rs 
Bu

lle
tin

 
2. 

De
live

r tr
ain

ing
/si

te 
vis

it 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

  De
ce

mb
er 

20
08

 
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
08

 
 R4

  
Th

at 
the

 C
ou

nc
il s

ho
uld

 
co

nti
nu

e t
o w

ork
 to

 fin
d w

ay
s 

to 
ge

t a
ll 6

4 R
SL

s o
pe

rat
ing

 
in 

the
 Bo

rou
gh

 to
 de

ve
lop

 
co

ns
ist

en
t s

tan
da

rds
 to

 
tac

klin
g A

SB
.  

 

 Th
e P

oli
ce

 an
d J

us
tic

e A
ct 

no
w 

rec
og

nis
e 

RS
Ls

 as
 co

 op
era

tin
g b

od
ies

 w
ith

in 
the

 C
rim

e 
an

d D
iso

rde
r R

ed
uc

tio
n P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

(C
DR

P)
. 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 sh
ari

ng
 pr

oto
co

ls 
are

 no
w 

in 
pla

ce
.  T

he
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f in

ve
sti

ga
tio

ns
 w

ill 
ad

he
re 

to 
ho

us
e m

ark
 st

an
da

rds
 fo

r th
os

e 
tha

t h
av

e s
ign

ed
 up

 to
 th

e R
es

pe
ct 

Sta
nd

ard
s. 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Ho
me

s h
av

e p
roc

ed
ure

s i
n p

lac
e t

o e
ns

ure
 

co
ns

ist
en

t s
tan

da
rds

 w
he

n t
ac

klin
g A

SB
. 

 Ac
tio

n:  
 Th

is 
pro

ce
du

re 
wil

l b
e t

ak
en

 to
 th

e R
SL

 
for

um
, to

 se
e i

f s
am

e a
pp

roa
ch

 ca
n b

e 
im

ple
me

nte
d a

cro
ss

 al
l R

SL
 s.

 
 

 He
ath

er 
Ma

llin
de

r 
Op

era
tio

ns
 M

an
ag

er,
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Sa
fet

y 
Se

rvi
ce

s 

 Ma
rch

 20
09

 
             

 R5
  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 R
SL

s 
un

de
rta

ke
 a 

co
st-

be
ne

fit 
an

aly
sis

 of
 pr

oc
uri

ng
 a 

ne
w 

 RS
Ls

 ha
ve

 a 
ne

w 
rep

ort
ing

 sy
ste

m 
dif

fer
en

t 
fro

m 
tha

t o
f th

e C
ou

nc
il. 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
av

e 
als

o p
urc

ha
se

d a
 ne

w 
rep

ort
ing

 sy
ste

m 
tha

t 

   
 N/

A  

Page 193



78
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
Da

te 
sin

gle
 re

po
rtin

g s
ys

tem
, to

 
ca

ptu
re 

all
 AS

B r
ep

ort
s 

ma
de

 in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s. 
 

lin
ks

 to
 in

ter
na

l s
ys

tem
s a

lre
ad

y i
n u

se
.  

Ho
we

ve
r m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 re
po

rtin
g a

re 
sti

ll 
the

 sa
me

. T
he

re 
are

 in
for

ma
tio

n s
ha

rin
g 

pro
toc

ols
 in

 pl
ac

e a
nd

 th
e C

om
mu

nit
y S

afe
ty 

Se
rvi

ce
 ex

ch
an

ge
s i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 w
ith

 R
SL

s 
an

d a
ll d

ata
 re

lat
ing

 to
 AS

B i
s p

res
en

ted
 in

 
ma

p a
nd

 gr
ap

h f
orm

s w
ith

 co
mm

en
tar

ies
 

ev
ery

 si
x w

ee
ks

 to
 pa

rtn
er 

ag
en

cie
s. 

R6
 

Th
at 

the
 Bo

rou
gh

    
 

Co
mm

an
de

r p
rov

ide
s d

eta
ils 

of 
run

nin
g c

os
ts 

to 
en

ab
le 

an
 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
of 

an
 ex

pa
ns

ion
 

in 
the

 nu
mb

er 
an

d d
ura

tio
n 

of 
Go

od
 Be

ha
vio

ur 
Zo

ne
s 

(G
BZ

s).
 

 Un
for

tun
ate

ly 
the

 po
lice

 ha
ve

 no
t k

ep
t 

de
tai

led
 co

sti
ng

s t
ha

t a
re 

as
so

cia
ted

 w
ith

 
GB

Zs
. H

ow
ev

er 
the

y w
ill i

n t
he

 fu
tur

e. 
Th

rou
gh

ou
t th

e p
eri

od
 th

at 
a G

BZ
 ru

ns
 th

e 
po

lice
 en

de
av

ou
r to

 en
su

re 
tha

t th
e S

NT
s a

re 
ful

ly 
en

ga
ge

d w
ith

 it.
 H

ow
ev

er,
 ot

he
r p

oli
cin

g 
iss

ue
s, 

lea
ve

, s
ick

ne
ss

, tr
ain

ing
, a

nd
 ot

he
r 

ab
str

ac
tio

ns
 w

ill p
ull

 of
fic

ers
 aw

ay
 fro

m 
wo

rki
ng

 on
 th

e o
pe

rat
ion

. T
he

y d
o n

ot 
ha

ve
 

da
ta 

on
 ot

he
r te

am
s s

uc
h a

s t
he

 Te
rrit

ori
al 

Su
pp

ort
 G

rou
p T

SG
. A

lth
ou

gh
 th

ey
 as

k f
or 

as
sis

tan
ce

 th
ey

 ca
nn

ot 
de

tai
l th

e l
en

gth
 of

 
tim

e t
ha

t th
e t

ea
ms

 st
ay

 in
 th

e b
oro

ug
h. 

 It i
s i

mp
ort

an
t h

ow
ev

er 
to 

no
te 

tha
t G

BZ
s 

req
uir

e c
on

sid
era

ble
 re

so
urc

es
 fo

r 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

if t
he

y a
re 

to 
be

 ef
fec

tiv
e, 

the
 

mo
re 

the
re 

are
 an

d t
he

 lo
ng

er 
in 

du
rat

ion
 th

e 
few

er 
res

ou
rce

s w
ill b

e a
va

ila
ble

 fo
r 

 He
ath

er 
Ma

lin
de

r 
Op

era
tio

ns
 M

an
ag

er,
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Sa
fet

y 

 On
-go

ing
  

Page 194



79
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
Da

te 
ad

dit
ion

al 
zo

ne
s. 

 It 
is 

the
ref

ore
 im

po
rta

nt 
to 

co
ns

ide
r th

e i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 of
 a 

GB
Z i

n t
he

 
co

nte
xt 

of 
ex

ist
ing

 w
ork

 to
 ta

ck
le 

an
ti-s

oc
ial

 
be

ha
vio

ur.
  

  Ac
tio

n: 
 

 An
aly

sis
 of

 ef
fec

tiv
en

es
s o

f G
BZ

s w
ill b

e 
us

ed
 to

 co
ns

ide
r fu

tur
e e

xp
an

sio
ns

 of
 G

BZ
s 

 R7
 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il lo
ok

 at
 

pro
gre

ss
 of

 th
e N

ati
on

al 
pil

ot 
sc

he
me

 to
 w

ith
dra

w 
ho

us
ing

 
be

ne
fit 

fro
m 

tho
se

 fo
un

d 
gu

ilty
 of

 pe
rsi

ste
nt 

AS
B a

nd
 

rep
ort

 ba
ck

 to
 C

ab
ine

t o
n t

he
 

me
rit 

of 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
pa

rtic
ipa

tin
g i

n a
ny

 fu
tur

e 
pil

ots
. 

 Th
e D

ep
art

me
nt 

for
 W

ork
 an

d P
en

sio
ns

 
(D

W
P)

 is
 pi

lot
ing

 a 
sc

he
me

 to
 im

po
se

 
ho

us
ing

 be
ne

fit 
sa

nc
tio

ns
 on

 th
os

e w
ho

 ar
e 

inv
olv

ed
 in

 pe
rsi

ste
nt 

an
ti-s

oc
ial

 be
ha

vio
ur.

 
Th

e s
ch

em
e i

s b
as

ed
 on

 th
e m

ea
su

re 
int

rod
uc

ed
 by

 Se
cti

on
 31

 th
e W

elf
are

 R
efo

rm
 

Ac
t 2

00
7. 

It i
s b

ein
g t

es
ted

 in
 8 

Lo
ca

l 
Au

tho
riti

es
, a

ll o
uts

ide
 Lo

nd
on

, b
etw

ee
n 1

st 
No

ve
mb

er 
20

07
 an

d 3
1s

t O
cto

be
r 2

00
9. 

Th
e 

sc
he

me
 w

ill n
ot 

be
 ev

alu
ate

d u
nti

l a
fte

r it
s 

co
mp

let
ion

 to
wa

rds
 th

e e
nd

 of
 20

09
. N

o o
the

r 
pil

ots
 ar

e p
lan

ne
d s

o T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 w
ill n

ot 
be

 ab
le 

to 
pa

rtic
ipa

te 
at 

thi
s t

im
e. 

As
 so

on
 as

 
an

y i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 is

 re
lea

se
d f

ull
 de

tai
ls 

wil
l b

e 
cir

cu
lat

ed
 an

d r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s c

on
sid

ere
d 

for
 ac

tio
n. 

 

 Jo
n U

nd
erw

oo
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

er,
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Sa
fet

y 
Se

rvi
ce

s  

 Oc
tob

er 
20

09
  

Page 195



80
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
Da

te 
Ac

tio
n: 

 A r
ep

ort
 w

ill b
e s

ub
mi

tte
d t

o C
ab

ine
t to

 
co

ns
ide

r th
e o

pti
on

s, 
on

ce
 a 

rep
ort

 fro
m 

the
 

pil
ot 

sc
he

me
 is

 av
ail

ab
le.

  
 

 R8
 

Th
at 

Sa
fer

 N
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

 
Te

am
s (

SN
Ts

) p
rov

ide
 

Me
mb

ers
 w

ith
 da

ta 
on

 
res

po
ns

e t
im

es
 to

 AS
B c

all
s 

ma
de

 by
 re

sid
en

ts,
 to

 he
lp 

ev
alu

ate
 th

e e
ffe

cti
ve

ne
ss

 of
 

SN
Ts

 in
 th

eir
 cu

rre
nt 

ca
pa

cit
y. 

 Th
e S

NT
s d

o n
ot 

ke
ep

 da
ta 

on
 re

sp
on

se
 

tim
es

 to
 AS

B, 
mu

ch
 of

 w
hic

h i
s o

f c
ou

rse
 

no
tifi

ed
 th

rou
gh

 th
e A

SB
 lin

e a
t th

e L
oc

al 
Au

tho
rity

.   
 Ac

tio
n:  

 Ho
we

ve
r C

om
mu

nit
y S

afe
ty 

Se
rvi

ce
 w

ill 
pro

vid
e d

ata
 fro

m 
the

 ne
w 

da
tab

as
e t

ha
t 

sh
ow

s r
es

po
ns

es
 to

 ca
lls 

ma
de

 to
 AS

B 
ho

tlin
e. 

 He
ath

er 
Ma

lin
de

r 
Op

era
tio

ns
 M

an
ag

er,
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Sa
fet

y 

 1s
t A

pri
l 2

00
9 

 
R9

 
Th

at 
the

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 se
t 

as
ide

 fu
nd

ing
 to

 pi
lot

 an
 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 SN
T o

f s
ix 

Po
lice

 
Co

ns
tab

les
 (P

Cs
) a

nd
 si

x 
Po

lice
 C

on
sta

ble
 Su

pp
ort

 
Of

fic
ers

 (P
CS

Os
) in

 at
 le

as
t 

tw
o w

ard
s f

or 
a p

eri
od

 of
 up

 
to 

tw
o y

ea
rs  

 Ac
tio

n: 
 Ca

bin
et 

ha
s a

gre
ed

 to
 se

t a
sid

e £
60

0k
 fo

r 
20

09
/20

10
 to

 fu
nd

 17
 Po

lice
 O

ffic
ers

.  
   Th

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
su

pp
ort

s t
he

 pr
op

os
al 

for
 th

e 
ad

dit
ion

al 
Po

lice
 of

fic
ers

 an
d w

ill b
e w

ork
ing

 

   An
dy

 Ba
mb

er 
Se

rvi
ce

 H
ea

d 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Sa

fet
y 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

 Sh
az

ia 
Hu

sa
in 

Int
eri

m 
Dir

ec
tor

 TH
 

   Fro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
09

 an
d 

on
go

ing
 

   Fro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
09

 an
d 

on
go

ing
 

Page 196



81
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
Da

te 
clo

se
ly 

wit
h C

om
mu

nit
y S

afe
ty 

an
d t

he
 Po

lice
 

en
su

re 
the

se
 ar

e i
mp

lem
en

ted
 an

d l
ink

ed
 in

to 
LA

P P
rio

riti
es

. 
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
  

 
R1

0  
Th

at 
the

 C
om

mu
nit

y S
afe

ty 
Se

rvi
ce

 w
ith

 th
e h

elp
 of

 th
e 

To
we

r H
am

let
s P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

an
d E

as
t E

nd
 Li

fe 
(E

EL
) lo

ok
 

to 
be

tte
r p

rom
ote

 th
e 

Co
un

cil’
s A

SB
 st

rat
eg

y t
o 

res
ide

nts
 in

 th
e B

oro
ug

h. 
 

 

 A n
um

be
r o

f a
pp

roa
ch

es
 ar

e b
ein

g t
ak

en
 

for
wa

rd 
to 

pu
bli

cis
e t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 AS

B 
Str

ate
gy

: 
� 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n a
nd

 di
str

ibu
tio

n o
f A

nti
 So

cia
l 

Be
ha

vio
ur 

Or
de

r (A
SB

O)
 pu

bli
cit

y, 
in 

ac
co

rda
nc

e w
ith

 AS
BO

 pu
bli

cit
y p

rot
oc

ol 
 

� 
Us

ing
 co

mm
un

ity
 ev

en
ts 

as
 an

 
op

po
rtu

nit
y t

o r
ais

e a
wa

ren
es

s a
bo

ut 
the

 
Co

un
cil’

s A
SB

 re
po

rtin
g l

ine
 an

d t
he

 w
ork

 
be

ing
 do

ne
 to

 ta
ck

le 
AS

B 
� 

De
live

ry 
of 

a P
R/

co
mm

un
ity

 en
ga

ge
me

nt 
ca

mp
aig

n t
o i

mp
ac

t o
n p

erc
ep

tio
ns

 of
 

AS
B, 

inc
lud

ing
 po

ste
r a

dv
ert

isin
g, 

en
ga

ge
me

nt 
ev

en
ts,

 le
afl

et 
dro

ps
 an

d 
hig

h p
rof

ile
 PR

 's
tun

ts' 
� 

Ta
rge

ted
 pu

bli
ca

tio
ns

 on
 AS

B 
� 

Pr
es

s r
ele

as
es

 an
d f

ea
tur

es
 on

 AS
B f

or 
loc

al 
me

dia
 in

clu
din

g E
EL

. 
� 

Us
ing

 To
we

r H
am

let
s f

irs
t C

om
mu

nit
y 

Sa
fet

y A
wa

rds
 to

 co
mm

en
d p

eo
ple

 w
ho

 
he

lp 
the

 co
un

cil;
 po

lice
 an

d o
the

r p
art

ne
rs 

ma
ke

 th
e b

oro
ug

h a
 sa

fer
 pl

ac
e. 

 

 Po
pp

y T
urn

er 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Sa

fet
y 

En
ga

ge
me

nt 
Te

am
 

 Ma
rch

 20
09

 

Page 197



82
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
Da

te 
 

R1
1  

Th
at 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
 w

ith
 

the
 he

lp 
of 

Ed
uc

ati
on

 
Ps

yc
ho

log
ist

 su
pp

ort
 sc

ho
ols

 
to 

he
lp 

de
ve

lop
 fu

rth
er 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le’

s a
pp

rec
iat

ion
 of

 
ac

ce
pta

ble
 be

ha
vio

ur 
by

 
rev

iew
ing

 be
ha

vio
ur 

co
de

s 
an

d p
rac

tis
es

 th
at 

are
 in

 lin
e 

wit
h t

ac
klin

g A
SB

. 

 Th
e s

ec
on

da
ry 

sc
ho

ol 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 fo

r 
Be

ha
vio

ur 
an

d A
tte

nd
an

ce
 ha

s a
gre

ed
 w

ith
 

the
 14

-19
 H

UB
 pa

rtn
ers

 a 
sh

are
d b

oro
ug

h-
wid

e S
tat

em
en

t o
f E

xp
ec

tat
ion

 ab
ou

t 
Be

ha
vio

ur 
wh

ich
 w

ill i
nfo

rm
 co

de
s o

f c
on

du
ct 

in 
sc

ho
ols

, th
e c

oll
eg

e a
nd

 al
ter

na
tiv

e 
ed

uc
ati

on
 / t

rai
nin

g p
rov

ide
rs.

  A
dv

ice
 to

 
su

pp
ort

 be
ha

vio
ur 

po
licy

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
is 

av
ail

ab
le 

fro
m 

the
 Be

ha
vio

ur 
Su

pp
ort

 Te
am

  
 A r

ev
iew

 of
 Bu

llyi
ng

 po
lici

es
 in

 sc
ho

ols
  

cu
rre

ntl
y u

nd
erw

ay
 to

 en
su

re 
all

 sc
ho

ols
, 

res
ide

nti
al 

un
its

 an
d y

ou
th 

wo
rk 

se
ttin

gs
  

ha
ve

 po
lici

es
 w

hic
h m

atc
h t

he
 LA

 st
an

da
rds

 
se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 An
ti-b

ull
yin

g a
nd

 An
ti 

Ha
ras

sm
en

t g
uid

an
ce

.  
 Th

e b
oro

ug
h i

s p
ilo

tin
g a

n a
nti

-bu
llyi

ng
 he

lp 
lin

e t
o e

ns
ure

 pr
om

pt 
int

erv
en

tio
n t

o p
rev

en
t 

an
d r

ed
uc

e b
ull

yin
g i

n t
he

 bo
rou

gh
.   

 Ke
rri 

Ma
rrin

er.
  

He
ad

 of
 Be

ha
vio

ur 
Su

pp
ort

 Te
am

 
       Lia

m 
Mc

Qu
ad

e 
An

ti B
ull

yin
g A

dv
iso

r 
     Lia

m 
Mc

Qu
ad

e 
An

ti B
ull

yin
g A

dv
iso

r 
  

 On
 go

ing
 w

ork
 

         Ma
rch

 20
09

 
      Ju

ly 
20

09
 

 
R1

2  
Th

at 
the

 Yo
uth

 O
ffe

nd
ing

 
Te

am
 (Y

OT
)  w

ork
 w

ith
 ot

he
r 

ag
en

cie
s t

o i
de

nti
fy 

an
d 

su
pp

ort
 vu

lne
rab

le 
ch

ild
ren

 
an

d y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le,

 m
os

t a
t 

 Th
is 

is 
wo

rk 
un

de
rta

ke
n t

hro
ug

h t
he

 Sc
ho

ol 
Inc

lus
ion

 Pr
og

ram
me

 (S
IP)

, th
e Y

ou
th 

Inc
lus

ion
 Su

pp
ort

 Pa
ne

ls 
(Y

ISP
) a

nd
 Yo

uth
 

Inc
lus

ion
 Pr

og
ram

me
 (Y

IP)
, a

ll o
f w

hic
h a

re 
cu

rre
ntl

y o
pe

rat
ing

 at
 fu

ll s
ca

le.
  A

 Pr
op

os
al 

 Stu
art

 Jo
hn

so
n  

He
ad

 of
 Yo

uth
 

Of
fen

din
g S

erv
ice

 
  

 Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

    

Page 198



83
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
Da

te 
ris

k o
f c

au
sin

g A
SB

 an
d 

en
su

re 
tha

t w
he

rev
er 

po
ss

ibl
e a

ll p
up

ils 
are

 ab
le 

to 
ac

ce
ss

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 
ed

uc
ati

on
al 

pro
vis

ion
.  

ha
s b

ee
n s

ub
mi

tte
d t

o e
xp

an
d t

he
 YI

P i
n 

LA
Ps

 7&
8. 

 Th
ere

 is
 a 

de
sig

na
ted

 of
fic

er 
for

 C
hil

dre
n 

wit
ho

ut 
a s

ch
oo

l p
lac

e w
ho

 lia
ise

s w
ith

 th
e 

SIP
 to

 se
cu

re 
a p

lac
e, 

or 
int

eri
m 

pro
vis

ion
 in

 
the

 Pu
pil

 R
efe

rra
l U

nit
 (P

RU
) w

ith
in 

4 w
ee

ks
 

of 
ide

nti
fic

ati
on

.   
 Th

e P
rot

oc
ol 

on
 th

e E
du

ca
tio

n o
f Y

ou
ng

 
Of

fen
de

rs 
is 

be
ing

 re
vis

ed
 an

d r
e-l

au
nc

he
d i

n 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 to
 en

su
re 

sc
ho

ols
 ar

e a
wa

re 
of 

the
ir r

es
po

ns
ibi

litie
s t

o y
ou

ng
 of

fen
de

rs 
an

d 
to 

en
su

re 
the

re 
is 

co
nti

nu
ity

 of
 ed

uc
ati

on
 fo

r 
the

m.
   

 

   Br
en

de
n M

ulc
ah

y  
De

sig
na

ted
 of

fic
er,

 
Ch

ild
ren

 w
ith

ou
t a

 
sc

ho
ol 

pla
ce

 
  Liz

 Vi
ck

eri
e  

He
ad

, S
up

po
rt f

or 
Le

arn
ing

  S
erv

ice
 

   On
-go

ing
 w

ork
 

     Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 

R1
4  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il e
nh

an
ce

 
yo

uth
 se

rvi
ce

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 bo
th 

the
 

qu
ali

ty 
of 

fac
iliti

es
 w

ith
in 

ce
ntr

es
 

an
d t

he
 op

era
tin

g d
ay

s/h
ou

rs.
  

Ad
dit

ion
al 

fun
din

g s
ho

uld
 be

 se
t 

as
ide

 to
 ex

pa
nd

 si
gn

ific
an

tly
 yo

uth
 

se
rvi

ce
s o

n o
ffe

r w
ith

in 
at 

lea
st 

tw
o 

wa
rds

 fo
r a

 pe
rio

d o
f tw

o y
ea

rs.
  

Th
e Y

ou
th 

Se
rvi

ce
 sh

ou
ld 

un
de

rta
ke

 a 
tho

rou
gh

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
, 

wit
h y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le,
 pa

ren
ts 

an
d 

sc
ho

ols
 to

 un
de

rst
an

d w
ha

t w
ou

ld 

£1
m 

rev
en

ue
 fu

nd
ing

 ha
s n

ow
 be

en
 id

en
tifi

ed
 

to 
loo

k a
t o

pe
rat

ing
 Yo

uth
 C

lub
s d

uri
ng

 un
-

so
cia

l h
ou

rs 
inc

lud
ing

 w
ee

k-e
nd

 pr
ov

isio
n. 

 
 Co

ns
ult

ati
on

 on
 ho

w 
the

 £1
m 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 sp
en

t 
ha

s a
lre

ad
y s

tar
ted

. O
n 2

3rd
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

the
 Yo

uth
 Se

rvi
ce

 ha
d a

 jo
int

 pr
ov

ide
r’s

 aw
ay

 
da

y w
hic

h i
nc

lud
ed

 co
ntr

ac
tua

l p
rov

ide
rs,

 
wh

o o
ffe

r y
ou

th 
se

rvi
ce

 w
ork

 in
 To

we
r 

Ha
ml

ets
 an

d a
re 

res
po

ns
ibl

e f
or 

sp
en

din
g t

he
 

£1
m.

 
 

Din
ar 

Ho
ss

ain
  

Int
eri

m 
He

ad
 of

 Yo
uth

 
an

d C
om

mu
nit

y S
erv

ice
 

         

Pr
oje

ct 
de

live
ry 

fro
m 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
08

. 
          

Page 199



84
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
Da

te 
be

 m
os

t a
ttra

cti
ve

 in
 he

lpi
ng

 yo
un

g 
pe

op
le 

sta
y o

ff t
he

 st
ree

ts 
Th

e a
wa

y d
ay

 ga
ve

 us
 th

e o
pp

ort
un

ity
 to

 
co

ns
ult

 w
ith

 th
e c

on
tra

ctu
al 

pro
vid

ers
 on

 ho
w 

the
 £1

m 
rev

en
ue

 fu
nd

ing
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 sp

en
t.  

 
 Ac

tio
n: 

 
 A b

rie
fin

g d
oc

um
en

t, t
ha

t s
ets

 ou
t T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 vi

sio
n o

f w
he

re 
the

 fu
nd

ing
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 sp

en
t, w

ill b
e d

isp
atc

he
d t

o a
ll c

on
tra

ctu
al 

pro
vid

ers
. 

  

    Din
ar 

Ho
ss

ain
  

Int
eri

m 
He

ad
 of

 Yo
uth

 
an

d C
om

mu
nit

y S
erv

ice
 

    En
d o

f S
ep

tem
be

r 2
00

8 

                 

Page 200



85
 

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

10
 

 Ac
tio

n P
lan

 - R
es
po

ns
e t

o S
cru

tin
y C

ha
lle

ng
e S

es
sio

n o
n D

ete
rm

ina
tio

n o
f M

ajo
r P

lan
nin

g A
pp

lic
ati

on
s 

 Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
  

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
 

R1
    

  T
ha

t D
ev

elo
pm

en
t a

nd
 R

en
ew

al 
se

ek
 to

 im
pro

ve
 re

sid
en

t 
inv

olv
em

en
t th

rou
gh

 ho
ldi

ng
 

se
ss

ion
s t

ha
t h

elp
 su

pp
ort

 an
d g

ive
 

gu
ida

nc
e a

bo
ut 

pro
po

se
d 

de
ve

lop
me

nts
. T

his
 w

ou
ld 

giv
e 

res
ide

nts
 th

e c
on

fid
en

ce
 to

 
ex

erc
ise

 an
d e

xte
nd

 in
vo

lve
me

nt 
to 

its
 fu

lle
st 

po
ten

tia
l.  

 

Pla
nn

ing
 pr

oc
es

s t
rai

nin
g s

es
sio

ns
 to

 be
 of

fer
ed

 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e L

AP
 ne

tw
ork

 to
 lo

ca
l re

sid
en

ts.
 

 
Du

rin
g 

20
08

/9 
 

Of
fic

ers
 fro

m 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Co
ntr

ol 
an

d D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

Sc
he

me
s a

tte
nd

ed
 su

ch
 

se
ss

ion
s i

n e
arl

y 2
00

8 t
o 

inf
orm

 an
d d

isc
us

s w
ith

 LA
P 

me
mb

ers
 an

d r
es

ide
nts

 th
e 

pla
nn

ing
 pr

oc
es

s a
nd

 le
ga

l 
(S

10
6) 

ag
ree

me
nts

. 
CO

MP
LE

TE
D 

R2
  

Pu
bli

c m
ee

tin
gs

 on
 Pr

e-P
lan

nin
g 

Ap
pli

ca
tio

ns
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 he

ld 
du

rin
g  

  
da

yti
me

 at
 w

ee
ke

nd
s t

o m
ax

im
ise

 
co

mm
un

ity
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n. 

  

Of
fic

er 
req

ue
sts

 to
 ho

ld 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Fo

rum
s a

t 
we

ek
en

ds
 ha

ve
 no

t b
ee

n w
ell

 re
ce

ive
d b

y 
ap

pli
ca

nts
 an

d r
es

ist
ed

 in
 al

l in
sta

nc
es

.  
Ne

ve
rth

ele
ss

, o
ffic

ers
 ha

ve
 en

co
ura

ge
d 

ex
hib

itio
ns

 of
 ve

ry 
lar

ge
 sc

he
me

s t
o t

ak
e p

lac
e a

t 
we

ek
en

ds
 in

 su
ita

ble
 ve

nu
es

 an
d h

av
e b

ee
n 

lar
ge

ly 
su

cc
es

sfu
l in

 ac
hie

vin
g t

his
. A

tte
nd

an
ce

 
at 

ev
en

ing
 C

om
mu

nit
y F

oru
ms

 ha
s b

ee
n v

ery
 

he
alt

hy
 in

 al
mo

st 
all

 in
sta

nc
es

 an
d t

he
ir c

on
ten

t 
an

d u
se

ful
ne

ss
 ha

ve
 be

en
 pr

ais
ed

 w
ide

ly.
    

 

Vie
w 

tak
en

 
ov

er 
ne

xt 
6 

mo
nth

s 
 

Of
fic

er 
req

ue
sts

 to
 ho

ld 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Fo

rum
s a

t 
we

ek
en

ds
 ha

ve
 no

t b
ee

n 
we

ll r
ec

eiv
ed

 by
 ap

pli
ca

nts
 

an
d r

es
ist

ed
 in

 al
l in

sta
nc

es
.  

Ne
ve

rth
ele

ss
, o

ffic
ers

 ha
ve

 
en

co
ura

ge
d e

xh
ibi

tio
ns

 of
 

ve
ry 

lar
ge

 sc
he

me
s t

o t
ak

e 
pla

ce
 at

 w
ee

ke
nd

s i
n 

su
ita

ble
 ve

nu
es

 an
d h

av
e 

be
en

 la
rge

ly 
su

cc
es

sfu
l in

 
ac

hie
vin

g t
his

. A
tte

nd
an

ce
 at

 
ev

en
ing

 C
om

mu
nit

y F
oru

ms
 

ha
s b

ee
n v

ery
 he

alt
hy

 in
 

Page 201



86
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
  

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
 

alm
os

t a
ll in

sta
nc

es
 an

d 
the

ir c
on

ten
t a

nd
 us

efu
lne

ss
 

ha
ve

 be
en

 pr
ais

ed
 w

ide
ly.

  
CO

MP
LE

TE
D 

R3
 

An
 ex

ter
na

l fa
cili

tat
or 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 
as

ke
d t

o c
ha

ir p
ub

lic 
me

eti
ng

s t
o 

en
su

re 
its

 sm
oo

th 
run

nin
g a

nd
 

av
oid

 ac
cu

sa
tio

ns
 of

 bi
as

. 
    

Ap
pli

ca
nts

 ha
ve

 re
sis

ted
 pa

yin
g f

or 
an

 
“in

de
pe

nd
en

t fa
cila

tor
” o

n c
os

t g
rou

nd
s, 

pre
fer

rin
g i

ns
tea

d t
o u

se
 th

eir
 ow

n (
alr

ea
dy

 hi
red

) 
PR

/co
mm

un
ica

tio
n c

on
su

lta
nts

. T
he

 re
su

lts
 of

 
us

ing
 th

es
e c

on
su

lta
nts

 to
 ru

n m
ee

tin
gs

 ha
ve

 
be

en
 m

ixe
d a

nd
 le

ss
 ef

fec
tiv

e t
ha

n w
he

n r
un

 by
 

off
ice

rs.
 Th

is 
ap

pe
ars

 to
 be

 be
ca

us
e o

ffic
ers

 ar
e 

se
en

 as
 ‘n

eu
tra

l’, 
wh

ilst
 th

e a
pp

lica
nt’

s 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 co

ns
ult

an
ts 

are
 se

en
 as

 be
ing

 
co

nn
ec

ted
 to

 th
e a

pp
lica

nt 
an

d t
he

ref
ore

 bi
as

ed
. 

 

On
-go

ing
 – 

rev
iew

ed
 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
08

 
 

Ap
pli

ca
nts

 ha
ve

 re
sis

ted
 

pa
yin

g f
or 

an
 “in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
fac

ila
tor

” o
n c

os
t g

rou
nd

s, 
pre

fer
rin

g i
ns

tea
d t

o u
se

 
the

ir o
wn

 (a
lre

ad
y h

ire
d) 

PR
/co

mm
un

ica
tio

n 
co

ns
ult

an
ts.

 Th
e r

es
ult

s o
f 

us
ing

 th
es

e c
on

su
lta

nts
 to

 
run

 m
ee

tin
gs

 ha
ve

 be
en

 
mi

xe
d a

nd
 le

ss
 ef

fec
tiv

e 
tha

n w
he

n r
un

 by
 of

fic
ers

. 
Th

is 
ap

pe
ars

 to
 be

 be
ca

us
e 

off
ice

rs 
are

 se
en

 as
 ‘n

eu
tra

l’, 
wh

ilst
 th

e a
pp

lica
nt’

s 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 co

ns
ult

an
ts 

are
 se

en
 as

 be
ing

 
co

nn
ec

ted
 to

 th
e a

pp
lica

nt 
an

d t
he

ref
ore

 bi
as

ed
. 

CO
MP

LE
TE

D 
R4

 
Lis

ts 
of 

cu
rre

nt 
an

d f
ort

hc
om

ing
 

Ma
jor

 Pl
an

nin
g A

pp
lica

tio
ns

 to
 be

 
cir

cu
lat

ed
 to

 al
l C

ou
nc

illo
rs.

 
Cu

rre
nt 

ap
pli

ca
tio

ns
’ lis

ts 
are

 al
rea

dy
 se

nt 
to 

me
mb

ers
 an

d l
ea

d m
em

be
rs 

are
 br

ief
ed

 on
 

req
ue

st 
by

 th
e H

ea
ds

 of
 Se

rvi
ce

. A
 st

ud
y i

s 
cu

rre
ntl

y u
nd

erw
ay

 in
 co

nju
nc

tio
n w

ith
 Le

ga
l 

Se
rvi

ce
s t

o i
mp

rov
e m

em
be

r in
vo

lve
me

nt 
in 

Fro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
08

 
A s

tud
y h

as
 be

en
 co

mp
let

ed
 

in 
co

nju
nc

tio
n w

ith
 Le

ga
l 

Se
rvi

ce
s t

o i
mp

rov
e m

em
be

r 
inv

olv
em

en
t in

 m
ajo

r 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 pr
ior

 to
 th

eir
 

Page 202



87
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
  

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
 

ma
jor

 ap
pli

ca
tio

ns
 pr

ior
 to

 th
eir

 re
po

rtin
g a

t 
Str

ate
gic

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e. 

Th
is 

ha
s t

o 
be

 ca
ref

ull
y s

et 
up

 du
e t

o p
rob

ity
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

s. 
It i

s b
ein

g u
nd

ert
ak

en
 in

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ith
 th

e 
ch

air
 of

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t c
om

mi
tte

es
. 

 

rep
ort

ing
 at

 St
rat

eg
ic 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Co

mm
itte

e. 
Th

is 
ha

s t
o b

e c
are

ful
ly 

se
t 

up
 du

e t
o p

rob
ity

 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

s. 
Co

ns
ult

ati
on

 
wit

h t
he

 ch
air

 of
 th

e 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

co
mm

itte
es

 to
 

tak
e p

lac
e s

ho
rtly

. 
 

R5
  

Th
at 

do
cu

me
nts

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 
pre

pa
red

 to
 gu

ide
 lo

ca
l re

sid
en

ts 
co

nfr
on

ted
  w

ith
 th

e c
om

ple
xit

y o
f 

pla
nn

ing
 ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 an
d 

leg
isla

tio
n, 

wit
h a

dv
ice

 an
d p

rac
tic

al 
su

pp
ort

 to
 en

ab
le 

the
m 

to 
su

pp
ort

 
or 

ob
jec

t to
 ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

  th
at 

aff
ec

t 
the

m.
 Th

is 
wo

uld
 in

clu
de

 gu
ida

nc
e 

in 
sim

ple
 la

ng
ua

ge
 on

 w
ha

t is
 a 

ma
ter

ial
 pl

an
nin

g c
on

sid
era

tio
n, 

ho
w 

to 
co

mm
en

t o
n p

lan
nin

g 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

, h
ow

 th
e c

ou
nc

il 
de

ter
mi

ne
s a

pp
lica

tio
ns

 et
c. 

Me
mb

ers
’ s

ug
ge

sti
on

s o
n w

ha
t 

typ
e o

f g
uid

an
ce

 m
igh

t a
ss

ist
 

co
ns

titu
en

ts 
co

uld
 be

 co
ns

ide
red

. 
  

A c
om

pre
he

ns
ive

 su
ite

 of
 gu

ida
nc

e n
ote

s h
av

e 
be

en
 co

mp
let

ed
 an

d p
ub

lici
se

d. 
Th

e p
lan

nin
g 

pa
ge

s o
n t

he
 co

un
cil’

s w
eb

 si
te 

ha
ve

 al
so

 be
en

 
ex

ten
siv

ely
 re

vis
ed

 to
 im

pro
ve

 th
eir

 ut
ility

 to
 th

e 
pu

bli
c. 

Th
e n

ote
s a

re 
av

ail
ab

le 
bo

th 
in 

the
 

pla
nn

ing
 re

ce
pti

on
 an

d o
n t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 w

eb
sit

e. 

Ad
vic

e n
ote

s 
pu

bli
sh

ed
 on

 
we

b A
pri

l 
20

08
 

 

A c
om

pre
he

ns
ive

 su
ite

 of
 

gu
ida

nc
e n

ote
s h

av
e b

ee
n 

co
mp

let
ed

 an
d p

ub
lici

se
d. 

Th
e p

lan
nin

g p
ag

es
 on

 th
e 

co
un

cil’
s w

eb
 si

te 
ha

ve
 al

so
 

be
en

 ex
ten

siv
ely

 re
vis

ed
 to

 
im

pro
ve

 th
eir

 ut
ility

 to
 th

e 
pu

bli
c. 

Th
e n

ote
s a

re 
av

ail
ab

le 
bo

th 
in 

the
 

pla
nn

ing
 re

ce
pti

on
 an

d o
n 

the
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 w

eb
sit

e. 
CO

MP
LE

TE
D 

Page 203



88
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
  

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
 

R6
 

Re
se

arc
h i

nto
 ot

he
r L

oc
al 

Au
tho

riti
es

 sh
ou

ld 
tak

e p
lac

e t
o s

ee
 

be
st 

pra
cti

ce
 w

he
n c

on
su

ltin
g w

ith
 

res
ide

nts
. T

his
 m

igh
t h

elp
 de

ve
lop

 
an

d i
mp

rov
e t

he
 de

live
ry 

of 
se

rvi
ce

. 
  

Th
e S

erv
ice

 H
ea

d w
ill c

arr
y o

ut 
thi

s a
ud

it i
n t

he
 

firs
t q

ua
rte

r o
f 2

00
9 t

o e
na

ble
 w

ha
t in

 m
an

y 
ca

se
s a

re 
rec

en
tly

 in
tro

du
ce

d p
roc

ed
ure

s t
o b

ed
 

in 
an

d r
ev

ea
l b

es
t p

rac
tis

e. 
 Au

dit
 by

 
Ap

ril 
20

09
 

Th
e S

erv
ice

 H
ea

d w
ill c

arr
y 

ou
t th

is 
au

dit
 in

 th
e f

irs
t 

qu
art

er 
of 

20
09

 to
 en

ab
le 

wh
at 

in 
ma

ny
 ca

se
s a

re 
rec

en
tly

 in
tro

du
ce

d 
pro

ce
du

res
 to

 be
d i

n a
nd

 
rev

ea
l b

es
t p

rac
tis

e. 
R7

    
  S

up
po

rt w
ith

 an
y t

rai
nin

g n
ee

ds
 th

at 
ma

y h
elp

 M
em

be
rs 

be
co

me
 

inv
olv

ed
 m

ore
. 

 

Co
mp

let
ed

 – 
tra

ini
ng

 on
 le

ga
l (S

10
6) 

ag
ree

me
nts

, d
ev

elo
pm

en
t fi

na
nc

e a
nd

 th
e L

DF
 

pro
ce

ss
 ha

ve
 be

en
 un

de
rta

ke
n. 

Fu
rth

er 
on

-go
ing

 
tra

ini
ng

 se
ss

ion
s w

ill f
oll

ow
 in

 du
e c

ou
rse

 in
 

res
po

ns
e t

o e
me

rgi
ng

 ne
ed

s a
nd

 re
qu

es
ts.

  
 

On
-go

ing
 – 

rev
iew

 Ap
ril 

20
09

 
 

Co
mp

let
ed

 – 
tra

ini
ng

 on
 

leg
al 

(S
10

6) 
ag

ree
me

nts
, 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
fin

an
ce

 an
d 

the
 LD

F p
roc

es
s h

av
e b

ee
n 

un
de

rta
ke

n. 
Pla

nn
ing

 
pro

ce
du

res
 an

d p
rob

ity
 

up
da

tes
 ha

ve
 be

en
 ru

n f
or 

me
mb

ers
 of

 th
e 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Co

mm
itte

es
. 

Fu
rth

er 
on

-go
ing

 tra
ini

ng
 

se
ss

ion
s w

ill f
oll

ow
 in

 du
e 

co
urs

e i
n r

es
po

ns
e t

o 
em

erg
ing

 ne
ed

s a
nd

 
req

ue
sts

. 
CO

MP
LE

TE
D 

      

Page 204



89
 

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

11
 

Re
sp

on
se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n G
rad

ua
te 

Un
em

plo
ym

en
t 

 
Th

e W
ork

ing
 G

rou
p r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s f
oc

us
 on

 ar
ea

s r
eq

uir
ing

 co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 an

d a
cti

on
 by

 th
e C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 ot
he

r o
rga

nis
ati

on
s 

wo
rki

ng
 to

 su
pp

ort
 lo

ca
l g

rad
ua

tes
 in

to 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 em

plo
ym

en
t a

nd
 tra

ini
ng

.  I
t is

 im
po

rta
nt 

to 
str

es
s t

ha
t im

pro
vin

g t
he

 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r lo

ca
l g

rad
ua

tes
 to

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
the

ir e
mp

loy
me

nt 
sk

ills
 an

d e
nte

r a
pp

rop
ria

te 
lev

el 
rol

es
 is

 no
t th

e r
es

po
ns

ibi
lity

 of
 

on
e a

ge
nc

y, 
it's

 so
me

thi
ng

 th
at 

ma
ny

 di
ffe

ren
t o

rga
nis

ati
on

s c
an

 he
lp 

co
ntr

ibu
te 

to.
  T

ha
t's

 w
hy

 w
e'r

e d
ire

cti
ng

 ou
r re

po
rt a

nd
 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s t
o t

he
 To

we
r H

am
let

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

's 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Pl

an
 Ac

tio
n G

rou
ps

 (C
PA

Gs
). 

  Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
 

R1
 

Th
e E

mp
loy

me
nt 

Ta
sk

 G
rou

p 
co

mm
iss

ion
s r

es
ea

rch
 to

 
es

tab
lish

 th
e e

xte
nt 

an
d n

atu
re 

of 
gra

du
ate

 un
em

plo
ym

en
t a

nd
 

un
de

rem
plo

ym
en

t in
 th

e 
bo

rou
gh

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 a 
ba

se
lin

e t
o 

inf
orm

 fu
tur

e a
cti

on
. 

 

No
 fu

nd
ing

 id
en

tifi
ed

 fo
r fu

rth
er 

res
ea

rch
 

No
v 0

7 
Co

mm
en

ts 
sti

ll s
tan

d 

R2
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il e
xp

an
ds

 in
-ho

us
e 

gra
du

ate
 tra

ini
ng

 to
 m

ax
im

ise
 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r g
rad

ua
tes

 to
 

ga
in 

sk
ills

, e
xp

eri
en

ce
 an

d 
pro

fes
sio

na
l q

ua
lific

ati
on

s i
n a

 
pu

bli
c s

ec
tor

 w
ork

pla
ce

 se
ttin

g, 
reg

ard
les

s o
f th

eir
 et

hn
ic 

ba
ck

gro
un

d. 
 

9 l
oc

al 
gra

du
ate

s w
ere

 ta
ke

n o
n i

n 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

07
 un

de
r th

e r
ev

ise
d s

ch
em

e 
wh

ich
 w

as
 al

ign
ed

 w
ith

 th
e N

ati
on

al 
Gr

ad
ua

te 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Pr
og

ram
me

 to
 

ref
lec

t th
e s

am
e l

ev
el 

of 
rem

un
era

tio
n. 

Lo
ca

l 
gra

du
ate

s a
re 

en
ga

ge
d o

n a
 tw

o y
ea

r fi
xe

d 
ter

m 
co

ntr
ac

t. 8
 of

 th
e 9

 lo
ca

l g
rad

ua
tes

 ar
e 

Ba
ng

lad
es

hi 
an

d t
he

 ot
he

r lo
ca

l g
rad

ua
te 

wh
o h

as
 re

ce
ntl

y l
eft

 th
e s

ch
em

e i
s S

om
ali

. 
Th

e s
ch

em
e p

rov
ide

s f
or 

loc
al 

gra
du

ate
s t

o 

Oc
t 0

7 
  

HR
 ne

ed
 to

 co
mm

en
t 

 

Page 205



90
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
 

un
de

rta
ke

 fo
ur,

 6 
mo

nth
ly 

pla
ce

me
nts

 
ac

ros
s c

ou
nc

il d
ire

cto
rat

es
 w

hil
st 

wo
rki

ng
 

tow
ard

s a
 Po

stg
rad

ua
te 

Dip
lom

a i
n P

ub
lic 

an
d C

om
mu

nit
y S

erv
ice

. 
In 

ad
dit

ion
, th

e L
oc

al 
Gr

ad
ua

te 
Po

sit
ive

 
Ac

tio
n S

ch
em

e w
hic

h a
lso

 co
mm

en
ce

d i
n 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
07

, e
ng

ag
ed

 4 
loc

al 
BM

E 
gra

du
ate

s (
3 B

an
gla

de
sh

i, 1
 Bl

ac
k 

Ca
rib

be
an

) w
ho

 be
ga

n a
 di

rec
t c

ou
rse

 of
 

stu
dy

 in
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 ar
ea

s: 
Oc

cu
pa

tio
na

l T
he

rap
y, 

Le
ga

l a
nd

 Pl
an

nin
g. 

Th
e t

wo
 gr

ad
ua

te 
tra

ine
e o

cc
up

ati
on

al 
the

rap
ist

s r
em

ain
 in

 fu
ll t

im
e s

tud
y, 

the
 le

ga
l 

gra
du

ate
 tra

ine
e h

as
 le

ft t
he

 sc
he

me
 an

d t
he

 
Pla

nn
ing

 gr
ad

ua
te 

tra
ine

e h
as

 be
en

 of
fer

ed
 

a t
em

po
rar

y c
on

tra
ct 

wit
h t

he
 co

un
cil 

R3
 

A T
as

k G
rou

p i
s e

sta
bli

sh
ed

 to
 

ch
am

pio
n e

mp
loy

me
nt 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r lo
ca

l 
gra

du
ate

s, 
an

d t
o c

oo
rdi

na
te 

ini
tia

tiv
es

 to
 ac

hie
ve

 th
is.

  T
his

 
sh

ou
ld 

inc
lud

e C
ou

nc
il o

ffic
ers

, 
em

plo
ye

rs,
 un

ive
rsi

tie
s a

nd
 

gra
du

ate
s.  

 

M
em

b
er

s 
o
f 
th

e
 t

as
k 

gr
o
u
p
: 

Sa
lly

 R
o
b
er

ts
 

- 
E
L
B

A
 (

C
h
ai

r)
 

So
n
ia

 C
h
u
m

b
er

- 
Sk

ill
sm

at
ch

 
Sh

am
so

l 
H

o
q
u
e-

 T
o
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 C

o
lle

ge
 

A
n
d
re

w
 A

tt
fie

ld
- 

T
o
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
 P

C
T

 
R

eh
an

a 
B

eg
u
m

- 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 M

et
ro

p
o
lit

an
 U

n
iv

er
si

ty
 

A
h
m

ed
 M

o
h
am

ed
- 

C
ar

ee
rs

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Fu
tu

re
s 

P
at

ri
ci

a 
N

n
ad

i-
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 M

et
ro

p
o
lit

an
 U

n
iv

er
si

ty
 

Sa
mu

l A
lom

 – 
Ex

 C
AT

S E
LB

A 
 Th

e g
rou

p h
av

e m
et 

for
ma

lly 
tw

ice
 an

d h
av

e 
ha

d l
ots

 of
 em

ail
 co

nta
ct 

be
tw

ee
n m

ee
tin

gs
. 

Ta
sk

 G
rou

p 
es

tab
lish

ed
 

Se
pt 

07
 

Th
e t

as
k g

rou
p i

s c
urr

en
tly

 
co

ns
ide

rin
g a

cti
vit

y f
or 

thi
s 

su
mm

er’
s g

rad
ua

tes
 as

 th
ey

 w
ill 

be
 ca

su
alt

y’s
 of

 th
e d

ow
ntu

rn 
in 

the
 ec

on
om

y. 
 Pe

nd
ing

 W
NF

 
all

oc
ati

on
 fo

r a
ny

 sp
ec

ific
 ac

tiv
ity

. 

Page 206



91
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
 

 Th
is 

inf
orm

ati
on

 ha
s b

ee
n f

ed
 ba

ck
 th

rou
gh

 
the

 Em
plo

ym
en

t ta
sk

 G
rou

p 
 

R4
 

Th
e T

as
k G

rou
p e

xp
lor

es
:  

• 
us

ing
 Sk

ills
ma

tch
 to

 
de

ve
lop

 vo
lun

tee
rin

g o
r 

se
co

nd
me

nt 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 
for

 gr
ad

ua
tes

 to
 ga

in 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e o

f w
ork

ing
 in

 
loc

al 
co

mp
an

ies
 an

d 
org

an
isa

tio
ns

 
• 

de
ve

lop
ing

 a 
me

nto
rin

g 
sc

he
me

 fo
r lo

ca
l 

gra
du

ate
s. 

 

Th
e S

kill
sm

atc
h p

rog
ram

me
 ha

s a
ss

ist
ed

 23
 

gra
du

ate
s i

nto
 em

plo
ym

en
t b

etw
ee

n A
pri

l 0
8 

an
d S

ep
t 0

8. 
  

 Th
rou

gh
 th

is 
pro

gra
mm

e a
nd

 th
e g

rad
ua

te 
pro

gra
mm

es
 of

fer
ed

 by
 TH

 C
oll

eg
e a

t le
as

t 
55

 gr
ad

ua
tes

 ar
e c

urr
en

tly
 be

ing
 as

sis
ted

 
thr

ou
gh

 a 
va

rie
ty 

of 
pro

gra
mm

es
 lin

ke
d t

o 
em

plo
ye

r o
pp

ort
un

itie
s. 

 Th
e m

en
tor

ing
 sc

he
me

 is
 st

ill b
ein

g 
de

ve
lop

ed
 by

 EL
BA

.  Q
ue

en
 M

ary
’s 

an
d 

Lo
nd

on
 M

et 
bo

th 
ha

ve
 ex

ist
ing

 m
en

tor
ing

 
pro

gra
mm

e a
nd

 TH
C 

ha
s s

ug
ge

ste
d 

ex
ten

din
g i

t’s
  e

xis
tin

g m
en

tor
ing

 
pro

gra
mm

es
 to

 lo
ca

l u
ne

mp
loy

ed
 gr

ad
ua

tes
. 

   

Qu
art

erl
y 

rep
ort

s t
o 

CP
AG

 
Sk

ills
ma

tch
 cu

rre
ntl

y o
ffe

r a
 12

 
we

ek
 pa

id 
wo

rk 
pla

ce
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

e f
or 

gra
du

ate
s. 

32
 

gra
du

ate
s h

av
e t

ak
en

 pa
rt i

n t
he

 
pro

gra
mm

e s
inc

e A
pri

l 0
8. 

  

R5
 

Th
e T

as
k G

rou
p e

xp
lor

es
:  

• 
ho

w 
to 

ide
nti

fy 
the

 ke
y 

em
plo

ym
en

t s
kill

s 
sh

ort
ag

es
 no

w 
an

d i
n t

he
 

fut
ure

 ba
se

d o
n t

he
 lik

ely
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 lo

ca
l 

lab
ou

r m
ark

et 
pro

jec
ted

 in
 

Th
e E

me
rgi

ng
 Em

plo
ym

en
t S

tra
teg

y o
ffe

rs 
ba

ck
gro

un
d t

o e
mp

loy
me

nt 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 
an

d g
row

th 
se

cto
rs 

of 
em

plo
ym

en
t a

nd
 ha

s 
be

en
 de

ve
lop

ed
 in

 co
nju

nc
tio

n w
ith

 th
e 

Em
plo

ym
en

t T
as

k G
rou

p. 
Th

e g
rou

p h
as

 id
en

tifi
ed

 cu
rre

nt 
ini

tia
tiv

es
 

an
d s

ha
red

 be
st 

pra
cti

ce
.  I

t h
as

 al
so

 

Ev
ide

nc
e b

as
e 

av
ail

ab
le 

 
Ja

nu
ary

 08
 

    

  Pr
ev

iou
s r

es
po

ns
e s

till 
sta

nd
s 

Page 207



92
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
 

the
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Re

ge
ne

rat
ion

 St
rat

eg
y 

• 
the

 be
st 

me
an

s o
f 

im
pro

vin
g t

he
 ra

ng
e a

nd
 

rel
ev

an
ce

 of
 ca

ree
rs 

ad
vic

e t
o t

he
 lo

ca
l la

bo
ur 

ma
rke

t. 
 

 

dis
cu

ss
ed

 w
ay

s o
f d

iss
em

ina
tin

g t
he

 
inf

orm
ati

on
 to

 lo
ca

l u
nd

erg
rad

ua
tes

 an
d 

gra
du

ate
s a

s w
ell

 as
 al

l lo
ca

l a
ge

nc
ies

 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith

 gr
ad

ua
tes

. 
De

sti
na

tio
n d

ata
 is

 no
w 

av
ail

ab
le 

at 
un

ive
rsi

tie
s a

nd
 th

e r
ep

res
en

tat
ive

 fro
m 

Lo
nd

on
 M

et 
 ha

s a
gre

ed
 to

 co
ord

ina
te 

thi
s 

da
ta.

 
 

    Ad
vic

e 
inf

orm
ati

on
 

av
ail

ab
le 

in 
lea

fle
t fo

rm
 by

 
Ma

rch
 08

. 
 

R6
 

Th
e T

as
k G

rou
p s

up
po

rt a
nd

 
mo

nit
or 

the
 pr

op
os

ed
 Ea

st 
Lo

nd
on

 Bu
sin

es
s A

llia
nc

e 
(E

LB
A)

 an
d Q

ue
en

 M
ary

 
Un

ive
rsi

ty 
Gr

ad
ua

te 
Ne

tw
ork

 
pil

ot 
to 

inc
rea

se
 th

e 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r lo

ca
l g

rad
ua

tes
 

to 
me

et 
loc

al 
em

plo
ye

rs 
an

d t
o 

co
ns

ide
r h

ow
 th

is 
ca

n b
e 

ex
ten

de
d a

cro
ss

 th
e b

oro
ug

h.  
 

Th
e p

ilo
t, k

no
wn

 as
 th

e E
LB

A B
us

ine
ss

 
Clu

b, 
wa

s e
xte

nd
ed

 to
 in

clu
de

 ot
he

r lo
ca

l 
un

ive
rsi

tie
s: 

Lo
nd

on
 M

etr
op

oli
tan

, Q
ue

en
 

Ma
ry’

s a
nd

 G
ree

nw
ich

.  T
he

 pi
lot

 w
as

 ve
ry 

su
cc

es
sfu

l a
nd

 th
e s

ch
em

e w
ill b

e r
ep

lica
ted

 
in 

the
 sp

rin
g 2

00
9. 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 ab
ou

t th
e p

rog
ram

me
 is

 
av

ail
ab

le.
 

Fe
b 0

8 
EL

BA
 cu

rre
ntl

y w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 

QM
W

 to
 id

en
tify

 ac
tiv

ity
. 

 Pr
op

os
al 

be
ing

 co
ns

ide
red

 
thr

ou
gh

 W
NF

 

R7
 

Th
e T

as
k G

rou
p d

ev
elo

p f
urt

he
r 

the
 lin

ks
 be

tw
ee

n s
ch

oo
ls 

an
d 

em
plo

ye
rs 

by
 co

ord
ina

tin
g a

nd
 

fac
ilita

tin
g c

are
ers

 w
ork

sh
op

s /
 

ad
vic

e s
es

sio
ns

 be
tw

ee
n a

ll 
ag

en
cie

s.  
 

A p
roj

ec
t to

 he
lp 

stu
de

nts
 w

ith
 th

eir
 U

CA
S 

for
ms

 w
as

 su
cc

es
sfu

lly 
pil

ote
d b

etw
ee

n 
gra

du
ate

s a
t C

red
it S

uis
se

 an
d s

ixt
h f

orm
ers

 
fro

m 
Ce

ntr
al 

Fo
un

da
tio

n S
ch

oo
l fo

r G
irls

 an
d 

wil
l b

e r
ep

lica
ted

 w
ith

 G
eo

rge
 G

ree
n S

ch
oo

l 
an

d C
red

it S
uis

se
 in

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
8. 

 

Fe
b 0

8 
On

go
ing

 

Page 208



93
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– F

eb
ru
ary

 20
09
 

A  
co

nfe
ren

ce
 fa

cili
tat

ed
 by

 EL
BA

 an
d U

EL
 

ca
lle

d R
ais

ing
 th

e B
ar 

too
k p

lac
e i

n J
un

e 
20

08
. 

 Ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

• 
To

 ge
t c

om
mi

tm
en

t fr
om

 ac
ad

em
ics

 
an

d l
ec

tur
ers

 to
 th

eir
 ro

le 
in 

pre
pa

rin
g 

stu
de

nts
 to

 ta
ke

 ad
va

nta
ge

 of
 

ec
on

om
ic 

reg
en

era
tio

n o
f E

as
t 

Lo
nd

on
 

• 
T

o
 o

p
en

 t
h
e 

d
ia

lo
gu

e 
b
et

w
ee

n
 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 a
n
d
 e

d
u
ca

to
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
rt

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f 
th

em
 b

u
ild

in
g 

m
o
re

 f
ru

it
fu

l 
an

d
 p

ro
d
u
ct

iv
e 

re
la

ti
o
n
sh

ip
 w

it
h
 

b
u
si

n
es

se
s 

• 
T

o
 i
d
en

ti
fy

 w
ay

 f
o
rw

ar
d
 a

n
d
 n

ew
 

p
ro

gr
am

m
es

. 
 

 
T

h
e 

gr
o
u
p
 a

gr
e
ed

 t
h
at

 i
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e 

u
se

fu
l 
to

 r
o
ll 

o
u
t 

th
is

 i
n
it
ia

ti
ve

 t
o
 o

th
er

 l
o
ca

l 
u
n
iv

er
si

ti
e
s.
 

 
 No

te:
 Al

l a
cti

vit
y a

nd
 pr

og
res

s a
ga

ins
t a

cti
on

 pl
an

 w
ill b

e m
on

ito
red

 an
d m

inu
ted

 by
 th

e T
as

k G
rou

p a
nd

 re
po

rte
d b

ac
k t

o C
PA

G 
in 

qu
art

erl
y r

ep
ort

s. 
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

12
 

Re
sp

on
se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y C
ha

lle
ng

e S
es
sio

n o
n t

he
 Yo

uth
 Se

rvi
ce
 Pl

an
  

 

Page 209



94
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

R1
 T

ha
t a

 M
em

be
rs 

se
mi

na
r b

e 
org

an
ise

d t
o i

nfo
rm

 M
em

be
rs 

ab
ou

t 
the

 JA
R,

 Ai
mi

ng
 hi

gh
 an

d a
rea

s 
rai

se
d i

n s
cru

tin
y r

ev
iew

. 
  • 

Fu
nd

ing
 le

ve
red

 in
 by

 co
ntr

ac
tor

s 
• 

Co
ntr

ac
tin

g a
nd

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

  
• 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

for
ma

tio
n a

nd
 

co
mp

ara
tiv

e d
ata

 ac
ros

s t
he

 LA
P 

are
as

  
• 

Ac
ce

ss
ibi

lity
 fo

r d
isa

ble
d p

eo
ple

 
an

d w
ha

t is
 be

ing
 do

ne
 to

 
en

co
ura

ge
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n 

• 
Fu

tur
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

ts 
of 

yo
uth

 
pro

vis
ion

 an
d a

cc
om

mo
da

tio
n 

ac
ros

s L
AP

 ar
ea

s  
• 

Pr
ov

isio
ns

 m
ad

e f
or 

gir
ls 

 

RE
CO

MM
EN

DA
TIO

N 
FU

LL
Y 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TE
D 

 Th
e M

em
be

rs 
Se

mi
na

r w
en

t a
he

ad
 as

 
pla

nn
ed

 on
 th

e 1
9th

 Ju
ne

 an
d w

as
 w

ell
 

att
en

de
d. 

 Th
e t

hre
e b

rie
fin

g n
ote

s a
nd

 th
e Q

A 
fra

me
wo

rk 
wa

s d
ist

rib
ute

d a
t th

e 
se

mi
na

r a
nd

 is
 av

ail
ab

le 
fro

m 
Yo

uth
 

Se
rvi

ce
s. 

 Th
e M

y P
lac

e s
tra

teg
y w

en
t to

 C
ab

ine
t 

on
 th

e 1
0th

 Se
pte

mb
er 

an
d i

t w
as

 
ag

ree
d t

o s
ub

mi
t a

 bi
d t

o r
ed

ev
elo

p t
he

 
Ha

ile
yb

ury
 Yo

uth
 C

en
tre

. 
 Ac

tio
ns

 to
 in

cre
as

e t
he

 pr
ov

isio
n f

or 
yo

un
g w

om
en

 ha
ve

 be
en

 bu
ilt 

int
o t

he
 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s G

en
de

r E
qu

ali
ty 

Pla
n. 

 Ta
rge

ts 
ha

ve
 be

en
 bu

ilt 
int

o t
he

 
Yo

uth
 Se

rvi
ce

 co
ntr

ac
ts 

an
d s

ho
w 

ye
ar 

on
 ye

ar 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

.   

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

   To
ok

 Pl
ac

e. 
   To

ok
 Pl

ac
e. 

    To
ok

 Pl
ac

e. 
    Ad

dre
ss

ed
. 

R2
  T

ha
t M

em
be

rs 
be

 gi
ve

n a
n 

op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o v

isit
 co

ntr
ac

tor
 

fac
iliti

es
.  

 

RE
CO

MM
EN

DA
TIO

N 
FU

LL
Y 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TE
D 

Op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 w

ere
 ad

ve
rtis

ed
 in

 th
e 

Me
mb

ers
 Bu

lle
tin

.  T
wo

 M
em

be
rs 

too
k 

up
 th

e o
pp

ort
un

ity
 an

d v
isit

ed
 ei

gh
t 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

   Co
un

cil 
me

mb
ers

 w
ere

 
ac

co
mp

an
ied

 to
 se

e P
AY

P 

Page 210



95
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Po
sit

ive
 Ac

tiv
itie

s f
or 

Yo
un

g P
eo

ple
.  

pro
vis

ion
 in

 an
d a

rou
nd

 th
e 

co
mm

un
ity

. 
R3

 T
ha

t th
e S

erv
ice

 sh
ou

ld 
inv

olv
e a

nd
 

co
ns

ult
 lo

ca
l v

olu
nta

ry 
gro

up
s 

inc
lud

ing
 m

oth
er 

ton
gu

e g
rou

ps
 on

 
iss

ue
s a

rou
nd

 de
tac

he
d y

ou
th 

se
rvi

ce
 pr

ov
isio

n. 

RE
CO

MM
EN

DA
TIO

N 
PA

RT
LY

  
IM
PL

EM
EN

TE
D 

W
e w

ill b
e c

on
su

ltin
g a

nd
 in

vo
lvin

g t
he

 
na

me
s p

art
ies

 w
he

n w
e d

ec
ide

 th
e 

de
plo

ym
en

ts 
for

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
8 o

nw
ard

s. 
 

Ou
r R

ap
id 

Re
sp

on
se

 Te
am

 is
 

de
ve

lop
ing

 a 
De

tac
he

d a
nd

 O
utr

ea
ch

 
Fo

rum
 w

hic
h w

ill i
nv

olv
e l

oc
al 

vo
lun

tar
y 

gro
up

s. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

De
tac

he
d Y

ou
th 

W
ork

 Fo
rum

 
ha

s n
ow

 be
en

 se
t u

p t
o 

ad
dre

ss
 th

is.
 

R4
  T

ha
t th

e S
erv

ice
 ex

plo
res

 w
ay

s a
n 

au
dit

 ca
n b

e u
nd

ert
ak

en
 of

 di
sa

ble
d 

us
ers

 of
 yo

uth
 se

rvi
ce

 an
d h

ow
 

the
se

 se
rvi

ce
s a

re 
pu

bli
cis

ed
 to

 th
e 

pu
bli

c a
nd

 M
em

be
rs.

  
 RE

CO
MM

EN
DA

TIO
N 
FU

LL
Y 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TE
D 

 W
e a

re 
inc

rea
se

d t
he

 fu
nd

ing
 fo

r a
 

ran
ge

 of
 pr

ov
isio

n, 
inc

lud
ing

 at
 th

e 
To

we
r P

roj
ec

t, S
t. H

ild
a’s

 Ea
st 

an
d 

thr
ou

gh
 ou

r y
ou

th 
wo

rk 
co

ntr
ac

tor
s. 

 
Th

e J
AR

 yo
un

g i
ns

pe
cto

rs 
vis

ite
d a

 
ran

ge
 of

 pr
ov

isio
n a

nd
 ju

dg
ed

 it 
to 

be
 

go
od

. 
 Th

e n
ew

 ‘P
lac

es
 to

 go
, T

hin
gs

 to
 do

’ 
bro

ch
ure

 ha
s b

ee
n p

ub
lish

ed
 an

d w
ill b

e 
dis

trib
ute

d t
o s

ch
oo

ls 
in 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
.  

Th
e n

ew
 AM

P w
eb

sit
e w

ill a
lso

 be
 

lau
nc

he
d a

t th
e s

am
e t

im
e. 

 Th
e 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f C
OO

-L 
ha

s b
ee

n v
ery

 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Au
dit

 is
 pa

rtly
 un

de
rta

ke
n. 

 Inc
rea

se
d 

pro
vis

ion
 fo

r S
EN

 
gro

up
 

in 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

wit
h 

To
we

r P
roj

ec
t. 

     Pu
bli

sh
ed

 b
roc

hu
re 

foc
us

ing
 

on
 “T

hin
gs

 to
 d

o, 
pla

ce
s 

to 
Go

” 
an

d 
dis

trib
ute

d. 
PA

YP
 

bro
ch

ure
 al

so
 ge

ts 
dis

trib
ute

d 
pri

or 
to 

ev
ery

 sc
ho

ol 
ho

lid
ay

s.  
 Ne

w 
AM

P 
we

bs
ite

 is
 u

p 
an

d 

Page 211



96
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

su
cc

es
sfu

l a
nd

 ov
er 

13
00

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 

are
 en

ga
ge

d. 
run

nin
g. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 e
xc

ee
de

d 
tak

e u
p i

n C
oo

l p
roj

ec
t. 

R5
 T

ha
t th

e S
erv

ice
 co

nti
nu

es
 w

ork
ing

 
to 

pu
t in

 pl
ac

e a
 m

ec
ha

nis
m 

to 
en

ga
ge

 th
e C

hin
es

e a
nd

 an
y n

ew
 

em
erg

ing
 co

mm
un

itie
s  Me

eti
ng

s a
re 

co
nti

nu
ing

 an
d w

e w
ill b

e 
pri

ori
tis

ing
 th

e C
hin

es
e c

om
mu

nit
y 

wit
hin

 m
ain

str
ea

m 
gra

nts
 fo

r 2
00

9/1
0. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Ne
ed

 Ad
dre

ss
ing

. 

R6
  T

ha
t in

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ith
 th

e I
nte

r-
Fa

ith
 Fo

rum
, s

erv
ice

 us
ers

 an
d 

sta
ff, 

the
 Se

rvi
ce

 ex
plo

res
 ho

w 
rel

igi
ou

s n
ee

ds
 co

uld
 be

 
inc

orp
ora

ted
 in

 yo
uth

 se
rvi

ce
 

cu
rric

ulu
m.

  Th
e n

ex
t ro

un
d o

f P
rev

en
tin

g V
iol

en
t 

Ex
tre

mi
sm

 pr
oje

cts
 is

 cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

PV
E 

is 
cu

rre
ntl

y 
be

ing
 

de
live

red
. 

PE
AC

E 
pro

gra
mm

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 

de
live

red
 

wit
h 

co
mm

un
ity

 
vo

lun
tar

y s
ec

tor
s. 

R7
  T

ha
t th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 th

e y
ou

th 
se

rvi
ce

 m
ax

im
ise

s o
pp

ort
un

itie
s 

du
rin

g s
toc

k-t
ran

sfe
r a

nd
 m

as
ter

 
pla

nn
ing

 pr
oc

es
s t

o s
ec

ure
 

ad
eq

ua
te 

yo
uth

 pr
ov

isio
n.   W

e h
av

e m
ad

e a
 pr

es
en

tat
ion

 ab
ou

t 
yo

uth
 se

rvi
ce

s a
t th

e H
ou

sin
g F

oru
m 

an
d h

av
e s

up
po

rte
d a

 ra
ng

e o
f 

Re
gis

ter
ed

 So
cia

l L
an

dlo
rds

 w
ith

 
de

ve
lop

ing
 yo

uth
 pr

ov
isio

n, 
inc

lud
ing

 
Ea

st 
En

d H
om

es
, B

eth
na

l G
ree

n a
nd

 
Vic

tor
ia 

Pa
rk 

Ho
us

ing
 As

so
cia

tio
n a

nd
 

ou
r o

wn
 To

we
r H

am
let

s H
om

es
. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

To
 be

 up
da

ted
. 

R8
  T

ha
t M

em
be

rs 
be

 in
vo

lve
d i

n t
he

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
the

 ‘A
im

ing
 hi

gh
 fo

r 
yo

un
g p

eo
ple

: a
 te

n y
ea

r s
tra

teg
y 

for
 po

sit
ive

 ac
tiv

itie
s’ 

in 
To

we
r 

Ha
ml

ets
.  RE

CO
MM

EN
DA

TIO
N 
FU

LL
Y 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TE
D 

 Th
is 

wa
s c

om
pre

he
ns

ive
ly 

co
ve

red
 in

 
the

 M
em

be
r’s

 Se
mi

na
r in

 Ju
ne

 an
d a

 
fur

the
r u

pd
ate

 w
as

 gi
ve

n i
n t

he
 C

ab
ine

t 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Up
da

ted
 at

 th
e C

ab
ine

t 
me

eti
ng

 in
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
. 

Page 212



97
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

pa
pe

r o
n 1

0th
 Se

pte
mb

er.
 

 
                       

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

13
 

Re
sp

on
se
 to

 th
e S

cru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n S
ch

oo
l E

xc
lus

ion
s 

 

Page 213



98
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Da

te 
Up

da
te:

 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

R1
 

As
 pa

rt o
f c

on
tin

uin
g t

o 
mo

nit
or 

the
 re

as
on

s f
or 

ex
clu

sio
n, 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld 

co
mm

iss
ion

 a 
sp

ec
ific

 pi
ec

e o
f w

ork
 

loo
kin

g a
t h

ow
 di

ffe
ren

t 
sc

ho
ols

 in
ter

pre
t v

erb
al 

ab
us

e t
o a

du
lts

 an
d 

pu
pil

s. 
 Th

e L
EA

, in
 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ith
 th

e 
Sc

ho
ols

 Fo
rum

 (o
r 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 bo
dy

) s
ho

uld
 

dra
w 

up
 gu

ida
nc

e f
or 

sc
ho

ols
. 

 

Th
is 

ac
tio

n w
as

 su
pe

rse
de

d a
s a

 re
su

lt o
f a

 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
inc

rea
se

 in
 w

ea
po

ns
 re

lat
ed

 ex
clu

sio
n i

n 
the

 fig
ure

s f
or 

05
/06

.  I
n 0

4/0
5 t

he
re 

we
re 

5 
we

ap
on

s r
ela

ted
 ex

clu
sio

ns
.  I

n 0
5/0

6 t
he

re 
we

re 
25

.  G
ive

n t
he

 se
ve

rity
 of

 th
e r

isk
 th

at 
thi

s f
igu

re 
se

em
ed

 to
 im

ply
, th

is 
wa

s d
ee

me
d t

o b
e t

he
 pr

ior
ity

 
iss

ue
 fo

r ta
ck

lin
g w

ith
 re

ga
rd 

to 
rea

so
ns

 fo
r 

ex
clu

sio
n. 

 
 A t

arg
ete

d i
nte

rve
nti

on
 w

as
 ag

ree
d w

hic
h i

nc
lud

ed
 

the
 po

lice
 w

ork
ing

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 us

 an
d 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 a 

DV
D 

ba
se

d o
n t

he
 w

ork
 of

 a 
loc

al 
yo

uth
 th

ea
tre

 gr
ou

p. 
 Th

e p
up

ils 
wo

rke
d w

ith
 a 

wr
ite

r to
 pr

od
uc

e a
 fil

m 
ab

ou
t b

ull
yin

g, 
ph

on
e t

he
ft 

an
d t

he
 po

ten
tia

l c
on

se
qu

en
ce

s o
f c

arr
yin

g k
niv

es
 

for
 pr

ote
cti

on
.   

Th
is 

wa
s c

irc
ula

ted
 to

 sc
ho

ols
 w

ith
 

tea
ch

ing
 no

tes
 an

d p
oli

ce
 of

fic
ers

 al
so

 w
ork

ed
 in

 
cla

ss
roo

ms
 on

 th
e i

ss
ue

.   
 

IN
CO

s w
ere

 al
so

 ad
vis

ed
 to

 un
de

rta
ke

 di
rec

t w
ork

 
wit

h l
ate

 an
d m

idt
erm

 ad
mi

ss
ion

s a
nd

 to
 be

 m
ore

 
ov

ert
 in

 th
eir

 ta
ck

lin
g o

f th
e w

ea
po

ns
 is

su
e a

s p
art

 
of 

the
ir i

nd
uc

tio
n p

roc
es

s, 
pa

rtic
ula

rly
 fo

r s
tud

en
ts 

res
ide

nt 
in 

oth
er 

bo
rou

gh
s a

s t
he

re 
wa

s a
 cl

ea
r 

co
rre

lat
ion

 be
tw

ee
n t

his
 gr

ou
p a

nd
 th

e r
ise

 in
 

we
ap

on
s r

ela
ted

 ex
clu

sio
ns

.  
So

me
 sc

ho
ols

 al
so

 ex
plo

red
 th

e u
se

 of
 w

ea
po

n 
de

tec
tio

n “
wa

nd
s”.

 Kn
ife

 ar
ch

es
 w

ere
 us

ed
 at

 To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

 co
lle

ge
.  

  

Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08

 
In 

07
/08

 t
he

re 
wa

s 
a 

fur
the

r 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
dro

p 
in 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
ex

clu
sio

ns
 fro

m 
51

 to
 38

. 
Ho

we
ve

r t
he

re 
wa

s a
n 

inc
rea

se
 

in 
we

ap
on

s 
rel

ate
d 

ex
clu

sio
n 

– 
10

 ca
se

s c
om

pa
red

 to
 5 

the
 ye

ar 
be

for
e. 

 T
he

 fo
llo

win
g 

ac
tio

ns
 

we
re 

ag
ree

d. 
 

• 
Sc

ho
ols

 an
d s

ch
oo

l 
att

ac
he

d o
ffic

ers
 w

ill 
ma

int
ain

 a 
foc

us
 on

 th
e 

dis
cu

ss
ion

 of
 th

e 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
 of

 w
ea

po
n 

ca
rry

ing
 in

 as
se

mb
lie

s, 
tut

or 
tim

e a
nd

 as
 pa

rt o
f 

co
nfl

ict
 re

so
lut

ion
 

pro
gra

mm
es

 in
 or

de
r to

 
su

sta
in 

the
 re

du
cti

on
 in

 
we

ap
on

s r
ela

ted
 

off
en

ce
s. 

 
• 

Sc
ho

ol 
ind

uc
tio

n f
or 

lat
e 

en
tra

nts
 / o

ut 
of 

bo
rou

gh
 

pu
pil

s w
ill i

nc
lud

e o
ve

rt 
dis

cu
ss

ion
 of

 th
e i

ss
ue

 of
 

we
ap

on
 ca

rry
ing

 an
d 

mo
nit

or 
the

 in
teg

rat
ion

 of
 

Oo
B p

up
ils 

/ c
as

ua
l 

Page 214



99
 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Da

te 
Up

da
te:

 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

In 
06

/07
 w

ea
po

ns
 re

lat
ed

 ex
clu

sio
ns

 dr
op

pe
d t

o 5
.   

 
Ov

era
ll p

erm
an

en
t e

xc
lus

ion
s 

dro
pp

ed
 fr

om
 6

2 
to 

51
. 

en
trie

s a
nd

 ad
dre

ss
 an

y 
sa

fet
y /

 co
nfl

ict
 is

su
es

 
an

d  
ad

dit
ion

al 
ne

ed
s 

 
R2

 
All

 sc
ho

ols
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 

en
co

ura
ge

d t
o d

ev
elo

p 
the

 ac
tiv

e i
nv

olv
em

en
t o

f 
pa

ren
ts 

an
d l

oc
al 

co
mm

un
itie

s i
n 

be
ha

vio
ur 

ma
na

ge
me

nt.
  

Th
e L

EA
 sh

ou
ld 

de
ve

lop
 

a f
ram

ew
ork

 w
ith

 ca
se

 
stu

die
s t

ha
t 

de
mo

ns
tra

tes
 th

e t
oo

ls,
 

tec
hn

iqu
es

 an
d 

ad
va

nta
ge

s o
f th

is 
ap

pro
ac

h. 

Th
e E

du
ca

tio
n a

nd
 In

sp
ec

tio
n A

ct 
20

06
 w

hic
h c

am
e 

int
o f

orc
e i

n A
pri

l 2
00

7 r
eq

uir
es

 go
ve

rno
rs 

to 
co

ns
ult

 on
 a 

sta
tem

en
t o

f p
rin

cip
les

 ab
ou

t 
be

ha
vio

ur,
 w

ith
 pa

ren
ts 

an
d, 

for
 th

e f
irs

t ti
me

 as
 a 

leg
al 

req
uir

em
en

t, w
ith

 pu
pil

s, 
as

 w
ell

 as
 ot

he
r 

sta
ke

ho
lde

rs 
su

ch
 as

 th
e l

oc
al 

co
mm

un
ity

 an
d o

the
r 

sc
ho

ols
 in

 th
eir

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

.  H
ea

d t
ea

ch
ers

 m
us

t 
the

n b
as

e t
he

 sc
ho

ol 
be

ha
vio

ur 
po

licy
 on

 th
es

e 
pri

nc
ipl

es
. 

 Th
ere

 is
 ne

w 
an

d v
ery

 cl
ea

r s
tat

uto
ry 

gu
ida

nc
e f

or 
go

ve
rno

rs 
on

 ho
w 

the
y s

ho
uld

 en
ga

ge
 pa

ren
ts 

in 
thi

s p
roc

es
s. 

 Th
e p

rin
cip

les
 m

us
t b

e u
nd

ers
too

d 
an

d a
gre

ed
 by

 th
os

e c
on

su
lte

d. 
 It 

is 
ba

se
d o

n a
 

“rig
hts

 an
d r

es
po

ns
ibi

litie
s” 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o t
he

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

of 
be

ha
vio

ur.
   T

rai
nin

g f
or 

Go
ve

rno
rs 

on
 th

is 
ch

an
ge

 to
 pr

oc
ed

ure
s a

nd
 on

 ho
w 

pa
ren

ts 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 fu

lly 
co

ns
ult

ed
 an

d e
ng

ag
ed

 in
 th

e 
pro

ce
ss

 is
 un

de
rw

ay
.   

 

 
Tra

ini
ng

 ha
s c

on
tin

ue
d f

or 
go

ve
rni

ng
 bo

die
s a

nd
 pa

ren
ts 

are
 co

ns
ult

ed
 on

 ch
an

ge
s t

o 
sc

ho
ol 

be
ha

vio
ur 

pri
nc

ipl
es

.  
(al

so
 se

e b
elo

w 
R4

 on
 sh

are
d 

To
we

r H
am

let
s s

tat
em

en
t o

f 
be

ha
vio

ur 
pri

nc
ipl

es
)  

R3
.1 

 It
 is

 es
se

nti
al 

to 
ha

ve
 

rob
us

t a
nd

 tim
ely

 
inf

orm
ati

on
 to

 id
en

tify
 

tre
nd

s a
nd

 re
sp

on
d 

eff
ec

tiv
ely

.   

Ex
clu

sio
ns

 ar
e r

ep
ort

ed
 to

 th
e L

A a
nd

 bo
th 

LA
 le

ve
l 

an
d i

nd
ivid

ua
l s

ec
on

da
ry 

sc
ho

ol 
rep

ort
s a

re 
pro

du
ce

d t
o i

de
nti

fy 
tre

nd
s a

nd
 re

sp
on

d e
ffe

cti
ve

ly:
 

se
e e

xa
mp

le 
re:

 w
ea

po
ns

 re
lat

ed
 ex

clu
sio

n a
bo

ve
.   

 

 
Ind

ivid
ua

l 
se

co
nd

ary
 

sc
ho

ol 
ex

clu
sio

n 
rep

ort
s 

are
 c

irc
ula

ted
 

an
nu

all
y 

wit
h 

co
mp

ara
tiv

e 
da

ta 
to 

su
pp

ort
 

sc
ho

ol 
ac

tio
n 

pla
nn

ing
.  

Th
e 

da
ta 

is 
an

aly
se

d 

Page 215



10
0  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Da

te 
Up

da
te:

 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

       R3
.2 

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il s

ho
uld

 
ex

plo
re 

the
 po

ten
tia

l o
f 

TH
IS 

Ch
ild

 to
 su

pp
ort

 
thi

s a
nd

 ev
alu

ate
 

wh
eth

er 
ad

dit
ion

al 
res

ou
rce

s a
re 

req
uir

ed
 to

 
su

pp
ort

 tim
ely

 ex
ch

an
ge

 
of 

inf
orm

ati
on

 an
d 

ho
list

ic 
ev

alu
ati

on
 of

 
ou

tco
me

s f
or 

ch
ild

ren
 

an
d y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le.
 

 To
we

r H
am

let
s p

art
icip

ate
d 

in 
a 

DC
SF

 e
CA

F 
pil

ot 
(lo

ca
lly 

kn
ow

n 
as

 T
HI

S 
Ch

ild
). 

 T
he

 D
CS

F 
ha

s 
rec

en
tly

 m
ad

e a
 de

cis
ion

 to
 ro

ll o
ut 

a n
ati

on
al 

eC
AF

 
sy

ste
m 

in 
wh

ich
 t

he
 L

A 
wil

l 
be

 r
eq

uir
ed

 t
o 

pa
rtic

ipa
te.

   
Th

is 
is 

ho
we

ve
r u

nli
ke

ly 
to 

co
me

 o
n 

str
ea

m 
for

 tw
o 

ye
ars

 a
t a

 m
ini

mu
m 

an
d 

tak
ing

 
ad

vic
e f

rom
 D

CS
F w

e h
av

e d
ec

ide
d t

o p
roc

ee
d w

ith
 

ou
r lo

ca
l e

CA
F s

ch
em

e i
n t

he
 in

ter
im

 as
 th

is 
len

gth
 

of 
de

lay
 is

 un
ten

ab
le.

   
 Th

e l
oc

al 
sc

he
me

 w
ill 

ne
ed

 
to 

do
ve

 ta
il w

ith
  t

he
 na

tio
na

l d
ev

elo
pm

en
t a

nd
 w

e 
are

 in
 a 

str
on

g p
os

itio
n t

o c
on

trib
ute

 to
 th

is 
pro

ce
ss

.  
Tra

ini
ng

 w
ith

 tw
o l

ea
d p

rof
es

sio
na

l te
am

s o
n T

HI
S 

Ch
ild

 w
ill 

sta
rt 

in 
the

 A
utu

mn
 w

ith
 a 

vie
w 

to 
rol

lin
g 

ou
t m

ore
 br

oa
dly

 fro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
08

. 

by
 ge

nd
er,

 ag
e, 

eth
nic

ity
, le

ng
th 

of 
ex

clu
sio

n, 
rea

so
n 

for
 

ex
clu

sio
n 

an
d 

res
ide

nc
y 

of 
ex

clu
de

d p
up

ils.
  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
 a

re 
ma

de
 to

 
sc

ho
ols

 a
nd

 fo
llo

w 
up

 vi
sit

s a
re 

ma
de

 b
y L

A 
off

ice
rs 

for
 sc

ho
ols

 
wh

ere
 th

ere
 ar

e a
ny

 co
nc

ern
s. 

  
 Ov

er 
10

00
 

pe
op

le 
are

 
no

w 
tra

ine
d 

as
 C

AF
 a

ss
es

so
rs.

 T
he

 
loc

al 
eC

AF
 pi

lot
 (fu

nd
ed

 th
rou

gh
 

the
 A

rea
 B

as
ed

 G
ran

t) h
as

 be
en

 
co

mp
let

ed
 

wit
h 

the
 

ea
rly

 
ad

op
ter

s a
nd

 is
 b

ein
g r

oll
ed

 ou
t 

ac
ros

s t
he

 bo
rou

gh
.  T

he
re 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 

fur
the

r 
de

lay
s 

to 
the

 
na

tio
na

l e
CA

F s
ch

em
e. 

 
 

R4
 

Th
e L

EA
 sh

ou
ld 

tak
e t

he
 

op
po

rtu
nit

y o
f th

e 
Sc

ho
ols

 W
hit

e P
ap

er 
pro

po
sa

ls 
on

 di
sc

ipl
ine

, 
ex

clu
sio

n a
nd

 al
ter

na
tiv

e 
ed

uc
ati

on
 to

 re
vis

it t
he

 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 an
d 

fac
ilita

te 
de

ba
te 

be
tw

ee
n 

sc
ho

ols
 to

 pa
rtic

ipa
te 

in 

As
 a 

res
ult

 in
 ch

an
ge

s a
ris

ing
 fro

m 
the

 Ed
uc

ati
on

 
an

d I
ns

pe
cti

on
 Ac

t 2
00

6, 
fro

m 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

07
 

se
co

nd
ary

 sc
ho

ols
 ha

ve
 to

 be
 in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

s t
o 

im
pro

ve
 be

ha
vio

ur 
an

d a
tte

nd
an

ce
.  

Th
is 

inc
lud

es
 ha

vin
g a

  s
ha

red
 vi

sio
n a

nd
 ta

kin
g 

co
lle

cti
ve

 re
sp

on
sib

ility
 fo

r p
up

ils 
in 

the
ir a

rea
, 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 fo

r m
an

ag
ed

 m
ov

es
 an

d “
ha

rd 
to 

pla
ce

” p
up

ils 
an

d t
he

 pr
ov

isio
n o

f a
lte

rna
tiv

e 
ed

uc
ati

on
 fro

m 
the

 6th
 da

y o
f e

xc
lus

ion
.   

 
Fro

m 
Ju

ne
 2

00
8 

14
 o

f 
the

 
bo

rou
gh

’s 
15

 se
co

nd
ary

 sc
ho

ols
 

ha
ve

 
joi

ne
d 

a 
Fa

ir 
Ac

ce
ss

 
Pr

oto
co

l t
hro

ug
h 

wh
ich

 p
lac

es
 

are
 e

ar-
ma

rke
d 

for
 “

ha
rd 

to 
pla

ce
” p

up
ils 

to 
su

pp
ort

 th
e 

re-
en

try
 o

f p
erm

an
en

tly
 e

xc
lud

ed
 

pu
pil

s 
to 

ma
ins

tre
am

 s
ch

oo
ls 

an
d 

to 
pro

vid
e 

for
 m

an
ag

ed
 

Page 216



10
1  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Da

te 
Up

da
te:

 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

be
ha

vio
ur 

ma
na

ge
me

nt,
 

ac
ce

pti
ng

 pu
pil

s t
ha

t 
ha

ve
 pr

ev
iou

sly
 be

en
 

ex
clu

de
d a

nd
 en

co
ura

ge
 

mu
tua

lly 
su

pp
ort

ive
 

so
lut

ion
s. 

 

Lo
ca

lly 
se

co
nd

ary
 he

ad
s h

av
e d

ec
ide

d t
o b

e i
n o

ne
 

co
lle

cti
ve

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 (w
ith

 th
e P

RU
 an

d L
A)

 an
d 

ha
ve

 si
gn

ed
 an

 in
itia

l C
OM

PA
CT

 ou
tlin

ing
 th

eir
 

res
po

ns
ibi

litie
s, 

wh
ich

 in
clu

de
s p

urc
ha

sin
g 

alt
ern

ati
ve

 pr
ov

isio
n f

rom
 th

e 6
th

 da
y o

f a
ny

 
ex

clu
sio

n f
rom

 th
e P

RU
.   

Th
ey

 in
ten

d t
o r

ev
iew

 fu
rth

er 
the

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 fo

r 
“ha

rd 
to 

pla
ce

” a
nd

 m
an

ag
ed

 m
ov

es
 an

d r
ev

ise
 th

e 
CO

MP
AC

T l
ate

r in
 th

e A
utu

mn
 te

rm
 to

 try
 to

 ag
ree

 
a m

ore
 m

utu
all

y s
up

po
rtiv

e a
pp

roa
ch

 to
 th

e 
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

pu
pil

s. 
 

Th
e p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

is 
like

ly 
to 

be
 ex

ten
de

d t
o t

he
 14

-19
 

HU
B 

an
d 

inv
olv

e 
tra

ini
ng

 a
nd

 F
E 

pro
vid

ers
.  

Th
ey

 
are

 w
ork

ing
 on

 a 
sh

are
d s

tat
em

en
t o

f p
rin

cip
les

 to
 

su
pp

ort
 

sc
ho

ol 
go

ve
rni

ng
 

bo
die

s 
an

d 
oth

er 
ins

titu
tio

ns
 in

 d
ev

isin
g 

the
ir 

ow
n 

pri
nc

ipl
es

 a
nd

 
po

lici
es

 to
 su

pp
ort

 be
ha

vio
ur.

 

mo
ve

s t
o 

av
oid

 e
xc

lus
ion

.  
Th

is 
sc

he
me

 is
 o

pe
rat

ed
 b

y 
the

 L
A 

an
d e

arl
y d

ata
 su

gg
es

ts 
tha

t th
is 

wil
l r

es
ult

 in
 a

 fu
rth

er 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
red

uc
tio

n 
in 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
ex

clu
sio

n i
n 0

8/0
9. 

 A 
To

we
r 

Ha
ml

ets
 

Bo
rou

gh
 

sta
tem

en
t 

of 
pri

nc
ipl

es
 

of 
be

ha
vio

ur 
ha

s b
ee

n  
ad

op
ted

 by
 

all
 se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 a
nd

 o
the

r 
pa

rtn
ers

 (
co

lle
ge

 a
nd

 t
rai

nin
g 

pro
vid

ers
) 

 in
 th

e 
14

-19
 H

UB
 

fol
low

ing
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 yo
un

g 
pe

op
le.

  

R5
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il r
ec

og
nis

es
 

the
 su

cc
es

s o
f th

e B
IP 

an
d e

xa
mi

ne
s h

ow
 ke

y 
eff

ec
tiv

e e
lem

en
ts 

ca
n 

be
 ro

lle
d o

ut 
to 

all
 

sc
ho

ols
 an

d 
ma

ins
tre

am
ed

 w
he

n t
he

 
pro

gra
mm

e c
om

es
 to

 an
 

en
d i

n 2
00

8. 
 

Ar
ea

s o
f ro

llo
ut 

of 
str

ate
gie

s p
ilo

ted
 th

rou
gh

 BI
P t

o 
da

te 
inc

lud
e: 

• 
Co

mm
on

 As
se

ss
me

nt 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
to 

as
se

ss
 

the
 ne

ed
s o

f c
hil

dre
n h

oli
sti

ca
lly.

  
• 

Th
e r

ole
 of

 th
e T

ea
m 

Ar
ou

nd
 th

e C
hil

d a
nd

 
Le

ad
 Pr

ofe
ss

ion
al 

to 
su

pp
ort

 vu
lne

rab
le 

ch
ild

ren
 

• 
Mo

ve
me

nt 
of 

the
 re

qu
ire

me
nt 

for
 al

ter
na

tiv
e 

pro
vis

ion
 fro

m 
the

 16
th

 da
y t

o t
he

 6th
 da

y o
f 

an
y e

xc
lus

ion
.  

• 
Tra

ini
ng

 an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en

t fo
r B

eh
av

iou
r a

nd
 

 
Fu

nd
ing

 fo
r 

all
 th

is 
wo

rk 
wa

s 
se

cu
red

 th
rou

gh
 th

e A
rea

 B
as

ed
 

Gr
an

t in
 20

08
/09

. 
Th

e 
na

tio
na

l b
eh

av
iou

r t
rai

nin
g 

sc
he

me
 

is 
un

de
rw

ay
 

in 
the

 
bo

rou
gh

.  
Tru

an
cy

 p
atr

ols
 h

av
e 

co
nti

nu
ed

 
to 

op
era

te 
reg

ula
rly

. 
SIP

, 
CA

F 
an

d 
eC

AF
 

de
ve

lop
me

nts
 h

av
e 

su
pp

ort
ed

 
the

 r
oll

 o
ut 

of 
the

 i
nte

gra
ted

 

Page 217



10
2  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Da

te 
Up

da
te:

 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

Att
en

da
nc

e c
o-o

rdi
na

tor
s i

n s
ch

oo
ls.

  
• 

Na
tio

na
l tr

ain
ing

 pr
og

ram
me

s t
o s

up
po

rt 
be

ha
vio

ur 
im

pro
ve

me
nt.

  
 Fu

nd
ing

 is
 be

ing
 so

ug
ht 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e E
CM

 el
em

en
t 

of 
 th

e c
ou

nc
il g

ran
t p

os
t M

arc
h 2

00
8 (

en
d o

f B
IP)

: 
• 

An
ti-B

ull
yin

g a
dv

ice
, m

on
ito

rin
g, 

gu
ida

nc
e 

an
d t

rai
nin

g 
• 

Tru
an

cy
 pa

tro
ls 

 
• 

SIP
 / C

AF
 / e

CA
F m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
ad

mi
nis

tra
tio

n  
• 

Le
ad

ers
hip

 fo
r th

e r
oll

 ou
t o

f n
ati

on
al 

tra
ini

ng
 

in 
be

ha
vio

ur 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Tra
ns

itio
n W

ork
ers

 

wo
rki

ng
 

ag
en

da
 

ac
ros

s 
the

 
bo

rou
gh

.  
A 

lea
d 

off
ice

r 
he

ad
s 

a 
wid

e 
ran

ge
 of

 an
ti-b

ull
yin

g w
ork

 w
hic

h 
inc

lud
es

 
an

on
ym

ou
s 

pu
pil

 
su

rve
ys

 i
n 

sc
ho

ols
 t

o 
inf

orm
 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 p
rac

tic
e 

an
d 

a 
pil

ot 
an

ti-b
ull

yin
g 

he
lpl

ine
 

op
era

ted
 b

y 
Ste

p 
Fo

rw
ard

 o
n 

be
ha

lf o
f t

he
 bo

rou
gh

 w
hic

h 
wil

l 
be

 re
vie

we
d i

n t
he

 su
mm

er 
ter

m.
  

 Th
e 

fut
ure

 f
un

din
g 

of 
the

se
 

ac
tiv

itie
s 

is 
su

bje
ct 

to 
the

 
av

ail
ab

ility
 o

f A
rea

 B
as

ed
 G

ran
t 

fun
din

g i
n 2

00
9/1

0. 
  

R6
 

As
 a 

pri
ori

ty,
 th

e C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld 
inv

es
t fu

rth
er 

in 
the

 ro
ll o

ut 
of 

the
 

Tra
ns

itio
n W

ork
er 

pro
jec

t 
to 

tar
ge

t th
e m

os
t 

vu
lne

rab
le 

ch
ild

ren
 in

 th
e 

bo
rou

gh
 an

d u
se

 th
e 

go
od

 pr
ac

tic
e l

es
so

ns
 

fro
m 

the
 pr

oje
ct 

to 
inf

orm
 

ge
ne

ral
 pr

ac
tic

e a
t 

tra
ns

itio
n. 

Se
e 

ab
ov

e 
– 

pro
po

sa
ls 

ag
ree

d 
for

 o
ne

 T
ran

sit
ion

 
W

ork
er 

to 
be

 a
llo

ca
ted

 to
 e

ac
h 

pa
ire

d 
LA

P 
are

a, 
su

bje
ct 

to 
co

nfi
rm

ati
on

 of
  fu

nd
ing

 
 

Fu
nd

ing
 

for
 

thi
s 

wo
rk 

wa
s 

se
cu

red
 th

rou
gh

 th
e A

rea
 B

as
ed

 
Gr

an
t in

 20
08

/09
. 

On
e 

Tra
ns

itio
n 

W
ork

er 
wa

s 
all

oc
ate

d 
to 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 p

air
ed

 
LA

P 
are

as
 b

ut 
as

 th
e 

wo
rk 

is 
foc

us
se

d 
on

 s
ch

oo
l s

up
po

rt 
for

 
tra

ns
itio

n 
the

re 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

om
e 

fle
xib

ility
 in

 th
e d

ep
loy

me
nt.

    
Th

e 
fut

ure
 f

un
din

g 
of 

the
se

 
po

sts
 is

 su
bje

ct 
to 

the
 av

ail
ab

ility
 

of 
Ar

ea
 B

as
ed

 G
ran

t 
fun

din
g 

Page 218



10
3  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Da

te 
Up

da
te:

 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

20
09

/10
.   

R7
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il s
ho

uld
 

en
su

re 
tha

t th
e 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 ro

le 
of 

Le
ad

 Pr
ofe

ss
ion

al 
bu

ild
s o

n e
xis

tin
g g

oo
d 

pra
cti

ce
 su

ch
 as

 th
e 

tra
ns

itio
n w

ork
er 

pro
jec

t 
an

d m
on

ito
r c

los
ely

 th
e 

im
pa

ct 
for

 th
e m

os
t 

vu
lne

rab
le 

ch
ild

ren
 in

 th
e 

bo
rou

gh
. 

 

W
ide

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 on

 a 
pro

toc
ol 

to 
su

pp
ort

 th
e w

ork
 

of 
mu

lti-
ag

en
cy

 Te
am

s A
rou

nd
 th

e C
hil

dre
n a

nd
 th

e 
rol

e o
f th

e  
Le

ad
 Pr

ofe
ss

ion
al 

 w
as

 co
mp

let
ed

 in
 

Au
gu

st 
20

07
.  

Th
e p

rot
oc

ol 
ha

s n
ow

 be
en

 ag
ree

d a
nd

 di
str

ibu
ted

.  
 Mu

lti-
ag

en
cy

 tra
ini

ng
 on

 th
e p

rot
oc

ol 
an

d e
ffe

cti
ve

 
pra

cti
ce

, in
clu

din
g t

he
 m

on
ito

rin
g o

f o
utc

om
es

, 
sta

rts
 in

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
7. 

 Th
is 

tra
ini

ng
 on

 in
teg

rat
ed

 
wo

rki
ng

 is
 fo

r p
rac

titi
on

ers
 an

d t
he

ir m
an

ag
ers

. 
 Ou

tco
me

s o
f th

e w
ork

 of
 m

ult
i-a

ge
nc

y t
ea

ms
 ar

e 
tra

ck
ed

 th
rou

gh
 th

e C
AF

 re
vie

w 
for

m 
wh

ich
 re

qu
ire

s 
a r

e-s
co

re 
of 

the
 in

itia
l a

ss
es

sm
en

t to
 as

se
ss

 
im

pa
ct.

  P
roj

ec
t to

 de
vis

e e
va

lua
tio

n t
oo

l a
nd

 
ev

alu
ate

 ou
tco

me
s o

f in
ter

ve
nti

on
s o

f e
arl

y C
AF

s 
sta

rtin
g J

an
ua

ry 
20

08
. 

 
A f

ull
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 tra
ini

ng
 w

ith
 

4 m
od

ule
s t

o s
up

po
rt i

nte
gra

ted
 

wo
rki

ng
 is

 of
fer

ed
 to

 al
l 

pra
cti

tio
ne

rs 
in 

the
 C

hil
dre

n’s
 

W
ork

for
ce

.  F
un

din
g f

or 
thi

s w
as

 
se

cu
red

 fro
m 

the
 Ar

ea
 Ba

se
d 

Gr
an

t in
 08

/09
.  O

ve
r 1

00
0 s

taf
f 

are
 no

w 
tra

ine
d a

s C
AF

 
as

se
ss

ors
 an

d f
urt

he
r tr

ain
ing

 
an

d a
 co

nfe
ren

ce
 ha

s s
up

po
rte

d 
the

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

Te
am

 
Ar

ou
nd

 th
e C

hil
d a

nd
 Le

ad
 

Pr
ofe

ss
ion

al 
wo

rk.
   

Th
e f

irs
t o

utc
om

es
 ev

alu
ati

on
 of

 
CA

Fs
 in

 Ap
ril 

08
 fo

un
d t

ha
t  7

0%
 

of 
CA

F p
lan

s s
ho

we
d p

rog
res

s 
at 

rev
iew

 an
d o

n a
ve

rag
e t

he
re 

wa
s a

 7 
po

int
 im

pro
ve

me
nt 

in 
sc

ore
s a

cro
ss

 th
e r

an
ge

 of
 ne

ed
.  

 
R8

 
Th

e g
oo

d p
rac

tic
e i

n 
be

ha
vio

ur 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

is 
sh

are
d a

cro
ss

 ot
he

r 
sc

ho
ols

. In
 pa

rtic
ula

r, t
he

 
LE

A s
ho

uld
 co

ns
ide

r 
ho

w 
the

 le
ad

ers
hip

 
tea

ms
 in

 sc
ho

ols
 th

at 
are

 

Th
e r

e-a
pp

oin
tm

en
t o

f a
 Be

ha
vio

ur 
an

d A
tte

nd
an

ce
 

Co
ns

ult
an

t in
 th

e b
oro

ug
h h

as
 en

ab
led

 lo
ca

l 
Be

ha
vio

ur 
an

d A
tte

nd
an

ce
 C

o-o
rdi

na
tor

 m
ee

tin
gs

 to
 

be
 re

- es
tab

lish
ed

 on
 a 

reg
ula

r b
as

is 
fro

m 
Ju

ly 
20

07
.  

Th
es

e a
re 

a f
oru

m 
for

 th
e s

ha
rin

g o
f g

oo
d p

rac
tic

e 
an

d a
re 

su
pp

ort
ed

 in
 tu

rn 
by

 th
e N

ati
on

al 
an

d 
Re

gio
na

l B
&A

 m
ee

tin
gs

 w
hic

h e
na

ble
 us

 to
 ac

ce
ss

 

 
Th

e 
po

st 
of 

B&
A 

Co
-or

din
ato

r 
wa

s 
fun

de
d 

thr
ou

gh
 t

he
 A

rea
 

Ba
se

d G
ran

t in
 20

07
/08

 an
d t

he
 

wo
rk 

de
sc

rib
ed

 h
as

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
wit

h a
 sp

ec
ific

 fo
cu

s o
n t

he
 st

art
 

of 
the

 ro
llo

ut 
of 

the
 s

ec
on

da
ry 

SE
AL

 c
urr

icu
lum

 (
So

cia
l 

an
d 

Page 219



10
4  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Da

te 
Up

da
te:

 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

ma
na

gin
g s

ch
oo

l 
be

ha
vio

ur 
eff

ec
tiv

ely
 ca

n 
as

sis
t, a

dv
ise

 or
 m

en
tor

 
oth

er 
sc

ho
ols

 w
ith

in 
the

 
bo

rou
gh

. 
 

an
d s

ha
re 

go
od

 pr
ac

tic
e w

ith
 a 

wid
er 

gro
up

 of
 B&

A 
lea

de
rs 

bo
th 

at 
sc

ho
ol 

an
d s

tra
teg

ic 
lev

el.
  

 
Em

oti
on

al 
As

pe
cts

 o
f L

ea
rni

ng
).  

Th
is 

pro
gra

mm
e 

ha
s 

alr
ea

dy
 

be
en

 
rol

led
 

ou
t 

in 
pri

ma
ry 

sc
ho

ols
 w

he
re 

it h
as

 co
ntr

ibu
ted

 
to 

the
 

dro
p 

in 
fix

ed
 

ter
m 

ex
clu

sio
ns

.  
Th

e f
utu

re 
fun

din
g o

f th
is 

po
st 

 is
 

su
bje

ct 
to 

the
 av

ail
ab

ility
 of

 A
rea

 
Ba

se
d G

ran
t fu

nd
ing

 20
09

/10
 

R9
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il e
nc

ou
rag

es
 

sc
ho

ols
 to

 in
ve

st 
in 

co
nfl

ict
 re

so
lut

ion
 

pro
gra

mm
es

 as
 a 

pa
rt o

f 
the

ir s
tra

teg
ies

 fo
r 

be
ha

vio
ur 

ma
na

ge
me

nt.
 

 

A 
nu

mb
er 

of 
sc

ho
ols

 ru
n 

su
ch

 sc
he

me
s f

rom
 th

eir
 

de
leg

ate
d 

bu
dg

et 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol 

att
ac

he
d 

po
lice

 
off

ice
rs 

are
 tr

ain
ed

 in
 th

e 
us

e 
of 

co
nfl

ict
 re

so
lut

ion
 

an
d r

ep
ara

tiv
e j

us
tic

e. 

 
Th

is 
wo

rk 
co

nti
nu

es
 w

ith
in 

the
 

bo
rou

gh
’s 

sc
ho

ols
 . 

R1
0 

As
 pa

rt o
f it

s r
es

po
ns

e t
o 

Go
ve

rnm
en

t c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

an
d t

hro
ug

h i
ts 

pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n i
n t

he
 

Be
ha

vio
ur 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pr

og
ram

me
 pi

lot
, th

e 
Co

un
cil 

sh
ou

ld 
str

es
s 

tha
t e

xc
lus

ion
s c

an
 ha

ve
 

a p
art

 to
 pl

ay
 in

 ef
fec

tiv
e 

be
ha

vio
ur 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
str

ate
gie

s w
ith

in 
sc

ho
ols

.   A p
rog

ram
me

 of
 tra

ini
ng

 w
ith

 go
ve

rno
rs 

is 
un

de
rw

ay
 to

 en
su

re 
the

y u
nd

ers
tan

d t
he

ir r
ole

 in
 

mo
nit

ori
ng

 an
d e

ns
uri

ng
 th

at 
the

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f 
be

ha
vio

ur 
an

d u
se

 of
 ex

clu
sio

ns
 is

 ap
pro

pri
ate

.   
In 

pa
rtic

ula
r th

at 
go

ve
rno

r d
isc

ipl
ine

 co
mm

itte
es

 
en

su
re 

the
y t

ak
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 

ac
tio

n t
o u

ph
old

 or
 

ov
ert

urn
 ex

clu
sio

n i
n t

he
 lig

ht 
of 

a j
ud

icia
l re

vie
ws

 
tha

t s
tat

ed
:  

 ’A 
dis

cip
lin

e c
om

mi
tte

e i
s a

 st
atu

tor
y c

om
mi

tte
e, 

no
t 

a t
ok

en
 co

mm
itte

e. 
It i

s n
ot 

the
re 

to 
rub

be
r s

tam
p 

the
 he

ad
 te

ac
he

r’s
 de

cis
ion

. U
nle

ss
 it 

ac
ts 

as
 an

 

 
Tra

ini
ng

 an
d s

up
po

rt t
o 

go
ve

rni
ng

 bo
die

s i
s p

rov
ide

d t
o 

en
su

re 
tha

t e
xc

lus
ion

s a
re 

us
ed

 
ap

pro
pri

ate
ly,

 fa
irly

 an
d i

n l
ine

 
wit

h l
eg

isla
tio

n. 
 Th

e 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
the

 Fa
ir A

cc
es

s 
Pr

oto
co

l h
as

 al
low

ed
 fo

r th
e 

alt
ern

ati
ve

 of
 m

an
ag

ed
 m

ov
es

 
wh

ere
by

 th
e p

up
il c

an
 be

 
rem

ov
ed

 fro
m 

a s
ch

oo
l (w

ith
 th

e 
co

ns
en

t o
f th

e p
are

nts
), w

ith
ou

t 
the

 st
igm

a o
f e

xc
lus

ion
 an

d b
e 

Page 220



10
5  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Da

te 
Up

da
te:

 M
arc

h 2
00
9 

ind
ep

en
de

nt 
rev

iew
 bo

dy
, u

nle
ss

 it 
ac

ts 
fai

rly
 an

d 
un

les
s i

t a
pp

ea
rs 

to 
ac

t fa
irly

, it
 se

rve
s n

o p
urp

os
e 

wh
ats

oe
ve

r’ 
pro

vid
ed

 w
ith

 co
nti

nu
ity

 of
 

ed
uc

ati
on

 w
ith

in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
.  

                
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
14
 

Re
sp

on
se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n N
eig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d R
en

ew
al 
Fu

nd
s 

 Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

 R1
  

Th
at 

a M
em

be
rs 

se
mi

na
r b

e o
rga

nis
ed

 
on

 ho
w 

Lo
ca

l A
rea

 
Ag

ree
me

nt 
(LA

A)
 

 A S
em

ina
r o

n t
he

 LA
A w

ill b
e o

rga
nis

ed
 in

 Ja
n /

 Fe
b 0

9. 
 It 

is 
pro

po
se

d t
o r

efr
es

h t
he

 LA
A a

t th
e e

nd
 of

 ye
ar 

1. 
 Th

is 
is 

be
ca

us
e t

he
 G

ov
ern

me
nt 

de
lay

ed
 ta

rge
t s

ett
ing

 on
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

the
 in

dic
ato

rs 
an

d t
o a

llo
w 

an
 as

se
ss

me
nt 

of 
the

 ta
rge

ts 
se

t 

 Ala
n S

tew
ard

, 
Int

eri
m 

Se
rvi

ce
 

He
ad

  - 
Str

ate
gy

 
an

d P
erf

orm
an

ce
 

 Fe
b 2

00
9 

   

Page 221



10
6  

tar
ge

ts 
are

 id
en

tifi
ed

 
an

d m
et.

 
 

as
 it 

wa
s t

he
 fir

st 
ye

ar 
of 

me
as

uri
ng

 m
an

y o
f th

em
.  T

his
 

pro
ce

ss
 st

art
s i

n N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

8, 
wit

h t
he

 ai
m 

of 
co

nc
lud

ing
 

in 
the

 fir
st 

qu
art

er 
of 

20
09

. A
 M

em
be

rs 
Se

mi
na

r o
n t

he
 LA

A 
as

 pa
rt o

f th
is 

pro
ce

ss
 w

ou
ld 

all
ow

 M
em

be
r in

pu
t.  

Six
 m

on
th 

mo
nit

ori
ng

 da
ta 

wil
l a

lso
 be

 av
ail

ab
le 

– i
n D

ec
em

be
r 0

8 -
 fo

r a
 

nu
mb

er 
of 

the
 in

dic
ato

rs 
an

d t
his

 ca
n a

lso
 be

 co
ns

ide
red

 at
 

the
 se

mi
na

r.  
 

 

     

 R2
  

Th
at 

LA
As

 in
clu

de
 

tar
ge

ts 
for

 na
rro

win
g 

the
 ga

p w
ith

 th
e 

av
era

ge
 ou

tco
me

s f
or 

KS
2 a

nd
 KS

3; 
co

ron
ary

 
he

art
 di

se
as

e; 
em

plo
ym

en
t le

ve
ls;

 
tak

e u
p o

f In
ca

pa
cit

y 
Be

ne
fit 

an
d t

ee
na

ge
 

co
nc

ep
tio

n r
ate

s. 
 

 Th
e L

AA
 in

dic
ato

rs 
an

d t
arg

ets
 w

ere
 dr

ive
n b

y t
he

 re
fre

sh
 of

 
the

 To
we

r H
am

let
s P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Pl
an

 so
 th

at 
the

y 
ref

lec
ted

 th
e k

ey
 pr

ior
itie

s f
or 

the
 bo

rou
gh

.  O
nly

 in
dic

ato
rs 

fro
m 

the
 ne

w 
na

tio
na

l in
dic

ato
r s

et 
co

uld
 be

 in
clu

de
d w

ith
in 

the
 LA

A. 
 O

ur 
LA

A i
nc

lud
es

 ta
rge

ts 
on

 m
os

t o
f th

es
e 

me
as

ure
s a

s f
oll

ow
s: 

• 
the

re 
are

 16
 st

atu
tor

y e
du

ca
tio

na
l a

tta
inm

en
t, 1

0 o
f 

wh
ich

 in
clu

de
 as

pe
cts

 of
 KS

2 a
nd

 KS
3 

• 
thr

ee
 in

dic
ato

rs 
are

 in
clu

de
d a

rou
nd

 em
plo

ym
en

t ra
tes

: 
em

plo
ym

en
t ra

tes
 (N

I 1
51

), p
eo

ple
 cl

aim
ing

 ou
t o

f w
ork

 
be

ne
fits

 in
 th

e w
ors

t p
erf

orm
ing

 w
ard

s (
NI

 15
3)a

nd
 

pe
op

le 
cla

im
ing

 ou
t o

f w
ork

 be
ne

fits
 (N

I 1
52

) 
• 

Un
de

r 1
8 c

on
ce

pti
on

 ra
te 

(N
I 1

12
) is

 in
clu

de
d 

• 
Co

ron
ary

 H
ea

rt d
ise

as
e i

s n
ot 

inc
lud

ed
.   

 Th
e L

AA
 

inc
lud

es
 ta

rge
ts 

for
 th

e a
ll a

ge
 al

l c
au

se
 m

ort
ali

ty 
(N

I 
12

0) 
- w

hic
h i

s s
ee

n a
s t

he
 be

st 
co

mp
os

ite
 in

dic
ato

r o
f 

he
alt

h –
 as

 w
ell

 as
 ob

es
ity

 (N
I 5

6) 
an

d s
mo

kin
g (

NI
 

23
). 

• 
Th

ere
 is

 on
e n

ati
on

al 
ind

ica
tor

 ar
ou

nd
 in

ca
pa

cit
y (

NI
 

17
3).

  T
his

 is
 no

t in
clu

de
d i

n t
he

 LA
A b

ut 
– a

s p
art

 of
 

 n/a
 

 

Page 222



10
7  

the
 na

tio
na

l in
dic

ato
r s

et 
– i

t w
ill b

e m
on

ito
red

 as
 on

e 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 pr

ior
ity

 in
dic

ato
rs.

 
 

 R3
  

Th
at 

the
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 en

su
res

 
tha

t th
e g

uid
ing

 
pri

nc
ipl

es
 of

 th
e 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 C
ha

rte
r a

re 
ad

he
red

 to
; m

ak
ing

 
su

re 
tha

t th
ere

 is
 

co
nti

nu
ity

 in
 th

e w
ay

 th
e 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 fu
nc

tio
ns

. 
Th

is 
sh

ou
ld 

inc
lud

e 
be

tte
r p

ub
lici

ty 
thr

ou
gh

 
Ea

st 
En

d L
ife

 an
d a

lso
 

on
 th

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
we

bs
ite

. F
urt

he
rm

ore
 

all
 ne

w 
an

d e
xis

tin
g 

LA
P m

em
be

rs 
an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 
giv

en
 a 

co
py

 to
 re

fer
 to

. 
  

 Th
e P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

Ch
art

er 
is 

cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g u

pd
ate

d a
s p

art
 of

 
the

 P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
ref

res
h 

pro
ce

ss
.  

W
e 

are
 e

ns
uri

ng
 th

is 
is 

ali
gn

ed
 w

ith
 th

e C
itiz

en
s C

ha
rte

r a
nd

 w
ill 

be
 la

un
ch

ed
 as

 pa
rt 

of 
the

 C
om

mu
nit

y P
lan

 la
un

ch
. 

 Th
e r

efr
es

he
d P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

Ch
art

er 
wil

l b
e o

n t
he

 P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
we

bs
ite

, a
s i

t is
 cu

rre
ntl

y. 
 A

ll m
em

be
rs 

wil
l b

e a
sk

ed
 to

 re
ad

, 
ag

ree
 an

d s
ign

 up
 to

 th
e P

art
ne

rsh
ip.

 

 Su
sa

n R
itc

hie
, 

Int
eri

m 
He

ad
 

Pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n a
nd

 
En

ga
ge

me
nt 

Te
am

 

 Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

             

 R4
  

Th
at 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 in
tro

du
ce

s 
a l

ea
rni

ng
 an

d 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

 A D
ev

elo
pm

en
t a

nd
 Tr

ain
ing

 pr
og

ram
me

 is
 cu

rre
ntl

y b
ein

g 
pre

pa
red

 fo
r a

ll P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
me

mb
ers

 an
d w

ill b
e 

im
ple

me
nte

d t
hro

ug
ho

ut 
the

 au
tum

n a
nd

 w
int

er 
mo

nth
s. 

 

 Su
sa

n R
itc

hie
, 

Int
eri

m 
He

ad
 

Pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n a
nd

 
En

ga
ge

me
nt 

 Se
pte

mb
er-

Ma
rch

 20
09

 
  

Page 223



10
8  

pro
gra

mm
e f

or 
Lo

ca
l 

Ar
ea

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 (L
AP

) 
me

mb
ers

 w
hic

h i
nc

lud
e 

a s
es

sio
n o

n h
ow

 
fun

din
g d

ec
isio

ns
 ar

e 
ma

de
. 

 R5
  

Th
at 

a d
oc

um
en

t 
de

tai
lin

g L
AP

 ro
les

 an
d 

res
po

ns
ibi

litie
s i

s s
en

t 
to 

all
 re

sid
en

ts,
 al

on
g 

wit
h a

n i
nv

ita
tio

n t
o 

att
en

d L
AP

 m
ee

tin
gs

. 
 

       Th
is 

wil
l b

e p
art

 of
 th

e n
ew

 Te
rm

s o
f R

efe
ren

ce
 fo

r th
e 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 G
ov

ern
an

ce
.  T

he
se

 ar
e c

urr
en

tly
 in

 dr
aft

 an
d 

aft
er 

30
th

 Ju
ly 

Ca
bin

et 
the

y w
ill b

e a
gre

ed
 an

d s
en

t to
 al

l 
me

mb
ers

 of
 th

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip.
  

Te
am

  
      Sh

az
ia 

Hu
ss

ain
, 

Int
eri

m 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 

       No
ve

mb
er 

20
08

 
  

 R6
    

 Th
at 

the
 To

we
r H

am
let

s  
    

   
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 un

de
rta

ke
s 

a c
orp

ora
te 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o 
pro

jec
t e

va
lua

tio
n t

o 
im

pro
ve

 va
lue

 fo
r 

mo
ne

y. 
 Th

is 
ev

alu
ati

on
 

sh
ou

ld 
inc

lud
e a

n 
an

aly
sis

 of
 pr

oje
ct 

me
tho

ds
, s

ca
le,

 ta
rge

t 
gro

up
, v

alu
e f

or 
mo

ne
y. 

 Fu
ll e

va
lua

tio
ns

 ha
ve

 be
en

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 

for
 al

l N
RF

 
int

erv
en

tio
ns

.  W
e w

ill e
ns

ure
 th

at 
the

se
 ar

e d
on

e c
orp

ora
tel

y 
for

 th
e W

ork
ing

 N
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

 Fu
nd

 (W
NF

), o
nc

e a
cti

vit
ies

 
ha

ve
 be

en
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

.  T
he

re 
wil

l b
e a

 ne
ed

 to
 ea

rm
ark

 a 
sp

ec
ific

 su
m 

fro
m 

the
 W

NF
 to

 un
de

rta
ke

 th
is 

de
tai

led
 

ev
alu

ati
on

 w
ork

.  

 Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

, 
Int

eri
m 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

 On
-go

ing
 

 R7
 

Th
at 

the
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ca

rry
 ou

t a
 

rev
iew

 of
 al

l 

 De
tai

ls 
of 

all
 ou

tpu
t m

on
ito

rin
g h

as
 be

en
 m

ad
e a

va
ila

ble
, 

alo
ng

 w
ith

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t e

va
lua

tio
ns

 un
de

rta
ke

n i
n t

his
 ar

ea
.  

Th
es

e w
ill b

e u
se

d t
o i

nfo
rm

 th
e p

roc
es

s f
or 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 of

 

  Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

, 
Int

eri
m 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 

 20
08

 
 

Page 224



10
9  

em
plo

ym
en

t p
roj

ec
t 

clie
nt 

ou
tco

me
s t

o 
ide

nti
fy 

wh
ich

 
int

erv
en

tio
ns

 w
ere

 m
os

t 
eff

ec
tiv

e. 

W
NF

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
s. 

  
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

 R8
 

Th
at 

CP
AG

s o
pe

rat
e 

joi
nt 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 on

 
wo

rkl
es

sn
es

s p
roj

ec
ts 

in 
ord

er 
to 

ma
xim

ise
 th

e 
be

ne
fits

 to
 cl

ien
t 

ou
tre

ac
h a

nd
 im

pro
ve

 
va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
. 

 

 A c
om

mi
ss

ion
ing

 fra
me

wo
rk 

ha
s b

ee
n a

gre
ed

 by
 C

ab
ine

t w
ith

 
reg

ard
 to

 th
os

e i
nte

rve
nti

on
s t

o b
e s

up
po

rte
d t

hro
ug

h t
he

 
W

ork
ing

 N
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

s F
un

d. 
 Ke

y a
rea

s f
or 

int
erv

en
tio

n a
re 

as
 fo

llo
ws

: 
1 

Th
e s

ho
rt t

erm
 im

pe
rat

ive
 to

 ge
t 4

00
0 p

eo
ple

 
int

o s
us

tai
na

ble
 em

plo
ym

en
t;  

• 
Fa

mi
ly 

foc
us

ed
 en

ga
ge

me
nt 

• 
Pr

e-e
mp

loy
me

nt 
sk

ills
 an

d s
up

po
rt t

o 
ac

ce
ss

 lo
ca

l jo
bs

 
 

2 
Th

e l
on

g t
erm

 go
al 

to 
pre

ve
nt 

ou
r c

urr
en

t la
rge

 
po

pu
lat

ion
 of

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 be

co
mi

ng
 th

e 
wo

rkl
es

s o
f th

e f
utu

re 
thr

ou
gh

 ea
rly

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
 

an
d p

rev
en

tio
n 

• 
Ac

ce
ler

ati
ng

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
in 

ed
uc

ati
on

 
att

ain
me

nt 
• 

Ea
rly

 In
ter

ve
nti

on
 w

ith
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 at
 

ris
k o

f w
ork

les
sn

es
s 

 
3 

Ta
rge

ted
 w

ork
 w

ith
 ex

clu
de

d g
rou

ps
 w

ith
 a 

cle
ar 

foc
us

 on
 m

ov
ing

 pe
op

le 
int

o e
mp

loy
me

nt 
• 

Su
pp

ort
 fo

r s
oc

ial
ly 

ex
clu

de
d g

rou
ps

 to
 

  Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

, 
Int

eri
m 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

 On
-go

ing
 

 

Page 225



11
0  

he
lp 

the
m 

mo
ve

 in
to 

em
plo

ym
en

t 
 

 R9
  

Th
at 

the
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 
for

 ou
tre

ac
h a

cro
ss

 th
e 

pro
jec

ts 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 

rev
iew

ed
. T

he
 re

vie
w 

sh
ou

ld 
ad

dre
ss

 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 fo
r 

sp
ec

ific
 ou

tre
ac

h t
o 

int
en

de
d b

en
efi

cia
rie

s 
an

d g
en

era
l o

utr
ea

ch
 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 fo

r 
en

ga
gin

g t
he

 br
oa

de
r 

co
mm

un
ity

. 

 A 
ma

pp
ing

 ex
erc

ise
 is

 be
ing

 un
de

rta
ke

n b
y D

ev
elo

pm
en

t a
nd

 
Re

ne
wa

l to
 fa

cili
tat

e a
 be

tte
r a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f th

e s
ca

le 
of 

the
 

loc
al 

thi
rd 

se
cto

r in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s, 
the

 se
rvi

ce
s p

rov
ide

d b
y i

t 
an

d 
the

 ta
rge

t b
en

efi
cia

rie
s. 

Th
is 

wil
l t

he
n 

he
lp 

to 
inf

orm
 

ou
tre

ac
h a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
for

 en
ga

gin
g t

he
 br

oa
de

r c
om

mu
nit

y, 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

by
 th

e 
Pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n 

Te
am

 in
 th

e 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
.   

 Fu
rth

erm
ore

 a 
pro

gra
mm

e g
rou

p o
f th

ird
 se

cto
r a

ge
nc

ies
 an

d 
lea

d o
ffic

ers
 to

 be
 ch

air
ed

 by
 Le

ad
 M

em
be

r fo
r R

eg
en

era
tio

n, 
Lo

ca
lisa

tio
n a

nd
 C

om
mu

nit
y P

art
ne

rsh
ips

 is
 be

ing
 se

t u
p. 

  

 Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

, 
Int

eri
m 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 / D

av
e 

Cla
rk,

 H
ea

d-
Ac

co
un

tab
ility

 an
d 

Ex
ter

na
l F

un
din

g 

 De
ce

mb
er 

20
08

 

 
R1

0  
Th

at 
CP

AG
s i

de
nti

fy 
pro

jec
t d

eli
ve

ry 
me

tho
ds

 w
he

n 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 pr
oje

cts
. 

Th
is 

sh
ou

ld 
en

su
re 

tha
t 

su
ita

ble
 ou

tre
ac

h t
o 

clie
nts

 is
 sc

rut
ini

se
d a

t 
the

 pr
oje

ct 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 st
ag

e.  
 

 Th
e n

ew
 C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 D

eli
ve

ry 
Gr

ou
ps

 ar
e i

n t
he

 pr
oc

es
s 

of 
ide

nti
fyi

ng
 L

AA
 d

eli
ve

ry 
pla

ns
 f

or 
im

ple
me

nta
tio

n 
an

d 
de

live
ry 

of 
the

 35
 LA

A t
arg

ets
. 

 Th
is 

wil
l b

e c
los

ely
 lin

ke
d i

nto
 th

e D
eli

ve
ry 

Pla
ns

 fo
r th

e L
AA

 
tar

ge
ts 

– w
ork

 w
ill b

e d
ev

elo
pe

d t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

the
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Pl
an

 st
rat

eg
y i

s d
eli

ve
red

 th
rou

gh
 ea

ch
 of

 th
e 

de
live

ry 
gro

up
s w

ith
 qu

art
erl

y r
ep

ort
s t

o t
he

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
Ex

ec
uti

ve
, a

s w
ell

 as
 qu

art
erl

y m
on

ito
rin

g o
f th

e L
AA

 ta
rge

ts 
by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 te
am

. 

 Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

, 
Int

eri
m 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 / A

lan
 

Ste
wa

rd,
 In

ter
im

 
Se

rvi
ce

 H
ea

d  
- 

Str
ate

gy
 an

d 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 

 On
-go

ing
 

 
R1

1  
Th

at 
the

 To
we

r H
am

let
s 

 A 
ful

l r
ev

iew
 w

as
 c

arr
ied

 o
ut 

as
 p

art
 o

f t
he

 P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
 Sh

az
ia 

Hu
ss

ain
, 

 Co
mp

let
ed

 

Page 226



11
1  

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 re
vie

ws
 th

e 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

n b
etw

ee
n 

LA
Ps

, C
PA

Gs
 an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Gr

ou
p 

(P
MG

) in
 or

de
r to

 
en

su
re 

tha
t lo

ca
l 

ma
tte

rs 
are

 re
fle

cte
d a

t 
PM

G 
an

d t
ha

t s
tra

teg
ic 

ma
tte

rs 
are

 
co

mm
un

ica
ted

 
eff

ec
tiv

ely
 to

 LA
Ps

. 
          R1

2 
Th

at 
the

 To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 de
ve

lop
s a

 
str

ate
gic

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

fra
me

wo
rk 

for
 

reg
en

era
tio

n f
un

ds
 in

 
fut

ure
, to

 pr
ov

ide
 a 

mo
re 

co
ns

ist
en

t 
fra

me
wo

rk 
for

 

ref
res

h. 
 Th

e n
ew

 P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
Bo

ard
 w

ill 
en

su
re 

me
mb

ers
hip

 
fro

m 
bo

th 
the

 P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
De

live
ry 

Gr
ou

ps
 a

nd
 th

e 
LA

P 
Ste

eri
ng

 g
rou

ps
 to

 b
rin

g 
gre

ate
r l

ev
els

 o
f a

cc
ou

nta
bil

ity
 a

nd
 

en
su

re 
loc

al 
pri

ori
tie

s a
re 

ref
lec

ted
 at

 a 
str

ate
gic

 le
ve

l o
n t

he
 

Bo
ard

.   
 LA

P 
pri

ori
tie

s w
ill 

als
o h

av
e t

o b
e l

ink
ed

 in
to 

the
 LA

A 
tar

ge
ts 

to 
bri

ng
 g

rea
ter

 lin
ka

ge
 b

etw
ee

n 
De

live
ry 

gro
up

s 
an

d 
LA

P 
ste

eri
ng

 gr
ou

ps
. 

 A c
om

mu
nic

ati
on

s s
tra

teg
y w

ill b
e d

ev
elo

pe
d t

o r
un

 al
on

gs
ide

 
thi

s w
ork

. 
           Th

is 
ha

s a
lre

ad
y b

ee
n c

om
ple

ted
 th

rou
gh

 th
e W

NF
 St

rat
eg

y 
an

d c
om

mi
ss

ion
ing

 do
cu

me
nt.

 

Int
eri

m 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

  
                    Sh

az
ia 

Hu
ss

ain
, 

Int
eri

m 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 

                       Co
mp

let
ed

 

Page 227



11
2  

as
se

ss
ing

 va
lue

 fo
r 

mo
ne

y a
nd

 to
 en

su
re 

sp
ec

ific
 in

ter
ve

nti
on

s 
rei

nfo
rce

 hi
gh

er 
lev

el 
str

ate
gic

 ob
jec

tiv
es

. 
 

R1
3  

Th
at 

pro
jec

t a
pp

rai
sa

l 
do

cu
me

nts
 pr

ov
ide

 a 
ma

ins
tre

am
ing

 st
rat

eg
y 

wh
ich

 ex
pla

ins
 w

he
the

r 
the

 pr
oje

ct 
wil

l a
) 

ch
an

ge
 se

rvi
ce

 pr
ac

tic
e 

b) 
se

ek
 al

ter
na

tiv
e 

fun
din

g c
) c

rea
te 

a n
ew

 
ma

ins
tre

am
 se

rvi
ce

. 
 

  Sa
me

 as
 ab

ov
e. 

 Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

, 
Int

eri
m 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

 Co
mp

let
ed

 

 R1
4  

   T
ha

t e
mp

loy
ab

ility
 an

d 
sk

ills
 sh

ou
ld 

rem
ain

 a 
pri

ori
ty 

for
 th

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
. T

he
 pr

oje
ct 

ap
pra

isa
l s

ho
uld

 
ide

nti
fy 

wh
ich

 cl
ien

t 
gro

up
 is

 be
ing

 ta
rge

ted
 

an
d o

utc
om

es
 sh

ou
ld 

no
t b

e r
es

tric
ted

 to
 'jo

bs
 

he
ld 

for
 13

 w
ee

ks
' s

o 
tha

t th
e p

rog
res

s m
ad

e 

 Th
is 

ha
s b

ee
n 

ad
dre

ss
ed

 th
rou

gh
 th

e 
W

NF
 st

rat
eg

y. 
 W

NF
 

ca
n 

on
ly 

be
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 

ag
ain

st 
Em

plo
ym

en
t 

an
d 

wo
rkl

es
sn

es
s r

ela
ted

 ac
tiv

ity
.  

Th
is 

wil
l b

e c
los

ely
 a

lig
ne

d 
to 

the
 E

mp
loy

me
nt 

Str
ate

gy
 a

nd
 th

e 
LA

A 
tar

ge
ts 

to 
en

su
re 

we
 

me
et 

ou
r ta

rge
ts.

 
       

 Su
e H

ind
s, 

Ac
ce

ss
 

to 
Em

plo
ym

en
t 

Ma
na

ge
r  

         

 Co
mp

let
ed

 
           

Page 228



11
3  

tow
ard

s e
mp

loy
me

nt 
ca

n b
e m

ea
su

red
. 

 
   

   
  

 
R1

5  
  T

ha
t fu

nd
ing

 is
 pr

ov
ide

d 
to 

the
 th

ird
 se

cto
r in

 th
e 

Bo
rou

gh
 to

 en
su

re 
it i

s 
ab

le 
to 

rep
res

en
t th

e 
vie

ws
 of

 th
e s

ec
tor

 in
 

str
ate

gic
 de

cis
ion

s a
nd

 
ca

n s
up

po
rt l

oc
al 

lev
el 

co
mm

un
ity

 ca
pa

cit
y 

bu
ild

ing
 ac

tiv
ity

 on
 th

e 
co

mm
un

ity
 ch

es
t m

od
el.
  Su

bje
ct 

to 
Ca

bin
et 

ap
pro

va
l, L

AP
 St

ee
rin

g G
rou

ps
 w

ill b
e a

ble
 

to 
co

mm
iss

ion
 lo

ca
lise

d a
cti

vit
y u

p t
o t

he
 va

lue
 of

 £3
00

,00
0. 

Th
is 

is 
be

ing
 de

ve
lop

ed
 in

to 
the

 Pa
rtic

ipa
tor

y B
ud

ge
t M

od
el 

to 
be

 ro
lle

d o
ut 

in 
Ap

ril 
20

08
.  

     

 Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

, 
Int

eri
m 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08

 

 
R1

6  
  T

ha
t th

e i
mp

ac
t o

f S
afe

r 
Ne

igh
bo

urh
oo

d T
ea

ms
 

(S
NT

s) 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 

rec
og

nis
ed

 an
d T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

sh
ou

ld 
us

e W
ork

ing
 

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d F

un
d 

(W
NF

) to
 pi

lot
 an

 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 SN

T s
erv

ice
 

in 
at 

lea
st 

tw
o w

ard
s.  

 Th
e P

art
icip

ato
ry 

Bu
dg

et 
Mo

de
l h

as
 a 

me
nu

 of
 op

tio
ns

. O
ne

 
su

ch
 op

tio
n w

ill b
e a

rou
nd

 im
pro

vin
g S

NT
s. 

 

 Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

, 
Int

eri
m 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

 Ap
ril 

20
09

 

 R1
7  

   T
ha

t th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

sh
ou

ld 
ex

am
ine

 th
e 

 Th
e 

po
ss

ibi
lity

 o
f 

de
ve

lop
ing

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
sc

he
me

 t
o 

tha
t 

op
era

tin
g 

in 
the

 L
on

do
n 

Bo
rou

gh
 o

f N
ew

ha
m 

wil
l b

e 
for

 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 by
 th

e a
pp

rop
ria

te 
CP

DG
. 

 Ste
ve

 H
als

ey
 – 

Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

r 
CL

C 
 

 On
-go

ing
 

Page 229



11
4  

po
ss

ibi
lity

 of
 fu

nd
ing

 a 
sim

ila
r W

ork
ing

 Fu
tur

es
 

sc
he

me
 to

 ea
se

 th
e 

po
ve

rty
 tra

p f
ac

ing
 

ho
me

les
s f

am
ilie

s i
n t

he
 

Bo
rou

gh
. 

   

         
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
15
 

Re
sp

on
se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y C
ha

lle
ng

e S
es
sio

n o
n I

nte
rp
ret

ing
 an

d T
ran

sla
tio

n P
ro
vis

ion
 

 Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
 

Re
sp

on
se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 1
 – 

Th
at 

wo
rk 

is 
un

de
rta

ke
n t

o r
ev

iew
 th

e c
oll

ec
tio

n a
nd

 
qu

ali
ty 

of 
da

ta 
aro

un
d i

nte
rpr

eti
ng

 an
d 

tra
ns

lat
ion

, a
nd

 an
 ex

am
ina

tio
n o

f th
e 

pra
cti

ca
litie

s a
nd

 m
eri

ts 
of 

im
ple

me
nti

ng
 

a c
us

tom
er 

tra
ck

ing
 sy

ste
m 

ac
ros

s t
he

 
au

tho
rity

 is
 m

ad
e. 

 

An
 an

aly
sis

 of
 th

e i
nte

rpr
eti

ng
 an

d 
tra

ns
lat

ion
 da

ta 
ha

s b
ee

n u
nd

ert
ak

en
 to

 
inf

orm
 th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 re
vie

w 
of 

I&T
.  I

nit
ial

 
dis

cu
ss

ion
s h

av
e t

ak
en

 pl
ac

e w
ith

 
Ne

wh
am

 La
ng

ua
ge

 Sh
op

 ab
ou

t 
de

ve
lop

ing
 th

e w
ay

 in
 w

hic
h i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 
is 

co
lle

cte
d a

nd
 re

po
rte

d t
o e

na
ble

 th
e 

Co
un

cil 
to 

be
tte

r u
se

 th
is 

inf
orm

ati
on

 to
 

inf
orm

 se
rvi

ce
 de

live
ry.

  

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Th
e r

ev
iew

 of
 I&

T h
as

 
hig

hli
gh

ted
 th

e n
ee

d f
or 

mo
re 

wh
ole

sa
le 

thi
nk

ing
 ab

ou
t th

e 
org

an
isa

tio
ns

 I&
T n

ee
ds

, a
nd

 its
 

lin
ka

ge
s w

ith
 cu

sto
me

r a
cc

es
s 

an
d c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s. 

 Ac
tio

ns
 

ha
ve

 be
en

 in
clu

de
d i

n t
he

 dr
aft

 
Ra

ce
 Eq

ua
lity

 Sc
he

me
 20

09
-12

 
to 

tak
e t

his
 w

ork
 fo

rw
ard

.  

Page 230



11
5  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
 

Re
sp

on
se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

 A C
us

tom
er 

Tra
ck

ing
 Sy

ste
m 

ha
s b

ee
n 

ad
op

ted
 by

 To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es

. A
 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 of
 th

e I
&T

 R
ev

iew
 is

 to
 

ex
plo

re 
ho

w 
thi

s c
an

 be
 ex

pa
nd

ed
 to

 
se

rvi
ce

s a
cro

ss
 th

e C
ou

nc
il. 

  

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 2
 – 

Th
at 

the
 Li

fel
on

g 
Le

arn
ing

 Se
rvi

ce
 ex

am
ine

 w
ay

s i
n 

wh
ich

 ne
w 

arr
iva

ls 
an

d t
ho

se
 w

ith
 

lim
ite

d E
ng

lish
 be

 ta
rge

ted
 an

d o
ffe

red
 

the
 op

po
rtu

nit
y t

o t
ak

e a
n e

ntr
y-l

ev
el 

ES
OL

 co
urs

e.  Tw
o p

roj
ec

ts 
tar

ge
tin

g n
ew

 ar
riv

als
, b

oth
 

fun
de

d b
y t

he
 EI

F, 
run

 in
 th

e b
oro

ug
h. 

 
On

e, 
run

 by
 th

e A
rbo

r C
en

tre
, ta

rge
ts 

tho
se

 he
re 

un
de

r a
 ye

ar 
an

d t
he

 pr
oje

ct 
run

s t
o 2

01
0. 

 Th
e o

the
r is

 a 
co

ns
ort

ium
 

led
 by

 To
we

r H
am

let
s C

oll
eg

e a
nd

 
tar

ge
ts 

tho
se

 in
 th

e U
K l

es
s t

ha
n f

ive
 

ye
ars

.  P
rog

res
sio

n f
or 

lea
rne

rs 
is 

co
-

ord
ina

ted
 by

 EP
AG

 pa
rtn

ers
.   

  

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

ap
pro

va
l, a

 W
ork

ing
 

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d F

un
d b

id 
wil

l 
inc

rea
se

 th
e n

um
be

r o
f e

ntr
y 

lev
el 

ES
OL

 pl
ac

es
 av

ail
ab

le 
ac

ros
s t

he
 bo

rou
gh

. 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 3
 – 

Th
at 

wo
rk 

be
 

un
de

rta
ke

n t
o e

xa
mi

ne
 al

ter
na

tiv
e 

so
urc

es
 of

 fu
nd

ing
 fo

r E
SO

L t
hro

ug
h a

 
nu

mb
er 

of 
ch

an
ne

ls 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e L

oc
al 

Str
ate

gic
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
, S

ec
tio

n 1
06

 
ag

ree
me

nts
 an

d o
pp

ort
un

itie
s c

rea
ted

 
by

 th
e 2

01
2 O

lym
pic

s.  

A r
ec

en
t jo

int
 To

we
r H

am
let

s N
ew

ha
m 

ap
pli

ca
tio

n t
o t

he
 C

ity
 St

rat
eg

y 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

as
 un

su
cc

es
sfu

l fo
r th

e 
em

plo
ym

en
t in

itia
tiv

e t
arg

eti
ng

 pa
ren

ts 
wit

h E
SO

L n
ee

ds
.  N

ev
ert

he
les

s t
he

 
res

ou
rce

s w
ill b

e a
va

ila
ble

 in
 th

e 
bo

rou
gh

 an
d m

an
ag

ed
 by

 th
e s

uc
ce

ss
ful

 
co

ntr
ac

tor
.  N

eg
oti

ati
on

s a
re 

ne
ar 

co
nc

lus
ion

 an
d l

oc
al 

pro
vid

ers
 w

ill b
e 

loo
kin

g a
t w

ay
s t

o m
ak

e a
pp

rop
ria

te 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Se
e a

bo
ve

 - t
he

 Lo
ca

l S
tra

teg
ic 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 ha
s h

ad
 ov

ers
igh

t 
of 

the
 W

NF
 bi

dd
ing

 pr
oc

es
s  

  
Se

cti
on

 10
6 i

s m
os

t u
nli

ke
ly 

to 
pro

vid
e a

 fu
nd

ing
 st

rea
m 

for
 

ES
OL

. 
Th

e c
urr

en
t ro

un
d o

f m
ain

 
str

ea
m 

gra
nt 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

ha
s i

nc
lud

ed
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f E

SO
L 

for
 ol

de
r re

sid
en

ts 
in 

the
 

Page 231



11
6  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
 

Re
sp

on
se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

ref
err

als
. 

  
Lif

elo
ng

 Le
arn

ing
 sp

ec
ific

ati
on

.  
De

cis
ion

s o
n r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
wil

l b
e m

ad
e i

n l
ate

 M
arc

h 2
00

9 
by

 th
e g

ran
ts 

pa
ne

l 
Lin

ks
 ha

ve
 be

en
 m

ad
e w

ith
 th

e 
To

we
r H

am
let

s O
lym

pic
 U

nit
 to

 
wo

rk 
on

 jo
int

 ve
ntu

res
.   

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 4
 – 

Th
at 

an
 

ex
am

ina
tio

n b
e m

ad
e o

f th
e f

ea
sib

ility
 of

 
ho

ldi
ng

 ES
OL

 cl
as

se
s i

n c
on

jun
cti

on
 

wit
h p

art
ne

r o
rga

nis
ati

on
s, 

su
ch

 as
 

Po
pla

r H
AR

CA
, a

nd
 th

e v
olu

nta
ry 

se
cto

r 
at 

a r
an

ge
 of

 ac
ce

ss
ibl

e c
om

mu
nit

y 
loc

ati
on

s, 
su

ch
 as

 G
P s

urg
eri

es
. A

lso
 to

 
ex

am
ine

 al
ter

na
tiv

e m
eth

od
s o

f 
de

live
rin

g E
ng

lish
 la

ng
ua

ge
 co

urs
es

. 
 

A W
NF

 bi
d i

s b
ein

g w
ork

ed
 up

 by
 

ex
ist

ing
 ES

OL
 pa

rtn
ers

 an
d p

rov
ide

rs 
 to

 
ex

ten
d t

he
 ov

era
ll  

av
ail

ab
ility

 of
 ES

OL
 

in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
 an

d t
o t

ac
kle

 so
me

 
sp

ec
ific

 ne
ed

s f
or 

ex
am

ple
 in

ten
siv

e 
su

pp
ort

 fo
r s

pe
ak

ing
 an

d l
ist

en
ing

 fo
r  

tho
se

 w
ho

se
 co

nfi
de

nc
e  

un
de

rm
ine

s 
the

ir p
erf

orm
an

ce
.  P

art
ne

rs 
an

d 
pro

vid
ers

 co
nti

nu
e t

o m
ee

t a
nd

 cr
os

s –
 

ref
er 

wh
ere

 po
ss

ibl
e  

   
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

ES
OL

 co
urs

es
 ar

e d
eli

ve
red

 
ac

ros
s a

 ra
ng

e o
f c

om
mu

nit
y 

ve
nu

es
 an

d i
n s

ch
oo

ls.
  T

he
 

Lif
elo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 Se
rvi

ce
 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e w
ork

 of
 th

e S
kill

s f
or 

Lif
e t

ea
m 

ha
s e

xte
ns

ive
 

co
mm

un
ity

 lin
ks

 an
d p

lan
s t

o 
tar

ge
t a

 w
ide

r ra
ng

e o
f E

SO
L 

lea
rne

rs.
 A 

co
urs

e f
or 

ho
us

ing
 

ca
ret

ak
ers

 (a
ll m

en
) h

as
 st

art
ed

 
an

d i
s b

ein
g d

eli
ve

red
 in

 th
e 

ea
rly

 ev
en

ing
 to

 fit
 in

to 
the

 
wo

rki
ng

 pa
tte

rns
 of

 th
e 

pa
rtic

ipa
nts

.   
  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 5
 - T

ha
t w

ork
 be

 
un

de
rta

ke
n t

o e
xa

mi
ne

 ad
ve

rtis
ing

 an
d 

sig
n p

os
tin

g o
f E

SO
L s

erv
ice

s. 
Th

is 
rev

iew
 ha

s n
ot 

tak
en

 pl
ac

e y
et.

 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
W

ork
 be

tw
ee

n p
art

ne
rs 

on
 

sig
np

os
tin

g a
nd

 va
ca

nc
y 

ma
tch

ing
 ta

ke
s p

lac
e b

etw
ee

n 
loc

al 
pro

vid
ers

.  I
f th

e W
NF

 bi
d 

is 
su

cc
es

sfu
l, l

im
ite

d a
dv

ert
isin

g 
ma

y w
ell

 be
 a 

rec
rui

tm
en

t 

Page 232



11
7  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
 

Re
sp

on
se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

op
tio

n. 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 6
 – 

Th
at 

an
 

ex
am

ina
tio

n o
f th

e o
pp

ort
un

itie
s f

or 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ork
ing

 on
 th

e i
ss

ue
 of

 
int

erp
ret

ing
 an

d t
ran

sla
tio

n b
e m

ad
e. 

A m
ee

tin
g w

ith
 th

e P
CT

 to
ok

 pl
ac

e o
n a

t 
the

 be
gin

nin
g o

f S
ep

t to
 ex

plo
re 

the
 

po
ten

tia
l fo

r jo
int

 pr
oc

ure
me

nt 
of 

I&T
 

se
rvi

ce
s. 

  

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Fu
rth

er 
dis

cu
ss

ion
s h

av
e t

ak
en

 
pla

ce
 w

ith
 th

e P
CT

 an
d 

Ne
wh

am
 La

ng
ua

ge
 Sh

op
 ab

ou
t 

the
 op

po
rtu

nit
y t

o d
ev

elo
p a

 
sh

are
d a

pp
roa

ch
 to

 In
ter

pre
tin

g 
an

d T
ran

sla
tio

n. 
 W

e a
re 

cu
rre

ntl
y w

ait
ing

 on
 pr

op
os

als
 

fro
m 

Ne
wh

am
 La

ng
ua

ge
 Sh

op
 

ab
ou

t d
ev

elo
pin

g a
 sh

are
d 

se
rvi

ce
 ap

pro
ac

h t
o I

&T
. 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 7
 – 

Th
at 

the
 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 fo

r th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f 

int
erp

ret
ing

 an
d t

ran
sla

tio
n s

erv
ice

s 
wit

hin
 th

e n
ew

 AL
MO

 be
 ex

am
ine

d. 

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es

 (T
HH

) w
ill u

se
 

the
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 m

ain
 pr

ov
ide

r fo
r 

int
erp

ret
ing

 an
d t

ran
sla

tio
n s

erv
ice

s, 
Ne

wh
am

 La
ng

ua
ge

 Sh
op

. It
 w

ill a
cc

es
s 

thi
s s

erv
ice

 un
de

r th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
.  T

HH
 is

 cu
rre

ntl
y 

de
ve

lop
ing

 a 
Co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 St

rat
eg

y, 
a s

ub
se

t o
f w

hic
h w

ill b
e a

n A
cc

es
sib

le 
Co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 St

rat
eg

y s
ett

ing
 ou

t it
s 

po
lici

es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s i
n r

ela
tio

n t
o 

int
erp

ret
ing

 an
d t

ran
sla

tio
n. 

 Th
is 

po
licy

 
is 

be
ing

 de
ve

lop
ed

 in
 lia

iso
n w

ith
 th

e 
Co

un
cil 

an
d w

ill b
e c

on
sis

ten
t w

ith
 th

e 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es

 (T
HH

) 
wil

l u
se

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 m

ain
 

pro
vid

er 
for

 in
ter

pre
tin

g a
nd

 
tra

ns
lat

ion
 se

rvi
ce

s, 
Ne

wh
am

 
La

ng
ua

ge
 Sh

op
. D

ev
elo

pm
en

ts 
to 

the
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 I&

T s
erv

ice
 w

ill 
en

ga
ge

 TH
H.

  

Page 233



11
8  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
 

Re
sp

on
se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Co
un

cil’
s I

&T
 po

lici
es

 an
d p

roc
ed

ure
s. 

  

                    
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
16
 

Page 234



11
9  

Re
sp

on
se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n A
cc
es
s t

o G
P /

 D
en

tis
try

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

 
Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n 

Co
mm

en
ts 

Le
ad

 
Up

da
te 

– M
arc

h 2
00
9 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
1 Th

at 
the

 PC
T 

su
pp

ort
s G

P 
pra

cti
ce

s i
n 

de
ve

lop
ing

 a 
me

ch
an

ism
 to

 sh
are

 
mo

de
ls 

of 
go

od
 

pra
cti

ce
 es

pe
cia

lly 
so

 th
at 

GP
s t

ha
t a

re 
pe

rfo
rm

ing
 po

orl
y 

wo
rk 

wit
h G

Ps
 th

at 
are

 pe
rfo

rm
ing

 w
ell

.    An
aly

sis
 of

 th
e G

P p
rac

tic
e G

PA
Q 

su
rve

ys
 fo

r 
20

07
/08

 ha
s s

ho
wn

 an
 im

pro
ve

d s
co

re 
on

 al
l 

qu
es

tio
n a

rea
s a

cro
ss

 To
we

r H
am

let
s p

rac
tic

es
. 

 Pr
ac

tic
es

 ha
ve

 be
en

 gi
ve

n t
he

 co
mp

ara
tiv

e r
es

ult
s 

for
 al

l p
rac

tic
es

 so
 ha

ve
 be

en
 ab

le 
to 

ide
nti

fy 
pra

cti
ce

s w
hic

h a
re 

sc
ori

ng
 be

tte
r th

an
 th

ey
 ar

e a
nd

 
to 

fin
d o

ut 
wh

ich
 ap

pro
ac

he
s t

ha
t th

es
e p

rac
tic

es
 

too
k w

ere
 su

cc
es

sfu
l. 

 Mo
st 

pra
cti

ce
s (

33
 ou

t o
f 3

6) 
ha

ve
 no

w 
es

tab
lish

ed
 

pa
tie

nt 
pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n o

r “c
riti

ca
l fr

ien
ds

” g
rou

ps
. T

his
 

is 
a s

ign
ific

an
t in

cre
as

e o
n l

as
t y

ea
r. 

  

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

All
 pr

ac
tic

es
 ar

e n
ow

 ab
le 

to:
 

 
• A

nti
cip

ate
 th

e d
em

an
d f

or 
the

 w
ee

k a
he

ad
 

• F
orw

ard
 pl

an
 by

 m
atc

hin
g s

up
ply

 to
 m

ee
t 

de
ma

nd
  

• C
alc

ula
te 

the
 nu

mb
er 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nts

 pe
r 1

00
0 

pa
tie

nts
 pe

r w
ee

k t
ha

t th
ey

 pr
ov

ide
 

• M
ea

su
re 

pa
tie

nt 
sa

tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 

ap
po

int
me

nts
 w

ith
in 

48
 ho

urs
 

• M
ea

su
re 

the
 nu

mb
er 

of 
tim

es
 th

at 
the

ir p
rac

tic
e 

ca
n n

ot 
pro

vid
e a

n a
pp

oin
tm

en
t w

ith
in 

48
 

ho
urs

 ea
ch

 da
y 

 An
 ac

ce
ss

 ev
en

t o
n 2

7th
 N

ov
em

be
r c

ov
ere

d m
an

y o
f 

the
 sk

ills
 ne

ed
ed

 to
 m

an
ag

e d
em

an
d a

nd
 pr

ov
ide

 
ex

ce
lle

nt 
ac

ce
ss

 an
d l

arg
ely

 co
mp

ris
ed

 of
 in

itia
tiv

es
 

ca
rrie

d o
ut 

by
 TH

PC
T p

rac
tic

es
 th

at 
we

re 
the

n 
sh

are
d w

ith
 ot

he
rs.

    
    

 
 Th

is 
ac

tio
n p

oin
t is

 co
mp

let
ed

. 
Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n 

2 Th
at 

the
 PC

T 
pro

vid
e t

he
 H

ea
lth

 
Sc

rut
iny

 Pa
ne

l w
ith

 
a c

om
pa

rat
ive

 

Th
e P

CT
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 a 
co

mp
ari

so
n o

f th
e G

PA
Q 

su
rve

y r
es

ult
s w

ith
 th

e n
ati

on
al 

MO
RI

 po
ll r

es
ult

s 
an

d t
his

 de
mo

ns
tra

ted
 a 

str
on

g c
orr

ela
tio

n. 
As

 th
e 

ab
ility

 to
 ac

ce
ss

 a 
GP

 ap
po

int
me

nt 
is 

im
pro

vin
g, 

pa
tie

nt 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e a

s a
 w

ho
le 

wit
h t

he
 pr

ac
tic

e i
s 

als
o i

mp
rov

ing
. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 Th
e n

ati
on

al 
(Ip

so
s M

ori
) G

P P
ati

en
t S

urv
ey

 ha
s 

go
ne

 ou
t b

ut 
the

 re
su

lts
 w

ill n
ot 

be
 kn

ow
n u

nti
l M

ay
. 

 Ho
we

ve
r th

e T
HP

CT
 G

PA
Q 

su
rve

y r
es

ult
s h

av
e j

us
t 

be
en

 re
lea

se
d a

nd
 sh

ow
 a 

dra
ma

tic
 im

pro
ve

me
nt 

in 

Page 235



12
0  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Le

ad
 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

an
aly

sis
 of

 th
e 

res
ult

s o
f th

e ‘
Yo

ur 
Do

cto
r, Y

ou
r 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e, 
Yo

ur 
Sa

y’ 
wit

h t
he

 
Ge

ne
ral

 
Pr

ac
titi

on
ers

 
As

se
ss

me
nt 

Qu
es

tio
nn

air
e 

Su
rve

y r
es

ult
s. 

Fu
rth

erm
ore

, th
e 

PC
T u

se
 th

e r
es

ult
s 

of 
bo

th 
su

rve
ys

 to
 

ide
nti

fy 
are

as
 of

 
im

pro
ve

me
nt 

an
d 

im
pro

ve
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

mo
nit

ori
ng

 of
 

se
rvi

ce
s. 

 
 

  To
we

r H
am

let
s P

CT
 is

 th
e m

os
t im

pro
ve

d P
CT

 in
 

the
 co

un
try

 fo
r th

e p
rov

isio
n o

f a
cc

es
s t

o G
P 

ap
po

int
me

nts
. T

he
 ov

er-
all

 av
era

ge
 fo

r p
ati

en
t 

sa
tis

fac
tio

n w
ith

 48
 H

ou
r a

cc
es

s w
en

t u
p f

rom
 68

% 
to 

74
%.

 
 Th

e a
bil

ity
 of

 pa
tie

nts
 to

 ge
t th

rou
gh

 to
 th

eir
 pr

ac
tic

e 
on

 th
e p

ho
ne

 al
so

 im
pro

ve
d m

ore
 th

an
 an

oth
er 

Lo
nd

on
 PC

T. 
 

  All
 pr

ac
tic

es
 no

w 
ha

ve
 an

 ac
tio

n p
lan

 in
 pl

ac
e w

hic
h 

aim
s t

o r
ed

uc
e d

em
an

d f
or 

ap
po

int
me

nts
, in

cre
as

e 
su

pp
ly 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nts

 an
d d

eli
ve

r 1
00

% 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 

ap
po

int
me

nts
 w

ith
in 

48
 ho

urs
.   

the
 ab

ility
 of

 TH
 re

sid
en

ts 
to 

ge
t a

pp
oin

tm
en

ts 
wit

hin
 

48
 ho

urs
. 

 89
% 

of 
pa

tie
nts

 st
ate

d t
he

y c
ou

ld 
ge

t a
n 

ap
po

int
me

nt 
wit

hin
 48

 ho
urs

 an
d t

he
 PC

T r
ea

ch
ed

 
En

gli
sh

 av
era

ge
 fo

r p
ati

en
t s

ati
sfa

cti
on

 w
ith

 ac
ce

ss
 

to 
ap

po
int

me
nts

. 
 43

% 
sta

ted
 th

ey
 co

uld
 ge

t a
n a

pp
oin

tm
en

t th
e s

am
e 

da
y w

hic
h w

as
 up

 fro
m 

22
% 

the
 pr

ev
iou

s y
ea

r. 
 Th

e G
PA

Q 
an

d n
ati

on
al 

Ips
os

-M
ori

 su
rve

y r
es

ult
s 

are
 in

co
rpo

rat
ed

 in
to 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t fo
r 

GP
 pr

ac
tic

es
 th

rou
gh

 as
se

ss
me

nt 
of 

the
 Ba

lan
ce

d 
Sc

ore
ca

rd 
 Th

is 
ac

tio
n p

oin
t is

 co
mp

let
ed

. 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
3 Th

at 
the

 PC
T 

rev
iew

s t
he

 tra
ini

ng
 

an
d g

uid
an

ce
 

pro
vid

ed
 to

 G
Ps

 
an

d D
en

tal
 Pr

ac
tic

e 
rec

ep
tio

n s
taf

f in
 

 All
 pr

ac
tic

es
 ha

ve
 no

w 
ha

d 3
 da

ys
 of

 cu
sto

me
r c

are
 

tra
ini

ng
 w

hic
h i

nc
lud

ed
 co

nfl
ict

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

va
lui

ng
 di

ve
rsi

ty 
an

d c
ult

ura
l c

om
pe

ten
ce

. T
he

 
tra

ini
ng

 in
co

rpo
rat

ed
 th

e u
se

 of
 ac

tor
s a

nd
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 

ha
s b

ee
n e

xc
ell

en
t.  

   
 As

se
ss

me
nt 

of 
tra

ini
ng

 ne
ed

s f
or 

de
nta

l p
rac

tic
e 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 W
e a

re 
rev

iew
ing

 ou
r o

pti
on

s f
or 

co
nti

nu
ing

 
cu

sto
me

r c
are

 an
d c

ult
ura

l a
wa

ren
es

s t
rai

nin
g f

or 
the

 co
mi

ng
 ye

ar.
 A 

bu
dg

et 
ha

s b
ee

n e
sta

bli
sh

ed
 to

 
be

 ab
le 

to 
co

mm
iss

ion
 fu

rth
er 

tra
ini

ng
 at

 al
l p

rac
tic

es
 

in 
20

09
/10

. 
 Th

e t
rai

nin
g n

ee
ds

 as
se

ss
me

nt 
for

 de
nta

l p
rac

tic
es

 

Page 236



12
1  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Le

ad
 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

pa
rtic

ula
r fo

cu
sin

g 
on

 C
us

tom
er 

Se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 

un
de

rst
an

din
g t

he
 

ne
ed

s o
f d

isa
ble

d 
an

d B
ME

 pa
tie

nts
.   

 rec
ep

tio
n s

taf
f h

as
 no

t y
et 

be
en

 un
de

rta
ke

n. 
Th

is 
wil

l ta
ke

 pl
ac

e a
s p

art
 of

 th
e d

en
tal

 cl
ini

ca
l 

go
ve

rna
nc

e p
rog

ram
me

 la
ter

 th
is 

ye
ar 

an
d t

rai
nin

g 
wil

l b
e c

om
mi

ss
ion

ed
 on

ce
 th

e r
es

ult
s o

f th
e s

urv
ey

 
are

 kn
ow

n. 
  

 Th
e d

ire
cto

ry 
of 

de
nta

l s
erv

ice
s h

as
 be

en
 pu

bli
sh

ed
 

an
d t

he
 Fi

nd
-a-

de
nti

st 
se

rvi
ce

 is
 no

w 
es

tab
lish

ed
. 

Th
is 

tel
ep

ho
ne

 ad
vic

e s
erv

ice
 is

 co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 by

 
the

 PC
T f

rom
 LB

TH
 an

d h
as

 re
ce

ive
d a

bo
ut 

10
0 

ca
lls 

in 
rel

ati
on

 to
 de

nti
str

y p
er 

mo
nth

 si
nc

e i
t w

as
 

se
t u

p i
n J

un
e 2

00
8. 

 
     

in 
rel

ati
on

 to
 cu

sto
me

r c
are

 ne
ed

s r
em

ain
s 

ou
tst

an
din

g. 
All

 pr
ac

tic
es

 ha
ve

 be
en

 re
mi

nd
ed

 of
 th

e 
av

ail
ab

ility
 to

 th
em

 of
 th

e P
CT

 In
ter

pre
tin

g a
nd

 
Bil

ing
ua

l A
dv

oc
ac

y S
erv

ice
. 

  Th
e H

ea
lth

 H
otl

ine
 Se

rvi
ce

 (in
clu

de
s t

he
 fin

d-a
-

de
nti

st 
an

d f
ind

-a-
do

c s
erv

ice
s) 

co
nti

nu
es

 to
 be

 
co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 by
 th

e P
CT

 fro
m 

LB
TH

 C
orp

ora
te 

Se
rvi

ce
s. 

Th
e P

CT
 ha

s n
ow

 re
qu

es
ted

 m
ore

 de
tai

led
 

inf
orm

ati
on

 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 ca

lls 
reg

ard
ing

 de
nta

l 
se

rvi
ce

s, 
so

 th
at 

the
 de

nta
l c

om
mi

ss
ion

ing
 te

am
 ca

n 
fol

low
 up

 qu
eri

es
, a

nd
 al

so
 id

en
tify

 fre
qu

en
tly

 ra
ise

d 
are

as
 of

 co
nc

ern
 fro

m 
the

 pu
bli

c s
o t

ha
t th

ey
 ca

n b
e 

ad
dre

ss
ed

 by
 th

e P
CT

. 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
4 Th

at 
the

 Pr
im

ary
 

Ca
re 

Tru
st 

wo
rks

 
wit

h l
oc

al 
sc

ho
ols

, 
GD

Ps
 an

d 
co

mm
un

ity
 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
 to

 
be

gin
 co

mp
ila

tio
n o

f 
da

ta 
ab

ou
t lo

ca
l 

pe
op

les
 or

al 
he

alt
h 

 Th
e p

ilo
t p

rog
ram

me
 in

 tw
o p

rim
ary

 sc
ho

ols
 (“H

ap
py

 
Te

eth
”) r

an
 fo

r th
e a

ca
de

mi
c y

ea
r. L

es
so

ns
 ha

ve
 

be
en

 le
arn

ed
 fro

m 
the

 pi
lot

 an
d w

ill b
e u

se
d t

o r
oll

 
ou

t a
 sc

ree
nin

g a
nd

 flu
ori

de
 ap

pli
ca

tio
n p

rog
ram

me
 

in 
oth

er 
sc

ho
ols

 in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s d
uri

ng
 th

is 
sc

ho
ol 

ye
ar 

for
 nu

rse
ry 

ad
 re

ce
pti

on
 ch

ild
ren

. 
   A s

urv
ey

 of
 or

al 
he

alt
h i

n 3
00

 ad
ult

s a
ge

d o
ve

r 1
6 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 An
 or

al 
he

alt
h s

urv
ey

 of
 ch

ild
ren

 ag
ed

 3 
an

d 4
 ye

ars
 

in 
To

we
r H

am
let

s, 
Ne

wh
am

 an
d C

ity
 an

d H
ac

kn
ey

 
ha

s b
ee

n c
om

ple
ted

 an
d t

he
 re

su
lts

 ar
e b

ein
g u

se
d 

to 
im

pro
ve

 or
al 

he
alt

h p
rom

oti
on

 an
d d

ise
as

e 
pre

ve
nti

on
 pr

og
ram

me
s f

or 
yo

un
g c

hil
dre

n i
n a

ll 3
 

PC
Ts

. 
 Th

e P
CT

 w
ill b

e i
mp

lem
en

tin
g a

 pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
pro

gra
mm

e w
ith

 pr
im

ary
 sc

ho
ols

, w
ith

 th
e 

inv
olv

em
en

t o
f lo

ca
l d

en
tal

 pr
ac

tic
es

. A
 pr

es
en

tat
ion

 

Page 237



12
2  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Le

ad
 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

an
d i

mp
rov

e u
pta

ke
 

of 
de

nta
l s

erv
ice

s. 
  

 

ye
ars

 ha
s b

ee
n u

nd
ert

ak
en

 in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s d
uri

ng
 

the
 pe

rio
d M

arc
h t

o J
uly

 20
08

. S
urv

ey
s w

ere
 

un
de

rta
ke

n i
n p

eo
ple

’s 
ho

me
s a

nd
, w

ith
 th

eir
 

co
ns

en
t, a

 cl
ini

ca
l e

xa
mi

na
tio

n w
as

 un
de

rta
ke

n b
y a

 
de

nti
st.

 Th
e s

urv
ey

 is
 no

w 
co

mp
let

ed
 an

d t
he

 re
su

lts
 

are
 be

ing
 an

aly
se

d. 
Re

su
lts

 w
ill b

e a
va

ila
ble

 in
 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
08

. 
 An

 ep
ide

mi
olo

gic
al 

su
rve

y h
as

 al
so

 be
en

 
un

de
rta

ke
n w

ith
 3 

ye
ar 

old
 ch

ild
ren

 in
 To

we
r 

Ha
ml

ets
> R

es
ult

s a
re 

be
ing

 an
aly

se
d a

nd
 a 

rep
ort

 
wil

l b
e a

va
ila

ble
 in

 N
ov

em
be

r. 
  

wa
s m

ad
e t

o t
he

 Pr
im

ary
 H

ea
d T

ea
ch

ers
 fo

rum
 an

d 
res

ult
ed

 in
 a 

ke
en

 de
sir

e f
rom

 sc
ho

ols
 to

 su
pp

ort
 th

e 
PC

T w
ith

 th
is 

pro
gra

mm
e. 

 Th
e a

na
lys

is 
of 

the
 ad

ult
 su

rve
y r

es
ult

s i
s n

ea
rly

 
co

mp
let

e a
nd

 th
e r

ep
ort

 w
ill b

e a
va

ila
ble

 in
 M

ay
. 

 Th
is 

ac
tio

n p
oin

t is
 co

mp
let

ed
. 

 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
5 Th

at 
the

 Pr
im

ary
 

Ca
re 

Tru
st 

un
de

rta
ke

s a
 

co
mp

reh
en

siv
e 

rev
iew

 of
 th

e i
mp

ac
t 

of 
the

 ne
w 

de
nta

l 
co

ntr
ac

t a
nd

 
ch

arg
ing

 sy
ste

m 
an

d r
ep

ort
s t

he
 

fin
din

g t
o t

he
 H

ea
lth

 
Sc

rut
iny

 Pa
ne

l. I
n 

pa
rtic

ula
r th

e T
rus

t 

 Th
e 

De
pa

rtm
en

t o
f H

ea
lth

 h
as

 re
ce

ntl
y 

pu
bli

sh
ed

 
the

 fin
din

gs
 o

f p
ati

en
t r

es
po

ns
es

 to
 q

ue
sti

on
na

ire
s 

ab
ou

t 
de

nta
l 

se
rvi

ce
s 

for
 2

00
7/0

8. 
 T

wo
 k

ey
 

ind
ica

tor
s 

we
re 

pa
tie

nts
’ 

sa
tis

fac
tio

n 
wit

h 
the

 
de

nti
str

y r
ec

eiv
ed

 a
nd

 p
ati

en
ts’

 o
pin

ion
 a

bo
ut 

tim
e 

tak
en

 to
 g

et 
a 

de
nta

l a
pp

oin
tm

en
t. 

Ar
ou

nd
 8

3%
 o

f 
pa

tie
nts

 in
 T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 w

ere
 s

ati
sfi

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
de

nti
str

y 
rec

eiv
ed

 c
om

pa
red

 to
 8

8%
 in

 L
on

do
n. 

 
Six

ty 
nin

e p
erc

en
t (6

9%
) o

f T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 pa
tie

nts
 

we
re 

ab
le 

to 
ge

t a
 d

en
tal

 a
pp

oin
tm

en
t a

s s
oo

n 
as

 
wa

s n
ec

es
sa

ry 
co

mp
are

d t
o 8

2%
 in

 Lo
nd

on
.  

 Th
ere

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
an

 in
cre

as
e 

in 
the

 n
um

be
r 

of 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Th
e P

CT
 ha

s m
ad

e s
ign

ific
an

t in
ve

stm
en

ts 
in 

de
nta

l 
se

rvi
ce

s. 
W

he
n n

ew
 se

rvi
ce

s a
re 

pro
cu

red
, 

ad
ve

rtis
em

en
ts 

are
 br

oa
dc

as
t w

ide
ly 

to 
inc

lud
e a

ll 
de

nta
l p

rov
ide

rs 
wh

eth
er 

the
y a

re 
cu

rre
ntl

y i
n 

co
ntr

ac
t w

ith
 th

e N
HS

, o
r w

he
the

r th
ey

 ar
e p

riv
ate

 
pro

vid
ers

 in
ter

es
ted

 in
 pr

ov
idi

ng
 N

HS
 de

nta
l 

se
rvi

ce
s. 

Co
ntr

ac
ts 

are
 aw

ard
ed

 ba
se

d o
n o

bje
cti

ve
 

as
se

ss
me

nts
 of

 th
e a

bil
ity

 of
 th

e p
rov

ide
r to

 m
ee

t th
e 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
of 

the
 se

rvi
ce

 sp
ec

ific
ati

on
, in

clu
din

g 
qu

ali
ty 

cri
ter

ia.
  

Page 238



12
3  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Le

ad
 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

is 
as

ke
d t

o w
ork

 
wit

h D
en

tal
 

Pr
ac

tic
es

 th
at 

do
 

no
t w

ork
 w

ith
 N

HS
 

pa
tie

nts
 an

d a
re 

cu
rre

ntl
y j

us
t 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ith
 pr

iva
te 

pa
tie

nts
.  

 
 pa

tie
nts

 
ac

ce
ss

ing
 

NH
S 

de
nta

l 
se

rvi
ce

s 
co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 b
y 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

ov
er 

the
 p

as
t 2

 
ye

ars
, b

ut 
the

re 
is 

sti
ll m

ore
 w

ork
 to

 do
 to

 im
pro

ve
 

ac
ce

ss
. 

  Cu
rre

ntl
y 5

 pr
ac

tic
es

 (o
ut 

of 
the

 28
 de

nta
l p

rac
tic

es
 

in 
To

we
r H

am
let

s) 
on

ly 
pro

vid
e 

NH
S 

ca
re 

to 
tho

se
 

wh
o 

are
 e

xe
mp

t f
rom

 p
ay

ing
 N

HS
 ch

arg
es

. W
he

re 
po

ss
ibl

e 
the

se
 c

on
tra

cts
 w

ill 
be

 r
en

eg
oti

ate
d 

to 
inc

lud
e f

ee
-pa

yin
g p

ati
en

ts.
 

    
Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n 

6 Th
at 

all
 

dis
ab

led
 

pa
tie

nts
 w

ith
ou

t a
n 

ac
ce

ss
ibl

e 
de

nta
l 

pra
cti

ce
 n

ea
r 

the
ir 

ho
me

 be
 of

fer
ed

 th
e 

op
tio

n t
o b

e r
efe

rre
d 

to 
the

 M
ob

ile
 D

en
tal

 
Un

it. 
 

 Pa
tie

nts
 w

ith
 di

sa
bil

itie
s a

re 
ab

le 
to 

ac
ce

ss
 th

e 
Co

mm
un

ity
 D

en
tal

 Se
rvi

ce
 an

d a
n a

pp
oin

tm
en

t c
an

 
be

 ar
ran

ge
d i

n s
pe

cia
l s

urg
eri

es
 eq

uip
pe

d t
o p

rov
ide

 
be

tte
r c

are
 fo

r p
eo

ple
 in

 w
he

elc
ha

irs
.  

 In 
ad

dit
ion

, d
om

icil
iar

y v
isit

s c
an

 be
 ar

ran
ge

d i
f 

ne
ce

ss
ary

 vi
a t

he
 C

om
mu

nit
y D

en
tal

 Se
rvi

ce
. 

 Th
e P

CT
 w

ill e
ns

ure
 th

at 
the

 fin
d-a

-de
nti

st 
se

rvi
ce

 
ha

s i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 ab

ut 
wh

ich
 de

nta
l p

rac
tic

es
 ar

e 
wh

ee
lch

air
-ac

ce
ss

ibl
e, 

an
d h

ow
 pe

op
le 

ca
n b

e 
ref

err
ed

 to
 th

e c
om

mu
nit

y d
en

tal
 se

rvi
ce

. 
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Th
e C

om
mu

nit
y D

en
tal

 Se
rvi

ce
 is

 av
ail

ab
le 

for
 

pa
tie

nts
 w

ith
 di

sa
bil

itie
s –

 at
 its

 si
tes

 in
 To

we
r 

Ha
ml

ets
 (S

pit
alf

iel
ds

 an
d B

ark
an

tin
e) 

an
d a

t S
t 

Le
on

ard
’s 

Ho
sp

ita
l. 

 Th
e n

ew
 W

illia
m 

Pla
ce

 de
nta

l p
rac

tic
e, 

du
e t

o o
pe

n 
in 

Ma
rch

 20
09

, is
 fu

lly 
ac

ce
ss

ibl
e. 

 Th
is 

ac
tio

n p
oin

t is
 co

mp
let

ed
. 

Page 239



12
4  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Le

ad
 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
7 Th

at 
the

 M
ob

ile
 

De
nta

l U
nit

 vi
sit

s 
sc

ho
ols

 an
d l

oc
al 

co
mm

un
ity

 ev
en

ts 
to 

ma
ke

 th
is 

se
rvi

ce
 

mo
re 

vis
ibl

e a
nd

 
tar

ge
t re

sid
en

ts 
fro

m 
a y

ou
ng

 ag
e. 

  Th
e m

ob
ile

 de
nta

l u
nit

 w
as

 us
ed

 to
 su

pp
ort

 th
e 

pu
bli

c c
on

su
lta

tio
n e

ve
nt 

for
 th

e n
ew

 de
nta

l p
rac

tic
e 

inn
 Bo

w.
 

     

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Th
e m

ob
ile

 se
rvi

ce
 co

nti
nu

es
 to

 be
 pr

es
en

t a
t 

co
mm

un
ity

 ev
en

ts 
an

d i
s a

lso
 us

ed
 to

 su
pp

ort
 

sc
ho

ols
 de

nta
l p

rog
ram

me
s w

he
re 

the
re 

is 
ins

uff
icie

nt 
sc

ho
ol 

sp
ac

e a
nd

 w
he

re 
the

re 
are

 
pa

rki
ng

 fa
cili

tie
s f

or 
the

 m
ob

ile
 va

n. 
 Th

is 
ac

tio
n p

oin
t is

 co
mp

let
ed

. 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
8 Th

at 
the

 PC
T 

rep
ort

s t
o t

he
 

He
alt

h S
cru

tin
y 

Pa
ne

l o
n h

ow
 go

od
 

pra
cti

ce
 an

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 fro
m 

aro
un

d t
he

 co
un

try
 - 

pa
rtic

ula
rly

 ar
ea

s 
tha

t fa
ce

 si
mi

lar
 

iss
ue

s a
s t

he
 

bo
rou

gh
 - i

nfo
rm

ed
 

the
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
the

 O
ral

 H
ea

lth
 

Str
ate

gy
. 

 

 A r
ep

ort
 w

as
 pr

ov
ide

d i
n t

he
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
08

 up
da

te 
for

 th
e S

cru
tin

y C
om

mi
tte

e. 
 Th

e P
CT

 O
ral

 H
ea

lth
 St

rat
eg

y w
as

 in
for

me
d b

y t
he

 
na

tio
na

l s
tra

teg
y “

Ch
oo

sin
g B

ett
er 

Or
al 

He
alt

h”.
 Th

e 
De

pa
rtm

en
t h

as
 al

so
 re

ce
ntl

y p
rod

uc
ed

 an
 ev

ide
nc

e 
ba

se
d o

ral
 he

alt
h t

oo
lkit

 w
hic

h h
as

 be
en

 se
nt 

to 
all

 
de

nta
l p

rac
tic

es
.  

 Th
e P

CT
 is

 us
ing

 ev
ide

nc
e f

rom
 a 

ne
w 

an
d 

inn
ov

ati
ve

 m
od

el 
of 

de
nta

l p
rac

tic
e i

n O
ldh

am
 an

d 
Sa

lfo
rd 

to 
inf

orm
 th

e m
od

el 
of 

se
rvi

ce
 fo

r th
e n

ew
 

de
nta

l p
rac

tic
e b

ein
g e

sta
bli

sh
ed

 in
 Bo

w.
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 ha
s b

ee
n g

ive
n i

n t
he

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

08
 an

d 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 up
da

tes
. 

 Th
e P

CT
 w

ill b
e u

pd
ati

ng
 th

e 3
-ye

ar 
Or

al 
He

alt
h 

Str
ate

gy
 in

 20
09

. 
  Th

is 
ac

tio
n p

oin
t is

 co
mp

let
ed

. 

Page 240



12
5  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Le

ad
 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
9 Th

at 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
PC

T d
ev

elo
ps

 a 
ma

jor
 pu

bli
cit

y 
ca

mp
aig

n t
ha

t 
ex

pla
ins

 th
e r

ole
 of

 
GP

s, 
De

nti
sts

 an
d 

oth
er 

pri
ma

ry 
ca

re 
pro

fes
sio

na
ls 

an
d 

als
o i

nc
rea

se
s 

aw
are

ne
ss

 of
 th

e 
av

ail
ab

ility
 of

 
ad

dit
ion

al 
pri

ma
ry 

ca
re 

se
rvi

ce
s 

inc
lud

ing
 Ph

arm
ac

y 
Fir

st 
an

d t
he

 W
alk

-
In 

Ce
ntr

es
. T

he
 

PC
T s

ho
uld

 w
ork

s 
clo

se
ly 

wit
h t

he
 

Co
un

cil 
an

d 
vo

lun
tar

y s
ec

tor
 in

 
un

de
rta

kin
g t

his
 

ca
mp

aig
n. 

Th
e 

W
ork

ing
 G

rou
p 

su
gg

es
ts 

tha
t E

as
t 

En
d L

ife
 is

 us
ed

 to
 

pu
bli

cis
e 

Th
e P

CT
 la

un
ch

ed
 an

 in
for

ma
tio

n c
am

pa
ign

 – 
“E

as
ier

, Q
uic

ke
r a

nd
 Be

tte
r C

are
 in

 To
we

r H
am

let
s”,

 
ex

pla
ini

ng
 ho

w 
to 

ac
ce

ss
 ca

re 
in 

Ge
ne

ral
 Pr

ac
tic

e. 
 Le

afl
ets

 an
d p

os
ter

s h
av

e b
ee

n d
ist

rib
ute

d t
o a

ll G
P 

su
rge

rie
s, 

de
nti

sts
, c

om
mu

nit
y p

ha
rm

ac
ist

s a
nd

 
op

tom
etr

ist
s f

or 
dis

pla
y; 

an
d a

lso
 to

 pu
bli

c l
ibr

ari
es

 
an

d E
as

t E
nd

 Li
fe.

 Th
e f

ind
-a-

do
cto

r h
elp

lin
e w

as
 

es
tab

lish
ed

 in
 Ju

ne
 20

08
. 

 In 
rel

ati
on

 to
 de

nta
l s

erv
ice

s, 
the

 fo
llo

win
g a

cti
on

s 
ha

ve
 be

en
 ta

ke
n b

y t
he

 PC
T: 

 En
su

red
 th

at 
de

tai
ls 

on
 de

nta
l s

erv
ice

s a
re 

ful
ly 

up
 

to 
da

te 
an

d a
va

ila
ble

 on
 th

e N
HS

 C
ho

ice
s w

eb
sit

e. 
 

 Co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 th

e n
ew

 fin
d-a

-de
nti

st 
se

rvi
ce

 fro
m 

LB
TH

 w
hic

h s
tar

ted
 in

 Ju
ne

 20
08

.  
 A p

ub
lic 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 ex

erc
ise

 w
as

 co
nd

uc
ted

 du
rin

g 
Ma

y t
o J

un
e t

o c
an

va
s v

iew
s o

n t
he

 se
ttin

g u
p o

f a
 

ne
w 

de
nta

l p
rac

tic
e i

n B
ow

. T
his

 in
clu

de
d a

 sh
ort

 
qu

es
tio

nn
air

e f
or 

res
ide

nts
 in

 La
ps

 5 
an

d 6
 po

ste
d i

n 
Ea

st 
En

d L
ife

, d
isc

us
sio

n a
t L

AP
 m

ee
tin

gs
, a

 
Sa

tur
da

y m
orn

ing
 in

for
ma

tio
n e

ve
nt 

in 
Ro

ma
n R

oa
d 

ma
rke

t, a
nd

 a 
fac

ilita
ted

 fo
cu

s g
rou

p. 
 Th

e P
CT

 is
 pl

an
nin

g a
 m

ark
eti

ng
 an

d i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 

ca
mp

aig
n o

n d
en

tal
 se

rvi
ce

s t
o b

e l
au

nc
he

d i
n t

he
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Th
e P

CT
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 tw
o m

ajo
r e

xte
rna

l m
ed

ia 
ca

mp
aig

ns
 (O

cto
be

r a
nd

 D
ec

em
be

r) w
hic

h m
ad

e 
pa

tie
nts

 aw
are

 th
at 

the
 le

ve
l o

f s
erv

ice
 th

at 
the

y 
sh

ou
ld 

ex
pe

ct 
to 

ge
t fr

om
 th

eir
 G

P p
rac

tic
e w

as
 as

 
fol

low
s: 

• A
n a

pp
oin

tm
en

t th
e s

am
e d

ay
 or

 w
ith

in 
48

 
ho

urs
 

• E
ve

nin
g w

ee
ke

nd
 or

 m
orn

ing
 ap

po
int

me
nts

 
• T

he
 ab

ility
 to

 bo
ok

 at
 le

as
t 2

 w
ee

ks
 ah

ea
d 

• T
ele

ph
on

e c
on

su
lta

tio
ns

 
 Pa

tie
nts

 ca
n c

all
 a 

ph
on

e n
um

be
r to

 in
for

m 
the

 PC
T 

if t
he

y d
o n

ot 
ge

t th
is 

se
rvi

ce
. 

 W
e h

av
e a

lso
 co

nti
nu

ed
 to

 tra
in 

sta
ff t

o p
rov

ide
 “G

et 
the

 R
igh

t T
rea

tm
en

t” i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 an

d t
his

 is
 al

so
 

av
ail

ab
le 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e p
ho

ne
 nu

mb
er 

as
 w

ell
 as

 
ac

ce
ss

 sm
ok

ing
 ce

ss
ati

on
 ad

vic
e a

nd
 fin

d-a
-

do
c/d

en
tis

t s
erv

ice
s. 

   
 Th

e O
cto

be
r m

ed
ia 

ca
mp

aig
n w

as
 as

se
ss

ed
 by

 O
RC

 
an

d s
ho

we
d t

ha
t a

fte
r th

e c
am

pa
ign

 re
sid

en
ts 

we
re 

sig
nif

ica
ntl

y m
ore

 ab
le 

to 
rec

all
 th

e m
es

sa
ge

s o
f th

e 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
. 9

1%
 of

 pe
op

le 
sa

id 
the

y w
ere

 
sa

tis
fie

d w
ith

 th
eir

 G
P p

rac
tic

e. 
   

Page 241



12
6  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Le

ad
 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

inf
orm

ati
on

 ab
ou

t 
ho

w 
to 

joi
n a

 G
P 

an
d D

en
tal

 Pr
ac

tic
e 

an
d a

lso
 th

e r
ota

 fo
r 

the
 M

ob
ile

 D
en

tal
 

Un
it. 

 Th
e M

ob
ile

 
De

nta
l U

nit
 ro

ta 
sh

ou
ld 

als
o b

e 
pro

vid
ed

 to
 al

l G
Ps

, 
De

nta
l P

rac
tic

es
, 

an
d c

om
mu

nit
y 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
 

wo
rki

ng
 in

 th
e f

iel
d 

of 
he

alt
h a

s w
ell

 as
 

loc
al 

Co
un

cill
ors

. 
  au

tum
n  

 Th
e r

ota
 fo

r th
e m

ob
ile

 de
nta

l u
nit

 is
 se

nt 
to 

Ea
st 

En
d L

ife
 an

d a
lso

 di
sp

lay
ed

 in
 lo

ca
l G

P s
urg

eri
es

, 
co

mm
un

ity
 ph

arm
ac

ist
s a

nd
 co

mm
un

ity
 ce

ntr
es

. 
 Th

e P
CT

 O
ral

 H
ea

lth
 Pr

om
oti

on
 Te

am
 ha

s a
 re

gu
lar

 
pre

se
nc

e a
t c

om
mu

nit
y e

ve
nts

 an
d t

he
y a

lso
 to

ok
 

ou
t a

 on
e-p

ag
e a

dv
ert

ise
me

nt 
in 

Ea
st 

En
d L

ife
 in

 
Ju

ly 
20

08
. 

  

A m
ed

ia 
ca

mp
aig

n f
or 

de
nti

str
y (

“N
HS

 D
en

tis
ts 

for
 

Ev
ery

on
e”)

 co
mm

en
ce

d i
n F

eb
rua

ry 
20

09
, in

clu
din

g 
ad

ve
rtis

em
en

ts 
an

d f
lye

rs 
in 

Ea
st 

En
d L

ife
, s

pe
cif

ic 
eth

nic
 m

ed
ia,

 id
ea

s s
tor

es
, a

nd
 at

 bu
s s

top
s 

en
co

ura
gin

g p
eo

ple
 to

 vi
sit

 a 
de

nti
st 

an
d g

ivin
g 

inf
orm

ati
on

 ab
ou

t N
HS

 de
nta

l c
ha

rge
s. 

A s
oc

ial
 

ma
rke

tin
g c

am
pa

ign
 is

 ru
nn

ing
 fro

m 
Ma

rch
 to

 Ju
ly 

20
09

, in
vo

lvin
g s

urv
ey

s, 
int

erv
iew

s w
ith

 sm
all

 gr
ou

ps
 

of 
res

ide
nts

, a
nd

 in
ter

vie
ws

 w
ith

 he
alt

h 
pro

fes
sio

na
ls,

 to
 un

de
rst

an
d m

ore
 cl

ea
rly

 th
e 

ba
rrie

rs 
pe

op
le 

fac
e i

n a
tte

nd
ing

 a 
de

nti
st.

  
  Th

is 
ac

tio
n p

oin
t is

 co
mp

let
ed

. 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
10
  

Th
at 

the
 PC

T w
ork

s 
clo

se
ly 

wit
h ‘

LIN
ks

’ 
an

d t
he

 H
ea

lth
 

Sc
rut

iny
 Pa

ne
l to

 
mo

nit
or 

pri
ma

ry 
ca

re 
se

rvi
ce

s 
inc

lud
ing

 as
kin

g 
LIN

ks
 M

em
be

rs 
to 

ma
ke

 se
rvi

ce
 vi

sit
s 

to 
GP

s a
nd

 D
en

tal
 

Th
e P

CT
 w

elc
om

es
 th

e o
pp

ort
un

ity
 to

 w
ork

 cl
os

ely
 

wit
h L

IN
ks

 an
d t

he
 H

ea
lth

 Sc
rut

iny
 Pa

ne
l in

 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 pr

im
ary

 ca
re 

se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 is

 ha
pp

y t
o 

co
ord

ina
te 

vis
its

 to
 G

en
era

l P
rac

tic
e a

nd
 D

en
tal

 
Su

rge
rie

s. 
 

 W
e a

re 
aw

are
 th

at 
the

 LI
Nk

s i
s j

us
t b

ein
g 

es
tab

lish
ed

 an
d h

av
e h

igh
lig

hte
d t

he
 ne

ed
 fo

r c
los

er 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith

 no
mi

na
ted

 pu
bli

c r
ep

res
en

tat
ive

s i
n 

rel
ati

on
 to

 de
nta

l s
erv

ice
s. 

 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

TH
PC

T i
s s

ett
ing

 up
 a 

me
eti

ng
 w

ith
 th

e  
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 

TH
IN

k –
 to

 co
ord

ina
te 

vis
its

 to
 G

P a
nd

 D
en

tal
 

pra
cti

ce
s. 

 Th
e P

CT
 ha

s r
ec

en
tly

 st
art

ed
 a 

rev
iew

 of
 th

e 
Em

erg
en

cy
 D

en
tal

 Se
rvi

ce
 an

d t
he

 Pr
oje

ct 
Ma

na
ge

r 
ha

s h
ad

 a 
me

eti
ng

 w
ith

 TH
IN

k m
em

be
rs 

an
d w

ith
 th

e 
He

ath
 Sc

rut
iny

 Pa
ne

l to
 en

su
re 

the
re 

ea
rly

 
inv

olv
em

en
t in

 th
e i

ss
ue

s b
ein

g c
on

sid
ere

d a
nd

 th
e 

pro
ce

ss
 of

 th
e r

ev
iew

. A
cti

ve
 en

ga
ge

me
nt 

wit
h 

TH
IN

k m
em

be
rs 

an
d t

he
 Pa

ne
l w

ill c
on

tin
ue

 
thr

ou
gh

ou
t th

e r
ev

iew
 an

d d
uri

ng
 th

e f
orm

al 

Page 242



12
7  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Co

mm
en

ts 
Le

ad
 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Pr
ac

tic
es

.  
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 ph
as

e. 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
11
 

Th
at 

the
 PC

T w
ork

s 
clo

se
ly 

wit
h t

he
 

Co
un

cil 
an

d 
vo

lun
tar

y s
ec

tor
 to

 
im

pro
ve

 pa
tie

nt 
ed

uc
ati

on
. In

 
pa

rtic
ula

r u
sin

g 
He

alt
h T

rai
ne

rs 
to 

lin
k u

p r
es

ide
nts

 
wit

h l
oc

al 
co

mm
un

ity
 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
, P

CT
 

an
d t

he
 C

ou
nc

il. 
 

Th
e P

CT
 ha

s m
ain

tai
ne

d i
ts 

co
mm

itm
en

t to
 th

e 
He

alt
h T

rai
ne

rs 
an

d E
xp

ert
 Pa

tie
nts

 pr
og

ram
me

s. 
  

 
Th

e H
ea

lth
 Tr

ain
ers

 Sc
he

me
 co

nti
nu

es
 to

 be
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 by

 th
e P

CT
 fro

m 
a n

um
be

r o
f lo

ca
l 

vo
lun

tar
y o

rga
nis

ati
on

s. 
In 

ad
dit

ion
, th

e P
CT

 w
ork

s 
in 

co
lla

bo
rat

ion
 w

ith
 m

an
y o

the
r lo

ca
l v

olu
nta

ry 
gro

up
s o

uts
ide

 th
e H

ea
lth

 Tr
ain

ers
 sc

he
me

 to
 

su
pp

ort
 m

ore
 in

no
va

tiv
e a

nd
 ef

fec
tiv

e w
ay

s o
f 

pro
mo

tin
g p

os
itiv

e h
ea

lth
 in

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
y a

nd
 

pro
vid

ing
 pe

op
le 

wit
h t

he
 kn

ow
led

ge
, s

kill
s a

nd
 

co
nfi

de
nc

e t
o e

na
ble

 th
em

 to
 ca

re 
for

 th
eir

 ow
n 

mi
no

r a
ilm

en
ts 

wh
en

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 at
 ho

me
. 

 Th
is 

ac
tio

n p
oin

t is
 co

mp
let

ed
. 

       

Page 243



12
8  

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

17
 

Re
sp

on
se
 to

 H
ea
lth

 Sc
ru
tin

y R
ev
iew

 of
 To

ba
cc
o C

es
sa
tio

n i
n T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
  

 Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

R 
1 

Th
at 

the
 To

ba
cc

o C
on

tro
l A

llia
nc

e 
(TC

A)
 in

clu
de

 an
 el

ec
ted

 m
em

be
r to

 
ref

lec
t th

e h
ea

lth
 sc

rut
iny

 ro
le 

an
d 

rai
se

 th
e p

rof
ile

 of
 th

is 
wo

rk.
 

 

An
 el

ec
ted

 m
em

be
r h

as
 be

en
 in

vit
ed

 
to 

joi
n t

he
 al

lia
nc

e a
nd

 ha
s a

cc
ep

ted
. 

 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
Ele

cte
d m

em
be

r h
as

 be
en

 in
vit

ed
 to

 
att

en
d a

llia
nc

e m
ee

tin
g 

R 
2 

Th
at 

the
 C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s S

tra
teg

y 
ac

co
mp

an
yin

g t
he

 To
ba

cc
o C

on
tro

l 
Str

ate
gy

 be
 ov

ers
ee

n b
y t

he
 To

ba
cc

o 
Co

ntr
ol 

All
ian

ce
. 

 Th
e C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
 st

rat
eg

y 
co

nti
nu

es
 to

 be
 ov

ers
ee

n b
y t

he
 

To
ba

cc
o C

on
tro

l A
llia

nc
e. 

Me
eti

ng
s a

re 
he

ld 
ev

ery
 2 

mo
nth

s 
an

d m
inu

tes
 ar

e a
va

ila
ble

 on
 

req
ue

st.
 

 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Th
e C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
 st

rat
eg

y 
co

nti
nu

es
 to

 be
 ov

ers
ee

n b
y t

he
 

To
ba

cc
o C

on
tro

l A
llia

nc
e. 

Me
eti

ng
s a

re 
he

ld 
ev

ery
 2 

mo
nth

s 
an

d m
inu

tes
 ar

e a
va

ila
ble

 on
 re

qu
es

t. 
An

 18
 m

on
th 

pla
n i

s i
n p

lac
e 

R 
3 

Th
at 

the
 C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s S

tra
teg

y, 
de

sig
n o

f fu
tur

e c
am

pa
ign

s a
nd

 
res

ou
rce

s f
or 

tob
ac

co
 ce

ss
ati

on
 

pu
bli

cit
y r

efl
ec

t th
e c

om
mu

nit
y o

f 
To

we
r H

am
let

s a
nd

 ta
ke

 ac
co

un
t o

f 
the

 re
su

lts
 of

 so
cia

l m
ark

eti
ng

 
ex

erc
ise

s c
om

mi
ss

ion
ed

 by
 th

e 
Pr

im
ary

 C
are

 Tr
us

t. 
   Inf

orm
ati

on
 on

 to
ba

cc
o u

se
 an

d 
se

rvi
ce

s a
va

ila
ble

 ha
s b

ee
n 

pro
du

ce
d i

n B
en

ga
li a

nd
 So

ma
li a

s 
we

ll a
s E

ng
lish

. 
A w

eb
sit

e h
as

 be
en

 de
ve

lop
ed

. 
Th

e r
es

ult
s f

rom
 so

cia
l m

ark
eti

ng
 

wo
rk 

are
 in

for
mi

ng
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 
pro

jec
ts;

 
1. 

Ra
isin

g a
wa

ren
es

s o
f th

e r
isk

s 
of 

tob
ac

co
 us

e a
nd

 m
ark

eti
ng

 
ce

ss
ati

on
 se

rvi
ce

s t
o 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Th
ere

 ha
s b

ee
n w

ide
sp

rea
d p

ub
lici

ty 
an

d a
cti

vit
y t

o i
nc

rea
se

 de
ma

nd
 fo

r 
sm

ok
ing

 ce
ss

ati
on

 se
rvi

ce
s f

rom
 

wit
hin

 th
e B

an
gla

de
sh

i c
om

mu
nit

y. 
Th

is 
ha

s i
nc

lud
ed

 st
ree

t le
ve

l a
cti

vit
y 

an
d w

ork
 ba

se
d r

ec
rui

tm
en

t. T
he

re 
ha

s b
ee

n w
ide

sp
rea

d p
ub

lici
ty 

in 
the

  
Be

ng
ali

 pr
es

s. 
Th

e B
an

gla
de

sh
i S

top
 To

ba
cc

o  
Pr

oje
ct 

(B
ST

P)
   h

av
e b

ee
n r

e-
bra

nd
ed

 an
d m

ark
ete

d a
s a

 be
sp

ok
e 

se
rvi

ce
 fo

r th
e c

om
mu

nit
y. 

 

Page 244



12
9  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te  

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Ba
ng

lad
es

hi 
me

n. 
Th

is 
is 

a 
tar

ge
t g

rou
p i

n t
erm

s o
f 

pre
ve

nta
ble

 ill 
he

alt
h a

nd
 

pre
ma

tur
e d

ea
th.

 O
cto

be
r 

20
08

 
2. 

Pr
ev

en
tin

g y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

sta
rtin

g a
nd

 he
lpi

ng
 th

em
 to

 
sto

p. 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

Ra
ma

da
n c

am
pa

ign
 is

 cu
rre

ntl
y 

un
de

rw
ay

. T
he

re 
ha

s b
ee

n 
wid

es
pre

ad
 co

ve
r in

 al
l th

e p
res

s a
nd

 
me

dia
 ch

an
ne

ls.
 2 

TV
 sh

ow
s h

av
e 

be
en

 br
oa

dc
as

t o
n C

ha
nn

el 
S a

nd
 

Ba
ng

la 
TV

 an
d 2

 pr
og

ram
me

s a
re 

co
mi

ng
 on

 M
CR

 ra
dio

. 
Th

ere
 is

 m
os

qu
e b

as
ed

 ac
tiv

ity
 in

 9-
11

 m
os

qu
es

. 
Th

e P
CT

 he
alt

h i
nte

llig
en

ce
 un

it 
co

nti
nu

es
 to

 re
vie

w 
the

 ne
ed

s o
f th

e 
co

mm
un

ity
. 

Ad
dit

ion
al 

so
cia

l m
ark

eti
ng

 pi
lot

 
int

erv
en

tio
ns

 ar
e; 

1. 
Ma

rke
tin

g o
f c

es
sa

tio
n s

erv
ice

s t
o 

Be
ng

lai
 m

en
 em

plo
ye

d i
n s

ma
ll 

bu
sin

es
se

s i
n L

AP
1-4

 
2. 

Pr
ov

isio
n o

f a
 w

eb
sit

e f
or 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le 

to 
wa

rn 
of 

the
 da

ng
ers

 of
 

sm
ok

ing
. 

3. 
Pil

ot 
int

erv
en

tio
n t

o r
ed

uc
e P

aa
n 

us
e i

n B
an

gla
de

sh
i w

om
en

 ag
ed

 40
 

plu
s. 

4. 
Pil

ot 
int

erv
en

tio
n t

o h
elp

 th
os

e 
livi

ng
 w

ith
 m

en
tal

 he
alt

h p
rob

lem
s i

n 
the

 co
mm

un
ity

 st
op

 sm
ok

ing
 

5. 
Pil

ot 
int

erv
en

tio
n t

o t
es

t 
int

erv
en

tio
ns

 to
 he

lp 
sm

ok
ing

 
pre

gn
an

t w
om

en
 st

op
. 

R 
4 

Th
at 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 re
so

urc
es

 be
 

de
ve

lop
ed

 to
 ta

rge
t th

e u
se

rs 
of 

all
 

typ
es

 of
 to

ba
cc

o c
on

su
mp

tio
n, 

inc
lud

ing
 ch

ew
ing

 to
ba

cc
o, 

Pa
an

 an
d 

sh
ee

sh
a p

ipe
 sm

ok
ing

. 
 

Th
e T

ob
ac

co
 co

ntr
ol 

all
ian

ce
 w

ork
 

ref
lec

ts 
tha

t w
hil

st 
sm

ok
ing

 to
ba

cc
o 

via
 ci

ga
ret

tes
 po

se
s t

he
 gr

ea
tes

t 
he

alt
h r

isk
 to

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
y t

ob
ac

co
 

is 
us

ed
 in

 ot
he

r fo
rm

s w
hic

h r
eq

uir
e 

dif
fer

en
t a

pp
roa

ch
es

. 
Pa

an
 in

for
ma

tio
n h

as
 be

en
 pr

od
uc

ed
 

an
d S

he
es

ha
 in

for
ma

tio
n i

s i
n d

raf
t. 

 
Ma

rke
tin

g a
nd

 pu
bli

cit
y r

e t
he

 
da

ng
ers

 of
 sh

ee
sh

a u
se

 w
ill 

co
mm

en
ce

 in
 la

te 
Fe

bru
ary

.  
 Re

su
lts

 of
 Pa

an
 Su

rve
y  

1. 
Th

is 
su

rve
y i

de
nti

fie
d 1

25
 

ou
tle

ts 
wit

hin
 th

e L
on

do
n 

Bo
rou

gh
 of

 To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Page 245



13
0  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te  

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Th
e r

es
ea

rch
 in

to 
Pa

an
 us

e h
as

 
be

en
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

. S
ign

ific
an

t 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

an
d r

es
ea

rch
 ha

s t
ak

en
 

pla
ce

 in
to 

Sh
ee

sh
a u

se
  

 

(LB
TH

) s
ell

ing
 sm

ok
ele

ss
 

tob
ac

co
 pr

od
uc

ts.
 Th

is 
is 

a 
40

% 
inc

rea
se

 co
mp

are
d t

o a
 

pre
vio

us
 su

rve
y, 

us
ing

 si
mi

lar
 

me
tho

ds
, c

arr
ied

 ou
t in

 19
95

. 
Th

is 
inc

rea
se

 in
 ou

tle
ts 

is 
dis

pe
rse

d t
hro

ug
ho

ut 
LB

TH
.  

2. 
A l

arg
e n

um
be

r o
f p

rod
uc

ts 
we

re 
so

ld 
thr

ou
gh

 th
es

e 
ou

tle
ts,

 al
tho

ug
h a

n i
nd

ivid
ua

l 
ou

tle
t w

ill u
su

all
y s

ell
 le

ss
 th

an
 

fou
r p

rod
uc

ts.
 N

o o
ne

 br
an

d 
ap

pe
are

d t
o h

av
e a

ch
iev

ed
 a 

ma
rke

t d
om

ina
nc

e. 
 

3. 
Th

e p
rod

uc
ts 

av
ail

ab
le 

for
 

pu
rch

as
e s

up
po

rte
d t

he
 

as
su

mp
tio

n t
ha

t th
e 

Ba
ng

lad
es

hi 
co

mm
un

ity
 ha

s i
ts 

ow
n c

on
su

mp
tio

n p
ref

ere
nc

es
. 

Ele
ve

n o
utl

ets
 so

ld 
‘re

ad
y 

ma
de

’ p
aa

n w
hil

st 
pa

an
 

ma
sa

la/
gu

tkh
a w

as
 so

ld 
in 

18
 

ou
tle

ts.
 Si

xty
 ni

ne
 ou

tle
ts 

so
ld 

za
rda

.  
4. 

Th
e p

ric
e o

f m
os

t p
rod

uc
ts 

wa
s l

ow
, m

os
t c

om
mo

nly
 

Page 246



13
1  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te  

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

£0
.30

. T
he

 m
os

t c
om

mo
nly

 
av

ail
ab

le 
bra

nd
s o

f z
ard

a w
ere

 
so

ld 
in 

a p
ric

e r
an

ge
 of

 £0
.50

 - 
£1

.50
. A

 ‘re
ad

y m
ad

e’ 
pa

an
 

so
ld 

for
 £0

.50
. T

his
 pr

ice
 do

es
 

no
t a

pp
ea

r to
 ha

ve
 ch

an
ge

d 
sin

ce
 19

95
.  

5. 
A d

ive
rse

 gr
ou

p o
f w

ho
les

ale
rs 

wa
s t

he
 so

urc
e o

f th
e p

rod
uc

ts 
fou

nd
 in

 th
e L

BT
H 

ou
tle

ts.
 As

 
wit

h b
ran

d a
va

ila
bil

ity
, n

o o
ne

 
wh

ole
sa

ler
 se

em
ed

 to
 be

 pr
e-

em
ine

nt 
in 

thi
s m

ark
et.

 O
ne

 
bra

nd
 w

as
 re

po
rte

d a
s b

ein
g a

 
dir

ec
t im

po
rt. 

 
6. 

It w
as

 th
e n

orm
 fo

r th
os

e 
pro

du
cts

 re
qu

irin
g a

 he
alt

h 
wa

rni
ng

 to
 ei

the
r n

ot 
ha

ve
 on

e 
or 

to 
ha

ve
 an

 in
co

rre
ct 

on
e. 

Le
ss

 th
an

 10
% 

of 
pro

du
cts

 
ca

rrie
d t

he
 re

qu
ire

d U
K 

wa
rni

ng
. ‘B

es
t b

y’ 
se

ll d
ate

s 
va

rie
d f

rom
 20

07
 to

 20
10

.  
7. 

Th
e l

ac
k o

f a
 re

qu
ire

me
nt 

for
 

fis
ca

l m
ark

ing
 m

ea
nt 

it w
as

 
dif

fic
ult

 to
 es

tab
lish

 w
he

the
r 

Page 247



13
2  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te  

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

pro
du

cts
 or

igi
na

tin
g o

uts
ide

 
the

 U
K a

re 
co

ntr
ab

an
d o

r n
ot.

  
8. 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f s
ign

ag
e a

t 
ou

tle
ts 

va
rie

d. 
Ov

er 
80

% 
of 

ou
tle

ts 
ha

d a
 ‘N

o S
mo

kin
g’ 

sig
n a

t th
eir

 en
tra

nc
e w

hil
st 

on
ly 

75
% 

of 
ou

tle
ts 

se
llin

g 
cig

are
tte

s h
ad

 a 
sig

n a
bo

ut 
un

de
r a

ge
 sa

les
.  

           
R 
5 

Th
at 

the
 To

ba
cc

o C
on

tro
l U

nit
 

de
ve

lop
 a 

se
rvi

ce
 le

ve
l a

gre
em

en
t 

wit
h t

he
 ne

w 
he

lpl
ine

 pr
ov

ide
r to

 
ca

ptu
re 

inf
orm

ati
on

 to
 he

lp 
un

de
rst

an
d u

se
r’s

 ne
ed

s a
nd

 to
 

ga
ug

e t
he

 ef
fec

tiv
en

es
s o

f 

 Th
e H

ea
lth

 H
otl

ine
 fir

st 
qu

art
erl

y 
rep

ort
 w

ill b
e e

nd
 of

 Se
pte

mb
er.

  
Th

e n
um

be
r h

as
 be

en
 w

ide
ly 

pu
bli

cis
ed

. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Ca
lls 

are
 40

 pe
r m

on
th.

 

Page 248



13
3  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te  

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 re
so

urc
es

.  
 R 
6 

Th
at 

the
 Tr

ad
ing

 St
an

da
rds

 Te
am

 
de

ve
lop

s a
 bu

sin
es

s p
lan

 to
 

de
mo

ns
tra

te 
the

 tim
e a

nd
 ef

for
t 

inv
olv

ed
 in

 en
for

ce
me

nt,
 ed

uc
ati

on
 

an
d s

up
po

rt a
cti

vit
ies

. 
 Th

e s
mo

ke
 fre

e a
cti

on
 pl

an
 ha

s b
ee

n 
pro

du
ce

d a
nd

 go
od

 pr
og

res
s a

ga
ins

t 
tar

ge
ts 

ha
s b

ee
n m

ad
e. 

In 
se

rvi
ce

 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 is

 ta
kin

g p
lac

e e
ve

ry 
mo

nth
 an

d q
ua

rte
rly

 pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

rep
ort

s a
re 

be
ing

 pr
ov

ide
d t

o t
he

 
PC

T f
or 

ev
alu

ati
on

. V
isit

s t
o b

us
ine

ss
 

are
 on

 ta
rge

t a
nd

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f 

a S
mo

ke
 Fr

ee
 aw

ard
 fo

r b
us

ine
ss

 is
 

co
mp

let
ed

. W
ith

 pl
an

s t
o h

av
e a

t 
lea

st 
30

 bu
sin

es
se

s s
ign

ed
 by

 th
e 

en
d o

f th
e y

ea
r 

 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

De
live

ry 
of 

the
 sm

ok
e f

ree
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 

is 
lar

ge
ly 

on
 ta

rge
t.  

 Sm
ok

e F
ree

 aw
ard

 to
 be

 la
un

ch
ed

 in
 

Ma
rch

 20
09

.  

R 
7 

Th
at 

the
 Pr

im
ary

 C
are

 Tr
us

t 
int

rod
uc

e m
ea

su
res

 to
 en

su
re 

all
 

he
alt

h p
rof

es
sio

na
ls 

wo
rki

ng
 in

 
ho

sp
ita

l o
r c

om
mu

nit
y s

ett
ing

s o
ffe

r 
ad

vic
e t

o c
ha

ng
e s

mo
kin

g h
ab

its
 an

d 
ref

er 
sm

ok
ers

 to
 se

rvi
ce

s t
o h

elp
 

the
m 

qu
it, 

wh
en

ev
er 

po
ss

ibl
e. 

 15
 pu

bli
c h

ea
lth

 ch
am

pio
ns

 fro
m 

the
 

PC
T p

rov
ide

r u
nit

 ha
ve

 be
en

 tra
ine

d 
an

d w
ill c

ha
mp

ion
 to

ba
cc

o c
es

sa
tio

n 
wit

hin
 th

eir
 w

ork
 ar

ea
s. 

Tra
ini

ng
 ha

s b
ee

n c
om

ple
ted

 in
 th

e 
me

nta
l h

ea
lth

 un
it w

ith
 

rep
res

en
tat

ive
s f

rom
 al

l w
ard

s. 
A m

em
be

r o
f s

taf
f h

as
 be

en
 

ap
po

int
ed

 to
 de

ve
lop

 sk
ills

 w
ith

in 
the

 
bo

rou
gh

’s 
ac

ute
 ho

sp
ita

l a
nd

 w
ill 

co
mm

en
ce

 a 
pro

gra
mm

e o
f tr

ain
ing

 
in 

Oc
tob

er.
 

All
 G

P p
rac

tic
e s

taf
f a

nd
 co

mm
un

ity
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Ja
n 2

00
9 h

as
 co

mm
en

ce
d a

 pr
oje

ct 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t a
ll h

os
pit

al 
ba

se
d s

taf
f 

are
 tra

ine
d t

o r
ais

e t
he

 is
su

e o
f 

sm
ok

ing
 an

d s
ign

po
st 

to 
se

rvi
ce

s 
    Ot

ha
lm

olo
gis

ts 
wil

l b
e c

om
mi

ss
ion

ed
 

fro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
09

. 
 75

% 
of 

de
nta

l p
rac

tic
es

 ar
e 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
. 

Page 249



13
4  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te  

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

ph
arm

ac
ist

s h
av

e b
ee

n t
rai

ne
d. 

De
nta

l p
rac

tic
es

 ar
e n

ow
 be

ing
 

tra
ine

d- 
to 

co
mp

let
e b

y D
ec

 20
08

. 
Op

tha
lm

ic 
pra

cti
tio

ne
rs 

wil
l s

tar
t 

tra
ini

ng
 in

 Ja
n 2

00
9. 

R 
8 

Th
at 

the
 PC

T c
om

mi
ss

ion
 m

ore
 

Le
ve

l 1
 an

d L
ev

el 
2 S

mo
kin

g 
Ce

ss
ati

on
 ad

vis
ors

 an
d d

ev
elo

p a
n 

ac
tio

n p
lan

 to
 re

-en
erg

ise
 in

ac
tiv

e 
ad

vis
ers

.  
 

All
 cu

rre
nt 

ad
vis

ers
 ha

ve
 be

en
 

co
nta

cte
d a

nd
 th

os
e n

ot 
ac

tiv
e h

av
e 

be
en

 re
lea

se
d. 

A t
rai

nin
g r

ev
iew

 is
 un

de
r w

ay
 an

d 
fro

m 
Ja

n 2
00

9 a
 ne

w 
lice

ns
ing

 
sy

ste
m 

for
 ad

vis
ers

 w
ill b

eg
in 

  D
en

tal
 pr

ac
tic

es
 ar

e n
ow

 be
ing

 
tra

ine
d- 

to 
co

mp
let

e b
y D

ec
 20

08
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

A t
rai

nin
g r

ev
iew

 is
 un

de
r w

ay
 an

d 
fro

m 
Ap

ril 
20

09
 a 

ne
w 

lice
ns

ing
 

sy
ste

m 
for

 ad
vis

ers
 w

ill b
eg

in 
 

R 
9 

Th
at 

the
 PC

T c
om

mi
ss

ion
 m

ore
 

vo
lun

tar
y a

nd
 co

mm
un

ity
 se

cto
r 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
 in

clu
din

g e
xp

lor
ing

 
op

tio
ns

 th
rou

gh
 th

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 to

 de
live

r s
mo

kin
g 

ce
ss

ati
on

 se
rvi

ce
s. 

 

Th
ere

 ha
s b

ee
n s

om
e s

lip
pa

ge
 w

ith
 

the
 te

nd
eri

ng
 pr

og
res

s. 
A r

ec
ov

ery
 

pla
n w

ill e
ns

ure
 th

at 
thi

s i
s c

om
ple

ted
 

by
 th

e e
nd

 of
 Ju

ly.
 A 

me
mb

er 
of 

the
 

PC
T h

as
 be

en
 ap

po
int

ed
 to

 de
ve

lop
 

ca
pa

cit
y a

nd
 lin

ks
 w

ith
in 

the
 

co
mm

un
ity

 an
d t

hir
d s

ec
tor

. E
arl

y 
ex

am
ple

s o
f th

is 
inc

lud
e w

ork
 w

ith
 

Po
pla

r H
arc

a a
nd

 se
ve

ral
 So

ma
li 

gro
up

s. 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Ad
dit

ion
al 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
 ha

ve
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 fro

m 
the

 vo
lun

tar
y a

nd
 

co
mm

un
ity

 se
cto

rs.
 Th

es
e i

nc
lud

e 
So

cia
l A

cti
on

 fo
r H

ea
lth

 , H
orn

 of
 

Afr
ica

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
 an

d Q
uit

.  
Th

e T
ob

ac
co

 Al
lia

nc
e a

cti
ve

ly 
en

co
ura

ge
s m

ore
 th

ird
 se

cto
r a

nd
 

co
mm

un
ity

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
s t

o t
en

de
r to

 
pro

vid
e s

erv
ice

s. 
   

 

Page 250



13
5  

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

18
 

 Re
sp

on
se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n D
eli

ve
rin

g C
ho

os
ing

 H
ea
lth

 
 Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n 

Up
da

te:
 Fe

br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 Fe

br
ua

ry 
20
09
    

R1
 

Th
e d

riv
e t

o p
lac

e l
oc

ali
tie

s a
t th

e 
he

art
 of

 se
rvi

ce
s p

rov
ide

s a
n o

pp
ort

un
ity

 
to 

pil
ot 

dif
fer

en
t a

pp
roa

ch
es

 a
cro

ss
 th

e 
bo

rou
gh

. 
Th

e 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

ap
pro

ac
h 

sh
ou

ld 
ex

pe
rim

en
t a

nd
 in

no
va

te 
for

 n
ew

 
ve

ntu
res

 to
 h

elp
 re

du
ce

 o
be

sit
y 

in 
loc

al 
co

mm
un

itie
s. 

 

Th
is 

ac
tio

n w
as

 su
pe

rse
de

d a
s a

 re
su

lt o
f a

 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
inc

rea
se

 in
 w

ea
po

ns
 re

lat
ed

 
ex

clu
sio

n i
n t

he
 fig

ure
s f

or 
05

/06
.  I

n 0
4/0

5 
the

re 
we

re 
5 w

ea
po

ns
 re

lat
ed

 ex
clu

sio
ns

.  I
n 

05
/06

 th
ere

 w
ere

 25
.  G

ive
n t

he
 se

ve
rity

 of
 

the
 ris

k t
ha

t th
is 

fig
ure

 se
em

ed
 to

 im
ply

, th
is 

wa
s d

ee
me

d t
o b

e t
he

 pr
ior

ity
 is

su
e f

or 
tac

klin
g w

ith
 re

ga
rd 

to 
rea

so
ns

 fo
r e

xc
lus

ion
.  

 A t
arg

ete
d i

nte
rve

nti
on

 w
as

 ag
ree

d w
hic

h 
inc

lud
ed

 th
e p

oli
ce

 w
ork

ing
 in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
wit

h u
s a

nd
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 a 
DV

D 
ba

se
d o

n 
the

 w
ork

 of
 a 

loc
al 

yo
uth

 th
ea

tre
 gr

ou
p. 

 Th
e 

pu
pil

s w
ork

ed
 w

ith
 a 

wr
ite

r to
 pr

od
uc

e a
 fil

m 
ab

ou
t b

ull
yin

g, 
ph

on
e t

he
ft a

nd
 th

e p
ote

nti
al 

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
es

 of
 ca

rry
ing

 kn
ive

s f
or 

pro
tec

tio
n. 

  T
his

 w
as

 ci
rcu

lat
ed

 to
 sc

ho
ols

 
wit

h t
ea

ch
ing

 no
tes

 an
d p

oli
ce

 of
fic

ers
 al

so
 

wo
rke

d i
n c

las
sro

om
s o

n t
he

 is
su

e. 
   

IN
CO

s w
ere

 al
so

 ad
vis

ed
 to

 un
de

rta
ke

 
dir

ec
t w

ork
 w

ith
 la

te 
an

d m
idt

erm
 

ad
mi

ss
ion

s a
nd

 to
 be

 m
ore

 ov
ert

 in
 th

eir
 

tac
klin

g o
f th

e w
ea

po
ns

 is
su

e a
s p

art
 of

 th
eir

 
ind

uc
tio

n p
roc

es
s, 

pa
rtic

ula
rly

 fo
r s

tud
en

ts 
res

ide
nt 

in 
oth

er 
bo

rou
gh

s a
s t

he
re 

wa
s a

 

 
Th

e H
ea

lth
 Tr

ain
ers

 pr
og

ram
me

 
wa

s m
ain

str
ea

me
d i

n 2
00

8/0
9 a

nd
 

ha
s c

on
tin

ue
d t

o d
ev

elo
p a

nd
 bu

ild
 

lin
ks

 in
 ea

ch
 lo

ca
lity

 to
 pr

om
ote

 
he

alt
hy

 lif
es

tyl
es

.  
 4 n

ew
 lo

ca
lity

 ba
se

d w
eig

ht 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

pro
gra

mm
es

 ar
e b

ein
g 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
.  

 Th
e P

CT
 ha

s n
ow

 es
tab

lish
ed

 4 
ne

w 
He

alt
hy

 Li
fes

tyl
e p

rog
ram

me
 

ma
na

ge
r p

os
ts,

 ea
ch

 po
st 

wil
l w

ork
 

wit
h a

 pa
ir o

f L
oc

al 
Ar

ea
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s (
LA

Ps
) to

 fu
rth

er 
bu

ild
 

loc
al 

ne
tw

ork
s. 

 Th
ere

 ha
s b

ee
n a

 po
sit

ive
 re

sp
on

se
 

to 
the

 ‘H
ea

lth
y W

eig
ht,

 H
ea

lth
y 

Liv
es

 in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s’ 
str

ate
gy

 
wit

h a
n i

nc
rea

se
d f

oc
us

 on
 ob

es
ity

 / 
he

alt
hy

 lif
es

tyl
es

 in
 m

os
t o

f th
e L

AP
 

ac
tio

n p
lan

s. 
 A 

nu
mb

er 
of 

ne
w 

loc
ali

ty 
ba

se
d i

nte
rve

nti
on

s t
o t

ac
kle

 
ob

es
ity

 ha
ve

 be
en

 co
mm

iss
ion

ed
, 

Page 251



13
6  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 Fe

br
ua

ry 
20
09
    

cle
ar 

co
rre

lat
ion

 be
tw

ee
n t

his
 gr

ou
p a

nd
 th

e 
ris

e i
n w

ea
po

ns
 re

lat
ed

 ex
clu

sio
ns

.  
So

me
 sc

ho
ols

 al
so

 ex
plo

red
 th

e u
se

 of
 

we
ap

on
 de

tec
tio

n “
wa

nd
s”.

 Kn
ife

 ar
ch

es
 

we
re 

us
ed

 at
 To

we
r H

am
let

s c
oll

eg
e. 

 
  In 

06
/07

 
we

ap
on

s 
rel

ate
d 

ex
clu

sio
ns

 
dro

pp
ed

 t
o 

5. 
  

 O
ve

ral
l 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
ex

clu
sio

ns
 dr

op
pe

d f
rom

 62
 to

 51
. 

e.g
. th

rou
gh

 ex
ten

de
d s

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
ch

ild
ren

’s 
ce

ntr
es

. 

R2
 

Th
at 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 
giv

en
 to

 p
rov

idi
ng

 a
 r

ob
us

t e
va

lua
tio

n 
fra

me
wo

rk 
for

 ac
tio

n o
n o

be
sit

y. 
 

Th
e E

du
ca

tio
n a

nd
 In

sp
ec

tio
n A

ct 
20

06
 

wh
ich

 ca
me

 in
to 

for
ce

 in
 Ap

ril 
20

07
 re

qu
ire

s 
go

ve
rno

rs 
to 

co
ns

ult
 on

 a 
sta

tem
en

t o
f 

pri
nc

ipl
es

 ab
ou

t b
eh

av
iou

r, w
ith

 pa
ren

ts 
an

d, 
for

 th
e f

irs
t ti

me
 as

 a 
leg

al 
req

uir
em

en
t, 

wit
h p

up
ils,

 as
 w

ell
 as

 ot
he

r s
tak

eh
old

ers
 

su
ch

 as
 th

e l
oc

al 
co

mm
un

ity
 an

d o
the

r 
sc

ho
ols

 in
 th

eir
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
.  H

ea
d t

ea
ch

ers
 

mu
st 

the
n b

as
e t

he
 sc

ho
ol 

be
ha

vio
ur 

po
licy

 
on

 th
es

e p
rin

cip
les

. 
 Th

ere
 is

 ne
w 

an
d v

ery
 cl

ea
r s

tat
uto

ry 
gu

ida
nc

e f
or 

go
ve

rno
rs 

on
 ho

w 
the

y s
ho

uld
 

en
ga

ge
 pa

ren
ts 

in 
thi

s p
roc

es
s. 

 Th
e 

 
Th

e m
ult

i-a
ge

nc
y ‘

He
alt

hy
 W

eig
ht,

 
He

alt
hy

 Li
ve

s i
n T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
’ 

(H
W

,H
Lin

TH
) h

as
 be

en
 fo

rm
all

y 
ag

ree
d b

y T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 an

d i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 
sta

rte
d i

n m
id 

20
08

.  T
he

 st
rat

eg
y 

inc
lud

es
 a 

mo
nit

ori
ng

 an
d e

va
lua

tio
n 

fra
me

wo
rk 

(se
e s

tra
teg

y d
oc

um
en

t 
att

ac
he

d) 
 Bu

ild
ing

 on
 th

e s
uc

ce
ss

 of
 ou

r 
HW

,H
Lin

TH
 st

rat
eg

y, 
we

 ha
ve

 
su

cc
ee

d i
n s

ec
uri

ng
 fu

nd
ing

 fro
m 

the
 na

tio
na

l c
ros

s g
ov

ern
me

nt 

Page 252



13
7  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 Fe

br
ua

ry 
20
09
    

pri
nc

ipl
es

 m
us

t b
e u

nd
ers

too
d a

nd
 ag

ree
d 

by
 th

os
e c

on
su

lte
d. 

 It 
is 

ba
se

d o
n a

 “ri
gh

ts 
an

d r
es

po
ns

ibi
litie

s” 
ap

pro
ac

h t
o t

he
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
of 

be
ha

vio
ur.

   T
rai

nin
g f

or 
Go

ve
rno

rs 
on

 th
is 

ch
an

ge
 to

 pr
oc

ed
ure

s a
nd

 
on

 ho
w 

pa
ren

ts 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 fu

lly 
co

ns
ult

ed
 

an
d e

ng
ag

ed
 in

 th
e p

roc
es

s i
s u

nd
erw

ay
.   

 

ob
es

ity
 un

it t
o p

ilo
t b

roa
de

r 
ap

pro
ac

he
s t

o t
ac

kle
 th

e 
en

vir
on

me
nta

l d
riv

ers
 of

 ob
es

ity
 

(‘b
ec

om
ing

 a 
he

alt
hy

 bo
rou

gh
’). 

 
Th

is 
inc

lud
es

 ad
dit

ion
al 

res
ou

rce
s 

for
 ev

alu
ati

on
 an

d a
cc

es
s t

o a
 

na
tio

na
l e

va
lua

tio
n t

ea
m.

 
 

R3
  

Th
at 

the
 

ou
tco

me
s 

fro
m 

the
 

ev
alu

ati
on

 s
ho

uld
 b

e 
sh

are
d 

ac
ros

s 
the

 
all

ian
ce

 
of 

se
rvi

ce
 

pro
vid

ers
 

an
d 

sta
ke

ho
lde

rs.
  W

e f
ee

l th
at 

thi
s f

os
ter

s a
n 

ev
ide

nc
e-b

as
ed

 
ap

pro
ac

h 
to 

se
rvi

ce
 

de
live

ry 
an

d i
s c

riti
ca

l in
 le

arn
ing

 le
ss

on
s 

an
d s

pre
ad

ing
 go

od
 pr

ac
tic

e. 
 

Ex
clu

sio
ns

 ar
e r

ep
ort

ed
 to

 th
e L

A a
nd

 bo
th 

LA
 le

ve
l a

nd
 in

div
idu

al 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ol 

rep
ort

s a
re 

pro
du

ce
d t

o i
de

nti
fy 

tre
nd

s a
nd

 
res

po
nd

 ef
fec

tiv
ely

: s
ee

 ex
am

ple
 re

: 
we

ap
on

s r
ela

ted
 ex

clu
sio

n a
bo

ve
.   

 To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

 p
art

icip
ate

d 
in 

a 
DC

SF
 

eC
AF

 p
ilo

t (
loc

all
y 

kn
ow

n 
as

 T
HI

S 
Ch

ild
).  

Th
e D

CS
F 

ha
s r

ec
en

tly
 m

ad
e a

 de
cis

ion
 to

 
rol

l o
ut 

a n
ati

on
al 

eC
AF

 sy
ste

m 
in 

wh
ich

 th
e 

LA
 w

ill 
be

 re
qu

ire
d 

to 
pa

rtic
ipa

te.
   

Th
is 

is 
ho

we
ve

r u
nli

ke
ly 

to 
co

me
 on

 st
rea

m 
for

 tw
o 

ye
ars

 at
 a 

mi
nim

um
 an

d t
ak

ing
 ad

vic
e f

rom
 

DC
SF

 w
e h

av
e d

ec
ide

d t
o p

roc
ee

d w
ith

 ou
r 

loc
al 

eC
AF

 s
ch

em
e 

in 
the

 in
ter

im
 a

s 
thi

s 
len

gth
 o

f d
ela

y 
is 

un
ten

ab
le.

  
  

Th
e 

loc
al 

sc
he

me
 w

ill 
ne

ed
 to

 d
ov

e 
tai

l w
ith

  
the

 
na

tio
na

l d
ev

elo
pm

en
t a

nd
 w

e a
re 

in 
a s

tro
ng

 
po

sit
ion

 
to 

co
ntr

ibu
te 

to 
thi

s 
pro

ce
ss

.  
Tra

ini
ng

 w
ith

 tw
o l

ea
d p

rof
es

sio
na

l te
am

s o
n 

 
Da

ta 
for

 th
e f

irs
t a

nn
ua

l re
vie

w 
of 

the
 H

W
.H

Lin
TH

 st
rat

eg
y w

ill b
e 

bro
ug

ht 
tog

eth
er 

in 
Ap

ril 
/ M

ay
 20

09
 

an
d w

ill b
e s

ha
red

 w
ith

 th
e m

ult
i-

ag
en

cy
 Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 an

d C
hil

dre
n &

 
Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

 w
ork

ing
 gr

ou
ps

, w
ith

 
the

 ne
w 

‘be
co

mi
ng

 a 
he

alt
hy

 
bo

rou
gh

’ p
roj

ec
t le

ad
s g

rou
p a

nd
 

Bo
ard

 an
d w

ith
 th

e ‘
A H

ea
lth

y 
Co

mm
un

ity
’ c

om
mu

nit
y p

lan
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
gro

up
 an

d o
the

r 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 gr

ou
ps

. 
 

Page 253



13
8  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 Fe

br
ua

ry 
20
09
    

TH
IS 

Ch
ild

 w
ill 

sta
rt 

in 
the

 A
utu

mn
 w

ith
 a

 
vie

w 
to 

rol
lin

g 
ou

t m
ore

 b
roa

dly
 fr

om
 A

pri
l 

20
08

. 
R4

 
Th

at 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 

giv
en

 o
n 

ho
w 

to 
us

e 
thi

s i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 fo

r 
foc

us
ing

 a
nd

 ta
rge

tin
g 

int
erv

en
tio

n 
at 

an
 

ind
ivid

ua
l, s

ch
oo

l o
r n

eig
hb

ou
rho

od
 le

ve
l 

an
d 

for
 tr

ac
kin

g 
the

 im
pa

ct 
of 

ini
tia

tiv
es

 
an

d a
cti

on
. 

 

As
 a 

res
ult

 in
 ch

an
ge

s a
ris

ing
 fro

m 
the

 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 an

d I
ns

pe
cti

on
 Ac

t 2
00

6, 
fro

m 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

07
 se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 ha
ve

 to
 

be
 in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

s t
o i

mp
rov

e b
eh

av
iou

r a
nd

 
att

en
da

nc
e. 

 
Th

is 
inc

lud
es

 ha
vin

g a
  s

ha
red

 vi
sio

n a
nd

 
tak

ing
 co

lle
cti

ve
 re

sp
on

sib
ility

 fo
r p

up
ils 

in 
the

ir a
rea

, a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

for
 m

an
ag

ed
 

mo
ve

s a
nd

 “h
ard

 to
 pl

ac
e” 

pu
pil

s a
nd

 th
e 

pro
vis

ion
 of

 al
ter

na
tiv

e e
du

ca
tio

n f
rom

 th
e 

6th
 da

y o
f e

xc
lus

ion
.   

Lo
ca

lly 
se

co
nd

ary
 he

ad
s h

av
e d

ec
ide

d t
o b

e 
in 

on
e c

oll
ec

tiv
e P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

(w
ith

 th
e P

RU
 

an
d L

A)
 an

d h
av

e s
ign

ed
 an

 in
itia

l 
CO

MP
AC

T o
utl

ini
ng

 th
eir

 re
sp

on
sib

iliti
es

, 
wh

ich
 in

clu
de

s p
urc

ha
sin

g a
lte

rna
tiv

e 
pro

vis
ion

 fro
m 

the
 6th

 da
y o

f a
ny

 ex
clu

sio
n 

fro
m 

the
 PR

U.
   

Th
ey

 in
ten

d t
o r

ev
iew

 fu
rth

er 
the

 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 fo
r “h

ard
 to

 pl
ac

e” 
an

d 
ma

na
ge

d m
ov

es
 an

d r
ev

ise
 th

e C
OM

PA
CT

 
lat

er 
in 

the
 Au

tum
n t

erm
 to

 try
 to

 ag
ree

 a 
mo

re 
mu

tua
lly 

su
pp

ort
ive

 ap
pro

ac
h t

o t
he

 
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

pu
pil

s. 
 

Th
e 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 is
 lik

ely
 to

 b
e 

ex
ten

de
d 

to 

 
Th

e i
nit

ial
 ba

se
lin

e a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

inf
orm

ed
 th

e c
om

mi
ss

ion
ing

 of
 ne

w 
int

erv
en

tio
ns

 in
 ea

rly
 ye

ars
, s

ch
oo

l 
an

d c
om

mu
nit

y s
ett

ing
s. 

  T
he

 fir
st 

an
nu

al 
rev

iew
 w

ill i
nfo

rm
 fu

rth
er 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

thi
s w

ork
. 

Page 254



13
9  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 Fe

br
ua

ry 
20
09
    

the
 14

-19
 H

UB
 an

d i
nv

olv
e t

rai
nin

g a
nd

 F
E 

pro
vid

ers
.  

Th
ey

 a
re 

wo
rki

ng
 o

n 
a 

sh
are

d 
sta

tem
en

t o
f p

rin
cip

les
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

sc
ho

ol 
go

ve
rni

ng
 b

od
ies

 a
nd

 o
the

r i
ns

titu
tio

ns
 in

 
de

vis
ing

 th
eir

 ow
n p

rin
cip

les
 an

d p
oli

cie
s t

o 
su

pp
ort

 be
ha

vio
ur.

 
R5
 

Th
at 

ex
plo

rat
ion

 of
 th

e p
ote

nti
al 

for
 

a 
he

alt
hy

 l
ife

sty
les

 "
loy

alt
y" 

ca
rd 

tha
t 

giv
es

 "
rew

ard
s" 

po
int

s 
or 

cre
dit

s 
to 

en
co

ura
ge

 c
om

mi
tm

en
t 

to 
ex

erc
ise

 o
r 

ea
tin

g h
ea

lth
ily.

 
 

Ar
ea

s o
f ro

llo
ut 

of 
str

ate
gie

s p
ilo

ted
 th

rou
gh

 
BIP

 to
 da

te 
inc

lud
e: 

• 
Co

mm
on

 As
se

ss
me

nt 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
to 

as
se

ss
 th

e n
ee

ds
 of

 ch
ild

ren
 

ho
list

ica
lly.

  
• 

Th
e r

ole
 of

 th
e T

ea
m 

Ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
Ch

ild
 an

d L
ea

d P
rof

es
sio

na
l to

 
su

pp
ort

 vu
lne

rab
le 

ch
ild

ren
 

• 
Mo

ve
me

nt 
of 

the
 re

qu
ire

me
nt 

for
 

alt
ern

ati
ve

 pr
ov

isio
n f

rom
 th

e 1
6th

 da
y 

to 
the

 6th
 da

y o
f a

ny
 ex

clu
sio

n. 
 

• 
Tra

ini
ng

 an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en

t fo
r 

Be
ha

vio
ur 

an
d A

tte
nd

an
ce

 co
-

ord
ina

tor
s i

n s
ch

oo
ls.

  
• 

Na
tio

na
l tr

ain
ing

 pr
og

ram
me

s t
o 

su
pp

ort
 be

ha
vio

ur 
im

pro
ve

me
nt.

  
 Fu

nd
ing

 is
 be

ing
 so

ug
ht 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e E
CM

 
ele

me
nt 

of 
 th

e c
ou

nc
il g

ran
t p

os
t M

arc
h 

20
08

 (e
nd

 of
 BI

P)
: 

• 
An

ti-B
ull

yin
g a

dv
ice

, m
on

ito
rin

g, 
gu

ida
nc

e a
nd

 tra
ini

ng
 

 
LB

TH
 yo

uth
 an

d c
om

mu
nit

y l
ea

rni
ng

 
ha

s p
ilo

ted
 th

e ‘
co

ol 
ca

rd’
 th

at 
pro

vid
ed

 vu
lne

rab
le 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 po
sit

ive
 

ac
tiv

itie
s i

nc
lud

ing
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 le

isu
re 

ce
ntr

es
 an

d g
ym

s. 
 Fu

nd
ing

 is
 be

ing
 

so
ug

ht 
to 

co
nti

nu
e t

his
 sc

he
me

. 
 

Page 255



14
0  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 Fe

br
ua

ry 
20
09
    

• 
Tru

an
cy

 pa
tro

ls 
 

• 
SIP

 / C
AF

 / e
CA

F m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

ad
mi

nis
tra

tio
n  

• 
Le

ad
ers

hip
 fo

r th
e r

oll
 ou

t o
f n

ati
on

al 
tra

ini
ng

 in
 be

ha
vio

ur 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Tra
ns

itio
n W

ork
ers

 
R6
 

Th
at 

a 
loc

al 
all

ian
ce

 be
 fo

rm
ed

 to
 

tak
e u

p t
he

 ch
all

en
ge

 of
 ob

es
ity

. 
 

Se
e 

ab
ov

e 
– 

pro
po

sa
ls 

ag
ree

d 
for

 o
ne

 
Tra

ns
itio

n 
W

ork
er 

to 
be

 a
llo

ca
ted

 to
 e

ac
h 

pa
ire

d 
LA

P 
are

a, 
su

bje
ct 

to 
co

nfi
rm

ati
on

 o
f  

fun
din

g 

 
Tw

o m
ult

i-a
ge

nc
y w

ork
ing

 gr
ou

ps
, 

on
e o

f E
arl

y Y
ea

rs 
an

d o
ne

 fo
r 

Ch
ild

ren
 & 

Yo
un

g P
eo

ple
, h

av
e 

be
en

 se
t u

p a
nd

 ea
ch

 ha
d 

de
ve

lop
ed

 an
d s

tar
ted

 to
 im

ple
me

nt 
an

 ac
tio

n p
lan

 ba
se

d o
n t

he
 

pri
ori

tie
s a

gre
ed

 in
 th

e s
tra

teg
y. 

  
 Du

rin
g 2

00
8/0

9 t
his

 w
ork

 w
as

 co
-

ord
ina

ted
 by

 th
e H

W
,H

Lin
TH

 
ste

eri
ng

 gr
ou

p. 
 Th

is 
ste

eri
ng

 gr
ou

p 
ha

s n
ow

 be
en

 re
pla

ce
d b

y t
he

 
‘be

co
mi

ng
 a 

he
alt

hy
 bo

rou
gh

’ B
oa

rd 
an

d p
roj

ec
t le

ad
s g

rou
p (

se
e 

att
ac

he
d p

ap
ers

) 
 

R7
 

Th
at 

sp
ec

ific
 e

ffo
rt 

is 
ma

de
 t

o 
inc

lud
e 

pri
va

te 
se

cto
r 

sta
ke

ho
lde

rs 
inc

lud
ing

 g
ym

s, 
die

tin
g 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
, 

su
pe

rm
ark

ets
 an

d r
es

tau
ran

ts.
 

 

W
ide

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 on

 a 
pro

toc
ol 

to 
su

pp
ort

 
the

 w
ork

 of
 m

ult
i-a

ge
nc

y T
ea

ms
 Ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

Ch
ild

ren
 an

d t
he

 ro
le 

of 
the

  L
ea

d 
Pr

ofe
ss

ion
al 

 w
as

 co
mp

let
ed

 in
 Au

gu
st 

20
07

.  
Th

e p
rot

oc
ol 

ha
s n

ow
 be

en
 ag

ree
d a

nd
 

 
Th

e n
ew

 ‘b
ec

om
ing

 a 
he

alt
hy

 
bo

rou
gh

’ p
rog

ram
me

 in
clu

de
s 

tar
ge

ted
 w

ork
 w

ith
 sm

all
 an

d 
me

diu
m 

en
ter

pri
se

s, 
foo

d r
eta

ile
rs 

an
d s

ho
ps

. 
 

Page 256



14
1  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 Fe

br
ua

ry 
20
09
    

dis
trib

ute
d. 

 
 Mu

lti-
ag

en
cy

 tra
ini

ng
 on

 th
e p

rot
oc

ol 
an

d 
eff

ec
tiv

e p
rac

tic
e, 

inc
lud

ing
 th

e m
on

ito
rin

g o
f 

ou
tco

me
s, 

sta
rts

 in
 O

cto
be

r 2
00

7. 
 Th

is 
tra

ini
ng

 on
 in

teg
rat

ed
 w

ork
ing

 is
 fo

r 
pra

cti
tio

ne
rs 

an
d t

he
ir m

an
ag

ers
. 

 Ou
tco

me
s o

f th
e w

ork
 of

 m
ult

i-a
ge

nc
y t

ea
ms

 
are

 tra
ck

ed
 th

rou
gh

 th
e C

AF
 re

vie
w 

for
m 

wh
ich

 re
qu

ire
s a

 re
-sc

ore
 of

 th
e i

nit
ial

 
as

se
ss

me
nt 

to 
as

se
ss

 im
pa

ct.
  P

roj
ec

t to
 

de
vis

e e
va

lua
tio

n t
oo

l a
nd

 ev
alu

ate
 

ou
tco

me
s o

f in
ter

ve
nti

on
s o

f e
arl

y C
AF

s 
sta

rtin
g J

an
ua

ry 
20

08
. 

4 n
ew

 lo
ca

lity
 ba

se
d w

eig
ht 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

es
 ar

e b
ein

g 
co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 w
ith

 bi
ds

 in
vit

ed
 fro

m 
pri

va
te 

an
d v

olu
nta

ry 
se

cto
r 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
. 

 

R8
 

Th
at 

res
ou

rce
s 

be
 i

nv
es

ted
 i

n 
ev

en
ts 

an
d 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 t

o 
bri

ng
 t

he
 

all
ian

ce
 t

og
eth

er 
to 

ne
tw

ork
, 

ma
int

ain
 

mo
me

ntu
m 

an
d 

ex
plo

re 
so

lut
ion

s 
tog

eth
er.

  
W

e 
fee

l t
ha

t 
thi

s 
wil

l h
elp

 
de

ve
lop

 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

wo
rki

ng
, 

un
de

rst
an

din
g 

an
d 

inv
olv

em
en

t a
cro

ss
 a 

wid
er 

sp
ec

tru
m 

of 
org

an
isa

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
be

tte
r c

o-o
rdi

na
te 

ac
tio

n. 
W

e 
als

o 
fee

l 
tha

t 
thi

s 
wil

l 
ge

ne
rat

e 
the

 s
ign

ific
an

t 
lea

de
rsh

ip 
an

d a
cti

on
 ar

ou
nd

 ob
es

ity
 th

at 
loc

al 
pe

op
le 

are
 de

ma
nd

ing
. 

 

Th
e r

e-a
pp

oin
tm

en
t o

f a
 Be

ha
vio

ur 
an

d 
Att

en
da

nc
e C

on
su

lta
nt 

in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
 ha

s 
en

ab
led

 lo
ca

l B
eh

av
iou

r a
nd

 At
ten

da
nc

e 
Co

-or
din

ato
r m

ee
tin

gs
 to

 be
 re

-es
tab

lish
ed

 
on

 a 
reg

ula
r b

as
is 

fro
m 

Ju
ly 

20
07

.  T
he

se
 

are
 a 

for
um

 fo
r th

e s
ha

rin
g o

f g
oo

d p
rac

tic
e 

an
d a

re 
su

pp
ort

ed
 in

 tu
rn 

by
 th

e N
ati

on
al 

an
d R

eg
ion

al 
B&

A m
ee

tin
gs

 w
hic

h e
na

ble
 

us
 to

 ac
ce

ss
 an

d s
ha

re 
go

od
 pr

ac
tic

e w
ith

 a 
wid

er 
gro

up
 of

 B&
A l

ea
de

rs 
bo

th 
at 

sc
ho

ol 
an

d s
tra

teg
ic 

lev
el.

  
 

 
Th

e P
CT

 or
ga

nis
ed

 a 
mu

lti-
ag

en
cy

 
sta

ke
ho

lde
rs 

co
nfe

ren
ce

 th
at 

wa
s 

he
ld 

on
 19

th
 M

arc
h 2

00
8 a

nd
 

att
en

de
d b

y m
ore

 th
an

 10
0 

rep
res

en
tat

ive
s f

rom
 th

e h
ea

lth
 

se
rvi

ce
, L

BT
H,

 vo
lun

tar
y a

nd
 pr

iva
te 

se
cto

rs.
  T

his
 w

as
 fo

llo
we

d u
p b

y 
the

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 st

rat
eg

y a
nd

 
es

tab
lish

me
nt 

of 
the

 m
ult

i-a
ge

nc
y 

wo
rki

ng
 gr

ou
ps

.  T
he

 PC
T h

as
 

ma
de

 su
bs

tan
tia

l n
ew

 in
ve

stm
en

ts 
of 

£7
50

k i
n 2

00
8/0

8 a
nd

 ab
ou

t 
£8

00
k i

n 2
00

9/1
0 t

o t
ac

kle
 ob

es
ity

 

Page 257



14
2  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 Fe

br
ua

ry 
20
09
    

(ch
ild

ren
 an

d a
du

lts
). 

 W
e h

av
e s

ec
ure

d a
n a

dd
itio

na
l 

£4
.68

 m
illio

n (
De

ce
mb

er 
20

08
-

Ma
rch

 20
11

) fr
om

 th
e c

ros
s 

go
ve

rnm
en

t o
be

sit
y u

nit
 to

 fu
rth

er 
de

ve
lop

 th
is 

wo
rk.

 
 

R9
 

If o
be

sit
y i

s t
o b

e a
 to

p p
rio

rity
 fo

r 
the

 b
oro

ug
h, 

the
n 

the
 b

oro
ug

h's
 k

ey
 

str
ate

gie
s m

us
t r

efl
ec

t t
his

. I
n 

pa
rtic

ula
r, 

we
 f

ee
l 

tha
t 

the
 L

oc
al 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Fra

me
wo

rk,
 

Op
en

 
Sp

ac
es

 
Str

ate
gy

, 
for

thc
om

ing
 

Pla
y 

str
ate

gy
 

an
d 

the
 

Pr
im

ary
 

Ca
re 

Str
ate

gy
 

sh
ou

ld 
all

 
inc

orp
ora

te 
ex

pli
cit

 a
cti

on
 th

at 
wil

l h
elp

 
red

uc
e o

be
sit

y i
n t

he
 bo

rou
gh

. 
 

A n
um

be
r o

f s
ch

oo
ls 

run
 su

ch
 sc

he
me

s f
rom

 
the

ir d
ele

ga
ted

 bu
dg

et 
an

d s
ch

oo
l a

tta
ch

ed
 

po
lice

 o
ffic

ers
 a

re 
tra

ine
d 

in 
the

 u
se

 o
f 

co
nfl

ict
 re

so
lut

ion
 an

d r
ep

ara
tiv

e j
us

tic
e. 

 
Th

e i
mp

ort
an

t li
nk

s b
etw

ee
n t

ac
klin

g 
ob

es
ity

 an
d t

he
 Lo

ca
l D

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
Fra

me
wo

rk,
 O

pe
n S

pa
ce

s S
tra

teg
y, 

Pla
y S

tra
teg

y h
av

e b
ee

n h
igh

lig
hte

d 
in 

the
 H

W
/H

Lin
TH

 st
rat

eg
y a

nd
 

ha
ve

 be
en

 fu
rth

er 
str

en
gth

en
ed

 in
 

the
 ne

w 
‘be

co
mi

ng
 a 

he
alt

hy
 

bo
rou

gh
’ p

rog
ram

me
 (s

ee
 at

tac
he

d) 

R1
0 
 

Th
at 

mo
re 

pa
rtic

ipa
tiv

e 
an

d 
pro

-
ac

tiv
e 

me
ch

an
ism

s 
be

 u
se

d 
- s

uc
h 

as
 

cro
ss

-cu
ltu

ral
 c

oo
kin

g 
- t

o 
pro

mo
te 

the
 

ke
y 

he
alt

h 
me

ss
ag

es
. 

 A
 s

ign
ific

an
t 

fur
the

r 
be

ne
fit 

wil
l 

be
 

to 
pro

mo
te 

co
mm

un
ity

 co
he

sio
n a

nd
 un

de
rst

an
din

g. 
 

A p
rog

ram
me

 of
 tra

ini
ng

 w
ith

 go
ve

rno
rs 

is 
un

de
rw

ay
 to

 en
su

re 
the

y u
nd

ers
tan

d t
he

ir 
rol

e i
n m

on
ito

rin
g a

nd
 en

su
rin

g t
ha

t th
e 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
of 

be
ha

vio
ur 

an
d u

se
 of

 
ex

clu
sio

ns
 is

 ap
pro

pri
ate

.   
In 

pa
rtic

ula
r th

at 
go

ve
rno

r d
isc

ipl
ine

 co
mm

itte
es

 en
su

re 
the

y 
tak

e a
pp

rop
ria

te 
ac

tio
n t

o u
ph

old
 or

 ov
ert

urn
 

ex
clu

sio
n i

n t
he

 lig
ht 

of 
a j

ud
icia

l re
vie

ws
 

tha
t s

tat
ed

:  
 

 
A r

an
ge

 of
 pa

rtic
ipa

tiv
e a

pp
roa

ch
es

 
ha

ve
 be

en
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 in
clu

din
g 

‘co
ok

 an
d e

at’
 cl

as
se

s a
nd

 ac
tiv

e 
pla

y s
es

sio
ns

. T
he

 PC
T h

as
 

pro
vid

ed
 fu

nd
ing

 fo
r c

om
mu

nit
y 

ba
se

d i
nn

ov
ati

ve
 pi

lot
 pr

oje
cts

 an
d 

fur
the

r fu
nd

ing
 w

ill b
e a

va
ila

ble
 in

 
the

 ‘b
ec

om
ing

 a 
he

alt
hy

 bo
rou

gh
’ 

pro
gra

mm
e f

or 
co

mm
un

ity
 le

d 
pro

jec
ts.

 

Page 258



14
3  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Up

da
te:

 Fe
br
ua

ry 
20
08
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te:
 Fe

br
ua

ry 
20
09
    

’A 
dis

cip
lin

e c
om

mi
tte

e i
s a

 st
atu

tor
y 

co
mm

itte
e, 

no
t a

 to
ke

n c
om

mi
tte

e. 
It i

s n
ot 

the
re 

to 
rub

be
r s

tam
p t

he
 he

ad
 te

ac
he

r’s
 

de
cis

ion
. U

nle
ss

 it 
ac

ts 
as

 an
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
rev

iew
 bo

dy
, u

nle
ss

 it 
ac

ts 
fai

rly
 an

d u
nle

ss
 

it a
pp

ea
rs 

to 
ac

t fa
irly

, it
 se

rve
s n

o p
urp

os
e 

wh
ats

oe
ve

r’ 

  

R1
1 

  
Th

at 
pro

po
sa

ls 
be

 d
ev

elo
pe

d 
sh

ow
ing

 h
ow

 th
es

e 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 ca
n 

be
 

us
ed

 a
s a

 ca
tal

ys
t f

or 
a 

ste
p 

ch
an

ge
 in

 
pro

mo
tin

g 
an

d 
su

sta
ini

ng
 

co
lle

cti
ve

 
ac

tio
n 

on
 o

be
sit

y. 
 A

s 
pa

rt 
of 

thi
s, 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 s

ho
uld

 b
e 

giv
en

 t
o 

the
 

sp
ec

ific
 s

ug
ge

sti
on

s 
hig

hli
gh

ted
 b

y 
the

 
foc

us
 gr

ou
ps

 an
d s

em
ina

r. 
 

Th
e s

tak
eh

old
er’

s c
on

fer
en

ce
 on

 19
th

 M
arc

h 
wil

l p
rov

ide
 an

 op
po

rtu
nit

y f
or 

wid
en

ing
 

inv
olv

em
en

t. 
 

Se
e a

bo
ve

 an
d a

tta
ch

ed
 st

rat
eg

y 
do

cu
me

nts
 an

d p
lan

s. 

R1
2 

  
Th

e 
He

alt
h 

Sc
rut

iny
 P

an
el 

fee
ls 

tha
t th

is 
is 

a c
ruc

ial
 is

su
e f

or 
the

 bo
rou

gh
 

an
d 

to 
en

co
ura

ge
 f

urt
he

r 
de

ba
te 

an
d 

dis
cu

ss
ion

 w
e r

eq
ue

st 
tha

t a
 re

sp
on

se
 be

 
pre

se
nte

d t
o t

he
 H

ea
lth

 S
cru

tin
y P

an
el 

at 
a f

utu
re 

he
alt

h s
em

ina
r. 

 

W
e w

elc
om

e t
he

 op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o p

res
en

t 
fur

the
r in

for
ma

tio
n o

n t
he

 de
ve

lop
ing

 
str

ate
gy

 fo
r d

eb
ate

 an
d d

isc
us

sio
n. 

 
Du

rin
g 2

00
8/0

9 w
e f

ee
l th

at 
we

 ha
ve

 
ma

de
 su

bs
tan

tia
l p

rog
res

s i
n 

de
ve

lop
ing

 th
is 

wo
rk 

an
d w

ou
ld 

we
lco

me
 th

e o
pp

ort
un

ity
 to

 pr
es

en
t 

it t
o t

he
 H

ea
lth

 Sc
rut

iny
 Pa

ne
l. 

     

Page 259



14
4  

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

19
 

Re
sp

on
se
 to

 Sc
ru
tin

y W
or
kin

g G
ro
up

 R
ep

or
t o

n U
se
 of

 C
on

su
lta

nts
 

 Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

 R1
 

Th
at 

the
 fo

llo
win

g c
rite

ria
 

an
d d

efi
nit

ion
 of

 a 
co

ns
ult

an
t 

to 
be

 ad
op

ted
 ac

ros
s t

he
 

Co
un

cil.
 

Co
ns

ult
an

ts:
 

• 
Ha

ve
 a 

de
fin

ed
 w

ork
 

sc
op

e w
ith

 de
live

rab
les

 
• 

Of
ten

 pr
ov

ide
 a 

rep
ort

 as
 

an
 ou

tpu
t th

at 
pro

vid
es

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s f

or 
fur

the
r a

cti
on

 bu
t th

e 
co

ns
ult

an
t is

 no
t 

co
ntr

ac
ted

 to
 de

live
r a

t 
tha

t ti
me

. 
• 

Ha
ve

 pa
ym

en
t c

on
tin

ge
nt 

up
on

 co
mp

let
ion

 of
 

sta
ge

d c
om

ple
tio

n o
f th

e 
wo

rk 
• 

Do
 no

t a
ct 

as
 st

aff
 

me
mb

ers
 i.e

. d
o n

ot 
ha

ve
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s e

-m
ail

 
ad

dre
ss

es
, p

ho
ne

 
nu

mb
ers

 or
 de

sk
s. 

• 
Ma

y b
e a

ble
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 a 

 Th
e C

on
tra

cti
ng

 To
olk

it, 
inc

lud
ing

 
gu

ida
nc

e o
n c

om
mi

ss
ion

ing
 of

 
co

ns
ult

an
ts,

 is
 cu

rre
ntl

y i
n d

raf
t 

for
m.

 
          

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Th
e C

on
tra

cti
ng

 to
olk

it i
s n

ow
 

ne
ari

ng
 co

mp
let

ion
 an

d i
s d

ue
 to

 be
 

lau
nc

he
d b

efo
re 

the
 en

d o
f A

pri
l. 

Th
is 

ha
s a

 sp
ec

ific
 gu

ida
nc

e o
n t

he
 

pro
ce

du
res

 an
d t

ec
hn

iqu
es

 fo
r 

ap
po

int
ing

 an
d w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 
co

ns
ult

an
ts.

 

Page 260



14
5  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

su
bs

titu
te 

to 
un

de
rta

ke
 

the
 w

ork
 

• 
Ar

e n
ot 

in 
a t

em
pla

ted
 

po
sit

ion
 fo

r th
e p

urp
os

es
 

of 
the

 C
om

en
su

ra 
co

ntr
ac

t –
 i.e

. th
ey

 do
 no

t 
rel

ate
 to

 st
an

da
rd 

job
s 

wit
hin

 th
e C

ou
nc

il, 
wh

ich
 

co
uld

 be
 pr

ov
ide

d b
y 

eit
he

r p
erm

an
en

t o
r 

tem
po

rar
y s

taf
f 

• 
Ar

e c
on

tra
ctu

all
y 

res
po

ns
ibl

e f
or 

the
ir 

ou
tpu

ts 
• 

Ar
e l

iab
le 

for
 th

eir
 ow

n 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 an
d t

he
 

co
nte

nt 
of 

the
ir w

ork
 

  
R 

2 
Th

at 
fut

ure
 w

ork
 on

 th
e 

pro
cu

rem
en

t s
tra

teg
y t

o 
inc

lud
e p

rog
ram

me
 of

 
ac

tiv
itie

s t
o h

elp
 di

ss
em

ina
te 

an
d e

mb
ed

 pr
oc

ure
me

nt 
rel

ate
d p

oli
cie

s w
ith

in 
the

 
org

an
isa

tio
n, 

e.g
. 

pre
se

nta
tio

ns
 at

 al
l 

Dir
ec

tor
ate

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

  De
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

Str
ate

gy
 is

 on
 ta

rge
t. 

      

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Pr
es

en
tat

ion
s /

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 

se
ss

ion
s c

ov
eri

ng
 th

e n
ew

 
Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

Str
ate

gy
 an

d 
Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

Ru
les

 ar
e s

ch
ed

ule
d 

for
 M

arc
h. 

Page 261



14
6  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Te
am

 m
ee

tin
gs

 an
d o

ffic
er 

tra
ini

ng
.  

 
Th

e C
od

e o
f P

rac
tic

e h
as

 be
en

 
iss

ue
d f

or 
co

mm
en

ts,
 an

d i
s 

cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g r

ed
raf

ted
 in

 th
e l

igh
t 

of 
fee

db
ac

k. 
 Th

e r
es

tru
ctu

re 
of 

the
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

Se
rvi

ce
 is

 pr
oc

ee
din

g a
cc

ord
ing

 to
 

pla
n. 

 To
llg

ate
s a

re 
sti

ll in
 tri

al 
ph

as
e, 

bu
t 

du
e f

or 
for

ma
l la

un
ch

 in
 O

cto
be

r. 
 Re

fer
en

ce
 to

 co
ns

ult
an

cy
 co

ntr
ac

ts 
is 

inc
lud

ed
 in

 th
e i

nte
rna

l tr
ain

ing
 

co
urs

es
, w

hic
h r

un
 fro

m 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
. 

 
R 

3 
Th

at 
fin

an
cia

l re
po

rtin
g o

n 
pro

cu
rem

en
t o

f c
on

su
lta

nc
y 

se
rvi

ce
s s

ho
uld

 cl
ea

rly
 

ide
nti

fy 
so

urc
e o

f fu
nd

ing
 

an
d r

ing
-fe

nc
ed

 fu
nd

ing
 su

ch
 

as
 Se

cti
on

 10
6 o

r L
ott

ery
 

Fu
nd

s. 
 

 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

Ca
teg

ory
 Pl

an
s i

s 
de

pe
nd

en
t u

po
n a

pp
oin

tm
en

t o
f 

Ca
teg

ory
 M

an
ag

ers
 fo

llo
win

g t
he

 
res

tru
ctu

re 
of 

the
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

Se
rvi

ce
. T

he
se

 po
sts

 ha
ve

 be
en

 
ad

ve
rtis

ed
 in

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08

. 
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 Ca
teg

ory
 M

an
ag

er 
for

 C
orp

ora
te 

Se
rvi

ce
s, 

wit
h r

es
po

ns
ibi

lity
 fo

r 
co

ns
ult

an
cy

 se
rvi

ce
s i

s n
ow

 in
 

pla
ce

. A
 fo

rm
 de

sig
ne

d f
or 

rec
ord

ing
 co

ns
ult

an
cy

 ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
ha

s b
ee

n a
gre

ed
 an

d p
lac

ed
 on

 th
e 

int
ran

et.
 

    

Page 262



14
7  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

  

 R4
 

Th
at 

tar
ge

ts 
for

 re
du

cin
g 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
on

 co
ns

ult
an

ts 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 hi

gh
lig

hte
d a

s a
n 

ob
jec

tiv
e i

n t
he

 To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pla
n. 

 Th
e 

Co
rpo

rat
e M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Te

am
 to

 se
t in

dic
ati

ve
 

tar
ge

ts 
an

d f
or 

pro
gre

ss
 to

 
be

 re
po

rte
d b

ac
k. 

 Th
e a

uth
ori

ty 
sp

en
ds

 re
lat

ive
ly 

litt
le 

on
 c

on
su

lta
nts

 (
aro

un
d 

0.1
% 

of 
tot

al 
sp

en
d o

n a
ve

rag
e o

ve
r r

ec
en

t 
ye

ars
), 

an
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
va

rie
s 

ma
rke

dly
 fr

om
 ye

ar 
to 

ye
ar.

  O
fte

n 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

on
 c

on
su

lta
nts

 is
 th

e 
mo

st 
eff

ec
tiv

e 
wa

y 
of 

de
live

rin
g 

be
ne

fits
 to

 th
e 

co
mm

un
ity

.  
It 

is 
pro

po
se

d 
tha

t, 
wh

ile
 C

MT
 s

ho
uld

 
mo

nit
or 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
on

 co
ns

ult
an

ts,
 

se
ttin

g 
a 

tar
ge

t m
ay

 b
e 

co
un

ter
-

pro
du

cti
ve

 in
 th

e 
lon

g 
run

, a
nd

 th
e 

foc
us

 
sh

ou
ld 

ins
tea

d 
be

 
on

 
as

su
ran

ce
 

tha
t 

co
ns

ult
an

ts 
are

 
us

ed
 in

 th
e r

igh
t c

irc
um

sta
nc

es
 an

d 
the

ir 
ou

tpu
ts 

are
 m

on
ito

red
 a

nd
 

ma
na

ge
d c

orr
ec

tly
.   

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 

R5
 

Th
at 

dir
ec

tor
ate

s r
ev

iew
 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
on

 co
ns

ult
an

ts 
to 

as
se

ss
 th

e e
xte

nt 
to 

wh
ich

 
the

y a
re 

us
ed

 an
d t

o 
es

tab
lish

 a 
ba

se
lin

e f
or 

Dir
ec

tor
ate

s a
re 

req
uir

ed
 to

 su
bm

it 
mo

nth
ly 

rep
ort

s t
o t

he
 C

orp
ora

te 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 re

so
urc

es
 on

 th
eir

 us
e o

f 
co

ns
ult

an
ts.

 D
ire

cto
rat

e 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Te
am

s r
ev

iew
 th

e u
se

 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

 

Page 263



14
8  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

rev
iew

ing
 th

eir
 us

e o
f 

co
ns

ult
an

ts.
  D

ire
cto

rat
es

 
sh

ou
ld 

ide
nti

fy 
are

as
 an

d s
et 

tar
ge

ts 
for

 re
du

cin
g f

utu
re 

sp
en

d i
n a

lig
nm

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
Co

un
cil’

s h
ori

zo
nta

l s
av

ing
s 

ex
erc

ise
. 

 of 
co

ns
ult

an
ts 

on
 a 

reg
ula

r b
as

is.
 

 
R 

6 
Th

at 
dir

ec
tor

ate
s s

ho
uld

 
inc

rea
sin

gly
 us

e i
nte

rna
l 

se
co

nd
me

nts
 an

d g
rad

ua
te 

tra
ine

es
 fo

r o
ne

-of
f p

roj
ec

ts,
 

tyi
ng

 in
 w

ith
 th

e c
orp

ora
te 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o d
ev

elo
pin

g s
taf

f.    To
 be

 in
clu

de
d i

n P
roc

ure
me

nt 
Gu

ida
nc

e r
efe

ren
ce

d i
n R

1 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
Th

is 
is 

inc
lud

ed
 in

 th
e t

oo
lkit

, 
ref

err
ed

 to
 in

 R
1. 

R 
7 

Th
at 

op
tio

ns
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 

ex
plo

red
 to

 en
ab

le 
the

 
co

rpo
rat

e C
on

su
lta

tio
n a

nd
 

Inv
olv

em
en

t te
am

 to
 be

co
me

 
a g

ate
ke

ep
er 

for
 pr

oc
uri

ng
 

ex
ter

na
l c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
se

rvi
ce

s.   Th
e 

Be
st 

Va
lue

 
Re

vie
w 

of 
Co

ns
ult

ati
on

 
an

d 
Inv

olv
em

en
t  

ide
nti

fie
d 

a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 

to 
ad

op
t 

go
od

 
pra

cti
ce

 
an

d 
rat

ion
ali

se
 

the
 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 

an
d 

en
ga

ge
me

nt 
ac

tiv
itie

s a
cro

ss
 th

e 
Co

un
cil,

 w
hic

h 
are

 ye
t to

 be
 im

ple
me

nte
d. 

 T
his

 is
 

an
 op

po
rtu

nit
y t

o t
ak

e f
orw

ard
 th

es
e 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s. 
  

 1. 
 Pr

op
os

ed
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 ac
tiv

itie
s 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

            

Page 264



14
9  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

to 
be

 ap
pro

ve
d b

y t
he

 Pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n 
an

d E
ng

ag
em

en
t te

am
 an

d t
o 

de
ve

lop
 an

d a
gre

e a
 se

t o
f 

gu
ide

lin
es

 de
tai

lin
g t

he
 ap

pro
va

l 
pro

ce
ss

.  
 In 

ord
er 

to 
fac

ilita
te 

the
 ga

tek
ee

pe
r 

rol
e i

t is
 pr

op
os

ed
 

tha
t 

CM
T 

no
mi

na
te 

Co
ns

ult
ati

on
 

Le
ad

s 
in 

Dir
ec

tor
ate

s 
an

d 
for

 
Pa

rtn
er 

Or
ga

nis
ati

on
s 

to 
no

mi
na

te 
lea

d 
pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n 

sta
ff 

wit
hin

 th
eir

 
org

an
isa

tio
ns

. 
 2. 

 To
 de

ve
lop

 a 
sh

are
d r

es
ou

rce
 

for
 un

de
rta

kin
g o

pin
ion

 re
se

arc
h 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f 
pro

po
sa

ls 
wit

h E
PS

 C
PA

G.
 

     Op
tio

ns
 w

ill 
be

 ex
plo

red
 fo

r g
rea

ter
 

sh
are

d 
wo

rki
ng

 
ac

ros
s 

Co
un

cil 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
s. 

 
An

y 
ad

dit
ion

al 
ac

tiv
itie

s 
wil

l 
ne

ed
 

to 
be

 
me

t 
thr

ou
gh

 
ex

ist
ing

 
res

ou
rce

 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

. 

      Th
e T

HP
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
 ha

ve
 be

en
 

as
ke

d f
or 

Le
ad

s i
n e

ac
h a

rea
 (J

an
 

20
09

). 
     A n

ew
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a ‘

Ro
am

ing
 U

nit
’ is

 be
ing

 pi
lot

ed
 in

 
Fe

b /
 M

arc
h. 

 If 
su

cc
es

sfu
l, t

he
 un

it 
wil

l b
e a

 co
st 

eff
ec

tiv
e w

ay
 of

 
ca

ptu
rin

g p
ub

lic 
op

ini
on

s. 
A n

ew
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n f

ram
ew

ork
 is

 
cu

rre
ntl

y o
ut 

for
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 
pa

rtn
ers

. 
 Th

e T
HP

 ar
e u

nd
ert

ak
ing

 a 
sh

are
d 

Se
rvi

ce
s R

ev
iew

 w
hic

h i
s b

ein
g 

pro
gre

ss
ed

 by
 th

e T
HP

 Ex
ec

uti
ve

. 
   

Page 265



15
0  

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Da
te 

Up
da

te 
– M

arc
h 2

00
9 

 A 
joi

nt 
po

st 
is 

cu
rre

ntl
y 

be
ing

 
ex

plo
red

 w
ith

 t
he

 P
CT

 a
t 

the
 

mo
me

nt 
to 

co
ord

ina
te 

ac
tiv

ity
 w

ith
 

the
 P

CT
 t

ho
ug

h 
no

t 
foc

us
ed

 o
n 

tra
ini

ng
 or

 de
live

ry.
 

 

 Th
e P

CT
 ha

ve
 gi

ve
n a

n ‘
In 

Pr
inc

ipl
e’ 

ag
ree

me
nt 

to 
fun

d a
 jo

int
 

po
st.

  F
ina

l a
gre

em
en

t w
ill b

e 
ga

ine
d b

y M
arc

h 2
00

9. 
 

                      

Page 266



15
1  

                  

Page 267



Page 268

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	8.1 Children and Young People's Plan 2009-12
	9.1 Members Enquiries
	9.2 Strategic Plan Corporate Revenue Monitoring Report 2008-09 (3rd Quarter)
	Appendix 1 - THI Q3 - LAB - 10-feb-09
	Appendix 2 PRIORITY Q3 - - LAB - 10-feb-09
	Appendix 3A-G - Projected Outturn 26-02-09
	Appendix 4A-C - Trading Accounts
	Appendix 5 -  Budget Adjustments 12-02-09
	Appendix 6 - Efficiency Statement

	10.1 Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation Tracking Report

